
1 March 13, 2023 
 

 BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION AGENDA 
 MARCH 13, 2023 

MUNICIPAL BUILDING, 151 MARTIN 
7:30 P.M. 

 
ATTENTION: This regular meeting will begin at 7:30 pm or soon thereafter the conclusion of the 
preceding Special City Commission Meeting. 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
Therese Longe, Mayor 
 

II. ROLL CALL 
Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk  
 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS, 
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF 
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS. 

ANNOUNCEMENTS 
• The City recommends members of the public wear a mask if they have been exposed to COVID-

19 or have a respiratory illness. City staff, City Commission and all board and committee 
members must wear a mask if they have been exposed to COVID-19 or actively have a 
respiratory illness. The City continues to provide KN-95 respirators and triple-layered masks 
for attendees. 
 

• The Oakland County Treasurer’s Office is in the final stretch of its Foreclosure Prevention 
efforts. The tax foreclosure deadline for the 2020 or prior year taxes is on March 31, 2023. A 
property will be considered foreclosed if 2020 or prior taxes are not paid off by March 31, 2023 
or if a repayment schedule hasn’t been filed with the County Treasurer’s office by March 31, 
2023.  
 
Since December of 2022, the County Treasurer’s office has conducted over 1,000 Taxpayer 
Assistance Meetings to assist taxpayers with keeping their properties by working with them to 
get on a repayment schedule and/or by identifying resources that may be beneficial to their 
situation. The Oakland County Treasurer’s Office is here to help and strongly encourages 
taxpayers to contact the office before the tax foreclosure deadline if they have delinquent taxes 
for 2020 or prior tax years. Taxpayers interested in scheduling a Taxpayer Assistance Meeting 
may call the Oakland County Treasurer’s Office at 248-858-0611 or at 
www.oakgov.com/treasurer. Additional information from the Oakland County Treasurer’s 
Office is included in the beginning of this agenda packet.  

 
• City Manager Recruitment – If a conclusion was reached in the preceding 6:30 p.m. Special 

Meeting Mayor Longe will announce the results.  
 

• Happy Birthday Commissioner Baller! 
 

http://www.oakgov.com/treasurer


2 March 13, 2023 
 

APPOINTMENTS 
A. Appointment to the Multi-Modal Transportation Board 

o Mark Doolittle 

To appoint ________ as a regular member to the Multi-Modal Transportation Board to serve a 
three-year term to expire March 24, 2026. 

 
IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 

 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
All items listed on the consent agenda are considered to be routine and will be enacted by one motion 
and approved by a roll call vote.  There will be no separate discussion of the items unless a 
Commissioner or citizen so requests, in which event the item will be removed from the general order 
of business and considered under the last item of new business. 

A. Resolution to approve the City Commission meeting minutes of February 27, 2023. 
 

B. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, 
dated March 1, 2023 in the amount of $5,602,741.71. 
 

C. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, 
dated March 8, 2023 in the amount of $1,358,948.79. 

 
D. Resolution to approve the agreement with Zamboni Company USA, Inc. for the purchase 

of an Electric Zamboni model 552 AC lithium battery option in an amount not to exceed 
$192,718.80.  In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement 
on behalf of the City.  The $25,000 deposit will be paid out of account #661.0-441.006-
971 immediately.  Funding for the remainder of the purchase has been requested and 
budgeted in account #661.0-441.006-971.0100 for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. 
 

E. Resolution to approve an agreement with L.G.K. Construction, Inc., for Birmingham 
Museum-Phase II Allen House Historic Window Restoration Project in the amount not to 
exceed $178,900. In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement 
on behalf of the City. The window restoration portion of the project of $159,100 is to be 
charged to 101.0-804.002-811.0000 in fiscal year 2022-2023, while the storm window 
portion of the project of $19,800 is to be charged to 101.0-804.002-811.0000 in fiscal 
year 2023-2024. 
 

 
 
 
 
 



3 March 13, 2023 
 

F. Resolution to approve the construction project budget and award the Parking Lot No. 5 
Slope Repairs #4-23 (S) to V.I.L. Construction in the amount of $230,093.00. In addition, 
to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreements on behalf of the City. Funding 
for this project will be charged to the following accounts:   

Fund Account Fund ID Number 
Project 
Award 

5% 
Contingencies Total 

Automobile 
Parking System 514.1-594.005-981.0100 $230,093.00 $11,504.65 $241,597.65 

 
Further, to approve the appropriation and amendment of the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget 
as follows: 

 
Automobile Parking System: 

 
Revenues:  
Draw from Fund Balance 514.1-000.000-400.0000 $136,600.00 

 
Expenditures:  
Public Improvements 514.1-594.005-981.0100 $136,600.00 

 
G. Resolution to approve the appropriation and amendment of the 2022/2023 budget for the 

emergency repairs of the parking lot screenwalls at the Shain Park Parking Lot and Parking 
Lot No. 6 as follows:   

General Fund:   
 Revenues:  

Draw from Fund Balance 101.0-000.000-400.0000 $2,500.00 
 Expenditures:  

Other Contractual Services 101.0-751.000-811.0000 $2,500.00 
Automobile Parking System:   
 Revenues:  

Draw from Fund Balance 514.1-000.000-400.0000 $7,500.00 
 Expenditures:  

Other Contractual Services 514.1-594.006-811.0000 $7,500.00 
 

H. Resolution approving the addendum to the contract to Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, 
Inc. for the proposed Repair Design & Construction Document Development for Park, 
Peabody, Pierce, Chester, and North Old Woodward parking Structures in the amount of 
$192,000.00; further, to charge the contract to each structure's capital outlay account as 
costs are incurred. Furthermore, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the contract 
on behalf of the city. 
 

I. Resolution to set a public hearing date of April 3, 2023 to consider the lot combination of 
34350 Woodward Ave and 909-911 Haynes Street, parcel # 19-36-281-022 and parcel # 
19-36-281-030. 

 
VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 

 
 



4 March 13, 2023 
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
A. Public Hearing for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street – Fred Lavery Porsche 

Dealership – Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan & Design Review 
1. Motion to postpone the public hearing and consideration of the Special Land Use 

Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 34350 Woodward Ave 
and 909-911 Haynes Street – Fred Lavery Porsche – to April 3, 2023 per the 
request of the applicant to provide for a simplified review process with the Special 
Land Use Permit and lot combination applications being considered at the same 
meeting. 

 
 

B. Resolution to approve the construction project budget and award Lincoln Hills Golf Couse 
– Hole #1 Tee-Box and Cart Path Improvements Contract #2-23 (G) to Jacklyn 
Contracting, LLC in the amount of $898,469.00.  In addition, to authorize the Mayor and 
City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the City after the review of Jacklyn 
Contracting, LLC’s insurance and bonds, contingent upon execution of the agreement and 
meeting all insurance and bonding requirements. Funding for this project has been 
budgeted in the following account: 

Fund Account Fund ID Number  Project Award 
5% 
Contingencies Total 

Recreation & 
Culture - Public 
Improvements 

584.1-753.001-
981.0100 

 
$898,469.00 $44,923.45 $943,392.45 

 
Further, to approve the appropriation and amendment of the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget 
as follows: 
 
Recreation & Culture   
 Revenues: 

584.1-000.000-400.0000  Draw from Fund Balance $943,400.00 
 Total Revenue    $ 943,400.00 
 Expenditures:  

584.1-753.001-981.0100 Public Improvement $ 943,400.00 
 Total Expenses  $ 943,400.00 

 
C. Continued deliberations from the preceding Special Meeting if necessary regarding the 

City Manager Search 
1. Resolution selecting -------------------- as the next Birmingham City Manager 

subject to a mutually agreeable employment agreement establishing the terms 
and conditions of employment between the selected candidate and the City of 
Birmingham. 

 
D. Commission discussion on items from a prior meeting 

1. Establishment of an Ad Hoc Senior Services Committee 
2. Green Space East of Pat Andrews Bench & Little Library 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 



5 March 13, 2023 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
  

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports 

1. Notice of intention to appoint to the Board of Building Trades Appeals 
2. Notice of intention to appoint to the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority 

B. Commissioner Comments 
C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 
D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 

1. City Commission Code of Conduct Review 
 

INFORMATION ONLY  
 

 XI. ADJOURN 
Should you wish to participate in this meeting, you are invited to attend the meeting in person or 
virtually through ZOOM:   https://zoom.us/j/655079760       Meeting ID: 655 079 760  
You may also present your written statement to the City Commission, City of Birmingham, 151 Martin 
Street, P.O. Box 3001, Birmingham, Michigan 48012-3001 prior to the hearing.   
 
NOTICE:  Individuals requiring accommodations, such as mobility, visual, hearing, interpreter or other assistance, for 
effective participation in this meeting should contact the City Clerk's Office at (248) 530-1880 (voice), or (248) 644-
5115 (TDD) at least one day in advance to request mobility, visual, hearing or other assistance.  
Las personas que requieren alojamiento, tales como servicios de interpretación, la participación efectiva en esta reunión 
deben ponerse en contacto con la Oficina del Secretario Municipal al (248) 530-1880 por lo menos el día antes de la 
reunión pública. (Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964). 

https://zoom.us/j/655079760
tel:%28248%29%20530-1880


NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
MULTI-MODAL TRANSPORTATION BOARD 

At the regular meeting of Monday, March 13, 2023, the Birmingham City Commission intends 
to appoint to the Multi-Modal Transportation Board one regular member to serve a three-year 
term to expire March 24, 2026. 

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, March 8, 2023.  These documents will appear in the 
public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on appointments.  

In so far as possible, the seven-member committee shall be composed of the following: one 
pedestrian advocate member; one member with a mobility or vision impairment; one 
member with traffic-focused education and/or experience; one bicycle advocate member; 
one member with urban planning, architecture or design education and/or experience; and 
two members at large living in different geographical areas of the City.  Applicants for this 
position do not have be a qualified elector or property owner in Birmingham. 

Duties of the Multi-Modal Transportation Board 
The purpose of the Multi-Modal Transportation Board shall be to assist in maintaining the 
safe and efficient movement of motorized and non-motorized vehicles and pedestrians on 
the streets and walkways of the city and to advise the City Commission on the 
implementation of the Multi-Modal Transportation Plan, including reviewing project phasing 
and budgeting. 

Applicant(s) Presented For City Commission Consideration: 

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
To appoint ________ as a regular member to the Multi-Modal Transportation Board to 
serve a three-year term to expire March 24, 2026.

Applicant Criteria Qualifications 
Traffic-focused education/experience, mobility/vision 
impairment, urban planning, architecture or design 
education/experience. In addition, 2 members at large living 
in different geographical areas of the City. 

Mark 
Doolittle 

Resident Current MMTB Regular member, traffic-focused experience,  
urban planning/architecture design experience 

3A

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


 MULTI-MODAL 
TRANSPORTATION BOARD

 
Chapter 110, Sections 110-26 & 110-27 
 
The purpose of the Multi-Modal Transportation Board shall be to assist in maintaining the safe and efficient
movement of motorized and non-motorized vehicles and pedestrians on the streets and walkways of the city and to
advise the city commission on the implementation of the Multi-Modal Transportation Plan, including reviewing
project phasing and budgeting.  
 
In so far as possible, the seven member committee shall be composed of the following: one pedestrian advocate
member; one member with a mobility or vision impairment; one member with traffic-focused education and/or
experience; one bicycle advocate member; one member with urban planning, architecture or design education
and/or experience; and two members at large living in different geographical areas of the city.  At least five Board
members shall be electors or property owners in the city.  The remaining Board members may or may not be
electors or property owners in the City. 
 
Term: Three years. 
 

Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Davies Gordon

969 Bennaville

(248)701-5462

gordonhdavies@yahoo.com

Alternate

Birmingham 48009

10/27/202510/24/2022

Doolittle Mark

1305 S. Bates St

(248) 535-0632

mark.j.doolittle@gmail.com

Regular Member at large from a 
different geographical area of city

Birmingham 48009

3/24/2023

Hanawalt Sophie
Student representative

12/31/20232/27/2023

Wednesday, March 1, 2023 Page 1 of 3

3A

cwoods
Rectangle



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

Hillberg Patrick

1853 Fairview

(248)797-1804

patrick_hillberg@hotmail.com

Alternate

Birmingham 48009

10/27/202510/24/2022

Hocker David

898 Pilgrim

(313) 917-4718

dhocker@globalfacilitiesinc.com

Regular member at large/plan 
experience

Birmingham 48009

3/24/202511/23/2020

Long Anthony

1323 Bennaville Ave

(586) 904-6895

ajlong1080@gmail.com

Regular member at large from 
different geographical area of city

Birmingham 48009

3/24/20251/24/2022

Peard Thomas

645 Suffield

(248) 770-7761

thomaspeard@yahoo.com

Urban planning /architecture /design

Birmingham 48009

3/24/20251/13/2020

Policicchio Victoria

236 Pleasant

(248) 376-6266

vickipolicicchio@gmail.com

Pedestrian advocate

Birmingham 48009

3/24/20241/24/2022

Sharma Angie
Student representative

12/31/20232/27/2023

Wednesday, March 1, 2023 Page 2 of 3

3A



Last Name First Name
Home Address

Home
Business 
E-Mail Appointed Term Expires

White Doug

1342 Holland St.

(248) 825-2223

dwhite10@peoplepc.com

Bicycle/pedestrian advocate

Birmingham 48009

3/24/20245/14/2018

Zane Joseph

1014 Chestnut St.

(248) 563-3381

Joseph.Michael.Zane@gmail.com

Regular Member

Birmingham 48009

3/24/202512/10/2018

Wednesday, March 1, 2023 Page 3 of 3

3A



Name of Board: Year: 2021
Members Required for Quorum: 4

MEMBER NAME 2/4 3/4 4/8 5/6 6/3 7/8 8/5 9/2 10/7 11/4 12/2
SPEC 
MTG

SPEC 
MTG

Total 
Mtgs. 
Att.

Total 
Absent

Percent 
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS
Johanna Slanga P P A A A P A CA 3 5 38%
Amanda Fishburn CA A A P
Andrew Haig P P P P P P P CA P P A 9 2 82%
David Hocker P P P P P P P CA P P P 10 1 91%
Tom Peard P P P P P P P CA A P P 9 2 82%
Katie Schafer P P A P P P P CA P P A 8 3 73%
Doug White A P P P P P A CA P P A 7 4 64%
David Lurie P A P P P P P CA A P P 8 3 73%
ALTERNATES
Joe Zane A P A P P P A CA P P P 7 4 64%
Justin Schoener (Stdnt) NA P A A A A A CA A A A 1 9 10%
Alex Walters (Stdnt) NA P P P P P A CA A P P 7 3 70%
Lauren Morris (Stdnt) NA A A A A P A CA A A A 1 9 10%
TOTAL 6 9 6 8 8 10 5 0 5 8 6 0 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

MULTI-MODAL TRANSPORTATION BOARD

3A



Name of Board: Year: 2022
Members Required for Quorum: 4

MEMBER NAME 2/3 3/3 4/7 5/5 6/2
SPEC 
MTG 7/7 8/4 9/1 10/6 11/3 12/1

SPEC 
MTG

Total 
Mtgs. 
Att.

Total 
Absent

Percent 
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS 5/19
Anthony Long P p P P P A P P A P p A 9 3 75%
Joe Zane P P A A P P P P P P A P 9 3 75%
Victoria Policicchio P P P P P A A P P A P P 9 3 75%
David Hocker P P P P P P P P P P P P 12 0 100%
Tom Peard P P P P P P A A P P P P 10 2 83%
Doug White P P P P P P P P P A p A 10 2 83%
Michael St. Germaine NA NA P P A A A A NA NA NA NA 2 4 33%
Mark Doolittle NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA P P
ALTERNATES
Amanda Fishburn A A A P A A A A A A NA NA 1 9 10%
Mark Doolittle NA NA P A P A P A P P NA NA 5 3 63%
Gordon Davies NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA P A
Patrick Hillberg NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA NA P P

0 0 #DIV/0!
TOTAL 6 6 7 7 7 4 5 5 6 5 8 6 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

MULTI-MODAL TRANSPORTATION BOARD

3A



Name of Board: Year: 2023
Members Required for Quorum: 4

MEMBER NAME 1/5 2/2 3/2
SPEC 
MTG

Total
Mtgs. 
Att.

Total 
Absent

Percent
Attended 
Available

REGULAR MEMBERS
Anthony Long CM P A 1 1 50%
Joe Zane CM P P 2 0 100%
Victoria Policicchio CM P P 2 0 100%
David Hocker CM A P 1 1 50%
Tom Peard CM P P 2 0 100%
Doug White CM P P 2 0 100%
Mark Doolittle CM P P 2 0 100%
ALTERNATES
Gordon Davies CM P P
Patrick Hillberg CM P P

0 0 #DIV/0!
TOTAL 0 8 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

KEY: A = Member absent
P = Member present or available

CP = Member available, but meeting canceled  for lack of quorum
CA = Member not available and meeting was canceled for lack of quorum
NA = Member not appointed at that time

NM = No meeting scheduled that month
CM = Meeting canceled for lack of business items

Department Head Signature

CITY BOARD/COMMITTEE ATTENDANCE RECORD

MULTI-MODAL TRANSPORTATION BOARD

3A



APPLICATION FOR CITY BOARD OR COMMITTEE 

Thank you for your interest in serving on a Board or Committee.  The purpose of this form is to provide the City 
Commission with basic information about applicants considered for appointment.  NOTE: Completed applications are 
included in the City Commission agenda packets.  The information included on this form is open to the public.  All Board 
and Committee members are subject to the provisions of the Ethics Ordinance (Chapter 2, Article IX of the City Code). 

Information on various Boards and Committees and a list of current openings can be found on the City website at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities.      

(Please print clearly) 

Board/Committee of Interest ___________________________________________________________________________ 

Specific Category/Vacancy on Board ____________________________ (see back of this form for information) 

Name __________________________________________ Phone _________________________________ 

Residential Address _______________________________ Email *_________________________________ 

Residential City, Zip _______________________________ Length of Residence ______________________ 

Business Address _________________________________ Occupation _____________________________ 

Business City, Zip _________________________________ 

Reason for Interest:  Explain how your background and skills will enhance the board to which you have applied ________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

List your related employment experience _________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

List your related community activities ____________________________________________________________________ 
__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

List your related educational experience __________________________________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

To the best of your knowledge, do you or a member of your immediate family have any direct financial or business 
relationships with any supplier, service provider or contractor of the City of Birmingham from which you or they derive 
direct compensation or financial benefit?  If yes, please explain: ______________________________________________ 

__________________________________________________________________________________________________ 

Do you currently have a relative serving on the board/committee to which you have applied? __________________ 

Are you an elector (registered voter) in the City of Birmingham? ___________________ 

____________________________________________ _________________________ 
Signature of Applicant Date 
Return the completed and signed application form to:  City of Birmingham, City Clerk’s Office, 151 Martin, Birmingham, MI  48009 or by email to 
clerksoffice@bhamgov.org or by fax to 248.530.1080.              Updated 3/24/2021 
*By providing your email to the City, you agree to receive news & notifications from the City. If you do not wish to 
receive these messages, you may unsubscribe at any time.  

OFFICE USE ONLY 
Meets Requirements?   Yes   No  

Will Attend / Unable to Attend 

3A

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities
mailto:ahauff@bhamgov.org


PART II - CITY CODE 
Chapter 110 - TRANSPORTATION SYSTEMS 

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 
 
 

 
Birmingham, Michigan, Code of Ordinances    Created: 2022-01-04 08:31:39 [EST] 
(Supp. No. 45, Update 3) 

 
Page 1 of 1 

ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL 

Secs. 110-1—110-25. Reserved. 

Sec. 110-26. Composition. 

(a) The multi-modal transportation board shall consist of nonvoting ex officio members and seven members 
appointed by the city commission. The nonvoting ex officio members shall be appointed by the city manager. 
They may include the city engineer, city planner, police chief, or their designated representative, or other 
representatives as the city manager deems appropriate. Insofar as possible, the city commission shall 
appoint members as follows:  

(1) One pedestrian advocate member;  

(2) One member with a mobility or vision impairment;  

(3) One member with traffic-focused education and/or experience;  

(4) One bicycle advocate member;  

(5) One member with urban planning, architecture or design education and/or experience; and  

(6) Two members at large living in different geographical areas of the city.  

At least five board members shall be electors or property owners in the city. The remaining board members 
may or may not be electors or property owners in the city.  

(b) The city commission may appoint two alternate members to serve as needed on the multi-modal 
transportation board during their term of appointment. An alternate member may be called on a rotating 
basis to sit as a regular member of the multi-modal transportation board in the absence of a regular 
member. An alternate member may also be called to service in the place of a regular member for the 
purpose of reaching a decision on a case in which the regular member has abstained for reasons of conflict of 
interest. An alternate member having been appointed shall serve in the case until a final decision has been 
made. An alternate member shall have the same voting rights as a regular member of the multi-modal 
transportation board.  

(Ord. No. 2138, 2-10-14; Ord. No. 2200, 9-12-16; Ord. No. 2203, 10-10-16) 

Sec. 110-27. Terms of members. 

Initial members of the multi-modal transportation board shall serve for the following terms: two members 
shall be appointed for one-year terms, two members shall be appointed for two-year terms, and three members 
shall be appointed for three-year terms. Thereafter, all appointments, except to fill vacancies, shall be for a term of 
three years. All appointments for the purpose of filling vacancies occurring otherwise than by expiration of term of 
office shall be for the unexpired term.  

(Ord. No. 2138, 2-10-14) 

 

3A



Birmingham City Commission Minutes 
February 27, 2023 

Municipal Building, 151 Martin 
7:30 p.m.

Vimeo Link: https://vimeo.com/799327505 

I. CALL TO ORDER AND PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
Therese Longe, Mayor, opened the meeting with the Pledge of Allegiance. 

II. ROLL CALL
City Clerk Bingham called the roll. 

Present: Mayor Longe 
Mayor Pro Tem McLain 
Commissioner Boutros 
Commissioner Haig  
Commissioner Host 

Absent: Commissioner Baller 
Commissioner Schafer 

Staff: Assistant City Manager Ecker; City Clerk Bingham, Planning Director Dupuis, Police Chief 
Grewe, City Attorney Kucharek 

III. PROCLAMATIONS, CONGRATULATORY RESOLUTIONS, AWARDS, APPOINTMENTS,
RESIGNATIONS AND CONFIRMATIONS, ADMINISTRATION OF OATHS, INTRODUCTION OF
GUESTS AND ANNOUNCEMENTS

Announcements 
● The City recommends members of the public wear a mask if they have been exposed to COVID-19 or

have a respiratory illness. City staff, City Commission and all board and committee members must wear
a mask if they have been exposed to COVID-19 or actively have a respiratory illness. The City continues
to provide KN-95 respirators and triple-layered masks for attendees.

● The City Commission thanks all members of the public who attended the February 15, 2023 City Manager
Candidate Meet and Greet and for all of the feedback submitted on http://engage.bhamgov.org. City
staff is currently in the process of compiling the reports on staff and public feedback as well as extensive
reference checks,  background checks, and investigations on all three candidates. The City Commission
intends to review this information in March and work through the final steps of the City Manager
Selection Process as we approach spring.

● Mayor Longe acknowledged the impact of the recent winter storm and thanked all those involved with
the City’s response.

Appointments 

02-024-23 Appointment to the Parks and Recreation Board

The Commission interviewed Pam Graham for the position. 

5A

https://vimeo.com/799327505
http://engage.bhamgov.org/


2  February 27, 2023 - DRAFT 

MOTION: Nomination by Commissioner Haig:  
To appoint Ms. Graham to the Parks and Recreation Board as a regular member to serve a three-year term 
to expire March 13, 2026.   
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig   
 
   Nays, None 
 
02-025-23 Appointment to the Public Arts Board 
 
Mayor Longe noted that the Public Arts Board has a specific provision which allows Board members to 
concurrently serve on certain other City Boards. She noted that concurrent service on two City Boards 
was usually prohibited.  
 
The Commission interviewed Pam Graham for the position. 
 
MOTION: Nomination by Commissioner Boutros:  
To appoint Ms. Graham as an alternate member to the Public Arts Board as a regular member to serve 
the remainder of a three-year term to expire January 28, 2026. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig   
 
   Nays, None 
 
02-026-23 Appointment to the Cablecasting Board 
 
The Commission interviewed Deanna Brown for the position. 
 
MOTION: Nomination by MPT McLain:  
To the Cablecasting Board as a regular member to serve a three-year term expiring March 30, 2026, 
effective April 1, 2023. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig   
 
   Nays, None 
 
CC Bingham swore in Ms. Graham. It was noted that Ms. Brown would be sworn in at a later date. 
 

5A



3  February 27, 2023 - DRAFT 

The Commission acknowledged the appointments of the following student representatives, encouraged 
them to share their perspectives with their respective Boards, and thanked them for their service: 

1. Ian Weinberg, Historic District Commission / Design Review Board 
2. Sophie Hanawalt, Multi-Modal Transportation Board 
3. Angie Sharma, Multi-Modal Transportation Board 
4. Alex Motea, Museum Board 
5. Alexandria Schaufler, Museum Board 
6. Kate Glasier, Parks & Recreation Board 
7. Archie Reynolds, Parks & Recreation Board 
8. Asher Kaftan, Planning Board 
9. Matthew Wiegand, Planning Board 
10. Luca DeSanto, Public Arts Board 
11. Andrew McClean, Public Arts Board       

IV. OPEN TO THE PUBLIC FOR MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 
 

V. CONSENT AGENDA 
02-027-23 Consent Agenda  
 
The following items were pulled from the Consent Agenda: 
 Commissioner Haig: Item M – 2023-2024 Annual Flower Purchase 
    Item P – Special Event Application: Day on the Town 
 Mayor Longe:  Item S – 2022 Student Representative Certificates of Appreciation 
 
Commissioner Boutros noted he was absent from both the February 13, 2023 workshop and regular 
meeting.  
 
Commissioner Haig noted his recusal from voting on Item K, citing a personal impact stemming from the 
item. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, seconded by MPT McLain: 
To approve the Consent Agenda excluding Items M, P, and S and noting Commissioner Haig’s recusal from 
voting on Item K. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig 
 
   Nays, None 
 

A. Resolution to approve the City Commission special meeting minutes of February 8, 2023. 

B. Resolution to approve the City Commission special meeting minutes of February 9, 2023. 

C. Resolution to approve the City Commission workshop meeting minutes of February 13, 2023. 

D. Resolution to approve the City Commission regular meeting minutes of February 13, 2023.  

5A



4  February 27, 2023 - DRAFT 

E. Resolution to approve the Special City Commission meeting minutes of February 15, 2023.  

F. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
February 15, 2023 in the amount of $1,412,606.06. 

G. Resolution to approve the warrant list, including Automated Clearing House payments, dated 
February 22, 2023 in the amount of $835,571.51. 

H. Resolution to enact a traffic control order for Park Street north of Oakland allowing permitted 
parking only on the east side of the street, to post “no parking signs” on the west side of the street 
and to direct the police department to enforce such an order. 

I. Resolution to approve Contract No. 23-5001, Control Section TAU 63000, Job Number 23A0194 by 
and between the Michigan Department of Transportation and the City of Birmingham.  In addition, 
authorize the City Engineer to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. 

J. Resolution to approve the construction project budget and award the 2023 Quarton Lake Estates 
Phase 2 Project - Westwood, Raynale, and Oak Street #1-23 (P) to FDM Contracting, Inc. in the 
amount of $1,062,984.25.  In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement 
on behalf of the City. Funding for this project has been budgeted in the following accounts:     

Fund Account Fund ID Number Project Award 10% 
Contingencies 

Total 

Major Street Fund 202.0-449.001-981.0100 $81,505.46 $8,150.55 $89,656.01 
Local Street Fund 203.0-449.001-981.0100 $128,234.19 $12,823.42 $141,057.61 
Sewer Fund 590.0-537.000-981.0100 $460,485.16 $46,048.52 $506,533.68 
Water Fund 591.0-544.000-981.0100 $392,759.44 $39,275.94 $432,035.38 
Total Construction Costs $1,062,984.25 $106,298.43 $1,169,282.68 

 
K. Resolution to approve the construction project budget and award the 2022-2023 Cape Seal Program 

#6-22 (P) to Highway Maintenance and Construction in the amount of $436,387.10. In addition, to 
authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf of the City.  Funding for this 
project will be charged to the following accounts:   

 
Fund Account Fund ID Number Project 

Award 
10% 

Contingencies 
Total 

Local Street Fund 203.0-449.001-981.0100 $436,387.10 $43,638.71 $480,025.81 
 
AND 
 
To approve the appropriation and amendment of the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget as follows:  
 
Local Street Fund: 
Revenues:   

203.0-000.000-400.0000 Draw from Fund Balance $160,030.00 
Total Revenue  $160,030.00 

Expenditures:   
203.0-449.001-981.0100 Public Improvement $160,030.00 

Total Expenses  $160,030.00 
 
 

5A



5  February 27, 2023 - DRAFT 

 
L. Resolution to approve the purchase of root control services, as quoted by Duke's Root Control, Inc. 

for the 2023 Sewer Root Control Program, in the amount not to exceed $99,465.67.  Funds for this 
purchase are available in the Sewer Fund, Other Contractual Services, account number 590.0-
538.000-811.0000. 
 

N. Resolution to approve the appropriation and amendment to the Michigan Indigent Defense Fund 
for the fiscal year 2022-2023 as follows: 

Revenues:    

State Grant Revenue 260.0-698.000-571.0000 $365,150.00 

Local Contributions 260.0-698.000-590.0000 $17,600.00 

Total Revenues  $382,750.00 

Expenditures:    

Supplies  260.0-698.000-729.0000 $500.00 

Other Charges-Attorneys 260.0-698.000-801.0400 $373,550.00 

Other Charges-Experts 260.0-698.000-803.0200 $7,500.00 

Other Charges-Training 260.0-698.000-957.0100 $1,200.00 

Total Expenditures  $382,750 

O. Resolution to approve an increase to the City’s credit card limit to $35,000. 

Q. Resolution to approve a special event permit as requested by the Birmingham Shopping District to 
hold the Birmingham Farmers Market on May 7, 2023 – October 29, 2023 contingent upon 
compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and payment of all fees and, further 
pursuant to any minor modifications that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff at the 
time of the event, or event cancellation that may be deemed necessary by administrative staff, 
leading up to or at the time of the event. 

R. Resolution to approve a special event permit as requested by the Birmingham Department of Public 
Services to hold the In the Park Concert Series on Wednesdays from June 14, 2023 to August 16, 
2023 contingent upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and payment of all 
fees and, further pursuant to any minor modifications that may be deemed necessary by 
administrative staff at the time of the event, or event cancellation that may be deemed necessary 
by administrative staff, leading up to or at the time of the event. 

02-028-23 (Item M) 2023-2024 Annual Flower Purchase 
 
Commissioner Host asked that the City integrate perennial pollinator gardens using Michigan native plants 
in future years. 
 
ACM Ecker said that proposal would be brought to the new Sustainability Board for consideration for next 
year’s flower purchases. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Haig, seconded by Commissioner Host: 

5A



6  February 27, 2023 - DRAFT 

To approve the 2023-2024 Annual Flower Purchase from Croswell Greenhouse Inc. in the amount not to 
exceed $22,032.25 for 2023 and $23,133.86 for 2024.  In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk 
to sign the agreement on behalf of the City. Funding for the Annual Flower Purchase has been budgeted 
for in the General Fund – Property Maintenance – Operating Supplies account #101.0-441.003-729.0000. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig   
 
   Nays, None 
 
02-029-23 (Item P) Special Event Application: Day on the Town 
 
Commissioner Haig noted that the insurance would expire before the date of the event. 
 
CC Bingham stated her staff would seek updated insurance information from the Birmingham Shopping 
District for the special event file. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Haig, seconded by MPT McLain: 
To approve a special event permit as requested by the Birmingham Shopping District to hold the Day on 
the Town on July 29, 2023, contingent upon compliance with all permit and insurance requirements and 
payment of all fees and, further pursuant to any minor modifications that may be deemed necessary by 
administrative staff at the time of the event, or event cancellation that may be deemed necessary by 
administrative staff, leading up to or at the time of the event. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig   
 
   Nays, None 
 
02-030-23 (Item S) 2022 Student Representative Certificates of Appreciation 
 
Mayor Longe pulled the item to acknowledge the students for their participation. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Mayor Longe, seconded by Commissioner Boutros: 
To recognize the following nine student representatives for their service in 2022 on Birmingham boards 
and committees and award each student a certificate in appreciation for their civic involvement: 

Historic District Commission / 
Design Review Board 

Meghan Murray 
Charlie Vercellone 
 

Multi-Modal Transportation Board Isabela Betanzos 
Ben Rosenfield 
 

Museum Board Jordan Snyder 

5A



7  February 27, 2023 - DRAFT 

 
Planning Board MacKinzie Clein 

Andrew Fuller 
 

Parks & Recreation Board Zachary Miketa 
Matthew Windsor 

 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Commissioner Host 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig   
 
   Nays, None 
 

VI. UNFINISHED BUSINESS 
02-031-23 Public Hearing for 300 S. Old Woodward – RH – Special Land Use Permit  

Amendment, Final Site Plan & Design Review 
 
The Mayor opened the public hearing at 7:58 p.m.  
 
PD Dupuis presented the item. 
 
Victor Saroki, architect, said the applicant team was available to answer any questions. 
 
Seeing no public comment, the Mayor closed the public hearing at 8:05 p.m. 
 
PD Dupuis and Mr. Saroki answered brief informational questions from the Commission. 
 
Commissioner Haig recommended that future motion language specify the permitted type of cut-off light 
fixture. 
 
PD Dupuis noted the recommendation. He added that the permitted type of cut-off light fixtures were 
specified in the plans, and that SLUP approvals are tied to site plan approval. 
 
Commissioner Host noted that the plan changes resulted in a gain of two parking spots.  
 
PD Dupuis confirmed that to be the case. 
 
The Mayor noted that the Commission’s previous comments regarding sensitivity to parking in the 
neighborhoods still stood. She said the Commission was thrilled with the development but did not want it 
to cause a parking burden on the surrounding neighborhoods. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, seconded by MPT McLain: 
To approve the Special Land Use Permit Amendment, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 
300 S. Old Woodward – RH. In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the Amended 
Contract for an Economic Development Liquor License on behalf of the City. 
 
In reply to Commissioner Boutros, Mr. Saroki explained the new design would allow the restaurant to face 
S. Old Woodward, which he said would be advantageous to the City’s urban environment in that area. 

5A



8  February 27, 2023 - DRAFT 

Commissioner Host expressed a concern about the development’s parking deficit, and noted that the two 
nearby parking decks have a waiting list for parking permits.  
 
The Mayor explained that the waiting list in the two nearby decks is for monthly parking permits, which 
does not correlate to the number of daily and transient spaces available in the decks. She stated that 
Commissioner Host’s concerns were noted. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig   
 
   Nays, Commissioner Host 
 

VII. NEW BUSINESS 
02-032-23 Public Hearing to amend Article 4, Section 4.44, Article 3, Section 3.04, Article  

3, Section 3.16, and Article 9, Section 9.02 to provide clear and enforceable 
outdoor dining standards 

 
The Mayor opened the public hearing at 8:04 p.m.  
 
PD Dupuis presented the request to table consideration. 
 
Seeing no public comment, the Mayor closed the public hearing at 8:05 p.m. 
 
PD Dupuis answered brief informational questions from the Commission. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, seconded by Commissioner Haig: 
To table consideration of the ordinance amendments to Article 4, Section 4.44, Article 3, Section 3.04, 
Article 3, Section 3.16, and Article 9, Section 9.02 to provide staff with time to adjust the proposed language 
and address the concerns of the City Commission. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE: Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig   
Commissioner Host 

 
   Nays, None 
 
02-033-23 2022 Liquor License Establishment Review and Consideration for 2023 

License Renewal (Part 1) 
 
The Mayor noted that La Strada Italian Kitchen and Bar would be handled as a separate item. She stated 
she would recuse herself from its consideration based on her spouse’s present business relationship with 
the applicant.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, seconded by MPT McLain: 

5A



9  February 27, 2023 - DRAFT 

To approve the renewal of liquor licenses for the 2023 licensing period for the following establishments 
holding a Class B, Class C, or Microbrewery Liquor License that are in compliance with Chapter 10, Alcoholic 
Liquors of the City Code:

● 220 Merrill 
● Adachi 
● All Seasons Senior Living (Hospitality 

of Birmingham) 
● Bella Piatti, LLC 
● Birmingham Pub 
● Birmingham Theater 
● Brooklyn Pizza 
● Churchills Bistro 
● Community House 
● Dick O'Dows 
● Elie’s Mediterranean 
● EM 
● Emagine Palladium 
● Fleming's Prime Steakhouse 
● Forest Grill 2, LLC 
● Griffin Claw Brewing Company 
● Hazel Ravines & Downtown 
● Hyde Park Steak House 

● Lincoln Hills Golf Course 
● Luxe Bar and Grille 
● Mare Mediterranean 
● Market North End 
● Phoenicia Restaurant 
● Salvatore Scallopini 
● Sidecar/Slice/Shift 
● Social Kitchen and Bar LLC 
● Springdale Golf Course 
● Streetside Seafood 
● Sushi Japan 
● Tallulah Wine Bar & Bistro 
● The Daxton Hotel 
● The Morrie Birmingham, LLC 
● Townhouse Kitchen & Bar LLC 
● Townsend  
● Whistlestop 
● Zana

 
Commissioners Host and Boutros thanked the Staff for their work on the item. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
    Mayor Longe 

Commissioner Haig   
Commissioner Host 

 
   Nays, None 
 
02-034-23 2022 Liquor License Establishment Review and Consideration for 2023 License  

Renewal (Part 2) 
 
The Mayor stepped out of the room based on her recusal from the item. MPT McLain assumed facilitation 
of the meeting.  
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, seconded by Commissioner Haig: 
To approve the renewal of liquor licenses for the 2023 licensing period for the following establishments 
holding a Class B, Class C, or Microbrewery Liquor License that are in compliance with Chapter 10, Alcoholic 
Liquors of the City Code:

● La Strada Italian Kitchen and Bar 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
Commissioner Haig   
Commissioner Host 

 

5A



10  February 27, 2023 - DRAFT 

   Nays, None 
 
02-035-23 2022 Liquor License Establishment Review and Consideration for 2023 License  

Renewal (Part 3) 
 

The Mayor resumed facilitation of the meeting. 
 
PC Grewe answered brief informational questions from the Commission.  
 
CA Kucharek clarified that the Commission would be able to determine whether each establishment’s 
proposed corrective action was sufficient, and to determine whether the City should file objections with 
the Michigan Liquor Control Commission for the renewal of the listed establishments’ licenses. 
 
Commissioner Host noted that Toast had 27 excess interior seats, in violation of its SLUP, for the last four 
years in a row. He stated that they have been a persistent offender. 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Boutros, seconded by MPT McLain: 
To make a motion adopting a resolution to set public hearings on Monday, March 27, 2023 to consider 
whether the City Commission shall file objections with the Michigan Liquor Control Commission for the 
renewal of licenses held by the following establishments that are in violation of Chapter 10, Alcoholic 
Liquors of the City Code:  
• Casa Pernoi 
• Papa Joe’s/Bistro Joe’s 
• Toast 
• Whole Foods 
 
AND 
 
Further, to direct the City Manager to notify the owners and operators of licensed establishments for which 
a public hearing is set via first class certified mail, to inform them of the public hearing date set for the 
March 27, 2023 7:30 p.m. City Commission meeting, and inform them that they may submit any written 
material for consideration by the City Commission prior to or at the public hearing, that the licensee or 
counsel of licensee may appear at the hearing in person or via zoom, and that the licensee or counsel of 
licensee may present witnesses or written evidence for City Commission consideration at the public hearing. 
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
Commissioner Haig   
Commissioner Host 
Mayor Longe 

 
   Nays, None
 
Commission Items for Future Discussion 
 
02-036-23 To Discuss Benches, Little Library, and Corner Designation in Honor of Pat  

Andrews 
 
MOTION: Motion by Commissioner Host, seconded by MPT McLain: 

5A



11  February 27, 2023 - DRAFT 

To discuss the potential dedication of benches, little library, and corner designation in honor of Pat 
Andrews.
 
VOICE VOTE:  Ayes, MPT McLain 

Commissioner Boutros 
Commissioner Haig   
Commissioner Host 
Mayor Longe 

 
   Nays, None 
 
Commission Discussion On Items From A Prior Meeting 
 

VIII. REMOVED FROM CONSENT AGENDA 
 

IX. COMMUNICATIONS 
 

X. REPORTS 
A. Commissioner Reports 

1. Notice of intention to appoint to the Multi Modal Transportation Board 
B. Commissioner Comments 
 
Mayor Longe noted that once CA Kucharek provides further clarification regarding the proposed Code of 
Conduct, the Commission would have 14 calendar days from that date to submit comment to the City 
Manager. 
 
C. Advisory Boards, Committees, Commissions’ Reports and Agendas 

D. Legislation 
E. City Staff 
1. 2nd Quarter Investment Reports 
2. 2nd Quarter Financial Reports 
3. Train Emergency Response and Safety Staff Report 
4. City Manager’s Report 

 
ACM Ecker presented the item. 
 

5. City Manager Selection Next Steps - Save the Date  
 
Mayor Longe presented the item.  
 
Commissioners Boutros and Haig noted they would be unavailable on the proposed special meeting date 
of March 20, 2023. 

 
INFORMATION ONLY  
 

XI. ADJOURN 
 
Mayor Longe adjourned the meeting at 8:35 p.m. 
 

5A



12  February 27, 2023 - DRAFT 

 
      
 
 

 

0BAlexandria Bingham, City Clerk  Laura Eichenhorn, City Transcriptionist 
 

5A



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/01/2023

03/13/2023

PAPER CHECK

1,400.00AARON'S EXCAVATING INC005358*290840

400.00ADDIXION LLCBDREFUND290841

840.00AHMAD, FARISBDREFUND290842

497.72ALLIANCE ENTERTAINMENT, LLC009440290843

500.00AMERICAN POOL SERVICE INCBDREFUND290844

838.16AT&T MOBILITY003703*290845

17.24BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS000843290846

223.75BASEMENT WATERPROOFING  FOUNDATIONBDREFUND290847

146.68BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC003526290848

800.00BRANDYWINE CONSTRUCTION LLCBDREFUND290849

200.00BRICKWORKS PROPERTY RESTORATIONBDREFUND290850

1,268.75BSB COMMUNICATIONS, INC.005717290851

2,063.13CAPITAL ONE BANK003904*290852

400.00CAPPUSO BUILDING LLCBDREFUND290853

482.77CERTIFIED LABORATORIES008540*290854

129.03CERTIFIED POWER, INC007134290855

350.00CHET'S CLEANING INC009168290856

398.66CINTAS CORPORATION000605290857

119.01CINTAS CORPORATION000605*290858

200.00CITYWIDE RESTORATION LLCBDREFUND290859

14,010.18CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*290860

73.00CRISTIAN CERRITOSMISC290861

1,443.74DEVON TITLE AGENCYTAXMISC*290862

100.00DIAMOND CREEK HOMES INCBDREFUND290863

125.00DIRANI, HANIBDREFUND290864

100.00DODAJ, KRISTJANBDREFUND290865

241.00DOUG MANIGOLD009583290866

100.00DROBOT CUSTOM BUILDING INCBDREFUND290867

29.68DTE ENERGY000179*290868

200.66DTE ENERGY000179*290869

4,959.41DTE ENERGY000179*290870

174.21DTE ENERGY000179*290871

142.00DTE ENERGY000179*290872

14.89DTE ENERGY000179290873

496.55DTE ENERGY000179*290874

17.50DTE ENERGY000179*290875

1,780.84DTE ENERGY000179*290876

47.16DTE ENERGY000179*290877

301.70DTE ENERGY000179*290878

5,893.06DTE ENERGY000179*290879

1,929.05DTE ENERGY000179*290880

5,159.26DTE ENERGY000179*290881 5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/01/2023

03/13/2023

3,140.29 DTE ENERGY000179*290882

14.89 DTE ENERGY000179*290883

1,703.64 DTE ENERGY000179*290884

48.34 DTE ENERGY000179*290885

15.69 DTE ENERGY000179*290886

65.11 DTE ENERGY000179*290887

540.67 DTE ENERGY000179*290888

41.37 DTE ENERGY000179*290889

8,344.12 DTE ENERGY000180*290890

140,065.50 DVM UTILITIES009340*290891

450.00 ELITE IMAGING SYSTEMS, INC004493290892

2,704.00 EMPCO INCORPORATED001124290893

330.00 ENZO WATER SERVICE009100*290894

75.06 ERIC D SACHS REVOC TRUSTTAXMISC*290895

100.00 ERIC KETELSENBDREFUND*290896

9,015.62 ESRI, INC003253290897

25,750.00 ETNA SUPPLY001495290898

911.85 FINDAWAY WORLD, LLC005651290899

1,320.00 FIRE SUPPRESSION PRODUCTS, INC005964290900

534.60 FIRST ADVANTAGE OCCUPATIONAL CORP007366290901

516.25 FOUNDATION SYSTEMS OF MICHIGAN INC.BDREFUND290902

500.00 GITTLEMAN CONSTRUCTION INC.BDREFUND290903

205.46 GORDON FOOD004604*290904

700.00 GREAT LAKES CUSTOM BUILDER LLCBDREFUND290905

8,155.24 GREAT LAKES WATER AUTHORITY008007*290906

223.69 GRID 4 COMMUNICATIONS INC.006666*290907

598.88 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES001956*290908

22.96 HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES007211*290909

105.30 HOWIES HOCKEY INC009563*290910

20,000.00 HUNTER ROBERTS HOMESBDREFUND290911

900.00 IDEAL BUILDERS AND REMODELING INCBDREFUND290912

4,172.68 INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES001090290913

96.00 JERRY'S TIRE INC008564290914

300.00 KBJ GROUP, LLCBDREFUND290915

100.00 KEARNS BROTHERS INCBDREFUND290916

247.50 KELLER THOMA000891290917

7,345.00 KNOWBE4, INC008450290918

200.00 KYLE BUILDERS INCBDREFUND290919

895.00 FOCUS INTERNATIONAL SOLUTIONS DBA009606290920

400.00 LAMARCO HOMES LLCBDREFUND290921

425.00 LAW ENFORCEMENT SEMINAR, LLC009581*290922

1,600.00 LEVINE & SONS INCBDREFUND290923

3,884.20 LITHIA MOTORS, INC SUPPORT SERVICES009375290924

5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/01/2023

03/13/2023

400.00 LIVE WELL CUSTOM HOME LLCBDREFUND290925

200.00 LIVING SPACE DETROITBDREFUND290926

1,400.00 LMB PROPERTIES LLCBDREFUND290927

2,476.00 MACALLISTER RENTALS007910290928

1,765.00 MANAGEENGINE009169290929

100.00 MANDARINO CONSTRUCTION LLCBDREFUND290930

68.45 MASTERS TELECOM009546290931

68.45 MASTERS TELECOM009546*290931

14.25 MCMASTER-CARRMISC290932

280.00 MECHAM MECHANICAL SERVICES, INC009585*290933

6.00 MICHAEL MCCARTHYMISC290934

100.00 MICHIGAN ASPHALT PAVINGBDREFUND290935

100.00 NEWMYER INC.BDREFUND290936

100.00 OAKES ROOFING SIDING & WINDOWS INCBDREFUND290937

182.40 OBSERVER & ECCENTRIC003461*290938

189.00 OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH CENTERS004370290939

1,048.03 ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC009478*290940

552.00 OLIVIA PARKIN009578*290941

330.00 OXFORD OVERHEAD DOOR SALES CO.001626290942

38.00 PATRICK OBRIENMISC290943

47.00 SCOT POUNDERS006691*290944

253.56 R & R FIRE TRUCK REPAIR INC004137290945

38.85 RAIN MASTER CONTROL SYSTEMS008342*290946

500.00 RENEWAL BY ANDERSENBDREFUND290947

500.00 RENEWAL BY ANDERSEN LLCBDREFUND290948

100.00 ROGER WADE YOUNGBDREFUND290949

100.00 ROMA CEMENT CO INCBDREFUND290950

863.64 SERV-ICE REFRIGERATION, INC009603*290951

500.00 SHKRELI, NICHOLAS CBDREFUND290952

6,240.47 SIGNATURE CLEANING LLC009009*290953

3,114.00 SP+ CORPORATION007907*290955

100.00 STEVE'S CONCRETEBDREFUND290956

15.00 THE PLUMBEROLOGIST LLCBDREFUND290957

174.30 ULINE005806290958

421.35 VAN DYKE GAS CO.000293*290959

1,253.35 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*290960

271.59 VILLAGE AUTOMOTIVE INC006491290961

11,000.00 W. L. DECKER CONTRACTOR, INC.BDREFUND290962

243.50 WEST SHORE FIRE INC001490290963

520.00 WHEN TO WORK, INCMISC290964

415.00 WOLVERINE POWER SYSTEMS004512290965

35.47 XEROX CORPORATION008391*290966

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $331,502.365B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/01/2023

03/13/2023

ACH TRANSACTION

164.97 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267341

6.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267342

209.86 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267343

21.57 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267344

7.84 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267345

20.98 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267346

15.30 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267347

20.86 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267348

69.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267349

129.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267350

79.95 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267351

47.23 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267352

47.23 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267353

24.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267354

101.94 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267355

82.51 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267356

23.97 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7357

40.69 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7358

7.75 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267359

37.98 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267360

25.86 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267361

318.79 BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY000518*7362

3,725,078.62 BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS-TAXES008840*7363

109.00 CHRISTOPHER DEMAN006999*7364

225.66 DETROIT CHEMICAL & PAPER SUPPLY007359*7365

290.80 DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC000565*7366

3,048.75 FLEIS AND VANDENBRINK ENG. INC007314*7367

500.51 GRAINGER000243*7368

225.00 HAYES PRECISION INC001672*7369

22,717.50 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY0002617370

61.49 JCR SUPPLY INC0092987371

1,015.36 JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*7372

596.35 KONE INC0040857373

946.44 LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.005550*7374

587.13 MIDWEST TAPE0020137375

771.00 NELSON BROTHERS SEWER0011947376

400.00 NEWTONS SOLUTIONS LLC009276*7377

15,894.00 NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS0018647378

1,378,615.61 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER- TAX PYMNT008843*7379

400.00 PAUL C SCOTT PLUMBING INC006853*7380

781.46 ROAD COMM FOR OAKLAND CO000478*7381

292.00 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS001181*7382

5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/01/2023

03/13/2023

1,270.08 SECURE-CENTRIC INC0093017383

24.17 SOUTHEASTERN EQUIPMENT CO. INC0057877384

432.00 VIGILANTE SECURITY INC000969*7385

106,022.11 VILLAGE OF BEVERLY HILLS002974*7386

9,427.07 WM. CROOK FIRE PROTECTION CO.0020887387

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $5,271,239.35

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $5,602,741.71

5B



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/08/2023

03/13/2023

PAPER CHECK

1,469.5021ST CENTURY MEDIA- MICHIGAN005430290967

1,621.2521ST CENTURY MEDIA- MICHIGAN005430*290967

1,130.33ACUSHNET COMPANY008106290968

197.43ALLIANCE ENTERTAINMENT, LLC009440290969

800.00AMANDA MCBRIDE009393*290970

461.01AMERICAN ATHLETIXMISC*290971

279.00ARTECH PRINTING INC000500290972

3,701.97AT&T006759*290973

44,261.17AUTOMATED BENEFIT SVCS INC004027*290974

13.44BAKER & TAYLOR BOOKS000843290975

599.25BEDROCK EXPRESS LTD009568290976

1,909.84BOUND TREE MEDICAL, LLC003526290977

72.05BRENT JACKSON009280*290978

25.00JACQUELYN BRITO006953*290979

362.50BSB COMMUNICATIONS, INC.005717290980

245.10CALLAWAY GOLF008385290981

163.20CANON SOLUTIONS AMERICA INC009078*290982

321.24CAPITAL TIRE, INC.007732290984

227.89CCH INCORPORATED000443290985

856.51CDW GOVERNMENT INC000444*290986

195.30CERTIFIED POWER, INC007134290987

42.00CHAD CHECKMISC*290988

18.95CIDLMISC290989

1,624.44CLEAR RATE COMMUNICATIONS, INC008006*290990

1,663.00CMP DISTRIBUTORS INC002234290991

1,248.04COMCAST BUSINESS007774290992

4,841.37CONSUMERS ENERGY000627*290993

918.00COSTAR REALTY INFORMATION, INC008801*290994

42.83CRISTINA SHEPPARD-DECIUS009599*290995

4,711.20THE D.M. BURR GROUP009024290996

690.16DAPHNE'S HEADCOVERS006104290997

17.95DBUSINESSMISC290998

53.71RONALD L. DIX007498*290999

16.65DTE ENERGY000179*291000

60.60DTE ENERGY000179*291001

175.79DTE ENERGY000179*291002

55.20DTE ENERGY000179*291003

1,750.00EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITY002460291004

44.95EASTERN MICHIGAN UNIVERSITYMISC291005

4,922.98ED RINKE CHEVROLET BUICK GMC000493291006

979.79EDGE OF 14 LLCTAXMISC*291007

55.00GARY EISELE008164291008

5C



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/08/2023

03/13/2023

300.00ENCURATE MOBILE TECHNOLOGY009425291009

8,833.01FARMINGTON COMM. LIBRARY000585291010

199.80FEDEX OFFICE004514*291011

1,800.00FERNDALE FIRE RESCUEMISC*291012

1,130.98GORDON FOOD004604*291013

30.00GUARDIAN ALARM000249291014

1,024.10HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES001956*291015

1,381.00HYDROCORP000948291016

7,763.86INGRAM LIBRARY SERVICES001090291017

784.00JENETTE MAITZ009559*291019

80.00JOHN, MARGARETMISC*291020

300.00JUSTIN ZAYID009403*291021

2,100.00LAW OFFICE OF BRIAN P. FENECH009386*291022

800.00LAW OFFICE OF PATRICK G. GAGNIUK009388*291023

60.00LERMA, INC008518291024

177.60LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGEMENT INC006817291025

1,379.67LITHIA MOTORS, INC SUPPORT SERVICES009375291026

732.67M & K TRUCK CENTERS008551291027

297.00MAX R006632291028

73.00MERGE MOBILE, INC.008793291029

290.00MI HISTORIC PRESERVATION NETWORK001058291030

107.42MICHAEL BERNAL009483*291031

210.00MICHIGAN DOWNTOWN ASSOC.007019*291032

895.00NATIONAL TIME & SIGNAL CORP000668*291033

10,700.00NICK'S MAINTENANCE SERVICE004827*291034

321.63ODP BUSINESS SOLUTIONS, LLC009478*291035

6,456.50OHM ADVISORS INC008669291036

14,996.46OVERDRIVE, INC.006785291037

27.21PETER & CHRISTINE GLASIERTAXMISC*291038

265.45PLAYAWAY PRODUCTS LLC009612291039

300.00PROFESSIONAL MOVERSMISC291040

500.00RABAA PLLC009397*291041

22.99RAWSON MEMORIAL DISTRICT LIBRARYMISC291042

463.72SAM'S CLUB/SYNCHRONY BANK002806*291043

337.52SHRED-IT USA004202*291044

27.49SIGNY KLEINMISC291045

15.36REPCOLITE PAINTS INC009587*291046

9,660.00SP+ CORPORATION007907291047

400.00STATE OF MICHIGAN001005291048

8,325.59SUNBELT RENTALS INC008287*291049

1,040.50SYMBOL ARTSMISC291050

360.00TASTE THE LOCAL DIFFERENCE008454*291051

500.00TIP TOP SELLS LLCBDREFUND*291052

5C



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/08/2023

03/13/2023

49.78 TODD BORSEMISC*291053

53,523.00 TRAFFIC & SAFETY CONTROL SYSTEMS009552291054

340.00 TURNER SANITATION, INC004379*291055

390.00 US FIGURE SKATING ASSOC.001279*291056

112.36 VAN DYKE GAS CO.000293*291057

75.00 VARBEDIAN LUCKEN, SUSANMISC*291058

781.92 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*291059

846.43 VERIZON WIRELESS000158*291060

62.00 VICTORIA NAUMANNMISC291061

157.85 WATERFORD REGIONAL FIRE DEPT.004497291062

(274.24)WEISSMAN'S COSTUMES002171291063

392.04 WEISSMAN'S COSTUMES002171*291063

1,695.45 WEST SHORE FIRE INC001490291064

59,300.00 WJE-WISS, JANNEY, ELSTNER ASSOC.INC007620291065

19.65 BRANDON WYNN009460*291066

SUBTOTAL PAPER CHECK $285,786.36

ACH TRANSACTION

(3.98)AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC00912630

29.84 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*30

6.49 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*31

6.29 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC00912632

350.00 ABEL ELECTRONICS INC002284*7391

1,351.00 KATHERINE ABELA008226*7392

5,285.00 ALLIED BUILDING SERVICES OF DETROIT0095507393

92.90 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267394

22.12 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267395

85.48 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267396

63.16 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267397

90.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267398

399.00 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267399

16.19 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267400

70.69 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267401

153.40 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267402

59.88 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267403

47.66 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267404

139.98 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267405

105.73 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267406

43.71 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267407

99.90 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267408

380.50 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267409

138.08 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267410

153.90 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7411

13.09 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7412 5C



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/08/2023

03/13/2023

47.98 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7413

14.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267414

26.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267415

151.98 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267416

20.70 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267417

10.49 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267418

11.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267419

15.98 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267420

66.60 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267421

335.11 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC009126*7422

5.99 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES INC0091267423

900.00 BATTI LAW PLLC009383*7424

445.50 BEIER HOWLETT P.C.000517*7425

1,040.00 BELL EQUIPMENT COMPANY000518*7426

367,562.36 BIRMINGHAM PUBLIC SCHOOLS-TAXES008840*7427

207.40 BLUE WATER INDUSTRIAL PRODUCTS INC000542*7428

236.90 BOB ADAMS TOWING0091837429

322.00 LISA MARIE BRADLEY003282*7430

252.25 BRENNA SANDLES008983*7431

586.50 CLAIRE CHUNG009122*7432

171.06 CINTAS CORPORATION0006057433

72.40 CINTAS CORPORATION0006057434

403.14 CINTAS CORPORATION0006057435

540.00 CLUB PROPHET008044*7436

4,664.58 CROWN CASTLE FIBER LLC009195*7437

852.55 DORNBOS SIGN & SAFETY INC000565*7438

6,393.15 DUNCAN PARKING TECH INC001077*7439

1,417.20 FLEIS AND VANDENBRINK ENG. INC007314*7440

1,915.93 GRAINGER000243*7441

110.04 BRYAN GRULKE009449*7442

235.00 HAYES PRECISION INC001672*7443

1,058.75 MICHELLE HOLLO0079277444

10,600.00 HUBBELL ROTH & CLARK INC0003317445

850.00 IDUMESARO LAW FIRM, PLLC009390*7446

6,414.97 INSIGHT INVESTMENT008851*7447

24,972.75 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY0002617448

46,068.75 J.H. HART URBAN FORESTRY000261*7448

126.99 JACK DOHENY COMPANIES INC0001867449

250.00 JCC CREATIVE LLC009249*7450

624.79 JOE'S AUTO PARTS, INC.003458*7451

417.35 KANOPY, INC008827*7452

538.53 KONE INC0040857453

1,340.00 LAMB LEGAL CONSULTING SERVICES009392*7454

5C



Meeting of

Warrant List Dated
City of Birmingham

       AmountVendorVendor #Early ReleaseCheck Number

03/08/2023

03/13/2023

1,630.00 LAW OFFICE OF MICHAEL J. DICK009385*7455

9,798.00 LEE & ASSOCIATES CO., INC.005550*7456

300.00 MARCIA C ROSS PC009398*7457

1,809.00 MEADOWBROOK INSURANCE GROUP001505*7458

7,899.78 MIDWEST TAPE0020137459

1,107.50 MILES PARTNERSHIP LLLP009242*7460

792.00 NBS COMMERCIAL INTERIORS0083367461

1,400.00 NELSON BROTHERS SEWER0011947462

1,503.90 NETWORK SERVICES COMPANY0077557463

615.50 NYE UNIFORM COMPANY006359*7464

269,185.56 OAKLAND COUNTY TREASURER- TAX PYMNT008843*7465

70.00 ORLANDO LAW PRACTICE PC009395*7466

105.00 QMI GROUP INC0028527467

74.00 ROSE PEST SOLUTIONS001181*7468

25.00 ALAN SOAVE003466*7469

82,545.00 SOCRRA0002547470

179,906.54 SOCWA001097*7471

816.48 SOUTHEASTERN EQUIPMENT CO. INC0057877472

570.00 THOMAS M MARKUS009254*7473

281.45 TOTAL ARMORED CAR SERVICE, INC.002037*7474

6,946.09 US SIGNAL COMPANY LLC0092667475

93.25 VESCO OIL CORPORATION0002987476

150.00 VIGILANTE SECURITY INC000969*7477

2,064.06 WHITLOCK BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC.007278*7478

53.68 WITMER PUBLIC SAFETY GROUP INC0091287479

7,200.00 WORRY FREE INC005360*7480

4,720.00 YELLOW DOOR LAW009379*7481

SUBTOTAL ACH TRANSACTION $1,073,162.43

*-Indicates checks released in advance and prior to commission approval in order to avoid penalty
or to meet contractual agreement/obligation.

Mark Gerber
Finance Director/ Treasurer

All bills, invoices and other evidences of claim have been audited and approved for payment.

GRAND TOTAL $1,358,948.79

5C



MEMORANDUM 
Department of Public Services 

DATE: March 3, 2023  

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

Approved By: Scott D. Zielinski, DPS Director 

FROM: Carrie Laird, Parks & Recreation Manager 
Connie J. Folk, Recreation Coordinator 

SUBJECT: Zamboni Ice Resurfacer Purchase 

INTRODUCTION: 
The Birmingham Ice Sports Arena operates a Zamboni year-round since re-opening in November, 
2021.  The Zamboni is the single most important piece of equipment for the Birmingham Ice 
Sports Arena and its reliability is critical for insuring safe and smooth ice conditions.  This Zamboni 
is operated seven days per week at about fifteen (15) times per day resurfacing ice.    

BACKGROUND: 
The current 2012 Zamboni with a Hyundai engine has 5,700 hours of usage.  In April of 2022, 
the header had to be replaced and the Zamboni was sent out for service.  After several months 
it was returned in September, 2022 just to be resent out as the header failed and had to be re-
built.  The Zamboni was returned shortly thereafter in October 2022 and has been running without 
any issues.  The current Zamboni is eleven (11) years old and has a Hyundai engine which 
Zamboni no longer builds hence the reason for the delay as replacement parts are unavailable 
and why the header had to be rebuilt.  The City of Birmingham has purchased Zamboni’s in 1972, 
1987, 1997, 2012.  The new Zamboni would be our fifth Zamboni over the past forty-nine years. 

When the Zamboni was out for service in September 2022 a spare Zamboni was borrowed from 
Orchard Lake St. Mary’s Ice Arena until our service company in Kalamazoo was able to provide a 
rental unit for our use.  In doing so, there was no disruption to the arena facility operations and 
programs. 

The Birmingham Ice Arena generates approximatley $430,000 in annual main ice rental revenues 
and poor ice conditions or cancellations would result in and be a leading cause in revenue 
reductions.  On a weekly average the ice arena generates $14,360 in rentals which includes main 
ice arena rentals, open skates, skate rentals and concessions.  The estimated lost revenue does 

5D



2 

not include studio skating classes or private parties in the studio ice arena  that would have to be 
cancelled. 

If the current 2012 Zamboni fails, the cost to rent a Zamboni from our service company in 
Kalamazoo would be $750/per week.  Another option is to rent an 84” Olympia ice resurfacer 
from the Hartland Ice House Arena for $2,800/per week.  The problem with renting the 84” 
Olympia ice resurfacer is the turning radius would be a close fit maneuvering between the studio 
and main arenas and our dump site because of the way the facility is set up. 

The chart below describes the costs related to our existing Zamboni. 

Staff began researching ice resurfacer equipment in 2022, recognizing the need for a new 
machine.  This included speaking with and visiting other ice arenas both public and private, 
including U of M, Yost in Ann Arbor, Bowling Green University, OH and other local rinks in our 
area.  Bowling Green University currently utilizes an Electric Zamboni with lithium ion batteries. 
Staff was able to see it in action and discuss in detail the performance and operational 
functionality.  We also reviewed the propane run resurfacers like we currently have.  While 
propane burns clean, the changing out of tanks can be burdensome, and it does require regular 
cleaning of the lines to keep performance up.  Propane tanks must be refilled, creating a larger 
carbon footprint than the electric which is easily plugged in.   

We requested a proposal from Zamboni, Inc. a provider of a governmental cooperative pricing 
arrangement, for an electric Lithium-Ion battery machine and also, as an alternative, a propane 
run Zamboni.  Only one company manufactures Zamboni and there is about a seventeen month 
production for an electric Zamboni once the order is placed. 

2012
Purchase

Price
Total Repairs 18-19 Repairs 19-20 Repairs 20-21 Repairs 21-22 Repairs 22-23 Repairs

Costs 119,150 54,553 5,597 4,400 8,127 12,991 23,438

0

20,000

40,000

60,000

80,000

100,000

120,000

140,000

DO
LL

AR
S

ZAMBONI REVIEW

5D



3 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the purchase agreement with Zamboni and has no objections to 
its form or content. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
Equipment rental charges annually assessed to the Birmingham Ice Arena amount to 
approximately $35,000 /year for the replacement of the Zamboni.  This amount is charged to the 
Ice Arena Equipment Rental or Lease line item and is placed in the city’s equipment fund for such 
items as maintenance and repairs, fuel and eventual replacement. 

The base price of the electric unit is $132,750 and with the additional deemed necessary optional 
equipment the total cost is $192,718.80 with the Sourcewell governmental cooperative pricing. 
This purchase includes the required electrical charging station.  The City is responsible for 
upgrading the electrical outlet to power the charging system for the Zamboni.  Additionally, the 
price includes a 2-year subscription to Zamboni Connect, a software program designed to alert 
the customer and Zamboni to any necessary maintenance requirements for the resurfacer. 
Another attachment, Level Ice, helps the equipment operator to set the blade at the right level 
and adjusts automatically to the conditions of the ice ultimately resulting in more efficient 
operation of the equipment and  less water usage. 

The lithium batteries life span is 10 years with a replacement cost of $20,000. 

Alternatively, the price for a propane Zamboni like we currently have with the additional deemed 
necessary attachments  is $144,252.30. 

Propane Zambonis are considered cleaner than those that are run by natural gas, a third option 
that we are not considering, however both create pollutants from the engine running.  A short 
video about how electric ice resurfacers prevent toxic fumes can be found here.  The Department 
of Public Services has been satisfied with propane Zambonis over the years, however, because 
the lithium ion battery electric option is available and has proven to be successful for a period of 
at least 3 years, comes with a warranty of 2 years or 2,000 hours, is easy to use and charge, has 
zero emissions and is more sustainable, we are making the recommendation to purchase this 
electric model.   

DPS has requested this purchase be included in the 2023-2024 Budget in the Auto Equipment 
Fund account #661.0-441.006-971.0100.   

A $25,000 deposit is required with placing the order for a new Zamboni.  Money is available this 
current year in the above account for the deposit. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
This purchase does not require Public Communications. 

SUMMARY: 
The Department of Public Services recommends the purchase of the Electric Zamboni model 552 
AC (lithium batteries) and attachments as described in the proposal for a total purchase price of 
$192,718.80.  This model features zero battery maintenance and lithium-ion power that combine 
for the ultimate upgrade to the world’s most popular electric ice resurfacer.  Lithium-ion batteries 

5D

https://www.google.com/search?q=electric+zamboni&rlz=1C1GCEA_enUS1048&oq=electric+zamboni&aqs=chrome..69i57j35i39j0i512j0i22i30l7.6143j0j7&sourceid=chrome&ie=UTF-8#fpstate=ive&vld=cid:c4e315d1,vid:7jL2ifEtpB0


4 

charge quickly between resurfacings, eliminating the need for overnight charging. Sealed zero 
maintenance batteries are truly emission-free. Charging is controlled by battery management 
system to optimize charging and balancing. This model has strong conveyor performance at any 
speed. 

There is a twenty-four (24) month or 2,000 hour warranty, whichever comes first. 

Once ordered, shipment is 500 days or sooner.   

ATTACHMENTS:   
• Purchase agreement between Zamboni Company USA Inc. and the City including the

required Insurances
• Attachment A of Agreement: Proposal from Zamboni

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to approve the agreement with Zamboni Company USA, 
Inc. for the purchase of an Electric Zamboni model 552 AC lithium battery option in an amount 
not to exceed $192,718.80.  In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the 
agreement on behalf of the City.  The $25,000 deposit will be paid out of account 
#661.0-441.006-971 immediately.  Funding for the remainder of the purchase has been 
requested and budgeted in account #661.0-441.006-971.0100 for the 2023-2024 fiscal year. 

5D



1 

AGREEMENT FOR EQUIPMENT PURCHASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM & 
ZAMBONI COMPANY USA, INC. 

THIS AGREEMENT is entered into this          day of  , 2023, by and 
between the CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, whose address is 151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI 48009 
(hereinafter referred to as the City) and Zamboni Company USA, Inc., 15714 Colorado Ave., 
Paramount, CA  90723 USA, (hereafter referred to as Vendor) and the foregoing shall collectively 
be referred to as the parties. 

WHEREAS, the City desires to purchase for its ice arena one (1) Model 552 AC Lithium Ion 
Electric Zamboni with additional equipment, as more fully described in Attachment “A” through a 
governmental cooperative purchasing arrangement; and 

WHEREAS, Vendor has qualifications that meet the purchase requirements and has 
provided a response and cost proposal. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing preambles, the adequacy of which is 
acknowledged by and between the parties to this Agreement, the parties agree as follows: 

1. MUTUALLY AGREE: It is mutually agreed by and between the parties that the
Vendor’s Quotation shall be incorporated herein by reference, shall become a part of this Agreement, 
and shall be binding upon both parties hereto. (Attached hereto as Attachment “A.”) In the event of 
a conflict in any of the terms of this agreement and the Vendor’s Quotation, the terms of this 
Agreement shall prevail. 

2. WARRANTY: This Agreement shall have a warranty for the Model 552 AC Electric
Zamboni described in Attachment A for a term of twenty-four (24) months from the date of 
acceptance or 2000 hours, whichever comes first, parts replacement only.  The products offered 
shall be standard new equipment, current model or most recent regular stock product with all parts 
regularly used with the type of equipment offered; and no attachment or part has been substituted 
or applied contrary to the manufacturer’s recommendations and standard practice. Vendor further 
warrants and represents that components or deliverables specified and furnished by or through the 
Vendor shall individually, and where specified and furnished as a system, be substantially 
uninterrupted or error free in operation and guaranteed against faulty material and workmanship 
for the warranty period, or for two (2) years from the date of acceptance, or 2000 hours, whichever 
comes first.  During the project warranty period, defects in the materials or workmanship of 
components or deliverables specified and furnished by or through the Vendor shall be repaired or 
replaced by Vendor at no cost or expense to the City. 

3. TERM: This is an outright purchase and shall have no term.

4. TERMS OF PAYMENT: The Vendor will invoice the City for the sale. A $25,000
deposit will invoiced with the order.  Shipment 500 days or sooner from receipt of order.  The City 
may, at its sole discretion demand review and the right to request at any time further detailed 
accounting information for any or all bills. The right to inspection of any bill and invoice shall never 
be at any cost or billings to the City, nor shall preparation of said invoices be billed to the City or 
against the general retainer. Payment terms will be net 30 days unless otherwise specified by the 
City. 

5D



2 

5. PERSONNEL: Vendor shall employ personnel of good moral character and fitness
in performing all services under this Agreement. 

6. CONFIDENTIAL AND OR PROPRIETARY INFORMATION: The Vendor
acknowledges that in performing services pursuant to this Agreement, certain confidential and/or 
proprietary information (including, but not limited to, internal organization, methodology, 
personnel and financial information, etc.) may become involved. The Vendor recognizes that 
unauthorized exposure of such confidential or proprietary information could irreparably damage 
the City. Therefore, the Vendor agrees to use reasonable care to safeguard the confidential and 
proprietary information and to prevent the unauthorized use or disclosure thereof. The Vendor 
shall inform its employees of the confidential or proprietary nature of such information and shall 
limit access thereto to employees rendering services pursuant to this Agreement. The Vendor 
further agrees to use such confidential or proprietary information only for the purpose of 
performing services pursuant to this Agreement. 

7. INDEPENDENT VENDOR: The Vendor and the City agree that the Vendor is
acting as an independent contractor with respect to the Vendor role in providing services to the 
City pursuant to this Agreement, and as such, shall be liable for its own actions and neither the 
Vendor nor its employees shall be construed as employees of the City. Nothing contained in this 
Agreement shall be construed to imply a joint venture or partnership and neither party, by virtue 
of this Agreement, shall have any right, power or authority to act or create any obligation, express 
or implied, on behalf of the other party, except as specifically outlined herein. Neither the City nor 
the Vendor shall be considered or construed to be the agent of the other, nor shall either have 
the right to bind the other in any manner whatsoever, except as specifically provided in this 
Agreement, and this Agreement shall not be construed as a contract of agency. The Vendor shall 
not be considered entitled or eligible to participate in any benefits or privileges given or extended 
by the City, or be deemed an employee of the City for purposes of federal or state withholding 
taxes, FICA taxes, unemployment, workers' compensation or any other employer contributions on 
behalf of the City. 

8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: The Vendor agrees to fully and faithfully carry out
the duties of set forth herein using its best efforts in accomplishing all assignments from the City, 
and further, in addition to upholding all federal, and state laws and applicable codes of 
professional conduct to which Vendor is subject, Vendor hereby agrees to be bound by all Federal, 
State, or City of Birmingham ordinances, rules, regulations and policies as are amended from time 
to time, and including without limitation the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Equal Employment 
Opportunity rules and regulations, the Transportation Safety Act and the Occupational Safety and 
Health Acts. 

9. INDEMNIFICATION: To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Vendor and any
entity or person for whom the Vendor is legally liable, agrees to be responsible for any liability, 
defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Birmingham, its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on their behalf against any and 
all claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all costs and reasonable attorney fees connected 
therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered against or from the 
City, its elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on their behalf, 
by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury and death and/or property damage, including 
loss of use thereof, which arise out of the acts, errors or omissions of the Vendor including its 

5D



3 

employees and agents, in the performance of this Agreement. Such responsibility shall not be 
construed as liability for damage caused by or resulting from the sole act or omission of its elected 
or appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others working on behalf of the City. 

10. STANDARD INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS:  The Vendor shall maintain during
the life of this Agreement the applicable types of insurance coverage and minimum limits as set 
forth below: 

A. Workers' Compensation Insurance:

For Non-Sole Proprietorships: Vendor shall procure and maintain during the life 
of this Agreement, Workers' Compensation Insurance, including Employers’ Liability 
Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the State of Michigan.  

For Sole Proprietorships: Vendor shall complete and furnish to the City prior to the 
commencement of work under this Agreement a signed and notarized Sole Proprietor 
Form, for sole proprietors with no employees or with employees, as the case may be. 

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance: Vendor shall procure and maintain during the life
of this Agreement, Commercial General Liability Insurance on an "Occurrence Basis" with limits
of liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence combined single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily
Injury and Property Damage. Coverage shall include the following extensions: (A) Contractual
Liability; (B) Products and Completed Operations; (C) Independent Vendor Coverage; (D) Broad
Form General Liability Extensions or equivalent; (E) Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and
Underground (XCU) Exclusions, if applicable.

C. Coverage Expiration: If any of the above coverages expire during the term of this
Agreement, Vendor shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the City at least (10) days
prior to the expiration date.

D. Proof of Insurance Coverage: Vendor shall provide the City of Birmingham at the time the
Agreement is returned for execution, Certificates of Insurance and/or policies, acceptable to the
City of Birmingham, as listed below.

1) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Workers'  Compensation Insurance, or a
signed and notarized copy of the Sole Proprietor Form;

2) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General Liability Insurance;
3) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Vehicle Liability Insurance;
4) Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Professional Liability Insurance, if

applicable;
5) If so requested, Certified Copies of all policies mentioned above will be furnished.

E. Maintaining Insurance: Upon failure of the Vendor to obtain or maintain such insurance
coverage for the term of the Agreement, the City of Birmingham may, at its option, purchase
such coverage and subtract the cost of obtaining such coverage from the Agreement amount.
In obtaining such coverage, the City of Birmingham shall have no obligation to procure the most
cost-effective coverage but may contract with any insurer for such coverage.

11. WRITTEN NOTICES: Written notices regarding this Agreement shall be

addressed to the following: 

5D



4 

City: City of Birmingham 
P.O. Box 3001 
Birmingham, Michigan 48012 
Attn: Scott Zielinski 

Vendor:  Zamboni Company, Inc. 
15714 Colorado Ave. 
Paramount, California 90723 USA 

12. AMENDMENTS: No amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement
shall be binding unless it is in writing and signed by authorized representatives of the parties. 

13. WAIVER OF BREACH: No waiver by either party of any breach of any of the
terms, covenants or conditions herein contained by the other party shall be construed as a waiver 
of any succeeding breach of this same or of any other term, covenant or condition. 

14. COMPLETE AGREEMENT: The parties agree that the conditions set forth in this
Agreement sets forth all terms and conditions of Vendor agreement with the City of Birmingham. 
This Agreement supersedes all prior agreements or understandings between the parties. There 
are no promises, conditions or understandings other than those stated herein, and, that any prior 
negotiations, terms or conditions discussed between the City and the Vendor shall not constitute 
a part of this Agreement. The term “agreement” as used in this clause shall include any future 
written amendments, modifications, or supplements made in accordance herewith. 

15. DIRECT OR INDIRECT INTEREST: If, after the effective date of this
Agreement, any official of the City, or spouse, child, parent or in-law of such official or employee 
shall become directly or indirectly interested in this Agreement or the affairs of the Vendor, the 
City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement without further liability to the Vendor if the 
disqualification has not been removed within thirty (30) days after the City has given the Vendor 
notice of the disqualifying interest. Ownership of less than one percent (1%) of the stock or other 
equity interest in a corporation or partnership shall not be a disqualifying interest. Employment 
shall be a disqualifying interest. 

16. FAILURE TO PERFORM. If Vendor fails to perform its obligations hereunder, the
City may take any and all remedial actions provided by the general specifications or otherwise 
permitted by law. 

17. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS: Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to
this Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled either by commencement of a suit in 
Oakland County Circuit Court, the 48th District Court or by arbitration. If both parties elect to 
have the dispute resolved by arbitration, it shall be settled pursuant to Chapter 50 of the Revised 
Judicature Act for the State of Michigan and administered by the American Arbitration 
Association with one arbitrator being used, or three arbitrators in the event any party’s claim 
exceeds $1,000,000. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses and an equal share of 
the arbitrator’s and administrative fees of arbitration. Such arbitration shall qualify as statutory 

5D



5 

arbitration pursuant to MCL §600.5001 et seq., and the Oakland County Circuit Court or any 
court having jurisdiction shall render judgment upon the award of the arbitrator made pursuant 
to this Agreement. The laws of the State of Michigan shall govern this Agreement, and the 
arbitration shall take place in Oakland County, Michigan. In the event that the parties elect not 
to have the matter in dispute arbitrated, any dispute between the parties may be resolved by 
the filing of a suit in a federal or state court with jurisdiction over Oakland County, Michigan. 

18. RESPONSE TO GOVERNMENTAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASING
AGREEMENT: The Vendor shall be held to and bound by all terms, conditions, warranties and 
representations which it made in its written response dated February 16, 2023, to the 
governmental cooperative purchasing arrangement.  In the event of a conflict in any of  the 
terms  of  this  Agreement  and the Vendor’s February 16, 2023 response, the terms of this 
Agreement shall prevail. 

19. FAIR PROCUREMENT OPPORTUNITY: Procurement for the City of Birmingham
will be handled in a manner providing fair opportunity for all businesses. This will be accomplished 
without abrogation or sacrifice of quality and as determined to be in the best interest of the City 
of Birmingham. 

THIS AREA HAS BEEN INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

5D



5D



CALIFORNIA JURAT GOVERNMENT CODE § 8202 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the individual who signed 
the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

State of California 

County of Los � (J (" (t.5
_J 

I e e .: e :S. �E;NA:D:;� e f 
_ Notary Public · California z 
i Los Angeles County i! 

Commission # 2◄20907 
-

My Comm. Expires Oct 11, 2026 

Place Notary Seal and/or Stamp Above 

Subscribed and sworn to (or affirmed) before me on 

this 08''-fl_ day of (v( h•C k_ 2�. by
Date Month Year 

(1) Dov,.,01 ltc :- Peta c.s
v 

(an, 
Name(s) of Signer(s) 

proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to 
be the person(s) who appeared before me. 

---------------- OPTIONAL -------------------,

Completing this information can deter alteration of the document or 

fraudulent reattachment of this form to an unintended document. 

Description of Attached Document 

Title or Type of Document: ½-.eR,n>h-j- W Eq,1;p,1vr:f fcuuhu,Sc__
Document Date: MwcA Of; .::Z:D"?::;:3 Number of Pages: �'°-t ...... o_: ___ _

Signer(s) Other Than Named Above: ______ i�J..,{r-F�"<-----------------

©2019 National Notary Association 

5D



INSR ADDL SUBR
LTR INSR WVD

DATE (MM/DD/YYYY)

PRODUCER CONTACT
NAME:

FAXPHONE
(A/C, No):(A/C, No, Ext):

E-MAIL
ADDRESS:

INSURER A :

INSURED INSURER B :

INSURER C :

INSURER D :

INSURER E :

INSURER F :

POLICY NUMBER
POLICY EFF POLICY EXP

TYPE OF INSURANCE LIMITS(MM/DD/YYYY) (MM/DD/YYYY)

COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY

AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

UMBRELLA LIAB

EXCESS LIAB

WORKERS COMPENSATION
AND EMPLOYERS' LIABILITY

DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS / LOCATIONS / VEHICLES (ACORD 101, Additional Remarks Schedule, may be attached if more space is required)

AUTHORIZED REPRESENTATIVE

INSURER(S) AFFORDING COVERAGE NAIC #

Y / N

N / A
(Mandatory in NH)

ANY PROPRIETOR/PARTNER/EXECUTIVE
OFFICER/MEMBER EXCLUDED?

EACH OCCURRENCE $
DAMAGE TO RENTED

$PREMISES (Ea occurrence)CLAIMS-MADE OCCUR

MED EXP (Any one person) $

PERSONAL & ADV INJURY $

GENERAL AGGREGATE $GEN'L AGGREGATE LIMIT APPLIES PER:

PRODUCTS - COMP/OP AGG $

$

PRO-

OTHER:

LOCJECT

COMBINED SINGLE LIMIT
$(Ea accident)

BODILY INJURY (Per person) $ANY AUTO
OWNED SCHEDULED BODILY INJURY (Per accident) $AUTOS ONLY AUTOS

AUTOS ONLY
HIRED PROPERTY DAMAGE $

AUTOS ONLY (Per accident)

$

OCCUR EACH OCCURRENCE $

CLAIMS-MADE AGGREGATE $

DED RETENTION $ $
PER OTH-
STATUTE ER

E.L. EACH ACCIDENT $

E.L. DISEASE - EA EMPLOYEE $
If yes, describe under

E.L. DISEASE - POLICY LIMIT $DESCRIPTION OF OPERATIONS below

POLICY

NON-OWNED

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CANCELLED BEFORE
THE    EXPIRATION   DATE    THEREOF,    NOTICE   WILL   BE   DELIVERED   IN
ACCORDANCE   WITH   THE   POLICY   PROVISIONS.

THIS  IS  TO  CERTIFY  THAT  THE  POLICIES  OF  INSURANCE  LISTED  BELOW  HAVE BEEN ISSUED  TO THE  INSURED  NAMED ABOVE  FOR THE  POLICY PERIOD
INDICATED.   NOTWITHSTANDING  ANY   REQUIREMENT,  TERM  OR  CONDITION OF  ANY  CONTRACT OR  OTHER  DOCUMENT  WITH  RESPECT  TO  WHICH  THIS
CERTIFICATE  MAY  BE  ISSUED  OR  MAY  PERTAIN,   THE  INSURANCE  AFFORDED  BY  THE  POLICIES  DESCRIBED  HEREIN  IS  SUBJECT  TO  ALL  THE  TERMS,
EXCLUSIONS  AND  CONDITIONS  OF  SUCH  POLICIES.   LIMITS  SHOWN  MAY  HAVE  BEEN  REDUCED  BY  PAID  CLAIMS.

THIS CERTIFICATE IS ISSUED AS A MATTER OF INFORMATION ONLY AND CONFERS NO RIGHTS UPON THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER. THIS
CERTIFICATE DOES NOT AFFIRMATIVELY OR NEGATIVELY AMEND, EXTEND OR ALTER THE COVERAGE AFFORDED BY THE POLICIES
BELOW. THIS CERTIFICATE OF INSURANCE DOES NOT CONSTITUTE A CONTRACT BETWEEN THE ISSUING INSURER(S), AUTHORIZED
REPRESENTATIVE OR PRODUCER, AND THE CERTIFICATE HOLDER.

IMPORTANT: If the certificate holder is an ADDITIONAL INSURED, the policy(ies) must have ADDITIONAL INSURED provisions or be endorsed.
If SUBROGATION IS WAIVED, subject to the terms and conditions of the policy, certain policies may require an endorsement. A statement on
this certificate does not confer any rights to the certificate holder in lieu of such endorsement(s).

COVERAGES CERTIFICATE NUMBER: REVISION NUMBER:

CERTIFICATE HOLDER CANCELLATION

© 1988-2015 ACORD CORPORATION. All rights reserved.

The ACORD name and logo are registered marks of ACORDACORD 25 (2016/03)

ACORDTM CERTIFICATE OF LIABILITY INSURANCE

Federal Insurance Company

2/21/2023

McGriff Insurance Services
3130 Crow Canyon Pl, Ste. 400
San Ramon, CA  94583
925 463-0192

CertsCA@mcgriff.com

Zamboni Company USA, Inc.
15714 Colorado Ave.
Paramount, CA  90723

20281

A X
X

X BI/PD Ded:$50,000

X

35318690LAO 06/01/2022 06/01/2023 1,000,000
1,000,000
10,000
1,000,000
2,000,000
2,000,000

A
X

X X

73598113 06/01/2022 06/01/2023 1,000,000

A
X X

X 0

79702407 06/01/2022 06/01/2023 15,000,000
15,000,000

A 71756168 03/01/2023 03/01/2024 X
1,000,000

1,000,000
1,000,000

Certificate is subject to policy limits, conditions and exclusions.
Evidence of Insurance Only.

Zamboni Company USA, Inc.
15714 Colorado Ave.
Paramount, CA  90723

1 of 1
#S31611319/M31611293

307ZAMBOCOMClient#: 1266049

ROWAR
1 of 1

#S31611319/M31611293

5D



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 

5D



PROPOSAL

“The principal product you have to sell is the ice itself.” 
– Frank J. Zamboni

February 16, 2023 

Connie J Folk 
City of Birmingham 
2300 East Lincoln 
Birmingham, MI 48009 

 
 

Maintaining an ice surface presents a multitude of challenges. Having efficient and reliable 
resurfacing equipment should not be one of them. Driven by our founder’s commitment to innovation, we 
put our product to the test in the harsh environment it will call home. Every feature is deliberately 
designed to make resurfacing easier and to ensure that the end result is an exceptional sheet of ice. Built 
by hand. One at a time. The result is an ice resurfacing machine legendary for its quality, durability and 
superior performance. 

MODEL 552AC: 
Clean ice. Clean air. Clear choice. Building upon the solid reputation of its predecessor, the Model 552AC 
features worry-free AC motors and controls, introducing new efficiencies and virtually eliminating 
associated maintenance. The battery package is easy to access and maintain. Proven and dependable 
controls built for tough industrial applications. Microprocessor controlled smart chargers deliver long 
battery life. The Model 552AC provides a low maintenance option for your high maintenance surface. 

MODEL 552AC LITHIUM-ION (OPTIONAL): 
Zero battery maintenance and lithium-ion power combine for the ultimate upgrade to the world’s most 
popular electric ice resurfacer. Lithium-ion batteries charge quickly between resurfacings, eliminating 
overnight charging. Sealed zero maintenance batteries are truly emission-free. Charging is controlled by 
battery management system to optimize charging and balancing. Strong conveyor performance at any 
speed. Our unrivaled down pressure system ensures that all you leave behind is perfect. 

INNOVATION:  
Our commitment to constant innovation is an investment in the end product. We apply decades 
of experience working with facility owners and operators into every decision we make. Automated 
processes provide a consistent end result and reduce the chance for operator error. Opportunities to 
retrieve and display data from the machine provide a new tool in rink management. The incremental 
and continued introduction of new and better technologies to our ice resurfacing machines facilitates 
savings of time and valuable resources. 

5D



Zamboni 552AC Proposal 

C_Folk552AC.2.16.23proposal Page 2 of 3 

QUALITY:  
Zamboni sets the standard of quality to which the industry is held.  The Zamboni Company holds itself to 
an even higher standard with ongoing assessment and meticulous quality control, resulting in products 
which consistently produce the finest sheet of ice even after many years of use. Our rugged four-wheel 
drive chassis is hand-built using strong all-welded steel tubing. Premium materials and components are 
used throughout. We continually collaborate with our customers to ensure the products that will ultimately 
end up in their facility exceed the high expectations of quality associated with our brand.  

VALUE: 
Zamboni has a well-deserved reputation as the Industry Leader. One which we don’t take for granted. 
Our products have the lowest cost of operation and maintain the highest residual value. A network of 
Zamboni Authorized Distributors and our own Customer Service teams provide local service and support 
for our products. In the world of ice, time is money and unreliable equipment can be a show-stopper. Yet 
another reason that worldwide, more facility operators choose Zamboni for their ice resurfacing needs.  
Nothing else is even close. 

MACHINE SPECIFICATIONS: 
Machine specifications are also available online. Please copy the web links below into your browser. 
https://zamboni.com/wp-content/uploads/specs/552AC_specs.pdf 
https://zamboni.com/wp-content/uploads/specs/552AC_Lithium-ion_specs.pdf 

MANUFACTURER’S STATEMENT: 
This machine is proudly designed and manufactured in Paramount, California by 
Zamboni Company USA, Inc., a United States company. 

WARRANTY: 
Twenty-Four (24) months or 2,000 hours, whichever comes first, parts replacement only. 

SAFETY STANDARDS: 
This machine is engineered to meet or exceed OSHA and ANSI safety labeling requirements.  
In addition to digital safety information, operating instructions and service manuals being provided with 
the delivery of the machine, all owners/operators have access to all of these materials online at 
www.zamboni.com to view and download at any time. 

FOR ADDITIONAL INFORMATION: 

zamboni.com/machines/model-552ac 

zamboni.com/machines/model-552ac-lithium-ion 

zamboni.com/options 

5D



Zamboni 552AC Proposal 

C_Folk552AC.2.16.23proposal Page 3 of 3 

Zamboni 552AC $ 132,750.00 

STANDARD EQUIPMENT INCLUDES: 

Aluminum Wheels, Guide Wheel, Black Powder Coated Conditioner, Parking 
Brake, Conditioner Poly Side Plate, Spare Tire & Wheel Assembly, (2) 77” 
Blades 

ADDITIONAL EQUIPMENT: 

Lithium Ion Battery in Lieu of Lead Acid $ 13,200.00 
Back Up Alarm $ 750.00 
Board Brush $ 6,185.00 
Power Brush Fill $ 400.00 
Wash Water System w/ Poly Tank $ 5,175.00 
Electronic Water Level Sight Gauge $ 535.00 
Snow Tank Light $ 450.00 
Advanced Water System $ 5,565.00 
Tire Wash System $ 1,510.00 
Auto Snow Breaker $ 1,890.00 
Stainless Steel Water Distribution Pipe $ 430.00 
Viscous Coupling Drive Shaft $ 1,825.00 
Zamboni Connect (Includes 2-year subscription) $ 2,375.00 
Level Ice (installation & training additional) $ 21,000.00 

Subtotal $ 194,040.00 
Less Sourcewell Discount $ (-5,821.20) 
Transportation (Estimate. Transportation to be adjusted at time of shipment.) $ 4,500.00 

Total $ 192,718.80 

F.O.B:  
Paramount, California USA 

TERMS: 
$25,000.00 deposit with order, balance Net 30 days from date of shipment. 
Shipment 500 days or sooner from receipt of order. Pricing firm for 30 days. 
Pricing does not include any applicable sales tax. 

THANK YOU: 

February 16, 2023 

Doug Peters, 
Regional Sales Manager 

Date 

Zamboni Company USA, Inc. 
15714 Colorado Ave. Paramount, California 90723 USA 
Phone: +1 562 633 0751  Fax: +1 562 633 9365 

5D



MEMORANDUM 
Museum 

DATE: March 3, 2023 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Leslie Pielack, Museum Director 

SUBJECT: Contract Award, Birmingham Museum - Phase II- Allen House 
Historic Window Restoration Project  

INTRODUCTION: 

The wood windows in the Allen House are original to its construction in 1926, and are an essential 
component of the building’s historic character. Over the years they have suffered damage from 
inconsistent maintenance and moisture intrusion, and have been painted several times. Many 
are now immovable. Weather-related damage has begun to accelerate; however, they are still 
sufficiently intact that they can be repaired and restored to their original working condition and 
made fully functioning. Proper restoration will not only preserve the windows, but will also 
improve their insulating ability and make regular maintenance easier and more effective. Properly 
restored and maintained original wood windows can be expected to last another century or 
longer.  

The Allen House window restoration project was divided into two phases to facilitate project 
funding and management, and to minimize disruption to the museum’s operation. Phase I was 
completed in November, 2022, and consisted of a full restoration of the upper level windows and 
installation of historically appropriate storm windows. The second phase will complete the 
restoration of the lower level windows during the summer of 2023.   

BACKGROUND: 

The Allen House was designed by architect Rupert Koch and built in 1926 for Harry Allen, the 
first mayor of the City of Birmingham, and his wife Marion, and is located in the Mill Pond Historic 
District. The house was designed in the popular Colonial Revival style with wood double hung 
multi-paned windows used singly and in twos and threes, characteristic of the style. They are a 
key feature of the house and integral to the architect’s design. 

The windows are original and have never been repaired or removed, but in the past hundred 
years, have been painted numerous times on both interior and exterior. They are in need of 
complete restoration due to areas of water damage, lack of operability due to missing or 
damaged hardware, overpainting, and need for re-glazing. With proper repair, the windows will 
function correctly, be more energy efficient, and be restored to original condition and operation. 

Window restoration is a highly specialized area of historic preservation. In 2020, North Coast 
Windows Works (a specialty firm dealing in historic window preservation that provides training 
in historic window restoration for the Michigan Historic Preservation Network) conducted a 
detailed assessment and developed a scope of work for the repair and restoration of each window 

5E



in the Allen House. The repair/restoration schedule in the scope specifies the treatment and 
hazard mitigation needed for each individual unit if lead is present, which is anticipated. The 
project is highly labor-intensive and requires specialized expertise for the proper repair of the 
windows in accordance with historic preservation standards. 

On March 3, 2021, the Historic District Commission/Design Review Board provided a courtesy 
review and unanimously endorsed the planned work and methodology for the Allen House 
window restoration project. Phase I involved the Allen House’s upper floor windows, and was 
budgeted for and completed in FY 2021-22 by L.G.K. Construction, Inc. Museum staff and 
portions of the artifact collection were temporarily relocated and the Allen House was closed to 
the public for five weeks during the project.  

To complete Phase II, a Request for Proposals was posted on the MITN website on January 6, 
2023, and firms specializing in historic window repair were invited to submit proposals. The RFP 
included the prepared scope of work and excerpts from the Secretary of the Interior Standards 
for the Treatment of Historic Properties (Windows) as reference. The selection of a firm to 
complete the project requires confidence that it has the resources and experience to complete 
the project to the highest standard of preservation.  

One proposal was received for the Phase II Allen House Historic Window Restoration in the 
amount of $ 178,900 from L.G.K. Construction, Inc., which is the firm that completed Phase I. 
During the first phase of the window project, L.G.K. demonstrated that it has the necessary 
historic restoration experience, environmental safety qualifications, and available window 
restoration expertise to successfully complete the work in the necessary timeframe. L.G.K. has 
also consistently demonstrated a consistently high level of quality in previous projects at the 
Allen and Hunter Houses, as well as other municipalities. In addition, the Museum Board 
reviewed and approved of L.G.K.’s qualifications for Phase I in April of 2022 and indicated their 
support for L.G.K. for Phase II at their meeting on February 2, 2023.  

LEGAL REVIEW:  
 
City Attorney Mary Kucharek has provided a legal review of the Request for Proposals and 
Agreement for this project with L.G.K. Construction, Inc. 

 
FISCAL IMPACT:  
 
Funds were budgeted for the window restoration component of this project in the 2022-2023 
budget and the storm window component of the project is being requested in the 2023-2024 
budget under the Allen House Other Contractual Services account, #101-804.002-811.0000. 
 
SUSTAINABILITY COMMENTS: 
 
The repair and restoration of the original windows in the Allen House will return the windows to 
their proper fit and increase their the proper fit and efficiency of the windows, and the installation 
of storm windows will add long-lasting protection of the windows as well as add to their energy 
efficiency, reducing heating and cooling costs. 
 
PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
 
This project contract does not require public communications. 
 

5E



 
SUMMARY 
 
The Birmingham Museum-Phase II Allen House Historic Window Restoration Project 
has received a qualified proposal to complete the necessary work to restore and preserve the 
original wood windows in the Allen House from L.G.K. Construction, Inc. In light of the project 
specifications, firm experience and references, and project approach, it is recommended that the 
contract award for the Birmingham Museum-Phase II Allen House Historic Window 
Restoration Project go to L.G.K. Construction, Inc., in the amount of $ $178,900. 

 
ATTACHMENTS:   
 

1. Contract Agreement with insurance documents 
2. March 3, 2021 minutes, Historic District Commission/Design Review Board, 

(https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes
/Historic%20District%20Commission/Minutes/2021/HDC%20Minutes%20(APPROVED)%
20-%203-3-21.pdf)  

3. April 7, 2022 minutes, Museum Board, 
(https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes
/Museum%20Board/Minutes/2022/20220407%20Museum%20Board%20Meeting%20Mi
nutes.pdf) and minutes, Museum Board, dated February 2, 2023 
(https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes
/Museum%20Board/Minutes/2023/20230202-
Museum%20Board%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf). 

 
SUGGESTED ACTION: 
 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to approve an agreement with L.G.K. Construction, Inc., for 
Birmingham Museum-Phase II Allen House Historic Window Restoration Project in the amount 
not to exceed $ 178,900. In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement 
on behalf of the City. The window restoration portion of the project of $159,100 is to be charged 
to 101.0-804.002-811.0000 in fiscal year 2022-2023, while the storm window portion of the 
project of $19,800 is to be charged to 101.0-804.002-811.0000 in fiscal year 2023-2024 

5E

https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Historic%20District%20Commission/Minutes/2021/HDC%20Minutes%20(APPROVED)%20-%203-3-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Historic%20District%20Commission/Minutes/2021/HDC%20Minutes%20(APPROVED)%20-%203-3-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Historic%20District%20Commission/Minutes/2021/HDC%20Minutes%20(APPROVED)%20-%203-3-21.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Museum%20Board/Minutes/2022/20220407%20Museum%20Board%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Museum%20Board/Minutes/2022/20220407%20Museum%20Board%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Museum%20Board/Minutes/2022/20220407%20Museum%20Board%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Museum%20Board/Minutes/2023/20230202-Museum%20Board%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Museum%20Board/Minutes/2023/20230202-Museum%20Board%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf
https://cms7files1.revize.com/birmingham/Document_Center/Agenda%20&%20Minutes/Museum%20Board/Minutes/2023/20230202-Museum%20Board%20Meeting%20Minutes.pdf


 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
AGREEMENT FOR PHASE II-LOWER WINDOWS-ALLEN HOUSE HISTORIC 

WINDOW RESTORATION PROJECT 
 
 
  

5E



ATTACHMENT A - AGREEMENT 
Birmingham Museum – Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen House Historic Window 

Restoration Project 

This AGREEMENT, entered into this _______day of ____________, 2023, by and 
between the CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, whose address is 151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI 
48009 (hereinafter referred to as the City) and L.G.K. Building, Inc., a Michigan corporation, 
whose address is 1851 Lone Pine Road, Bloomfield Hills, MI  48302 (hereinafter referred to as 
"Contractor") and the foregoing shall collectively be referred to as the parties. 

WHEREAS, the City desires to repair and restore the historic windows of the Allen House, 
located at the Birmingham Museum in the City of Birmingham, and in connection therewith has 
requested proposals for the Phase II-Lower Windows-Allen House Historic Window Restoration 
Project; and  

WHEREAS, Contractor has qualifications that meet the project requirements and has 
provided a response and cost proposal for the Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen House Historic 
Window Restoration Project. 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing preambles, the adequacy 
of which is acknowledged by and between the parties to this Agreement, the parties agree as 
follows: 

1. MUTUALLY AGREE: I It is mutually agreed by and between the parties that the City’s 
Request for Proposal for the Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen House Historic Window 
Restoration Project dated 1/6/2023, which includes Attachments B, C, D, E, and F shall be 
fully incorporated herein by reference and shall become a part of this Agreement, and shall 
be binding upon both parties hereto (attached hereto as Attachment “A”).

2. TERM: This Agreement shall have a term of twelve (12) months from the date stated above. 
The City shall have the right to unilaterally terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) days 
written notice. In the event of termination, the Contractor shall receive compensation for 
services to the date the termination takes effect and the City shall be entitled to retain and 
use the results of all services prepared by the Contractor through such date.

3. TERMS OF PAYMENT:  The Contractor will invoice monthly for all labor supplied and work 
completed. In no event shall invoices be submitted more than 45 days after completion of 
services. Submitted invoices shall include the following detailed information: the type of work 
performed, the time spent on the work, the individual who performed the work and the per 
hour billing rate charged. The City may, at its sole discretion demand review and the right to 
request at any time further detailed accounting information for any or all bills. The right to 
inspection of any bill and invoice shall never be at any cost or billings to the City, nor shall 
preparation of said invoices be billed to the City or against the general retainer. Payment 
terms will be net 30 days unless otherwise specified by the City.

4. Contractor shall employ personnel of good moral character and fitness in performing all 
services under this Agreement.

5E



5. INSURANCE SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS: The Contractor has submitted proof to the 
City that it meets all City insurance requirements. Insurance, with coverage amounts at no 
less than the City's minimum requirements, must be held by the Contractor throughout the 
term of this Agreement. Certificates of insurance as stated below will be required no later 
than five (5) business days from the date of Contractor acceptance of the terms of this 
Agreement. 

 
6. CONFIDENTIAL AND OR PROPRIETARY INFORMATION: The Contractor acknowledges 

that in performing services pursuant to this Agreement, certain confidential and/or proprietary 
information (including, but not limited to, internal organization, methodology, personnel and 
financial information, etc.) may become involved. The Contractor recognizes that 
unauthorized exposure of such confidential or proprietary information could irreparably 
damage the City. Therefore, the Contractor agrees to use reasonable care to safeguard the 
confidential and proprietary information and to prevent the unauthorized use or disclosure 
thereof. The Contractor shall inform its employees of the confidential or proprietary nature of 
such information and shall limit access thereto to employees rendering services pursuant to 
this Agreement. The Contractor further agrees to use such confidential or proprietary 
information only for the purpose of performing services pursuant to this Agreement.  

 
7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Contractor and the City agree that the Contractor is 

acting as an independent contractor with respect to the Contractor role in providing services 
to the City pursuant to this Agreement, and as such, shall be liable for its own actions and 
neither the Contractor nor its employees shall be construed as employees of the City. Nothing 
contained in this Agreement shall be construed to imply a joint venture or partnership and 
neither party, by virtue of this Agreement, shall have any right, power or authority to act or 
create any obligation, express or implied, on behalf of the other party, except as specifically 
outlined herein. Neither the City nor the Contractor shall be considered or construed to be the 
agent of the other, nor shall either have the right to bind the other in any manner whatsoever, 
except as specifically provided in this Agreement, and this Agreement shall not be construed 
as a contract of agency. The Contractor shall not be considered entitled or eligible to 
participate in any benefits or privileges given or extended by the City, or be deemed an 
employee of the City for purposes of federal or state withholding taxes, FICA taxes, 
unemployment, workers' compensation or any other employer contributions on behalf of the 
City. 

 
8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: Contractor agrees to fully and faithfully carry out the duties of 

set forth herein using its best efforts in accomplishing all assignments from the City, and 
further, in addition to upholding all federal, and state laws and applicable codes of professional 
conduct to which Contractor is subject, Contractor hereby agrees to be bound by all Federal, 
State, or City of Birmingham ordinances, rules, regulations and policies as are amended from 
time to time, and including without limitation the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Equal 
Employment Opportunity rules and regulations, the Transportation Safety Act and the 
Occupational Safety and Health Acts. 

 
9. NON-COMPLIANCE WITH INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: Failure to deliver and 

maintain insurance in accordance with the terms of this Agreement will be cause for the City, 
by and through its City Manager, to terminate this Agreement, or at the City's option, the City 
may purchase on the open market such required insurance and shall be entitled to charge 

5E



any additional cost to the Contractor, either by offset to any amounts due and owing 
Contractor for services provided to the City, or, by separate bill and demand for payment. 
Nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed to create or be interpreted as establishing a “for 
cause” termination; Contractor agrees and understands that its engagement is at will and 
may be terminated by the City Manager for any cause or no cause. 

 
10. INDEMNIFICATION: To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor and any entity 

or person for whom the Contractor is legally liable, agrees to be responsible for any liability, 
defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Birmingham, its elected 
and appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on their behalf against 
any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all costs and reasonable attorney fees 
connected therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered 
against or from the City, its elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others 
working on their behalf, by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury and death and/or 
property damage, including loss of use thereof, which arise out of the acts, errors or omissions 
of the Contractor including its employees and agents, in the performance of this Agreement. 
Such responsibility shall not be construed as liability for damage caused by or resulting from 
the sole act or omission of its elected or appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others 
working on behalf of the City. 

 
11. STANDARD INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: The Contractor shall maintain during the life 

of this Agreement the applicable types of insurance coverage and minimum limits as set forth 
below:  

 
A. Workers' Compensation Insurance:  

1. For Non-Sole Proprietorships: Contractor shall procure and maintain during 
the life of this Agreement, Workers' Compensation Insurance, including 
Employers Liability Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the 
State of Michigan.  

2. For Sole Proprietorships: Contractor shall complete and furnish to the City 
prior to the commencement of work under this Agreement a signed and 
notarized Sole Proprietor Form, for sole proprietors with no employees or with 
employees, as the case may be.  

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance: Contractor shall procure and maintain 
during the life of this Agreement, Commercial General Liability Insurance on an 
"Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 
combined single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Coverage 
shall include the following extensions: (A) Contractual Liability; (B) Products and 
Completed Operations; (C) Independent Contractor Coverage; (D) Broad Form 
General Liability Extensions or equivalent; (E) Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and 
Underground (XCU) Exclusions, if applicable.  

C. Motor Vehicle Liability: Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of this 
Agreement Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including all applicable no-fault 
coverages, with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence combined 
single limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Coverage shall include all owned 
vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all hired vehicles.  

D. Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability 
Insurance, as described above, shall include an endorsement stating the following 

5E



Additional Insureds: The City of Birmingham, including all elected and 
appointed officials, all employee and volunteers, all boards, commissions 
and/or authorities and board members, including employees and 
volunteers thereof. This coverage shall be primary to any other coverage that may 
be available to the additional insured, whether any other available coverage by 
primary, contributing or excess.  

E. Professional Liability: If applicable, professional liability insurance with limits of not 
less than $2,000,000 per claim if Contractor will provide services that are customarily 
subject to this type of coverage.  

F. Coverage Expiration: If any of the above coverages expire during the term of this 
Agreement, Contractor shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the City at 
least (10) days prior to the expiration date.  

G. Proof of Insurance Coverage: Contractor shall provide the City of Birmingham at 
the time the Agreement is returned for execution, Certificates of Insurance and/or 
policies, acceptable to the City of Birmingham, as listed below.  

1. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Workers' Compensation 
Insurance, or a signed and notarized copy of the Sole Proprietor Form;  

2. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General Liability 
Insurance;  

3. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Vehicle Liability Insurance; 
4. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Professional Liability 

Insurance, if applicable;  
5. If so requested, Certified Copies of all policies mentioned above will be 

furnished. 
H. Maintaining Insurance: Upon failure of the Contractor to obtain or maintain such 

insurance coverage for the term of the Agreement, the City of Birmingham may, at its 
option, purchase such coverage and subtract the cost of obtaining such coverage from 
the Agreement amount. In obtaining such coverage, the City of Birmingham shall have 
no obligation to procure the most cost-effective coverage but may contract with any 
insurer for such coverage  

 
12.  WRITTEN NOTICES: Written notices regarding this Agreement shall be addressed to the 

following:  

City:   City of Birmingham  
P.O. Box 3001  
Birmingham, Michigan 48012  
Attn: Leslie Pielack, Museum Director 
 
L.G.K. Building, Inc. 
1851 Lone Pine Road 
Bloomfield Hills, MI   48302  
Attn: Alex Kalaj 

 
13. COVID: The Contractor shall follow all of the City’s COVID-19 safety protocols while on City 

property. Additionally, Contractor staff that will be in physical contact with city staff must have 
current vaccinations against COVID-19. The City, at its discretion, may ask for proof of 
vaccination of Contractor staff. Failure to provide proof of vaccination when requested will 

5E



cause the City to request un-vaccinated personnel to leave, request alternate staff, and if the 
Contractor is unable to comply, this violation of safety protocols will constitute a breach of 
contract by the Contractor. 

 
14. AMENDMENTS: No amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be 

binding unless it is in writing and signed by authorized representatives of the parties. 
 

15. WAIVER OF BREACH: No waiver by either party of any breach of any of the terms, 
covenants or conditions herein contained by the other party shall be construed as a waiver of 
any succeeding breach of this same or of any other term, covenant or condition. 

 
16. COMPLETE AGREEMENT: The parties agree that the conditions set forth in this Agreement 

sets forth all terms and conditions of Contractor agreement with the City of Birmingham. This 
Agreement supersedes all prior agreements or understandings between the parties. There are 
no promises, conditions or understandings other than those stated herein, and, that any prior 
negotiations, terms or conditions discussed between the City and the Contractor shall not 
constitute a part of this Agreement. The term “agreement” as used in this clause shall include 
any future written amendments, modifications, or supplements made in accordance herewith. 

 
17. DIRECT OR INDIRECT INTEREST: If, after the effective date of this Agreement, any 

official of the City, or spouse, child, parent or in-law of such official or employee shall become 
directly or indirectly interested in this Agreement or the affairs of the Contractor, the City shall 
have the right to terminate this Agreement without further liability to the Contractor if the 
disqualification has not been removed within thirty (30) days after the City has given the 
Contractor notice of the disqualifying interest. Ownership of less than one percent (1%) of 
the stock or other equity interest in a corporation or partnership shall not be a disqualifying 
interest. Employment shall be a disqualifying interest. 

 
18. FAILURE TO PERFORM. If Contractor fails to perform its obligations hereunder, the City 

may take any and all remedial actions provided by the general specifications or otherwise 
permitted by law. 

 
19. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS: Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this 

Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled either by commencement of a suit in 
Oakland County Circuit Court, the 48th District Court or by arbitration. If both parties elect to 
have the dispute resolved by arbitration, it shall be settled pursuant to Chapter 50 of the 
Revised Judicature Act for the State of Michigan and administered by the American Arbitration 
Association with one arbitrator being used, or three arbitrators in the event any party’s claim 
exceeds $1,000,000. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses and an equal share of 
the arbitrator’s and administrative fees of arbitration. Such arbitration shall qualify as statutory 
arbitration pursuant to MCL §600.5001 et seq., and the Oakland County Circuit Court or any 
court having jurisdiction shall render judgment upon the award of the arbitrator made 
pursuant to this Agreement. The laws of the State of Michigan shall govern this Agreement, 
and the arbitration shall take place in Oakland County, Michigan. In the event that the parties 
elect not to have the matter in dispute arbitrated, any dispute between the parties may be 
resolved by the filing of a suit in a federal or state court with jurisdiction over Oakland County, 
Michigan.                                                                                                                                                

5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



5E



 
 
 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
For Birmingham Museum – Phase II-Lower Windows-Allen House Historic Window 

Restoration Project 
    
Sealed proposals endorsed “BIRMINGHAM MUSEUM— PHASE II-LOWER WINDOWS-
ALLEN HOUSE HISTORIC WINDOW RESTORATION PROJECT ”, will be received at the 
Office of the City Clerk, 151 Martin Street, Birmingham, Michigan, 48009; until 
Wednesday, February 22, 2023 at  11:00 AM after which time bids will be publicly opened 
and read.  
 
Bidders will be required to attend a mandatory pre-bid meeting on site on Tuesday, January 
31, 2023 at 1:00 PM at the Birmingham Museum, located at 556 W. Maple, Birmingham, MI 
48009. Bidders must register for the pre-bid meeting by 3:00 PM Monday, January 30, 2023 
by contacting Leslie Pielack at 248-530-1682 or lpielack@bhamgov.org. 
 
The City of Birmingham, Michigan is accepting sealed bid proposals from qualified professional 
firms to furnish all materials, necessary equipment and perform all required work necessary for 
the Birmingham Museum-Phase II-Lower Windows-Allen House Historic Window Restoration 
Project.    This work must be performed as specified in accordance with the specifications 
contained in the Request For Proposals (RFP).   
 
The RFP, including the Specifications, may be obtained online from the Michigan Inter-
governmental Trade Network at http://www.mitn.info or at the Birmingham Museum, 556 W. 
Maple Rd., Birmingham, Michigan (ATTN: Leslie Pielack).   
 
The acceptance of any proposal made pursuant to this invitation shall not be binding upon the 
City until an agreement has been executed. 
 
Submitted to MITN:  January 6, 2023 
Mandatory Pre-Bid Meeting: Tuesday, January 31, 2023 at 1:00 PM 

Birmingham Museum 
 556 W. Maple, Birmingham, MI 48009 
 Register by Monday, January 30, 2023 by 3:00 PM 
 Leslie Pielack, 248-530-1682 or lpielack@bhamgov.org    
 
Deadline for Submissions:  Wednesday, February 22, 2023 at 11:00 AM 
Contact Person:   Leslie Pielack, Museum Director 
     556 W. Maple Road, Birmingham, MI 48009 
     Phone:  248-530-1682 Email:   lpielack@bhamgov.org  
 
Sealed Bids Submitted to:  Office of the City Clerk 
     151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI  48009 

5E

mailto:lpielack@bhamgov.org
http://www.govbids.com/scripts/MITN/public/home1.asp
mailto:lpielack@bhamgov.org
mailto:lpielack@bhamgov.org


  
      

 
 
 

REQUEST FOR PROPOSALS 
For Birmingham Museum – Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen House Historic Window 

Restoration Project 
 

Contents 
INTRODUCTION ................................................................................................................................. 3 

MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING..................................................................................................... 3 

INVITATION TO SUBMIT A PROPOSAL .......................................................................................... 3 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS .......................................................................................................... 4 

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS ........................................................................................................ 4 

CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES.................................................................................................. 5 

CITY RESPONSIBILITY ...................................................................................................................... 5 

EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA .................................................................................... 6 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS ................................................................................................................ 6 

SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES ............................................................................................................. 7 

INSURANCE ......................................................................................................................................... 7 

CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE ...................................................................................................... 7 

EXECUTION OF CONTRACT ............................................................................................................. 7 

INDEMNIFICATION ............................................................................................................................ 7 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST .................................................................................................................. 7 

EXAMINATION OF PROPOSAL MATERIALS .................................................................................... 8 

ANTICIPATED PROJECT TIMELINE ................................................................................................. 8 

SCOPE OF WORK SUMMARY ............................................................................................................ 9 

ATTACHMENT A - AGREEMENT ..................................................................................................... 12 

ATTACHMENT B - BIDDER’S AGREEMENT ................................................................................... 20 

ATTACHMENT C - COST PROPOSAL ............................................................................................. 22 

ATTACHMENT D - IRAN SANCTIONS ACT VENDOR CERTIFICATION FORM ......................... 24 

ATTACHMENT E - DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK WITH WINDOW SURVEY ............................. 26 

ATTACHMENT F-  SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR STANDARDS ………………………………….30   
 

5E



INTRODUCTION  
 
For purposes of this request for proposals, the City of Birmingham will hereby be referred to as 
“City” and the private firm will hereby be referred to as “Contractor.” 

The Birmingham Museum consists of two buildings located as follows: the Allen House, located 
at 556 W. Maple Rd. and the Hunter House, located at 550 W. Maple Rd. in the city of Birmingham, 
MI 48009. The project will be at the Allen House. 
 
At this time, the City of Birmingham, Michigan is accepting sealed bid proposals from qualified 
professional contractors to furnish all materials, necessary equipment and to perform all required 
work necessary for the Phase II-Lower Windows-Allen House Historic Window Restoration Project 
located at the Birmingham Museum at 556 W. Maple, Birmingham, MI 48009.  The purpose of 
this RFP is to request sealed bid proposals from qualified parties. The bid shall include 
presentation of qualifications, capabilities and costs for performing the work for the Birmingham 
Museum-Allen House Historic Window Restoration project, in accordance with the specifications 
outlined by the Scope of Work contained in this RFP.  
 
During the evaluation process, the City’s best interest will be served and the City reserves the right 
to request additional information or clarification from proposers, or to allow corrections of errors 
or omissions. At the discretion of the City, firms submitting proposals may be requested to 
make oral presentations as part of the evaluation.  
 
It is anticipated the selection of a firm will be completed by early March, 2023. An Agreement for 
services will be required with the selected Contractor.  A copy of the Agreement is contained 
herein as Attachment A.  Contract services will commence upon execution of the service 
agreement by the City. 
 
This work must be performed as specified and in accordance with the specifications outlined by 
the Scope of Work contained in this Request For Proposals (RFP). 

MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING 
Prior to submitting a bid, interested firms are required to attend a pre-bid meeting to conduct an 
on-site visit of the location and access to the project location and to make inquiries about the 
RFP. Bidders will be required to attend a mandatory pre-bid meeting on Tuesday, 
January 31, 2023 at 1:00 PM at the Birmingham Museum, located at 556 W. Maple, 
Birmingham, MI 48009. Bidders must register for the pre-bid meeting by Monday, 
January 30, 2023 by 3:00 PM by contacting Leslie Pielack at 248-530-1682 or 
lpielack@bhamgov.org. 

INVITATION TO SUBMIT A PROPOSAL 
Proposals shall be submitted no later than Wednesday, February 22, 2023 at 11:00 AM to: 

 
City of Birmingham, Attn: City Clerk 
151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, Michigan  48009 

5E

mailto:lpielack@bhamgov.org


 
One (1) electronic copy on disk or flash drive and one (1) hard copy of the proposal must be 
submitted.  The proposal should be firmly sealed in an envelope, which shall be clearly marked 
on the outside, endorsed “Birmingham Museum – Phase II-Lower Windows-Allen House 
Historic Window Restoration Project.” Any proposal received after the due date and time 
cannot be accepted and will be rejected and returned, unopened, to the proposer.  Respondents 
may submit more than one proposal provided each proposal meets the functional requirements. 
 

INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS 
1. Any and all forms requesting information from the bidder must be completed on the 

attached forms contained herein (see Contractor’s Responsibilities).  If more than one 
bid is submitted, a separate bid proposal form must be used for each. 
 

2. Any request for clarification of this RFP shall be made in writing and delivered via email 
to: Leslie Pielack at lpielack@bhamgov.org. Such request for clarification shall 
be delivered in writing no later than 3:00 PM Wednesday, February 15, 2023 and 
must contain in their subject line “Request for Clarification.” All inquiries received will 
be answered and posted on MITN by 1:00 PM Friday, February 17, 2023.   
 

3. All proposals must be submitted following the RFP format as stated in this document 
and shall be subject to all requirements of this document including the instruction to 
respondents and general information sections. All proposals must be regular in every 
respect and no interlineations, excisions, or special conditions shall be made or 
included in the RFP format by the respondent.  

 
4. The contract will be awarded by the City of Birmingham to the most qualified, 

responsive and responsible bidder with the lowest price and the contract will require 
the completion of the work pursuant to these documents. 
 

5. Each respondent shall include in his or her proposal, in the format requested, the cost 
of performing the work. Municipalities are exempt from Michigan State Sales and 
Federal Excise taxes.  Do not include such taxes in the proposal figure.  The City will 
furnish the successful company with tax exemption information when requested.   
 

6. Each respondent shall include in their proposal the following information:  Firm name, 
address, city, state, zip code, telephone number, and fax number. The company shall 
also provide the name, address, telephone number and e-mail address of an individual 
in their organization to whom notices and inquiries by the City should be directed as 
part of their proposal. 

SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS 
All proposals that wish to be considered must contain the following: 
 

1. Qualifications of the Contractor and key employees that will be involved in the project. 
 

5E



2. List of sub-contractors and their qualifications, if applicable. 
 

3. Detail and descriptions, including photos, of at least two completed similar projects 
for restoration of historic windows with similar scope, size, and purpose. 

 
4. Three (3) client references from past projects; include references’ current phone 

numbers and email contact information.  At least two (2) of the references should be 
for similar projects and utilizing similar materials included in the Contractor’s proposal. 

 
5. A description of overall project approach, project timeline and plan for project 

completion.  
 

6. Agreement (Attachment A – only if selected by the City) 
 

7. Bidder’s Agreement (Attachment B) 
 

8. Cost Proposal (Attachment C) 
 

9. Iran Sanctions Act Vendor Certification Form (Attachment D) 
 

10. The Contractor will be responsible for any changes necessary for the plans to be 
approved by the City of Birmingham. 

 

CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES 
The Contractor will be responsible for the disposal of all material and any damages that occur as 
a result of the actions of any of employees or subcontractors of the Contractor during this project. 

 
The contractor will be responsible for getting required building and parking permits at no cost to 
the contractor. 

 
The successful bidder shall provide a Performance Bond in an amount not less than 100% of the 
contract price in favor of the City of Birmingham, conditioned upon the faithful performance of 
the contract, and project completion on or before the date specified. 

 

CITY RESPONSIBILITY 
The City will provide a designated representative to work with the Contractor to coordinate both 
the City’s and Contractor’s efforts and to review and approve any work performed by the 
Contractor. 
 
The City will provide access to the Birmingham Museum—Allen House during regular business 
hours or by arrangement as approved by the City’s designated representative. 
 

5E



EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA 
The City will utilize a qualifications-based selection process in choosing a Contractor for the 
completion of this work The evaluation panel will consist of City staff, board members, and/or 
any other person(s) designated by the City who will evaluate the proposals based on, but not 
limited to, the following criteria: 
 

• Ability to provide services as outlined. 
• Demonstrated experience with similar historic window restoration projects, 

Contractor background, and personnel qualifications. 
• Content of proposal. 
• Quality of materials proposed. 
• Overall Costs. 
• Timeline and Schedule for Completion. 
• References. 

 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 
1. The City reserves the right to reject any or all proposals received, waive informalities, or 

accept any proposal, in whole or in part, it deems best.  The City reserves the right to 
award the contract to the next most qualified Contractor if the successful Contractor does 
not execute a contract within ten (10) days after the award of the proposal. 

 
2. The City reserves the right to request clarification of information submitted and to request 

additional information of one or more Contractors. 
 

3. The City reserves the right to terminate the contract at its discretion should it be 
determined that the services provided do not meet the specifications contained herein.  
The City may terminate this Agreement at any point in the process upon notice to 
Contractor sufficient to indicate the City’s desire to do so.  In the case of such a stoppage, 
the City agrees to pay Contractor for services rendered to the time of notice, subject to 
the contract maximum amount.   

 
4. Any proposal may be withdrawn up until the date and time set above for the opening of 

the proposals.  Any proposals not so withdrawn shall constitute an irrevocable offer, for a 
period of ninety (90) days, to provide the services set forth in the proposal. 

 
5. The cost of preparing and submitting a proposal is the responsibility of the Contractor and 

shall not be chargeable in any manner to the City.  
 

6. The successful bidder will be required to furnish a Performance Bond in an amount not 
less than 100% of the contract price in favor of the City of Birmingham, conditioned upon 
the faithful performance of the contract, and completion on or before the date specified. 

 
7. Payment will be made within thirty (30) days after invoice. Acceptance by the City is 

defined as authorization by the designated City representative to this project that all the 
criteria requested under the Scope of Work contained herein have been provided. Invoices 

5E



are to be rendered each month following the date of execution of an Agreement with the 
City. 

 
8. The Contractor will not exceed the timelines established for the completion of this project. 
 
9. The successful bidder shall enter into and will execute the contract as set forth and 

attached as Attachment A. 
 

SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES 
The successful bidder agrees to certain dispute resolution avenues/limitations. Please refer to 
paragraph 19 of the Agreement attached as Attachment A for the details and what is required 
of the successful bidder.   

INSURANCE 
The successful bidder is required to procure and maintain certain types of insurances.  Please 
refer to paragraph 11 of the Agreement attached as Attachment A for the details and what is 
required of the successful bidder. 

CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE 
The Contractor also agrees to provide all insurance coverages as specified.  Upon failure of the 
Contractor to obtain or maintain such insurance coverage for the term of the agreement, the City 
may, at its option, purchase such coverage and subtract the cost of obtaining such coverage from 
the contract amount.  In obtaining such coverage, Birmingham shall have no obligation to procure 
the most cost effective coverage but may contract with any insurer for such coverage. 

EXECUTION OF CONTRACT 
The bidder whose proposal is accepted shall be required to execute the contract and to furnish 
all insurance coverages as specified within ten (10) days after receiving notice of such acceptance.  
Any contract awarded pursuant to any bid shall not be binding upon the City until a written 
contract has been executed by both parties.  Failure or refusal to execute the contract shall be 
considered an abandoned all rights and interest in the award and the contract may be awarded 
to another.  The successful bidder agrees to enter into and will execute the contract as set forth 
and attached as Attachment A. 

INDEMNIFICATION  
The successful bidder agrees to indemnify the City and various associated persons.  Please refer 
to paragraph 10 of the Agreement attached as Attachment A for the details and what is required 
of the successful bidder. 

CONFLICT OF INTEREST  
The successful bidder is subject to certain conflict of interest requirements/restrictions.  Please 
refer to paragraph 17 of the Agreement attached as Attachment A for the details and what is 
required of the successful bidder. 

5E



EXAMINATION OF PROPOSAL MATERIALS 
The submission of a proposal shall be deemed a representation and warranty by the Contractor 
that it has investigated all aspects of the RFP, that it is aware of the applicable facts pertaining 
to the RFP process and its procedures and requirements, and that it has read and understands 
the RFP.  Statistical information which may be contained in the RFP or any addendum thereto is 
for informational purposes only. 

ANTICIPATED PROJECT TIMELINE 
Evaluate Respondents   Feb-March 2023 
Award Contract   March 2023 
Project Planning Meeting  April-May 2023   
Project Completion   Fall 2023 
 
The Contractor will not exceed the timelines established for the completion of this project. 
 
  

5E



SCOPE OF WORK SUMMARY 
 
The historic Allen House is in the Mill Pond Historic District in the City of Birmingham, built in 
1926 and now part of the Birmingham Museum complex. The house’s double hung windows are 
original, and require repair and restoration to return them to operational function. They must be 
restored by a qualified contractor in strict accordance with the Secretary of Interior Standards for 
the Treatment of Historic Properties (see Excerpt-Windows, Attachment F).  
 
The Contractor shall perform the following services in accordance with the requirements as 
defined and noted herein for the Birmingham Museum – Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen 
House Historic Window Restoration Project: 

 
1. The Contractor shall furnish all labor, materials, and equipment required to repair and 

restore the historic double hung windows on the lower level of the Allen House, located 
at 556 W. Maple Rd., Birmingham, MI 48009 in accordance with the requirements as 
defined and noted herein and by the Scope of Work and Window Survey 
(Attachments E and F): 

 
a) This project will remove and restore the original wood sash windows dating to 

1926 on the first floor as follows:  
 

• 21 painted double hung windows  
• 5 unpainted/varnished double hung windows 
• 2 painted fixed multi-paned arched windows 
 

b) All double hung sashes will be removed for restoration and re-installed as operable, 
in accordance with a detailed window survey and specifications for each individual 
window (see below and Attachment E, Allen House Historic Window Restoration 
Detailed Scope of Work, and Window Survey).  

 
c) Painted fixed windows will be repaired and restored to original condition 

 
2. The majority of sashes are currently painted in place and non-operable.  The sashes are 

in fair condition with excessive amounts of exterior paint and window glazing.  This is the 
first time the windows will be removed for repairs & restoration since installed in 1926. 
The exterior window casings and exterior sills (outside the storms) have recently been 
scraped and repainted but additional touch up may be required. 

 
3. The second floor and basement of the building will be occupied by employees during the 

project and the building will be open to the public during business hours as much as 
possible based on project progress. The removal of painted sashes, replacing cords, 
cleaning weight pockets, and jamb/sill refinishing will produce excessive dust 
containing lead. These activities must be coordinated to minimize lead exposure to the 
interior of the house. Rooms must be closed off and protective barriers/covers put in place 
to protect all furnishings. HEPA vacuums and air purifiers must be used throughout the 
process. Hand washing of the walls and floors must be completed before opening the 
space to employees and the public.  

5E



 
4. Temporary barriers will be installed on windows in accordance with Scope of Work to 

provide security during project. 
 

5. Project requirements are detailed in Attachment E, Allen House Historic Window 
Restoration Scope of Work, and Window Survey, and include: 
 

a. Sash removal and installation 
b. Jamb and sill refinishing 
c. Sash restoration 
d. Wood rot and epoxy repair 
e. Restoration and re-installation of original hardware 
 

6. The Contractor shall provide additional alternative pricing as follows: 
 

a. Alternative 1: Provide pricing for the purchase and installation of new storm 
windows. All sizes to be field verified. Storm windows to be Allied Model HOL-B 
with 1/8” low-e glazing or equivalent, white, no screens. 

b. Alternative 2: Replace all existing sash weather strips with new. 
 

7. The Contractor shall be responsible for the disposal of all materials in a safe and legal 
manner. All bidders will outline their procedures for dust and debris collection 
during working hours and all cleaning activities. 

 
8. The Contractor shall operate in a safe manner and will observe all MIOSHA guidelines. 

The Contractor shall provide the City with a copy of its COVID-19 Plan required 
by MIOSHA.   
 

9. The Contractor shall provide any and all manuals and/or warranty information related to 
this project to the City upon completion of the project. 
 

10. The Contractor shall comply will all City of Birmingham’s regulations for maintaining 
construction sites. 
 

11. This section and referenced documents shall constitute the Scope of Work for this project 
and as such all requirements must be met. 

 
 

 
 

 
 

5E



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT A 
AGREEMENT FOR PHASE II-LOWER WINDOWS-ALLEN HOUSE HISTORIC 

WINDOW RESTORATION PROJECT 
 
 
  

5E



ATTACHMENT A - AGREEMENT 
Birmingham Museum – Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen House Historic Window 

Restoration Project 
 
 This AGREEMENT, entered into this _______day of ____________, 2022, by and 
between the CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, whose address is 151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI 
48009 (hereinafter referred to as the City) and _______________________, a Michigan 
_______________, whose address is _____________________ (hereinafter referred to as 
"Contractor") and the foregoing shall collectively be referred to as the parties. 

 
 WHEREAS, the City desires to repair and restore the historic windows of the Allen House, 
located at the Birmingham Museum in the City of Birmingham, and in connection therewith has 
requested proposals for the Phase II-Lower Windows-Allen House Historic Window Restoration 
Project; and  
 
 WHEREAS, Contractor has qualifications that meet the project requirements and has 
provided a response and cost proposal for the Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen House Historic 
Window Restoration Project. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the foregoing preambles, the adequacy 
of which is acknowledged by and between the parties to this Agreement, the parties agree as 
follows: 

1. MUTUALLY AGREE: I It is mutually agreed by and between the parties that the City’s 
Request for Proposal for the Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen House Historic Window 
Restoration Project dated ______, 2022, which includes Attachments B, C, D, E, and F shall 
be fully incorporated herein by reference and shall become a part of this Agreement, and shall 
be binding upon both parties hereto (attached hereto as Attachment “A”).  

 
2. TERM: This Agreement shall have a term of six (6) months from the date stated above. The 

City shall have the right to unilaterally terminate this Agreement on thirty (30) days written 
notice. In the event of termination, the Contractor shall receive compensation for services to 
the date the termination takes effect and the City shall be entitled to retain and use the results 
of all services prepared by the Contractor through such date.  

 
3. TERMS OF PAYMENT:  The Contractor will invoice monthly for all labor supplied and work 

completed. In no event shall invoices be submitted more than 45 days after completion of 
services. Submitted invoices shall include the following detailed information: the type of work 
performed, the time spent on the work, the individual who performed the work and the per 
hour billing rate charged. The City may, at its sole discretion demand review and the right to 
request at any time further detailed accounting information for any or all bills. The right to 
inspection of any bill and invoice shall never be at any cost or billings to the City, nor shall 
preparation of said invoices be billed to the City or against the general retainer. Payment 
terms will be net 30 days unless otherwise specified by the City. 

 
4. Contractor shall employ personnel of good moral character and fitness in performing all 

services under this Agreement. 
 

5E



5. INSURANCE SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS: The Contractor has submitted proof to the 
City that it meets all City insurance requirements. Insurance, with coverage amounts at no 
less than the City's minimum requirements, must be held by the Contractor throughout the 
term of this Agreement. Certificates of insurance as stated below will be required no later 
than five (5) business days from the date of Contractor acceptance of the terms of this 
Agreement. 

 
6. CONFIDENTIAL AND OR PROPRIETARY INFORMATION: The Contractor acknowledges 

that in performing services pursuant to this Agreement, certain confidential and/or proprietary 
information (including, but not limited to, internal organization, methodology, personnel and 
financial information, etc.) may become involved. The Contractor recognizes that 
unauthorized exposure of such confidential or proprietary information could irreparably 
damage the City. Therefore, the Contractor agrees to use reasonable care to safeguard the 
confidential and proprietary information and to prevent the unauthorized use or disclosure 
thereof. The Contractor shall inform its employees of the confidential or proprietary nature of 
such information and shall limit access thereto to employees rendering services pursuant to 
this Agreement. The Contractor further agrees to use such confidential or proprietary 
information only for the purpose of performing services pursuant to this Agreement.  

 
7. INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR: The Contractor and the City agree that the Contractor is 

acting as an independent contractor with respect to the Contractor role in providing services 
to the City pursuant to this Agreement, and as such, shall be liable for its own actions and 
neither the Contractor nor its employees shall be construed as employees of the City. Nothing 
contained in this Agreement shall be construed to imply a joint venture or partnership and 
neither party, by virtue of this Agreement, shall have any right, power or authority to act or 
create any obligation, express or implied, on behalf of the other party, except as specifically 
outlined herein. Neither the City nor the Contractor shall be considered or construed to be the 
agent of the other, nor shall either have the right to bind the other in any manner whatsoever, 
except as specifically provided in this Agreement, and this Agreement shall not be construed 
as a contract of agency. The Contractor shall not be considered entitled or eligible to 
participate in any benefits or privileges given or extended by the City, or be deemed an 
employee of the City for purposes of federal or state withholding taxes, FICA taxes, 
unemployment, workers' compensation or any other employer contributions on behalf of the 
City. 

 
8. COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS: Contractor agrees to fully and faithfully carry out the duties of 

set forth herein using its best efforts in accomplishing all assignments from the City, and 
further, in addition to upholding all federal, and state laws and applicable codes of professional 
conduct to which Contractor is subject, Contractor hereby agrees to be bound by all Federal, 
State, or City of Birmingham ordinances, rules, regulations and policies as are amended from 
time to time, and including without limitation the Fair Labor Standards Act, the Equal 
Employment Opportunity rules and regulations, the Transportation Safety Act and the 
Occupational Safety and Health Acts. 

 
9. NON-COMPLIANCE WITH INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: Failure to deliver and 

maintain insurance in accordance with the terms of this Agreement will be cause for the City, 
by and through its City Manager, to terminate this Agreement, or at the City's option, the City 
may purchase on the open market such required insurance and shall be entitled to charge 

5E



any additional cost to the Contractor, either by offset to any amounts due and owing 
Contractor for services provided to the City, or, by separate bill and demand for payment. 
Nothing in this paragraph shall be deemed to create or be interpreted as establishing a “for 
cause” termination; Contractor agrees and understands that its engagement is at will and 
may be terminated by the City Manager for any cause or no cause. 

 
10. INDEMNIFICATION: To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Contractor and any entity 

or person for whom the Contractor is legally liable, agrees to be responsible for any liability, 
defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City of Birmingham, its elected 
and appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on their behalf against 
any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all costs and reasonable attorney fees 
connected therewith, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered 
against or from the City, its elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others 
working on their behalf, by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury and death and/or 
property damage, including loss of use thereof, which arise out of the acts, errors or omissions 
of the Contractor including its employees and agents, in the performance of this Agreement. 
Such responsibility shall not be construed as liability for damage caused by or resulting from 
the sole act or omission of its elected or appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others 
working on behalf of the City. 

 
11. STANDARD INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS: The Contractor shall maintain during the life 

of this Agreement the applicable types of insurance coverage and minimum limits as set forth 
below:  

 
A. Workers' Compensation Insurance:  

1. For Non-Sole Proprietorships: Contractor shall procure and maintain during 
the life of this Agreement, Workers' Compensation Insurance, including 
Employers Liability Coverage, in accordance with all applicable statutes of the 
State of Michigan.  

2. For Sole Proprietorships: Contractor shall complete and furnish to the City 
prior to the commencement of work under this Agreement a signed and 
notarized Sole Proprietor Form, for sole proprietors with no employees or with 
employees, as the case may be.  

B. Commercial General Liability Insurance: Contractor shall procure and maintain 
during the life of this Agreement, Commercial General Liability Insurance on an 
"Occurrence Basis" with limits of liability not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence 
combined single limit, Personal Injury, Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Coverage 
shall include the following extensions: (A) Contractual Liability; (B) Products and 
Completed Operations; (C) Independent Contractor Coverage; (D) Broad Form 
General Liability Extensions or equivalent; (E) Deletion of all Explosion, Collapse and 
Underground (XCU) Exclusions, if applicable.  

C. Motor Vehicle Liability: Contractor shall procure and maintain during the life of this 
Agreement Motor Vehicle Liability Insurance, including all applicable no-fault 
coverages, with limits of liability of not less than $1,000,000 per occurrence combined 
single limit Bodily Injury and Property Damage. Coverage shall include all owned 
vehicles, all non-owned vehicles, and all hired vehicles.  

D. Additional Insured: Commercial General Liability and Motor Vehicle Liability 
Insurance, as described above, shall include an endorsement stating the following 

5E



Additional Insureds: The City of Birmingham, including all elected and 
appointed officials, all employee and volunteers, all boards, commissions 
and/or authorities and board members, including employees and 
volunteers thereof. This coverage shall be primary to any other coverage that may 
be available to the additional insured, whether any other available coverage by 
primary, contributing or excess.  

E. Professional Liability: If applicable, professional liability insurance with limits of not 
less than $2,000,000 per claim if Contractor will provide services that are customarily 
subject to this type of coverage.  

F. Coverage Expiration: If any of the above coverages expire during the term of this 
Agreement, Contractor shall deliver renewal certificates and/or policies to the City at 
least (10) days prior to the expiration date.  

G. Proof of Insurance Coverage: Contractor shall provide the City of Birmingham at 
the time the Agreement is returned for execution, Certificates of Insurance and/or 
policies, acceptable to the City of Birmingham, as listed below.  

1. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Workers' Compensation 
Insurance, or a signed and notarized copy of the Sole Proprietor Form;  

2. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Commercial General Liability 
Insurance;  

3. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Vehicle Liability Insurance; 
4. Two (2) copies of Certificate of Insurance for Professional Liability 

Insurance, if applicable;  
5. If so requested, Certified Copies of all policies mentioned above will be 

furnished. 
H. Maintaining Insurance: Upon failure of the Contractor to obtain or maintain such 

insurance coverage for the term of the Agreement, the City of Birmingham may, at its 
option, purchase such coverage and subtract the cost of obtaining such coverage from 
the Agreement amount. In obtaining such coverage, the City of Birmingham shall have 
no obligation to procure the most cost-effective coverage but may contract with any 
insurer for such coverage  

 
12.  WRITTEN NOTICES: Written notices regarding this Agreement shall be addressed to the 

following:  

City:   City of Birmingham  
P.O. Box 3001  
Birmingham, Michigan 48012  
Attn: Leslie Pielack, Museum Director 
 
Contractor_______________________ 
_______________________________ 
_______________________________  
Attn: ___________________________  

 
13. COVID: The Contractor shall follow all of the City’s COVID-19 safety protocols while on City 

property. Additionally, Contractor staff that will be in physical contact with city staff must have 
current vaccinations against COVID-19. The City, at its discretion, may ask for proof of 
vaccination of Contractor staff. Failure to provide proof of vaccination when requested will 

5E



cause the City to request un-vaccinated personnel to leave, request alternate staff, and if the 
Contractor is unable to comply, this violation of safety protocols will constitute a breach of 
contract by the Contractor. 

 
14. AMENDMENTS: No amendment, modification or supplement to this Agreement shall be 

binding unless it is in writing and signed by authorized representatives of the parties. 
 

15. WAIVER OF BREACH: No waiver by either party of any breach of any of the terms, 
covenants or conditions herein contained by the other party shall be construed as a waiver of 
any succeeding breach of this same or of any other term, covenant or condition. 

 
16. COMPLETE AGREEMENT: The parties agree that the conditions set forth in this Agreement 

sets forth all terms and conditions of Contractor agreement with the City of Birmingham. This 
Agreement supersedes all prior agreements or understandings between the parties. There are 
no promises, conditions or understandings other than those stated herein, and, that any prior 
negotiations, terms or conditions discussed between the City and the Contractor shall not 
constitute a part of this Agreement. The term “agreement” as used in this clause shall include 
any future written amendments, modifications, or supplements made in accordance herewith. 

 
17. DIRECT OR INDIRECT INTEREST: If, after the effective date of this Agreement, any 

official of the City, or spouse, child, parent or in-law of such official or employee shall become 
directly or indirectly interested in this Agreement or the affairs of the Contractor, the City shall 
have the right to terminate this Agreement without further liability to the Contractor if the 
disqualification has not been removed within thirty (30) days after the City has given the 
Contractor notice of the disqualifying interest. Ownership of less than one percent (1%) of 
the stock or other equity interest in a corporation or partnership shall not be a disqualifying 
interest. Employment shall be a disqualifying interest. 

 
18. FAILURE TO PERFORM. If Contractor fails to perform its obligations hereunder, the City 

may take any and all remedial actions provided by the general specifications or otherwise 
permitted by law. 

 
19. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS: Any controversy or claim arising out of or relating to this 

Agreement, or the breach thereof, shall be settled either by commencement of a suit in 
Oakland County Circuit Court, the 48th District Court or by arbitration. If both parties elect to 
have the dispute resolved by arbitration, it shall be settled pursuant to Chapter 50 of the 
Revised Judicature Act for the State of Michigan and administered by the American Arbitration 
Association with one arbitrator being used, or three arbitrators in the event any party’s claim 
exceeds $1,000,000. Each party shall bear its own costs and expenses and an equal share of 
the arbitrator’s and administrative fees of arbitration. Such arbitration shall qualify as statutory 
arbitration pursuant to MCL §600.5001 et seq., and the Oakland County Circuit Court or any 
court having jurisdiction shall render judgment upon the award of the arbitrator made 
pursuant to this Agreement. The laws of the State of Michigan shall govern this Agreement, 
and the arbitration shall take place in Oakland County, Michigan. In the event that the parties 
elect not to have the matter in dispute arbitrated, any dispute between the parties may be 
resolved by the filing of a suit in a federal or state court with jurisdiction over Oakland County, 
Michigan.                                                                                                                                                

5E



20. RESPONSE TO REQUESTS FOR PROPOSALS: The Contractor shall be held to and bound 
by all terms, conditions, warranties and representations which it made in its written response 
dated ___________, to the City’s Request for Proposals dated  _____________(attached 
hereto as Attachment “B”). In the event of a conflict in any of the terms of this Agreement 
and the Contractor _________ (date of response) response, the terms of this Agreement shall 
prevail. 

 
21. FAIR PROCUREMENT OPPORTUNITY: Procurement for the City of Birmingham will be 

handled in a manner providing fair opportunity for all businesses. This will be accomplished 
without abrogation or sacrifice of quality and as determined to be in the best interest of the 
City of Birmingham. 

 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto agree to be bound by the above terms and 
conditions, and Contractor, by its authorized signature below, expressly accepts this Agreement 
upon the above provided terms and conditions contained in this Agreement as of the date first 
above written. 

Contractor ______________________________ 
 
By: ____________________________________ 
Its: _____________________________________ 
 
 

STATE OF MICHIGAN   ) 
) ss:  

COUNTY OF OAKLAND  )  
 
 

On this ______day of ____________ , 20__, before me personally appeared 
________________, who acknowledged that with authority on behalf of _________________ 
to do so he/she signed this Agreement. 
 

___________________________ 
Notary Public 
_________________ County, Michigan 
Acting in _________________County, Michigan 
My commission expires: ___________ 

 
                                                                            

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
 
 
       By:_____________________________ 
                                                                             Elaine McLain, Mayor                                                                     
 
 
       By:_____________________________ 

     Alexandria D. Bingham, City Clerk  

5E



       
 
 
APPROVED: 
 
 
________________________________ 
Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
(Approved as to substance) 
 
 
________________________________ 
Mary M. Kucharek, City Attorney  
(Approved as to form) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
________________________________ 
Leslie Pielack, Museum Director 
(Approved as to substance) 
 
 
________________________________ 
Mark Gerber, Director of Finance 
(Approved as to financial obligation) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5E



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT B 
BIDDER’S AGREEMENT FOR PHASE II-LOWER WINDOWS- ALLEN HOUSE 

HISTORIC WINDOW RESTORATION PROJECT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

5E



 

ATTACHMENT B - BIDDER’S AGREEMENT 
For Birmingham Museum – Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen House Historic 

Window Restoration Project 
 
In submitting this proposal, as herein described, the Contractor agrees that: 
 

1. They have carefully examined the specifications, terms and Agreement of the 
Request for Proposal and all other provisions of this document and understand the 
meaning, intent, and requirement of it. 
 
2. They will enter into a written contract and furnish the item or items in the 
time specified in conformance with the specifications and conditions contained 
therein for the price quoted by the proponent on this proposal. 

 
 
PREPARED BY 
(Print Name) 

DATE 

TITLE DATE 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE E-MAIL ADDRESS 

COMPANY  

ADDRESS PHONE 

NAME OF PARENT COMPANY PHONE 

ADDRESS  

 
 
 
 

  

5E



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT C 
COST PROPOSAL FOR PHASE II-LOWER WINDOWS-ALLEN HOUSE 

HISTORIC WINDOW RESTORATION PROJECT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

5E



ATTACHMENT C - COST PROPOSAL 
For Birmingham Museum – Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen House Historic 

Window Restoration Project 
 
In order for the bid to be considered valid, this form must be completed in its 
entirety.  The cost for the Scope of Work as stated in the Request for Proposal documents 
shall be a lump sum, as follows: 
 
Attach technical specifications for all proposed materials as outlined in the 
Contractor’s Responsibilit ies section of the RFP (p. 6) 
 
 

COST PROPOSAL 
ITEM BID AMOUNT 

Materials & Equipment $ 

Labor $ 

Miscellaneous (Attach Detailed Description) $ 

TOTAL BID AMOUNT $ 

ADDITIONAL BID ITEMS 
Provide/Install New Storm Windows: Allied  Storm 
Windows: Model HOL-B with 1/8” low–e glazing, 
or equivalent, white, no screens 

$ 

Replace all sash weather strips with new $ 

GRANDTOTAL AMOUNT $ 

 

UNIT COST BID ITEMS 

 $ per 
 
 
Firm Name             
 
Authorized signature__________________________________  Date:______________ 
 
Printed Name: __________________________ 
 

 
 
 

5E



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT D 
IRAN SANCTIONS ACT VENDOR CERTIFICATION FORM FOR PHASE II-
LOWER WINDOWS- ALLEN HOUSE HISTORIC WINDOW RESTORATION 

PROJECT 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

5E



ATTACHMENT D - IRAN SANCTIONS ACT VENDOR CERTIFICATION FORM 
For Birmingham Museum – Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen House Historic 

Window Restoration Project 
 

Pursuant to Michigan Law and the Iran Economic Sanction Act, 2012 PA 517 (“Act”), prior 
to the City accepting any bid or proposal, or entering into any contract for goods or services 
with any prospective Vendor, the Vendor must certify that it is not an “Iran Linked Business”, 
as defined by the Act. 
 
By completing this form, the Vendor certifies that it is not an “Iran Linked Business”, as 
defined by the Act and is in full compliance with all provisions of the Act and is legally eligible 
to submit a bid for consideration by the City. 
 
 
 
PREPARED BY 
(Print Name) 

DATE 

TITLE DATE 

AUTHORIZED SIGNATURE E-MAIL ADDRESS 

COMPANY  

ADDRESS PHONE 

NAME OF PARENT COMPANY PHONE 

ADDRESS  

TAXPAYER I.D.#  

 
  

5E



 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

ATTACHMENT E 
DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK AND WINDOW SURVEY FOR PHASE II-

LOWER WINDOWS- ALLEN HOUSE HISTORIC WINDOW RESTORATION 
PROJECT 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
  

5E



ATTACHMENT E - DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK WITH WINDOW SURVEY           
For Birmingham Museum- Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen House Historic 

Window Restoration Project 

 

GENERAL INFORMATION 
The majority of sashes are currently painted in place and are non-operable. The sashes 
are in fair condition with excessive amounts of exterior paint and window glazing. This is 
the first time the windows will be removed for repairs and restoration since installed in 
1926. The exterior window casings and exterior sills (outside the storms) have been 
recently scraped and repainted, but additional touch up may be required. 
 
The removal of sashes, replacing cords, cleaning weight pockets, and jamb/sill refinishing 
will produce excessive dust containing lead. These activities must be coordinated to 
minimize exposure to the interior of the house. At a minimum, rooms must be closed off 
and protective barriers/covers put in place to protect all furnishings. HEPA vacuums and 
air purifiers are to be used throughout the process. Hand washing of the walls and floors 
is to be completed prior to opening the space to employees and the public. All bidders will 
outline their procedures for dust and debris collection during working hours and all cleaning 
activities. 

SASH REMOVAL/RE-INSTALLATION-PAINTED AND UNPAINTED DOUBLE HUNG 
WINDOWS 
(Note: weight pockets may be on the exterior of jamb, under top sash.) 
 

• All sash and jamb metal weather strips will be removed from the interior. 
• Exterior storm windows will remain in place during restoration. 
• 10 mm twin wall polycarbonate secured to the inside of the blind stop will be used 

as additional temporary barrier. 
• Inside stops will be re-used. Remove excessive paint, sand, and paint. 
• Sashes will be marked/labeled as to their respective openings and wrapped in 

plastic with the weather strips prior to removal from the work area. 
• Metal weather strips on the sill and head will remain in place. 
• All interlocking sash weather strips will be cleaned and re-used. 
• Sashes will be installed with new sash cord by Simpson Cordage, Aetna, size #7 

or #8 depending on sash weight. 
• Parting stops will be stripped and re-used or new can be made to exact 

dimension out of VG Douglas fir. 
• When replacing sash cords, weight pockets are to be vacuumed of debris using 

HEPA vacuum. (note: Some weight pockets are accessed from the exterior jamb) 
• All sash pulleys are to be cleaned of paint and lubricated in place. 
• Top and bottom sashes will be installed and field verified that they open, stay 

open, close and lock with minimal effort. 
• Missing or broken hardware will be replaced in kind. 
• Sashes will be installed finished and painted. 
• All hardware is to be cleaned and re-used, unless broken. 

5E



JAMB AND SILL REFINISHING-PAINTED DOUBLE HUNG WINDOWS 
• The interior and exterior side and interior head of the jamb, sill up to the storm 

window, and the blind stop inside of the storm window will be stripped of paint 
using hand tools and biodegradable chemical strippers or heat. (note: if using  
environmentally safe chemical strippers, care must be taken to neutralize them 
appropriately and give adequate time for the treated wood to dry) 

• Any hardware present that is no longer used will be removed and the holes 
filled. 

• Small defects due to aging will be left in place. 
• Defects caused by hand tools will be filled with wood filler and/or lightly hand 

sanded. 
• Wood surfaces will be scraped clean using carbide blades. 
• Refer to Wood Rot and Epoxy Repairs Section if defects are discovered 

requiring more than simple wood filling. 
• Finish with one coat of oil-based primer and two top coats latex paint with color 

matched to original. 

 

SASH RESTORATION-PAINTED AND NON-PAINTED DOUBLE HUNG WINDOWS  
• All glazing putty, paint, and finishes will be removed from the sashes. 
• All glass will be salvaged, cleaned and re-used. Cracked glass will be 

replaced with clear annealed glass of same thickness. 
• Sashes with more than ½” play side to side will have the joinery glued with 

waterproof glue or epoxy and be `re-dowelled/pinned. 
• Cracked glazing rebates will be glued or replaced. 
• Defects on the milled surface of the interior sash will be repaired with 

thickened epoxy and sanded to match the original. 
• Any screw holes that no longer hold the screws fast will be drilled, doweled, and 

re-drilled. 
• Sash will be sanded to 80 grit on the exterior and 120 grit on the interior. 

Milled profiles will be hand sanded to preserve the shape. 
• Interlocking weather strips at the meeting rail will be cleaned of paint and 

debris and re-nailed if loose. 
• The wood will be treated with a mixture of 60% boiled linseed oil/40% 

mineral spirits prior to bedding glass and priming. 
• Painted sashes are to be primed with one coat oil based primer inside and 

outside with the exclusion of the sides, bottom of the bottom rail, top of the top 
rail, and the glazing rebate. 

• Glass will be bedded in a thin layer of glazing compound (SARCO multi- glaze 
in white), and pinned in place. 

• Putty will be glazed in place to allow 1/16” inside the milled profile to allow for 
finish paint. Allow 4 weeks for the putty to cure prior to finish painting. Putty is 
not to be primed. 

• Glass will be washed clean prior to finish painting. 
• Finish paint will be 2 coats latex paint on the exterior. 
• Interior finishes will match the original in the room (i.e., oil, natural, latex) 

5E



WOOD ROT & EPOXY REPAIR 
• Wood repair epoxy products must be from the following companies and may not be 

interchanged: System 3; West System; Abatron; or Advanced Repair Technology. 
• Where identified, soft, decayed wood will be removed with hand tools to the point 

that good, un-rotted wood is reached. 
• Good wood is to be pre-treated with a borate solution and allowed to dry to less than 

12% moisture content before proceeding to next steps. 
• The area 5 cm around the rotted wood is to have borate rods inserted into the good 

wood. 
• Good wood will be hardened with clear penetrating epoxy hardener once moisture 

goals have been achieved and before applying an epoxy patch. 
• After 24 hours (or manufacturer’s recommendation), an epoxy patch will be applied 

to fill and level the defect. 
• Area treated must be sanded smooth and level, and be unnoticeable with the 

surrounding wood. 
• Prime (painted windows) and finish according to schedule after manufacturer’s 

schedule of cure times. 
  

5E



WINDOW SCHEDULE/SURVEY 
 
Numbering begins at the first window to the left of the main front door. Survey 
repair notes provided as guide; current conditions to be field verified for 
final project.  
 

 
Number Configuration Type Location Int. Finish Approx size Comments 

101 single 9/9 DH LR paint 36 x 74 missing lock, storm missing 
 102 single 6/6 DH Study stain 28 x 54    

103 single 6/6 DH Study stain 28 x 54    
104 mullion set 1 4/4 DH Study stain 20 x 54 missing  sash cords 
105 mullion set 2 6/6 DH Study stain 28 x 54   
106 mullion set 3 4/4 DH Study stain 20 x 54   
107 mullion set 1 4/4 DH Sun Rm paint 20 x 54 missing lock  
108 mullion set 2 6/6 DH Sun Rm paint 28 x 54 missing lock  
109 mullion set 3 4/4 DH Sun Rm paint 20 x 54 missing lock  
110 mullion set 1 6/6 DH LR paint 20 x 74 bottom rail defect at lift, lock 

 111 mullion set 2 9/9 DH LR paint 28 x 74  missing sash cords 
112 mullion set 3 6/6 DH LR paint 20 x 74   
113 single 6/6 DH Bath paint 28 x 42 missing lift, glass film 
114 Bay Window 6/6 DH Creem paint 28 x 54   
115 Bay Window 6/6 DH Creem paint 28 x 54    
116 Bay Window 6/6 DH Creem paint 28 x 54   
117 single 6/6 DH Creem  paint 28 X54 Covered with display 
118 single 6/6 DH Creem paint 28 x 54 missing  sash cords 
119 single 6/6 DH Hall paint 28 x 54   
120 mullion set 1 6/6 DH Dining paint 20 x 74 defect on Int. Milled profile, 

  121 mullion set 2 9/9 DH Dining paint 28 x 74   
122 mullion set 3 6/6 DH Dining paint 20 x 74 broken lock  
123 Single-arched 9 panel-fixed Breeze way paint 36 x 42 top  
124 Single-arched 9 panel-fixed 

3 panel-fixed 
Breeze way paint 36 x 42 top   

36 x 20 bttm  
 

125 single 6/6 DH Garage paint 28 x 42 missing cords, locks and lifts. 
126 single 6/6 DH Garage paint 28 x 42 Missing cords, lock, and lifts 
127 single 6/6 DH Garage paint 28 x 42 missing cords, locks and lifts. 
128 single 6/6 DH Closet paint 28 x 42    
129 single 9/9 DH Kitchen paint 36 x 74   

 
 
First Floor Summary 
 

27 - double hung windows; 22 painted, 5 stained 
  3 - fixed windows; painted 

 

5E



 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

THE SECRETARY 
OF THE INTERIOR’S 
STANDARDS FOR 
THE TREATMENT 
OF HISTORIC 
PROPERTIES 
WITH 

GUIDELINES FOR 
PRESERVING, 
REHABILITATING, 
RESTORING & 
RECONSTRUCTING 
HISTORIC 
BUILDINGS 

U.S. Department of the Interior 
National Park Service 
Technical Preservation Services 

ATTACHMENT F
BIRMINGHAM MUSEUM         
PHASE II - LOWER WINDOWS- 
ALLEN HOUSE HISTORIC WINDOW 
RESTORATION PROJECT 

Secretary of the Interior Standards for 
the Treatment of Historic Properties: 
Preservation: (Excerpt; Windows)  

5E



 
 

 
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  
  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Under the National Historic Preservation Act (NHPA), the Secretary 
of the Interior is responsible for establishing professional standards 
and for providing guidance on the preservation of the nation’s 
historic properties. The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the 
Treatment of Historic Properties apply to all grants-in-aid projects 
assisted through the Historic Preservation Fund (authorized by 
the NHPA) and are intended to be applied to a wide variety of 
resource types, including buildings, sites, structures, objects, and 
districts. The Standards address four treatments: preservation, 
rehabilitation, restoration, and reconstruction. The treatment 
Standards, developed in 1992, were codified as 36 CFR Part 68 in 
the July 12, 1995, Federal Register (Vol. 60, No. 133). They replaced 
the 1978 and 1983 versions of 36 CFR Part 68, entitled The Secretary 
of the Interior’s Standards for Historic Preservation Projects. The 
revised Guidelines herein replace the Guidelines for Preserving, 
Rehabilitating, Restoring, and Reconstructing Historic Buildings, 
published in 1995 to accompany the treatment Standards. 

The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards for the Treatment of Historic 
Properties are regulatory only for projects receiving Historic 
Preservation Fund grant assistance and other federally-assisted 
projects. Otherwise, these Guidelines are intended to provide 
general guidance for work on any historic building. 

Another regulation, 36 CFR Part 67, focuses on “certified historic 
structures” as defined by the Internal Revenue Service Code of 1986. 
The Standards for Rehabilitation cited in 36 CFR Part 67 should 
always be used when property owners are seeking certification for 
federal tax benefits. 

5E



  

  

  
  

 

THE SECRETARY OF THE INTERIOR’S STANDARDS 
FOR THE TREATMENT OF HISTORIC PROPERTIES 
WITH 
GUIDELINES FOR PRESERVING, REHABILITATING, 
RESTORING & RECONSTRUCTING HISTORIC BUILDINGS 

Revised by Anne E. Grimmer 

from The Secretary of the Interior’s Standards
 
for the Treatment of Historic Properties with
 
Guidelines for Preserving, Rehabilitating,
 
Restoring & Reconstructing Historic Buildings
 
Kay D. Weeks and Anne E. Grimmer (1995) 

U.S. Department of the Interior 
National Park Service 
Technical Preservation Services 
Washington, D.C. 

2017 

5E



PRESERVATIONPRESERVATION

 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

STANDARDS FOR PRESERVATION & GUIDELINES 
FOR PRESERVING HISTORIC BUILDINGS 

Preservation
 
Preservation is defined as the act or process of applying measures neces
sary to sustain the existing form, integrity, and materials of an historic 
property. Work, including preliminary measures to protect and stabilize 
the property, generally focuses upon the ongoing maintenance and repair 
of historic materials and features rather than extensive replacement and 
new construction. New exterior additions are not within the scope of this 
treatment; however, the limited and sensitive upgrading of mechanical, 
electrical, and plumbing systems and other code-required work to make 
properties functional is appropriate within a preservation project. 

27 5E



PRESERVATION

28 

  
 

 

  

 

  
 

 

  

  

  

  

  

Standards for Preservation 

1.	 A property will be used as it was historically, or be given a new use that maximizes the 
retention of distinctive materials, features, spaces and spatial relationships. Where a 
treatment and use have not been identified, a property will be protected and, if necessary, 
stabilized until additional work may be undertaken. 

2.	 The historic character of a property will be retained and preserved. The replacement of 
intact or repairable historic materials or alteration of features, spaces and spatial rela
tionships that characterize a property will be avoided. 

3.	 Each property will be recognized as a physical record of its time, place and use. Work 
needed to stabilize, consolidate and conserve existing historic materials and features will 
be physically and visually compatible, identifiable upon close inspection and properly 
documented for future research. 

4.	 Changes to a property that have acquired historic significance in their own right will be 
retained and preserved. 

5.	 Distinctive materials, features, finishes and construction techniques or examples of 
craftsmanship that characterize a property will be preserved. 

6.	 The existing condition of historic features will be evaluated to determine the appropriate 
level of intervention needed. Where the severity of deterioration requires repair or lim
ited replacement of a distinctive feature, the new material will match the old in composi
tion, design, color and texture. 

7.	 Chemical or physical treatments, if appropriate, will be undertaken using the gentlest 
means possible. Treatments that cause damage to historic materials will not be used. 

8. Archeological resources will be protected and preserved in place. If such resources must be 
disturbed, mitigation measures will be undertaken. 

5E



PRESERVATION

 
 

 

 
 

  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 

 

 

 
  

   
 
 

 
 
 
 

GUIDELINES FOR PRESERVING HISTORIC BUILDINGS 

INTRODUCTION 

Preservation is the appropriate treatment when the objective of the 
project is to retain the building as it currently exists. This means 
that not only the original historic materials and features will be pre
served, but also later changes and additions to the original building. 
The expressed goal of the Standards for Preservation and Guide
lines for Preserving Historic Buildings is retention of the build
ing’s existing form, features, and materials. This may be as simple 
as maintaining existing materials and features or may involve more 
extensive repair. Protection, maintenance, and repair are empha
sized while replacement is minimized. 

Identify, Retain, and Preserve Historic 
Materials and Features 
The guidance for the treatment Preservation begins with recom
mendations to identify the form and detailing of those architectural 
materials and features that are important in defining the building’s 
historic character and which must be retained to preserve that char
acter. Therefore, guidance on identifying, retaining, and preserving 
character-defining features is always given first. 

Stabilize Deteriorated Historic Materials and 
Features as a Preliminary Measure 
Deteriorated portions of a historic building may need to be pro
tected through preliminary stabilization measures until additional 
work can be undertaken. Stabilizing may begin with temporary 
structural reinforcement and progress to weatherization or correct
ing unsafe conditions. Although it may not be necessary in every 

preservation project, stabilization is nonetheless an integral part 
of the treatment Preservation; it is equally applicable to the other 
treatments if circumstances warrant. 

Protect and Maintain Historic Materials and 
Features 
After identifying those materials and features that are important 
and must be retained in the process of Preservation work, then 
protecting and maintaining them are addressed. Protection generally 
involves the least degree of intervention and is preparatory to other 
work. Protection includes the maintenance of historic materials and 
features as well as ensuring that the property is protected before and 
during preservation work. 

Repair (Stabilize, Consolidate, and Conserve) 
Historic Materials and Features 
Next, when the physical condition of character-defining materials and 
features warrants additional work, repairing by stabilizing, consolidat
ing, and conserving is recommended. The intent of Preservation is to 
retain existing materials and features while introducing as little new 
material as possible. Consequently, guidance for repairing a historic 
material, such as masonry, begins with the least degree of interven-
tion possible, such as strengthening materials through consolidation, 
when necessary, or repointing with mortar of an appropriate strength. 
Repairing masonry, as well as wood and metal features, may include 
patching, splicing, or other treatments using recognized preservation 
methods. All work should be physically and visually compatible. 

INTRODUCTION 29 5E



PRESERVATION

30 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 
 

 

 
 

  
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 
 
 

 

Limited Replacement in Kind of Extensively 
Deteriorated Portions of Historic Features 
The greatest level of intervention in this treatment is the limited 
replacement in kind of extensively deteriorated or missing compo
nents of features when there are surviving prototypes or when the 
original features can be substantiated by documentary and physical 
evidence. The replacement material must match the old, both physi
cally and visually (e.g., wood with wood). Thus, with the exception 
of hidden structural reinforcement, such as steel rods, substitute 
materials are not appropriate in the treatment Preservation. If 
prominent features are missing, such as an interior staircase or an 
exterior cornice, then a Rehabilitation or Restoration treatment may 
be more appropriate. 

Code-Required Work: 
Accessibility and Life Safety 
These sections of the Preservation guidance address work that must 
be done to meet accessibility and life-safety requirements. This work 
may be an important aspect of preservation projects, and it, too, 
must be assessed for its potential negative impact on the build
ing’s character. For this reason, particular care must be taken not to 
obscure, damage, or destroy character-defining materials or features 
in the process of undertaking work to meet code requirements. 

Resilience to Natural Hazards 
Resilience to natural hazards should be addressed as part of a Preser
vation project. A historic building may have existing characteristics 
or features that help to address or minimize the impacts of natural 
hazards. These should always be used to best advantage when plan-
ning new adaptive treatments so as to have the least impact on the 
historic character of the building, its site, and setting. 

Sustainability 
Sustainability should be addressed as part of a Preservation project. 
Good preservation practice is often synonymous with sustainability. 
Existing energy-efficient features should be retained and repaired. 
New sustainability treatments should generally be limited to updat
ing existing features and systems so as to have the least impact on 
the historic character of the building. 

The topic of sustainability is addressed in detail in The Secretary of 
the Interior’s Standards for Rehabilitation & Illustrated Guidelines on 
Sustainability for Rehabilitating Historic Buildings. Although specifi
cally developed for the treatment Rehabilitation, the Sustainability 
Guidelines can be used to help guide the other treatments. 

Preservation as a Treatment.  When the property’s distinctive materi
als, features, and spaces are essentially intact and thus convey the historic 
significance without extensive repair or replacement; when depiction at 
a particular period of time is not appropriate; and when a continuing or 
new use does not require additions or extensive alterations, Preservation 
may be considered as a treatment. Prior to undertaking work, a documen
tation plan for Preservation should be developed. 

INTRODUCTION 5E



PRESERVATION

 
 

 
 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

  

 

WINDOWS 

RECOMMENDED NOT RECOMMENDED 

Identifying, retaining, and preserving windows and their func- Altering windows or window features which are important in defin
tional and decorative features that are important to the overall ing the historic character of the building so that, as a result, the 
historic character of the building. The window material and how character is diminished. 
the window operates (e.g., double hung, casement, awning, or 
hopper) are significant, as are its components (including sash, Changing the appearance of windows that contribute to the historic 
muntins, ogee lugs, glazing, pane configuration, sills, mullions, character of the building by replacing materials, finishes, or colors 
casings, or brick molds) and related features, such as shutters. which noticeably change the sash, depth of reveal, and muntin con

figuration; the reflectivity and color of the glazing; or the appear
ance of the frame. 

Obscuring historic wood window trim with metal or other material. 

Stabilizing deteriorated or damaged windows as a preliminary 
measure, when necessary, prior to undertaking preservation work. 

Failing to stabilize deteriorated or damaged windows as a prelimi
nary measure, when necessary, prior to undertaking preservation 
work. 

Protecting and maintaining the wood or metal which comprises Failing to protect and maintain materials on a cyclical basis so that 
the window jamb, sash, and trim through appropriate surface deterioration of the window results. 
treatments, such as cleaning, paint removal, and reapplication of 
the same protective coating systems. 

Protecting windows against vandalism before work begins by 
covering them and by installing alarm systems that are keyed into 
local protection agencies. 

Leaving windows unprotected and subject to vandalism before work 
begins, thereby also allowing the interior to be damaged if it can be 
accessed through unprotected windows. 

Installing impact-resistant glazing, when necessary for security, 
so that it is compatible with the historic windows and does not 
damage them or negatively impact their character. 

Installing impact-resistant glazing, when necessary for security, that 
is not compatible with the historic windows and damages them or 
negatively impacts their character. 

Making windows weathertight by recaulking gaps in fixed joints 
and replacing or installing weatherstripping. 

Replacing windows rather than maintaining the sash, frame, or 
glazing. 

Protecting windows from chemical cleaners, paint, or abrasion 
during work on the exterior of the building. 

Failing to protect historic windows from chemical cleaners, paint, 
or abrasion when work is being done on the exterior of the building. 

Protecting and retaining historic glass when replacing putty or 
repairing other components of the window. 

Failing to protect the historic glass when making repairs. 

46 WINDOWS 5E



PRESERVATION

 
 

 

 
 
 

 
 

[11] Old and brittle 
glazing putty should 
be removed carefully 
before reputtying to 
keep window glazing 
weathertight. 

[10] Historic exterior 
storm windows preserve 
and help to insulate 
wood windows. 

WINDOWS 47 5E



PRESERVATION

 

 

 

 
 

  

 
 
 

 

  

 
 
 

  

WINDOWS 

RECOMMENDED NOT RECOMMENDED 

Sustaining the historic operability of windows by lubricating fric
tion points and replacing broken components of the operating 
system (such as hinges, latches, sash chains or cords) or replac
ing deteriorated gaskets or insulating units. 

Failing to maintain windows and window components so that win
dows are inoperable, or sealing operable sash permanently. 

Failing to repair and reuse window hardware such as sash lifts, 
latches, and locks 

Adding storm windows with a matching or a one-over-one pane 
configuration that will not obscure the characteristics of the his
toric windows. Storm windows improve energy efficiency and are 
especially beneficial when installed over wood windows because 
they also protect them from accelerated deterioration. 

Protecting adjacent materials when working on windows. Failing to protect adjacent materials when working on windows. 

Evaluating the overall condition of windows to determine whether 
more than protection and maintenance, such as repairs to win
dows and window features, will be necessary. 

Failing to undertake adequate measures to ensure the protection of 
windows. 

Repairing window frames and sash by patching, splicing, consoli
dating, or otherwise reinforcing them using recognized preserva
tion methods. 

Removing window frames or sash that could be stabilized, repaired, 
and conserved, or using untested consolidants, improper repair 
techniques, or untrained personnel, potentially causing furthur 
damage to historic buildings. 

Using corrosion-resistant roof fasteners (e.g., nails and clips) to 
repair a roof to help extend its longevity. 

The following work is highlighted to indicate that it represents the greatest degree of intervention generally recommended within the treatment 
Preservation, and should only be considered after protection, stabilization, and repair concerns have been addressed. 

Limited Replacement in Kind 

Replacing in kind extensively deteriorated or missing components 
of windows when there are surviving prototypes, such as frames 
or sash, or when the replacement can be based on documentary 
or physical evidence. The new work should match the old in 
material, design, scale, color, and finish. 

Replacing an entire window when limited replacement of deterio
rated or missing components is appropriate. 

Using replacement material that does not match the historic 
window. 

48 WINDOWS 5E



MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Department 

DATE: March 13, 2023 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Melissa A. Coatta, City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Parking Lot No. 5 Slope Repair 

Contract - #4-23 (S) Contract Award 

INTRODUCTION: 
Bids for Parking Lot No. 5 Slope Repair #4-23 (S) were opened on February 7, 2023.  One (1) 
bid was received for consideration, and the Engineering Department is recommending the award 
for the project to V.I.L. Construction.   

BACKGROUND: 
The existing slope along the north edge of Parking Lot No. 5 down toward the Rouge River is 
experiencing erosion.  To prevent further erosion in this area and protect the north parking lot 
including fencing and utilities, plans were developed to collect water runoff along the grass area 
behind the parking lot before it travels down the slope.  The design includes curb cuts along the 
existing curb to create openings for water to drain into a proposed bio-swale.  An additional catch 
basin with a storm sewer will be installed north of the existing parking lot in the grass area to 
collect the water runoff.  

There were two alternatives bid for this project: Alternate No. 1 – Install New Ornamental 6’ High 
Aluminum Fence, and Alternate No. 2 – Bio-Swale Plantings.  The existing fence requires removal 
to install the additional storm sewer system and the bio-swale.  An alternative was bid to replace 
the fence with 6' high ornamental aluminum fencing.  This will allow visibility to the river from 
the parking lot and help the City to visually inspect the slope and utilities. This project will be 
constructed in the Spring of 2023 which is one of the optimal times to install bio-swale plantings. 
Also, the plantings will be installed when the north bay of parking spaces is closed for the project 
construction access.    

After this project is completed, Parking Lot No. 5 will be repaved through the 2021 Resurfacing 
Program contract.  The parking lot will be restriped during this project and will include a 
pedestrian crosswalk area from the northeast corner of the parking lot to the south portion of the 
parking lot toward the Willits and Bates intersection.   

5F



2 

The Engineering Department opened and read bids on February 7, 2023.  One (1) bid was 
received as listed in the attached summary.  The Engineering Department recommends awarding 
this contract, which includes the Base Bid, Alternate No. 1 – Install New Ornamental 6' High 
Aluminum Fence, and Alternate No. 2 – Bio-Swale Plantings to V.I.L. Construction, who has 
completed previous construction projects in the city and understands expectations.   

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City's standard contract language was used for this bidding document which the City Attorney 
has reviewed and approved.  No legal issues exist based on the documentation.    

FISCAL IMPACT: 
This project was budgeted for $105,000.00 in the 2022/2023 fiscal year, in the Automobile 
Parking System under Public Improvements. The total construction cost for the project is 
estimated to be $241,597.65 which includes the V.I.L. Construction bid amount of $230,093.00 
and 5% construction contingency.  The project award will be funded by the following account: 

Fund Account Fund ID Number Project Award 5% 
Contingencies 

Total 

Automobile 
Parking System 514.1-594.005-981.0100 $230,093.00 $11,504.65 $241,597.65 

Amendments to the budget will be necessary to include Alternate No. 1 – Install New Ornamental 
6’ High Aluminum Fence, and Alternate No. 2 – Bio-Swale Plantings. Installing the bio-swale 
plantings is more sustainable and helps achieve the City Commission's goal of upgrading 
infrastructure to prepare for future climate conditions.   

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
Communication with property owners in the project area and users of the parking lot will be 
included in the general project announcement.  

SUMMARY: 
It is recommended that Parking Lot No. 5 Slope Repair #4-23 (S), be awarded to V.I.L. 
Construction.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Project Area Map (1 page)
• Bid Summary (1 page)
• Hubbell, Roth, and Clark Recommendation Letter (1 page)
• Contract (145 pages)
• Plans (9 pages)

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to approve the construction project budget and award the 
Parking Lot No. 5 Slope Repairs #4-23 (S) to V.I.L. Construction in the amount of $230,093.00. 
In addition, to authorized the Mayor and City Clark to sign the agreements on behalf of the City. 
Funding for this project will be charged to the following accounts:  

5F



3 

Fund Account Fund ID Number Project Award 5% 
Contingencies 

Total 

Automobile 
Parking System 514.1-594.005-981.0100 $230,093.00 $11,504.65 $241,597.65 

To approve the appropriation and amendment of the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget as follows: 

Automobile Parking System: 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance 514.1-000.000-400.0000 $136,600.00 

Expenditures: 
Public Improvements 514.1-594.005-981.0100 $136,600.00 

5F



0 2,000 4,0001,000
Feet

1 inch = 1,042 feet

2023
Capital Improvements

Disclaimer: The information provided by this program has been
compiled from recorded deeds, plats, taxmaps, surveys, and 

other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded 
map or survey.

The data provided hereon may be inaccurate or out of date and 
any person or entity who relies on said information for any purpose

 whatsoever does so solely at his or her own risk. 

Data Sources:  Oakland County GIS Utility, City of Birmingham

¯

Legend
) Parking Lot 5 Slope Repair 4-23(S)

)

MAPLE

OAK

AD
A

M
S

W
OODW

ARD

BATE
S

ETO
N

BIRD

PIER
C

E

FA
IR

FA
X

PI
LG

R
IM

LINCOLN

VILLA

REDDING

COLE

PU
R

ITA
N

TO
R

R
Y

SU
FF

IE
LD

H
EN

R
IE

TTA

ANN

OLDW
OODW

ARD

DERBY

SMITH

RAYNALE

LA
KE

PAR
K

ELM

SO
U

TH
FIELD

PARK

BROWN

LA
KE

SID
E

NORTHLAWN

ABBEY

G
R

AN
T

HAZEL

FAIRWAY

DAVIS

C
H

ES
TE

R
FI

EL
D

QUARTON

WEBSTER

WILLITS

HOLLAND

PINE

LA
R

C
H

LE
A

HARMON

PURDY

YOSEMITE

HENLEY

STAN
LEY

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N HANNA

SH
IP

M
AN

HAYNES

WIMBLETON

MERRILL

PLEA
SAN

T

FRANK

O
X

FO
R

D

TAU
N

TO
N

BOWERS

HUMPHREY

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

LIN
D

EN

C
H

ESTE
R

CHAPIN

MADISON

AR
G

YL
E

M
A

R
YLAN

D

ASPEN

MIDVALE

W
ATKIN

S

YORKSHIRE

RIVENOAK

ED
G

E
W

O
O

D

EMMONS

W
ES

TC
H

ES
TER

MARTIN

SHIRLEY

KNOX

BIGBEAVER

C
ED

AR

BALD
W

IN

GEORGE

BIR
M

IN
G

H
A

M

W
ILLO

W

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N

PO
PPLE

TO
N

W
O

R
TH

C
O

LU
M

B
IA

FOREST

G
R

EE
N

W
O

O
D

SHEFFIELD

W
A

R
W

IC
K

LATHAM

OAKLAND

NO
RF

O
LK

MOHEGAN

VINEWOOD

R
U

G
B

Y

C
R

O
FT

TOWNSEND

PEMBROKE

CATALPA

DORCHESTER
PEN

ISTO
N

E

WALLACE

C
U

M
M

IN
G

S

KENNESAW

RUFFNER

BANBURY

BUCKINGHAM

RIDGEDALE

LA
KE

VIEW

G
LE

N
H

U
R

ST

SH
E

PA
R

D
BU

SH

AVON

FERNDALE

H
AW

TH
O

R
N

E

BENNAVILLE

CHESTNUT

MELTON

BR
O

O
KW

O
O

D

W
O

O
D

LEA

TOTTENHAM

W
O

O
D

LAN
D

C
AM

B
R

ID
G

E

EUCLID

DEWEY

G
R

AE
FI

EL
D

WESTBORO

DAINES

HAMILTON

KIM
BE

R
LEY

G
O

LFV
IEW

LANDON

PUTNEY

C
LAR

K

FLO
Y

D

BR
O

O
KSID

E

LY
O

N
H

U
R

ST

MID
LA

ND

SOUTHLAWN

AR
D

EN

GORDON

ATEN

COLONIAL

PEABO
DY

CANTERBURY

WORTHINGTON

TO
O

TIN
G

MELBOURNE

RIVERSIDE

KENWOOD

M
A

PLE
H

ILL

BLOOMFIELD

D
O

N
M

A
R

O
LD

SA
LEM

LAW
NDALE

M
IL

LR
AC

E

VALLE
YVIE

W

W
ILLITS ALLEY

NORWICH

M
E

R
R

ITT

WARREN

HI
D

DE
N

R
AV

IN
ES

EMMONS

FRANK

SOUTHLAWN

RUFFNER

W
O

R
TH

LATHAM

BENNAVILLE
HUMPHREY

BA
LD

W
IN

BOWERS

NORTHLAWN

ETO
N

HAYNES

BOWERS

W
OODW

ARD

HAZEL

LA
KE

SID
E

STAN
LEY

CHAPIN

SH
IR

LEY

PINE

G
LE

N
H

U
R

ST

SOUTHLAWN

5F



 Unit Price  Amount 

BASE BID PAY ITEMS 

1 Mobilization, Max 20% 1 LS 35,000.00$                 35,000.00$                           

2 Erosion Control, Silt Fence (Detail SP-2) 400 LF 2.00$                           800.00$                                 

3 Erosion Control, Low Point Inlet Filter (Detail SI-2A) 5 EA 100.00$                       500.00$                                 

4 Site Clearing and Grading 1 LS 72,000.00$                 72,000.00$                           

5 Remove Conc. Curb 28 FT 15.00$                         420.00$                                 

6 Conc. Curb Spillway 4 EA 1,500.00$                   6,000.00$                              

7 Ledge Rock Level Spreader (18" tall x 24" wide x 48" min length pieces) 20 FT 300.00$                       6,000.00$                              

8 Riprap, Natural, Plain 70 SYD 125.00$                       8,750.00$                              

9 Dr Structure, Maintenance Basin, 24"dia, HDPE 2 EA 4,500.00$                   9,000.00$                              

10 Storm Sewer, 12" Dia, Corr Dual-Wall HDPE 20 FT 150.00$                       3,000.00$                              

11 Turf Reinforcement Mat 250 SYD 3.00$                           750.00$                                 

12 Erosion Control Blanket 550 SYD 1.50$                           825.00$                                 

13 Compost Planting Medium, Furn, 12 inch 180 SYD 10.00$                         1,800.00$                              

14 Compost Planting Medium, Furn, 3 inch 500 SYD 5.00$                           2,500.00$                              

15 Native Seed Mix, Slope Stabilization & Fertilizer 480 SYD 5.00$                           2,400.00$                              

16 Native Seed Mix, Fescue Blend & Fertilizer 200 SYD 6.00$                           1,200.00$                              

17 Native Seed Mix, Bio-Swale 180 SYD 8.00$                           1,440.00$                              

18 Fence, Remove, Salvage & Re-Install 245 LFT 20.00$                         4,900.00$                              

19 Temp Construction Fencing & Minor Traffic Control Devices 1 LS 3,500.00$                   3,500.00$                              

20 Inspector Crew Days 10 Days 400.00$                       4,000.00$                              

BASE BID PAY ITEMS 164,785.00$                      

ALTERNATE NO. 1 PAY ITEMS

21 Fence, Remove 245 LFT 10.00$                         2,450.00$                              

22 Fence, Ornamental, Aluminum 6' High, incl 4' Wide Gate 245 LFT 130.00$                       31,850.00$                           

23 Additional Inspector Crew Days 2 Days 400.00$                       800.00$                                 

ALTERNATE NO. 1 PAY ITEMS 35,100.00$                        

ALTERNATE NO. 2 PAY ITEMS

24 Bio-Swale Plantings, Grasses, #1 Containers 60 EA 30.00$                      1,800.00$                              

25 Bio-Swale Plantings, Perennials, #1/#2 Containers 336 EA 28.00$                         9,408.00$                              

26 Bio-Swale Plantings, Shrubs, #3/#5 Containers 160 EA 75.00$                         12,000.00$                           

27 Shredded Hardwood Mulch 200 SY 25.00$                         5,000.00$                              

28 Additional Inspector Crew Days 5 Days 400.00$                       2,000.00$                              

ALTERNATE NO. 2 PAY ITEMS 30,208.00$                           

TOTAL 230,093.00$                         

NO. ITEM DESCRIPTION Qty Units
 VIL 

City of Birmingham
Contract #4-23(P)

5F



 

Bloomfield Hills Delhi Township Detroit Grand Rapids Howell Jackson Kalamazoo Traverse City Troy 

Y:\202201\20220180\06_Corrs\Design\20230209_Recommendation_for_Award.docx 

 

555 Hulet Drive 
Bloomfield Hills, MI  48302-0360 
 
248-454-6300 
 
www.hrcengr.com 

February 9, 2023 
 

City of Birmingham 
151 Martin Street 
Birmingham, Michigan 48012 
 

Attn: Ms. Melissa Coatta, P.E., City Engineer 
 

Re:  Municipal Parking Lot No. 5 Slope Stabilization HRC Job No. 20220180.07 
 Recommendation for Bid Award City Contract No. 4-23(S) 
 

Dear Ms. Coatta, 
 

Bids for the subject project were taken on Tuesday, February 7th, at 2:00 p.m. at City Hall.  One (1) bid was received and 
read.  The low bidder for the project is V.I.L. Construction, Inc. of Sterling Heights, Michigan, with a base bid of $164,785.00 
and a total bid with both alternatives of $230,093.00.  The bid amount is generally in line with the Engineer’s Opinion of 
Probable Construction Cost, with an estimated base bid amount of $156,000.00 and an estimated total of $216,500.00. 
 

The bid has been checked, and a minor discrepancy has been noted.  The amount bid for Mobilization, $35,000.00, is 
greater than the maximum permitted 20% of the base bid contract value.  However, when considering the total bid amount 
with both alternatives, the amount bid for mobilization works out to be approximately 18.5% of the total construction amount 
minus this item, which is satisfactory. 
 

Since the project involves two (2) alternatives the City intends to proceed with, we have tabulated the total consolidated 
construction cost to aid in the City’s assessment of the project award on the attached sheet.  Items no. 17 ‘Native Seed 
Mix, Bio-Swale’ and no. 18 ‘Fence, Remove, Salv & Re-install’ are replaced by the additional scope of work covered by 
Alternative No. 2 and No. 1, respectively.  Therefore, they have been reduced to no-cost items in the attached table.  
Additionally, items no. 23 and 28 ‘Additional Inspector Crew Days‘ have been consolidated into item no. 20 ‘Inspector Crew 
Days’ in the table.  The consolidated total contract amount is, therefore, $223,753.00. 
 

V.I.L. Construction provided several references for similar work performed recently, and we received favorable responses 
to our inquiry about their job performance.  
 

In our capacity as Consulting Engineers for the City of Birmingham, we recommend that the contract for the Municipal 
Parking Lot No. 5 Slope Stabilization – Contract #4-23(S) project be awarded to V.I.L. Construction, Inc in the amount of 
$223,753.00. 
 

If you have any questions or require any additional information, please contact the undersigned. 
 

Very truly yours, 
 

HUBBELL, ROTH & CLARK, INC. 
 
 
 
 
James J. Surhigh, P.E. 
Associate 

 
 
 
 
 
Remington J. Koch, P.E. 
Staff Engineer 

pc: HRC; M. MacDonald, File 

5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



5F



BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MICH.

P.O.  BOX 824

48303 - 0824

PHONE:  (248) 454-6300

FAX (1st. Floor):  (248) 454-6312

FAX (2nd. Floor):  (248) 338-2592

WEB SITE:  http: / /  www.hrc-engr.com

LOCATION

PROJECT

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

N

PLAN SHEET INDEX SHEET No.

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

OAKLAND COUNTY, MICHIGAN

NO SCALE

L
I
C

E
S

N
D

E

L
ANOSISEFO

R

P

NO.

TA
TE

FO
I

CIM

S

R
E

E
N

I
G

N
E

H
G

N

A

ENGINEER

 

 

J.

42688

JAMES

SURHIGH

555 HULET DRIVE

01

03

COVER

WRC SOIL EROSION AND
SEDIMENTATION CONTROL DETAILS

02

14 MILE RD.

G
R

E
E

N

L
A

W
N

G
O

L
F
-
 
 
 

V
IE

W

FAI
RWAY 

  
 D

RI
VE

H
IL

L
S
ID

E

P
O

L
O
 

P
L
.

D
R
.

NORTHLAWN  DRIVE

LINCOLN

D
O

N
M

A
R
 

C
T
.

L
A

R
C

H
L

E
A
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
R
IV

E

W
E
S

T
C

H
E
S

T
E

R
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
A

Y

G
L

E
N

H
U

R
S

T
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

D
R
IV

E

W
O

O
D

L
E

A

A
R

D
E

N

L
A

N
E

C
A

R
O

L
W

O
O

D

CT.

C
R

A
N

B
R

O
O

K
 
 

R
D
. P

L
E

A
S

A
N

T
 
 
 

A
V

E
.

PLEASANT

CT.

M
E

R
R
IT

T
 
 

L
A

N
E

B
R

Y
N
 

M
A

W
R

W
E

L
L

E
S

L
E

Y
 

D
R
.

B
E

R
W

Y
N
 
 

R
D
.

A
R

G
Y

L
E
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

B
L

V
D
.

G
O

L
F

V
IE

W

DEVON

LANE

R
A
D
N
O
R
 
 
D
R
.

AVON LANE

SAXON

WAKEFIELD

L
A

T
H

A
M

N
O
R
F
O
L
K WORTH-

INGTON

SOUTHLAWN

NORTHLAWN

CANTERBURY

L
A
T

H
A

M

S
O

U
T

H
F
IE

L
D

S
H
IP

M
A

N

B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M

S
T

A
N

L
E

Y

W
A

S
H
IN

G
T

O
N

B
A

T
E
S

14   MILE   RD.

WALLACE

P
IE

R
C

E

GORDON
LANE

H
A

W
T

H
O

R
N

E

A
S

P
E

N

L
IN

D
E

N

BRANDON

S
H
IR

L
E

Y
 

D
R
.

A
R

L
IN

G
T

O
N
 

R
D
.

A
R

L
IN

G
T

O
N
 

R
D
.

S
H
IR

L
E

Y

MAPLE

R
IV

E
R

ROUGE

FAIRVIEW

WINTHROP

PINE

MELBORNE

K
IM

B
E

R
 
 
 

L
E

Y

C
H

E
S

T
E

R
F
IE

L
D

PINE

F
A
IR

F
A

X

S
U

F
F
IE

L
D

P
IL

G
R
IM

P
U

R
IT

A
N

L
A

K
E
P

A
R

K

W
E
S

T
W

O
O

D

G
L

E
N

H
U

R
S

T

BROOKWOOD

KEN

WOOD

L
Y

O
N

H
U

R
S

T

B
R

O
O

K
W

O
O

D

OAK

RAY  NALE

M
ID

LAND

W
IL

L
O

W
 

L
A

N
E

L
A

K
E
S
ID

E

REDDING

A
S

H
F

O
R

D

LN.

O
L

D
 

S
A

L
E

M

COLONIAL

CT.

BLOOMFIELD CT.

OAK

H
A

Z
E

L

W
O

O
D

L
A

K
E

V
IE

W

B
A

L
D

W
IN
 

C
T
.

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

A
T

E
N
 

C
T
.

HARMON

B
A

L
D

W
IN

M
IL

L
R

A
C

E

L
A

K
E
S
ID

E

RAN  DALL

DEWEY

T
O

O
T
IN

G

L
A

N
E

B
O

N
N
IE
 

B
R
IE

R

VINEWOOD

RA

V
IN

E

EUC 
 L
ID

P
A

R
K

F
E

R
N

D
A

L
E

WARREN

B
A

T
E
S OAKLAND

SOUTHLAWN

CATALPA

BENNAVILLE

CHAPIN

EMMONS

DAVIS

SMITH

BIRD

C
E

D
A

R

F
L

O
Y

D

G
R

A
N

T

LINCOLN

RUFFNER

HUMPHREY

LINCOLN

T
O

R
R

Y

T
A

U
N

T
O

N

CROFT

PENISTONE

BA
NBU

RY

HUM
PHREY

MELTON

M
A

N
S

F
IE

L
D

BRAD  FORD

SHE 
 F

FI
ELD D

U
N
S
T
A
B
L
E

C
H
E
L
T
E
N
H
A

M

H
A

N
L

E
Y
 

C
T
.

E
T

O
N

C
O

M
M

E
R

C
E

COLE

WEBSTER

W
O

R
T

H

A
D

A
M

S

LANDON

GEORGE

F
L

O
Y

D

C
L

A
R

K

C
A

M
B
 
 

R
ID

G
E

R
U

G
B

YDORCHESTER

BUCKINGHAM

P
O

P
P
 
 

L
E

T
O

N RIDGED  ALE

OAKLAND

O
A

K
-

D
A

L
E

L
A

W
N
 

D
A

L
E

O
A

K
 
 

D
A

L
E

P
O

P
-
 
 
P

L
E
-
 

T
O

N

R
O

S
E
 
 

D
A

L
E

WESTBORO DR.

MANCHESTER
RIVENOAK

KENNESAW

MOHEGAN

O
X

F
O

R
D

WIMBELTON

ABBEY

PUTNEY

H
E

N
L
E

Y

HENLEY

ABBEY

T
W
IN

O
A

K
S

A
D

A
M

S

DERBY

TOTTENHAM

SHEPARDBUSH

M
A

N
O

R
 

P
K
.

N
O
R

W
IC

H

DERBY
PEMBROKE

CT.

PEMBROKE

G
R

A
E
F
IE

L
D

F
IE

L
D
 

C
T
.

E
T

O
N

E
D

E
N
 
 

B
O

R
-
 

O
U

G
H

DERBY

PEMBROKE

MANCHESTER

WINDEMERE

BUCKINGHAM

DORCHESTER

S
T
 
 
 

A
N

D
-
 
 

R
E

W
S

C
O

O
L
 
 
ID

G
E

G
R

A
N

D
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
T

R
U

N
K
 
 
 
 
 
 

W
E
S
T
E
R

N
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

R
.  R
.

16    MILE    ROAD

S
T
R
A
T
H

M
O
R
E

H
ID

D
E

N
 

R
A

V
IN

E
S

C
U

M
 
 

M
IN

G
 

S

G
R

A
E
-

MADISON

C
O

U
R

T
HANNA

FRANK

W
A

T
K
IN

S

C
H

E
R

R
Y
 

C
T
.

S
T

A
N

L
E

Y

C
H

E
S

T
E

R

B
A

T
E
S

H
E

N
R
IE

T
T

A

C
O

U
R

T

 DR.

V
A

L
L

E
Y

V
IE

W

L
A

N
E

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

V
IL

L
A
 

C
T
. MARTIN

W.MAPLE

WILLITS

CT.

HOLLAND

HAYNES

BOWERS

PALMERHAZEL

VILLA

HA
YNES

CT
.

P
U

R
D

Y

A
N

N

FRANK

DAI
NES

BROWN

E.MAPLE

HAMILTON

HAYNES

BOWERS

HAZEL

CHESTNUT

FOREST

E
L

M

YOSEMITE

MAPLE

YORKSHIRE
KNOX

MAPLE

Y
A

N
K

E
E

C
O

L
U
 
 

M
B
IA

YORKSHIRE

BENNAVILLE

Q
U

A
R

T
O

N
 
 
 
 

L
A

K
E

PARK

SPRINGDALE

L
IN

C
O

L
N
 

C
T
.

LINCOLN

S
O

U
T

H
F
IE

L
D

BROWN

W
A

T
K
IN

S

E
D

G
E

W
O

O
D

14 MILE RD.

GEO
RGE

P
IE

R
C

E

MARTIN

MERRILL

TOWNSEND

NORTHLAWN

SOUTHLAWN

M
A

R
Y

L
A

N
D

H
E

N
R
IE

T
T

A

�

O
L

D
 

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

B
R

O
O

K
S
ID

E

W
O
O
D

W
A
R
D
 
(M
-
1)

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D
 
(M
-
1)

T
R

A
IL

MUNICIPAL PARKING LOT No. 5 SLOPE STABILIZATION

MICHIGAN

OAKLAND COUNTY,

THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

PARTIES UTILIZING THIS INFORMATION SHALL FIELD VERIFY

ACCURACY OF THE UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

OR SHOULD BE ASSUMED, AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR

RECORD MAPPING WHERE AVAILABLE.  NO GUARANTEE IS MADE,

SURVEY HAVE BEEN TAKEN FROM VISUAL OBSERVATION AND

ALL EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS TOPOGRAPHIC

NOTICE:

Know what'sbelow.

before you dig.Call

(TOLL FREE)

811or 

1-800-482-7171

BEFORE YOU DIG

(3 WORKING DAYS)

72 HOURS

CALL MISS DIG

CALL811.COM

R

07-20-22 HRC QA/QC REVIEW

SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

04

776.285

BM #18

�

767.408

BM #23
�

767.494

BM #19

�

758.158

BM #20

�

753.760

BM #22

728.314

BM #32

�

�

756.613

BM #16

�

738.696

BM #17

735.980

BM #21
�

FAIRWAY  DR.

714.616

BM #31

�

766.175

BM #27

�

743.952

BM #28

�

753.395

BM #3

�

767.338

BM #2

�

764.284

BM #11

752.641

BM #12

743.977

BM #15

736.772

BM #33

� �

��

765.612

BM #6

�

743.335

BM #13

752.113

BM #7

�

�

741.304

BM #14

�

763.889

BM #25

�

748.785

BM #8

�

769.869

BM #30

�

770.025

BM #9

�

768.916

BM #4
782.131

BM #10�
�

742.938

BM #26

�

783.27

BM #29

� 781.823

BM #1

�

 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM BENCH MARKS

BM #32 -

BM #31 -

BM #30 -

 

BM #29 -

 

BM #21 -

 

BM #20 -

 

BM #16 -

 

BM #10 -

 

 

BM #1  -

BM #24 -

 

BM #5  -

GONE, LAKESIDE AT OAK

DO NOT USE, OAKLAND AT WOODWARD

17.4' WEST OF SOUTHEAST CORNER MAPLE BRIDGE

 

17.2' EAST OF SOUTHWEST CORNER NORTHLAWN BRIDGE

 

31.0' SOUTH OF NORTH FENCE, 3.85' EAST OF EAST BACK OF CURB

 

BACK OF SIDEWALK

2.0' SOUTH OF MARTIN BACK OF SIDEWALK, 3.0' EAST OF CHESTER

 

PROPERTY LINE OF #1685 LINCOLN

0.5' SOUTH OF LINCOLN BACK OF SIDEWALK, 58.0' WEST OF EAST

 

CHURCH SERVICE WALK

10.5' SOUTH OF MAPLE BACK OF CURB, 26.71' +/- WEST OF

 

LINE OF ALLEY

0.5' SOUTH OF MAPLE BACK OF SIDEWALK ON EAST PROPERTY

 

ADAMS BACK OF SIDEWALK

130.3' SOUTH OF WIMBLETON BACK OF SIDEWALK, 0.4' WEST OF

BACK OF SIDEWALK

12.3' SOUTH OF MARTIN BACK OF SIDEWALK, 0.5' WEST OF PIERCE

�

�
OF SIDEWALKS EXCEPT FOR THE FOLLOWING:

ALL BENCH MARKS ( BM  ) ARE LOCATED WITHIN 1.0' OF THE BACK

(APPROX. 1.0 Ft HIGHER THAN NAVD 88)

ALL PLAN ELEVATIONS ARE BASED ON CITY OF BIRMINGHAM DATUM

NOTE:

SITE PLAN AND PROJECT NOTES

 OF SECTION 25, T2N, R10E4
1PART OF THE SW 

CITY CONTRACT No. 4-23(S)

11-30-22 OWNER REVIEW

05PROJECT DETAILS

06LANDSCAPE DETAILS

CONSTRUCTION PLAN (BASE BID)

CONSTRUCTION PLAN (ALTERNATE BID) 04A

01-10-23

01-20-23

REVISED PER COMMENTS

ISSUED FOR BIDS

EXISITNG CONDITIONS AND REMOVAL PLAN

DATE ADDITIONS  AND/OR  REVISIONS

C 2022 Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. All Rights Reserved

C
IT

Y
 

O
F
 
B
IR

M
IN

G
H

A
M
 
: 

M
U

N
IC
IP

A
L
 
P

A
R

K
IN

G
 

L
O

T
 

N
o
. 
5
 
S

L
O

P
E
 
S

T
A

B
IL
IZ

A
T
IO

N
 
-
 
H

R
C
 
J

O
B
 

N
o
. 
2
0
2
2
0
18

0

5F



N
. O

L
D
 W

O
O

D
W

A
R

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

BOOTH PARK

HARMON ST.

ROUGE RIVER

R
O

U
G

E
 R
IV

E
R

W
ILL
IT
S 

ST.

N

PLAYSCAPE

EXIST.

EXIST. HMA PATH

EXIST. HMA PATH

TOLL GATES

EXIST. PARKING

(CITY OF BIRMINGHAM)

PARKING STRUCTURE

N. OLD WOODWARD

EUCLI
D 

AVE.

T + 25

175

T = 8 min.

A = 1.86 ac.

Q
10

= (1.0) (5.3) (1.86)

= 9.9 cfs

O
NE 

W
AY

O
NE 

W
AY

733.4 NAVD 88 DATUM

734.4 CITY DATUM

ELEV. (APPROX.)

100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN

OF SLOPE REPAIR AREA

APPROXIMATE LIMITS

733.4 NAVD 88 DATUM

734.4 CITY DATUM

ELEV. (APPROX.)

100 YEAR FLOODPLAIN

DEVELOPER

FOR PRIVATE

EXIST. STAGING AREA

LOT No. 5

PARKING

MUNICIPAL

ADJUSTED, WHETHER SHOWN OR NOT.

PRESERVED AND THAT, WHERE NECESSARY, MONUMENT BOXES BE PLACED OR

IT IS THE INTENT THAT ALL GOVERNMENT CORNERS ON THIS PROJECT BE

THEIR ACCURACY IS NOT GUARANTEED.

PROPERTY OWNER'S NAMES, WHERE SHOWN, ARE FOR INFORMATION ONLY, AND

ADJUSTING MONUMENT BOXES

PLAN INFORMATION / CONTRACTOR STAKING

PROPERTY OWNERS

UTILITIES

CONSUMERS ENERGY 

DTE ENERGYCOMCAST

CONTRACTOR'S OPERATIONS.

CONSTITUTE A HAZARD TO THE PUBLIC OR ARE DANGEROUS TO THE

IS DETERMINED BY THE ENGINEER THAT SUCH POLE, LINE OR STRUCTURES

TO FACILITATE THE OPERATION OF CONSTRUCTION EQUIPMENT, UNLESS IT

POLES AND STRUCTURES THAT ARE NOT WITHIN GRADING LIMITS IN ORDER

OWNERS OF PUBLIC UTILITIES WILL NOT BE REQUIRED TO MOVE ADDITIONAL

BE DISTURBED.

AS TO INSURE THAT THOSE UTILITIES NOT REQUIRING RELOCATION WILL NOT

TO STARTING WORK, AND SHALL CONDUCT HIS OPERATIONS IN SUCH A MANNER

THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LOCATE ALL ACTIVE UNDERGROUND UTILITIES PRIOR

A PART OF THE "MISS-DIG" ALERT SYSTEM.

OF THE RESPONSIBILITY OF NOTIFYING UTILITY OWNERS WHO MAY NOT BE

THUS BE ROUTINELY NOTIFIED. THIS DOES NOT RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR

VICINITY OF UTILITY LINES. ALL "MISS-DIG" PARTICIPATING MEMBERS WILL

(800) 482-7171 A MINIMUM OF 3 WORKING DAYS PRIOR TO EXCAVATING IN THE

FOR PROTECTION OF UNDERGROUND UTILITIES, THE CONTRACTOR SHALL DIAL

CONSTRUCTION SPECIFICATIONS

ST

ST

759.50

E

TO THE CURB LINE PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

RESPONSIBILITY TO VERIFY LAYOUT OF STRUCTURE CASTINGS WITH RESPECT

WHERE ADJUSTING DRAINAGE STRUCTURES, IT IS THE CONTRACTOR'S

BEFORE DISTURBING THE SITE.

CONTRACTOR REQUIRED TO SET OFFSET STAKES AND GRADES BEFORE

INTENT OF PROJECT IS TO MATCH EXISTING GRADES WHERE PRACTICABLE.

PLAN DIMENSIONS AND MEASUREMENTS ARE BASED ON VISUAL OBSERVATION.

CONSTRUCTION ACCESS

GENERAL NOTESGENERAL NOTES

STAGING AREA

STORM SEWER DESIGN CALCULATIONS

01

1" = 60'

OF STAGING AREA

APPROXIMATE LIMITS

AND ACCESS GATE

CONSTRUCTION FENCE

TEMPORARY

INSTALLED 2020

STRUCTURES

EXIST. STORM

FLOODPLAIN

100 YEAR

TRIBUTARY AREA

ACCESS ROUTE

CONSTRUCTION

ALTERNATE

ACCESS ROUTE

CONSTRUCTION

PRIMARY

ACCESS ROUTE

CONSTRUCTION

SECONDARY

CONSTRUCTION NOTES

'WASHOUT' AREA NOTES

REMOVED.

RESPONSIBILITY IN CASE UTILITIES HAVE BEEN CONSTRUCTED, RELOCATED OR

OF THE RESPONSIBILITY TO SATISFY HIMSELF AS TO THEIR ACCURACY OR OF HIS

UTILITY RECORD MAPS. THIS INFORMATION DOES NOT RELIEVE THE CONTRACTOR

THE BEST INFORMATION AVAILABLE AS OBTAINED FROM SURVEYS AND FROM

THE EXISTING UTILITIES LISTED BELOW AND SHOWN ON THESE PLANS REPRESENT

SITE PLAN

DESCRIPTION UNIT

1

2

QTY.

1

PROJECT LEGEND EXISTING PROJECT LEGEND PROPOSED

PROJECT NOTES

AND

SITE PLAN

FENCING

EXIST. CONSTRUCTION

PERFORMED UNDER THIS CONTRACT.

TO ADMINISTRATION OF THE CONTRACT OR FOR COMPENSATION FOR WORK

TO THIS PROJECT FOR TECHNICAL ASPECTS ONLY, NOT FOR ITEMS RELATED

CONSTRUCTION ARE CONSIDERED TO BE SUPPLEMENTAL SPECIFICATIONS

DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 2020 STANDARD SPECIFICATIONS FOR

CONTRACT BOOK PROVIDED BY THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM.  THE MICHIGAN

THE SPECIFICATIONS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF THIS PROJECT WILL BE THE

AT&T

(248) 705-5506

PONTIAC, MI 48342

54 N. MILL ST., BOX 33

ATTN: MATT SLIWA

(248) 433-5618

ROYAL OAK, MI  48073

4600 COOLIDGE ROAD

ATTN: CHERI PAYNE

(248) 670-6748

SOUTHFIELD, MI  48034

25656 TELEGRAPH ROAD

ATTN: HOWARD HARWOOD

(248) 427-2912

FARMINGTON HILLS, MI 48335

37849 INTERCHANGE DRIVE

ATTN: SKY McBETH

     ROUTES TO THE CITY FOR APPROVAL.

     SITE ACCESS AND HAUL ROUTES) AND SHALL SUBMIT PROPOSED ACCESS

4.  CONTRACTOR SHALL NOTE RESTRICTIONS (CONSTRAINTS RELATED TO

     OFF OF HARMON STREET.

3.  ALTERNATE CONSTRUCTION ACCESS MAY BE THROUGH BOOTH PARK

2.  SECONDARY CONSTRUCTION ACCESS SHALL BE OFF OF WILLITS STREET.

     OF N. OLD WOODWARD AVENUE.

1.  PRIMARY CONSTRUCTION ACCESS TO THE WORK AREA SHALL BE OFF

Mobilization, Max 20% LS

Temp Construction Fencing & Minor Traffic Control Devices LS 1

(DIRECT TRIBUTARY AREA)

RIP RAP APRON

FLOOD PLAIN LIMITS

EDGE OF WATER

TOP OF BANK

SPOT GRADE

CONTOUR

DECIDUOUS TREE

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

OVERHEAD POWER LINE

WOOD FENCE

CONSTRUCTION FENCE

UTILITY POLE

STORM SEWER

CATCH BASIN

STORM MANHOLE

FLOW DIRECTION

INDIRECT TRIBUTARY AREA

DIRECT TRIBUTARY AREA

(INDIRECT TRIBUTARY AREA)

     

     "Erosion Control Blanket - SYD".

     INCLUDED IN THE UNIT PRICE BID FOR "Turf Reinforcement Mat - SYD" OR

     AND E.C.B. PER THE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS SHALL BE

7.  ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH FURNISHING AND INSTALLING T.R.M. AND

     SEVERE CONDITIONS.

     THE MANUFACTURER'S RECOMMENDATIONS FOR HIGH FLOW, VERY

6.  T.R.M. AND E.C.B. SHALL BE STAKED IN PLACE WITH WOODEN PEGS PER

     REQUIREMENTS FOR HIGH FLOW, VERY SEVERE CONDITIONS.

5.  PROVIDE ANCHOR TRENCHES FOR T.R.M. AND E.C.B. PER MANUFACTURER'S

     NAG SC150 (OR APPROVED EQUAL), AS SHOWN ON THE PLANS.

     SC250 (OR APPROVED EQUAL) OR EROSION CONTROL BLANKET (E.C.B.),

4.  RESTORE SURFACE WITH TURF REINFORCEMENT MAT (T.R.M.), NAG

     BID FOR "Site Clearing and Grading - LS".

     BACKFILLING OPERATIONS SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE UNIT PRICE

     LIFTS AND COMPACTED TO 95% MAX. DENSITY.  ALL COSTS FOR

     (SEE SPECIFICATIONS).  FILL SHALL BE PLACED IN SIX INCH (6")

     WITH SUITABLE LOW PERMEABILITY, GRANULAR FILL MATERIAL

3.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PLACE EMBANKMENT WHERE NECESSARY

     FOR "Site Clearing and Grading - LS".

     DEBRIS AND RUBBLE SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE UNIT PRICE BID

     BACKFILLING (TYP.).  ALL COSTS FOR REMOVAL AND DISPOSAL OF

1.  REMOVE DEBRIS AND RUBBLE FROM 'WASHOUT' AREA PRIOR TO

     

     

     LOT PAVEMENT REMOVAL.

6.  COORDINATE CONSTRUCTION WITH CITY CONTRACTOR FOR PARKING

     WORK AREA.

5.  PROVIDE TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION FENCING & GATE TO SECURE THE

     FOR APPROVAL.

     SHALL BE DETERMINED BY THE CONTRACTOR AND SUBMITTED TO THE CITY

4.  CONTRACTOR SHALL MINIMIZE THE LIMITS OF THE STAGING AREA.  LIMITS

     OWNERS ADJACENT TO THE PARKING LOT.

3.  COORDINATE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES WITH PRIVATE PROPERTY

     OF PARKING LOT NOT IMPACTED BY CONSTRUCTION.

     PUBLIC TO THE N. OLD WOODWARD PARKING STRUCTURE AND AREAS

     PARKING SYSTEM MANAGER AND MAINTAIN OPERATION / ACCESS OF

2.  COORDINATE CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES WITH THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

     AT THE PRE-CONSTRUCTION MEETING FOR CITY APPROVAL.

1.  CONTRACTOR SHALL PROVIDE INGRESS. EGRESS AND HAUL ROUTES

        I = 

       C = 1.0

               DIRECT

Q = C x I x A

T + 25

175

A = 3.14 ac.

Q
10

= 12.2 cfs

(10 - YR. STORM) (10 - YR. STORM)        I = 

       C = 0.89

               DIRECT + INDIRECT

T = 15 min.

= (0.89) (4.4) (3.14)

Q = 19.0 cfs
100

2.  DIRECT PLUS INDIRECT TRIBUTARY AREA = 3.14 acres

1.  DIRECT TRIBUTARY AREA FOR THE SITE = 1.86 acres

1" = 60'

1206030150

NATIVE, UNDERSTORY SEED MIX (INCID.)

ACCESS.  RESTORE WITH APPROPRIATE

FILL MATERIALS USED TO FACILITATE

ACCESS.  REMOVE ALL TEMPORARY

FOR TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION

SELECT CLEARING AND GRUBBING

RIP RAP

EXIST.

MISCELLANEOUS QUANTITIES

     DIRECTED BY THE PROJECT ENGINEER OR USED AS NEEDED.

     SHOWN ON THE PLANS.  THESE ITEMS SHALL BE CONSTRUCTED AS

     SEVERAL PAY ITEMS INCLUDED IN THE PROPOSAL ARE NOT SPECIFICALLY

MISCELLANEOUS PROJECT QUANTITIES

GRUBBING

SELECT CLEARING AND

CONSTRUCTION FENCING

SLOPE REPAIR LIMITS

SITE ACCESS ROUTE

    

     UNIT PRICE BID  FOR "Rip Rap, Natural, Plain - SYD".

     CONSTRUCTION OF THE RI RAP CHANNEL SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE

     CHANNEL ARE INCLUDED ON SHEET 05.  ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED WITH

     CENTERLINE OF THE EXISTING GULLEY.  DETAILS FOR CONSTRUCTION OF

2.  RIP RAP LINED CHANNEL SHALL BE INSTALLED ALONG THE APPROXIMATE

ITEMS.

INCIDENTAL AND SHALL BE INCLUDED IN OTHER BID

NECESSARY RESTORATION ARE CONSIDERED TO BE

ALL COSTS FOR TEMPORARY SITE ACCESS, INCLUDING

ANY AREAS WEST/NORTH OF THE EXISTING PATH.

CONTRACTOR IS PROHIBITED FROM DISTURBING

AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE PROJECT.

SURFACES AND RESTORE ANY  AREAS DISTURBED

CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBLE TO PROTECT PAVED

ALTERNATE SITE ACCESS THROUGH BOOTH PARK.

NOTE:

    

     EMBANKMENT (PER SPECIFICATIONS) AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE CITY.

     DISTURBANCE.  IF DAMAGED BY THEIR OPERATIONS REPAIR WITH V.R.S.S.

6.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO PROTECT ALL RIVER BANKS AND MINIMIZE

     "Temp Construction Fencing & Minor Traffic Control Devices - LS".

     PROTECTION FENCING SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE UNIT PRICE BID FOR

     SECURED WITH TEMPORARY CONSTRUCTION FENCING.  PROPERTY

     BEEN REMOVED UNTIL THE NEW FENCE IS IN PLACE, UNLESS OTHERWISE

     ('SNOW FENCE') MUST BE IN PLACE WHERE THE EXISTING FENCE HAS

     NON-CONSTRUCTION HOURS, PROPERTY PROTECTION FENCING

     ON SHEET 02 "EXISTING CONDITIONS AND REMOVAL PLAN".  DURING

5.  CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE EXISTING WOOD FENCE AS INDICATED

     THE OWNER.

     TO EXISTING PAVEMENTS SHALL BE REPAIRED AT NO EXPENSE TO

     GUTTER AND THE EXISTING PARKING LOT PAVEMENT.  ANY DAMAGE

4.  CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT THE EXISTING CONCRETE CURB AND

     PRIOR CONSENT FROM THE OWNER.

     REMOVAL.  NO TREES OR VEGETATION SHALL BE REMOVED WITHOUT

     CONSTRUCTION INFLUENCE AREA NOT SPECIFICALLY DESIGNATED FOR

3.  CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL TREES AND VEGETATION IN THE

     AT NO ADDITIONAL COST TO THE CITY.

     EXISTING STORM UTILITIES SHALL BE REPAIRED BY THE CONTRACTOR

     STORM PIPES DURING CONSTRUCTION ACTIVITIES.  ANY DAMAGE TO

2.  CONTRACTOR SHALL PROTECT ALL EXISTING STORM STRUCTURES AND

     CONSTRAINTS OR CONDITIONS.

     ALLOWED FOR FAILURE TO RECOGNIZE ANY READILY OBSERVABLE SITE

     EVALUATE PROPOSED WORK.  NO ADDITIONAL COMPENSATION WILL BE

1.  CONTRACTOR IS RESPONSIBLE TO VISIT THE SITE PRIOR TO BIDDING AND

555 HULET DRIVE

BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MICH.

P.O.  BOX 824

48303 - 0824

PHONE:  (248) 454-6300

WEB SITE:  http: / /  www.hrcengr.com

FAX (1st. Floor):  (248) 454-6312

DATE ISSUED FOR /ADDITIONS / REVISIONS

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

HRC JOB NO. SCALE

NO.
SHEETDATE

OF

C 2022 Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. All Rights Reserved

0
7
0
1
2
0
1
5

H
R

C
.t

b
l

jr
e
c

V
:\

2
0
2
2
0
1
\

2
0
2
2
0
1
8
0
\

C
\

S
h
e
e
t
s
\
c
0
0
_
s
it
e
_

p
la

n
.d

g
n

JULY 2022

,
0
1
/

2
0
/

2
0
2
3
 
1
4
:0

1
 

P
M

T
T
T
T

(248) 454-6359FAX (2nd. Floor):  

20220180

THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

PARTIES UTILIZING THIS INFORMATION SHALL FIELD VERIFY

ACCURACY OF THE UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

OR SHOULD BE ASSUMED, AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR

RECORD MAPPING WHERE AVAILABLE.  NO GUARANTEE IS MADE,

SURVEY HAVE BEEN TAKEN FROM VISUAL OBSERVATION AND

ALL EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS TOPOGRAPHIC

NOTICE:

Know what'sbelow.

before you dig.Call

(TOLL FREE)

811or 

1-800-482-7171

BEFORE YOU DIG

(3 WORKING DAYS)

72 HOURS

CALL MISS DIG

CALL811.COM

R

BLOOMFIELD

OAK

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

A
T

E
N
 

C
T
.

DEWEY

T
O

O
T
IN

G

L
A

N
E

B
O

N
N
IE
 

B
R
IE

R

VINEWOOD

RA

V
IN

E

EUC 
 L
ID

P
A

R
K

F
E

R
N

D
A

L
E

WARREN

B
A

T
E
S OAKLAND L

A
W

N
 

D
A

L
E

O
X

F
O

R
D

ABBEY

T
W
IN

O
A

K
S

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

V
IL

L
A
 

C
T
. MARTIN

W.MAPLE

WILLITS

CT.

BROWN

E.MAPLE

HAMILTON

S
O

U
T

H
F
IE

L
D MARTIN

MERRILL

TOWNSEND

O
L

D
 

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

B
R

O
O

K
S
ID

E

W
O
O
D

W
A
R
D
 
(M
-
1)

CT.

LOCATION

PROJECT N

N.T.S.

MICHIGAN

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

SLOPE STABILIZATION

LOT No. 5

MUNICIPAL PARKING

OAKLAND COUNTY

HRC

J.A.R.

J.J.S.

J.V.B.

 OF SECTION 25, T2N, R10E4
1PART OF THE SW 

CITY CONTRACT No. 4-23(S)

11-30-2022

01-10-2023 REVISED PER COMMENTS

01-20-2023 ISSUED FOR BIDS

OWNER REVIEW

HRC QA / QC REVIEW07-20-2022

7
5
5

7
5
0

74
5

740

735

76
0

7
3
5

7
4
0

7
4
5

7
5
0

7
5
5

7
6
0

73
0

7
7
0

7
6
5

7
6
5

765

7
6
5

77
0

77
0

77
5

N
. O

L
D
 W

O
O

D
W

A
R

D
 A

V
E

N
U

E

TOLL GATES

EXIST. PARKING

77
5

No.

5F



Q
U

A
R

T
O

N
L

A
K

E

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

HUN
T
E
R

FOREST

CHESTNUT

BOWERS

BROWN

DAI
NES HAZEL

E
L

M

P
E

A
B

O
D

Y

MARTIN

MERRILL

TOWNSEND

BROWN

V
A

L
L

E
Y

V
I

E
W

T
H

O
R

N
E

A
S

P
E

N

L
I

N
D

E
N

S
HI

R
L
E

Y

P
I

L
G

R
I

M

P
U

R
I

T
A

N
P

U
R
I

T
A

N

P
A

R
K

L
A

K
E

OAK

PINE

WILLITS

M

I
D

L
AND

RAYNALE

REDDING

S
H

FORD

COLONIAL

O
L

D

BLOOMFIELD
CT.

H
A

Z
E

L
-

W
O

O
D

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

B
A

L
D

W
I

N

C
T
.

W
I

L
L

O
W

L
A

K
E

S
I

D
E

L
A

K
E

V
I

E
W

VINEWOOD

HARMON

B
O

N
N
I

E

B
R
I

A
RDEWEY

T
O

O
T
I

N
G

ATEN
CT.

B
A

L
D

W
I

N

B
A

T
E

S

WARREN

M
I

L
L

R
A

C
E

W
A

T
E

R
F

A
L

L
L

N
.

R
A
NDALL

HAM-

ILTON

P
A

R
K

EUCLI
D

F
E

R
N
-

D
A

L
E

B
R

O
O

K
S
I

D
E

R
A
VI

NE

KNOX

RIDGEDALE

OAKLAND

MADISON

RIVENOAK

KENNESAW

MOHEGAN

W
O

R
T

H

O
A

K
D

A
L

E

O
X

F
O

R
D

R
O

S
E

D
A

L
E

L
A

W
N

D
A

L
E

P
O

P
P

L
E

T
O

N

ABBEY

ABBEY

WIMBLETON

HEN EY
L

PUTNEY

TOTTENHAM

CIRCLE

H
A

R
R

OW

O
X

F
O

X
F

O
R

D
O

SHEPARDBUSH

W
A

R
N
I

N
G

TWIN
OAKS

MANOR

MANOR

J
U

D
Y

MAYWOOD

CT.

T
R

A
I

L

C
T
.

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

V
I

L
L

A
C

T

WOOD FENCE

EXISTING 6' HIGH

CURB AND GUTTER

EXISTING CONCRETE

POWER LIN
ESEXISTING OVERHEAD

OVERHEAD POWER LINES

CAUTION!!!

TOP 
OF 

BANK

TOP O
F B

ANK

FLOODPLAIN
 LI

MIT
S

FL
OODPLAI

N 
LIM

ITS

733.4 (NAVD 88 DATUM)

734.4 (CITY DATUM)

100 YEAR FLOOD ELEV. =

NOTE: N

201050

SCALE:  1" = 10'

RIP RAP APRON

EXISTING

HDPE OUTLET PIPE

EXISTING 15" DIA.

HDPE PIPE

EXISTING 15" DIA.

ROUGE  
RIV

ER

BASIN (TYP.)

EXISTING CATCH

RIM = 752.53

STORM MANHOLE

EXISTING 48" DIA.

EXISTING STORM

EXISTING UTILITY POLES

DURING CONSTRUCTION (INCID.)

SUPPORT & PROTECT

EXISTING UTILITY POLE

DURING CONSTRUCTION (INCID.)

SUPPORT & PROTECT

ELECTRIC

UNDERGROUND

CAUTION!!!

LEGEND:

750

ST

ST

E

DATED MAY 23, 2015

ALTA SURVEY TOPO

CONTOURS ARE FROM

EXISTING HALF-TONE

NOTE:

EX

MH

EX

MH

EX

CB

EX

CB

EX

CB

SCREEN WALL

EXISTING CONC.

SCREEN WALL

EXISTING CONC.

EMBANKMENT EROSION (TOPO 2022)

LIMITS OF THE 'WASHOUT' AREA

SHADED AREA IS THE APPROX.

NOTE:

BRUSH LINE

EXISTING

BRUSH LINE

EXISTING

BRUSH LINE

EXISTING

EXISTING 13" MAPLE

PROTECT

PROTECT

EXISTING PARKING LOT

PAVEMENT

ASPHALT

EXISTING

PAVEMENT

ASPHALT

EXISTING

EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENT

SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

AND

SOIL EROSION

THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

PARTIES UTILIZING THIS INFORMATION SHALL FIELD VERIFY

ACCURACY OF THE UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

OR SHOULD BE ASSUMED, AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR

RECORD MAPPING WHERE AVAILABLE.  NO GUARANTEE IS MADE,

SURVEY HAVE BEEN TAKEN FROM VISUAL OBSERVATION AND

ALL EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS TOPOGRAPHIC

NOTICE:

Know what'sbelow.

before you dig.Call

(TOLL FREE)

811or 

1-800-482-7171

BEFORE YOU DIG

(3 WORKING DAYS)

72 HOURS

CALL MISS DIG

CALL811.COM

R

LOD

SOIL EROSION CONTROL LEGEND:

APPROXIMATE LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

DRAINAGE PATTERN DIRECTION

INLET FILTER (DETAIL SI-2A)

SILT FENCE (DETAIL SP-2)

(TYP.) - DETAIL SP-2

PROPOSED SILT FENCE

FROM HRC TOPO 2022

EXISTING CONTOURS

NOTE:

NOTE:  PROVIDE 2 ROWS

(TYP.) - DETAIL SP-2

PROPOSED SILT FENCE

(TYP.) - DETAIL SP-2

PROPOSED SILT FENCE

MB

02

LOD
L
O

D

L
O

D

L
O

D

L
O

D

L
O

D

L
O

D

L
O

D

L
O

D

MB

01

LODLOD

LO
D

L
O

D

L
O

D

L
O

D

LO
D

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

TREE

BRUSH LINE

TOP OF BANK

RIP RAP

UTILITY POLE

MANHOLE

CATCH BASIN 

STORM SEWER

FENCE

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

OVERHEAD POWER LINES

FLOODPLAIN LIMITS

SPOT GRADE

CONTOURS (ALTA SURVEY 2015)

CONTOURS (HRC 2022)

REMOVE

WASHOUT AREA LIMITS

PROP. MAINTENANCE BASIN

DESCRIPTION UNIT

1

2

QTY.

EA

( FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY - QUANTITIES ARE ESTIMATED )

Erosion Control, Silt Fence, (Detail SP-2)

Erosion Control, Low Point Inlet Filter, (Detail SI-2A)

LFT 400

5

(LOD) - APPROXIMATE

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL QUANTITIES

1" = 10'

02

(LOD) - APPROXIMATE

LIMITS OF DISTURBANCE

E

E

E

ST

555 HULET DRIVE

BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MICH.

P.O.  BOX 824

48303 - 0824

PHONE:  (248) 454-6300

WEB SITE:  http: / /  www.hrcengr.com

FAX (1st. Floor):  (248) 454-6312

DATE ISSUED FOR /ADDITIONS / REVISIONS

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

HRC JOB NO. SCALE

NO.
SHEETDATE

OF

C 2022 Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. All Rights Reserved

0
7
0
1
2
0
1
5

H
R

C
.t

b
l

jr
e
c

V
:\

2
0
2
2
0
1
\

2
0
2
2
0
1
8
0
\

C
\

S
h
e
e
t
s
\
c
0
0
_

0
4
_
s
e
s
c
.d

g
n

JULY 2022

,
0
1
/

2
0
/

2
0
2
3
 
1
4
:0

2
 

P
M

T
T
T
T

(248) 454-6359FAX (2nd. Floor):  

20220180

BLOOMFIELD

OAK

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

A
T

E
N
 

C
T
.

DEWEY

T
O

O
T
IN

G

L
A

N
E

B
O

N
N
IE
 

B
R
IE

R

VINEWOOD

RA

V
IN

E

EUC 
 L
ID

P
A

R
K

F
E

R
N

D
A

L
E

WARREN

B
A

T
E
S OAKLAND L

A
W

N
 

D
A

L
E

O
X

F
O

R
D

ABBEY

T
W
IN

O
A

K
S

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

V
IL

L
A
 

C
T
. MARTIN

W.MAPLE

WILLITS

CT.

BROWN

E.MAPLE

HAMILTON

S
O

U
T

H
F
IE

L
D MARTIN

MERRILL

TOWNSEND

O
L

D
 

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

B
R

O
O

K
S
ID

E

W
O
O
D

W
A
R
D
 
(M
-
1)

CT.

LOCATION

PROJECT N

N.T.S.

MICHIGAN

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

SLOPE STABILIZATION

LOT No. 5

MUNICIPAL PARKING

OAKLAND COUNTY

HRC

J.A.R.

J.J.S.

J.V.B.

 OF SECTION 25, T2N, R10E4
1PART OF THE SW 

CITY CONTRACT No. 4-23(S)

11-30-2022

01-10-2023 REVISED PER COMMENTS

01-20-2023 ISSUED FOR BIDS

OWNER REVIEW

HRC QA / QC REVIEW07-20-2022

LOCATION

PROJECT

61A

61A

62B

63A

w

15B

13
B

4
1B

4
1B

49
59

60B

61A

62B

11B45B

49

11B

6
2

B

41B

60B
60B

59

6
2

B

61A

5
9

3
6

A

6
0
B

6
1A

5
9

15B - SPINKS LOAMY SAND, 0 TO 6 PERCENT SLOPES

41B - AQUENTS, SANDY AND LOAMY, UNDULATING

62B - URBAN LAND-SPINKS COMPLEX, 0 TO 8 PERCENT SLOPES

60B - URBAN LAND-MARLETTE COMPLEX, 0 TO 8 PERCENT SLOPES

SOILS DESCRIPTION

SOILS MAP

SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

SEQUENCE OF CONSTRUCTION - SOIL EROSION CONTROL

SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL NOTES

1

      SURROUNDING THE PROJECT SITE AS NEEDED.

9.   THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SWEEP THE EXISTING STREETS AND PAVEMENT AREAS

      GRADING.

      APPROPRIATE VEGETATION WITHIN FIVE (5) DAYS OF COMPLETION OF FINAL

8.   STABILIZATION OF ALL DISTURBED AREAS SHALL BE ESTABLISHED USING THE

      POSSIBLE.

7.   THE CONTRACTOR SHALL PRESERVE OFF SITE NATURAL VEGETATION AS MUCH AS

      SHALL BE PERFORMED WITHOUT DELAY.

      EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MEASURES.  ANY NECESSARY REPAIRS

6.   DAILY INSPECTION SHALL BE MADE BY THE CONTRACTOR FOR EFFECTIVENESS OF

      THROUGHOUT THE DURATION OF THE PROJECT.

5.   THE CONTRACTOR SHALL MAINTAIN SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES

      OTHER CHANGES HAVE BEEN ACCOMPLISHED.

      MEASURES AS SOON AS PERMANENT STABILIZATION OF SLOPE, DITCHES AND

      REQUIRED BY THE WORK.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL REMOVE TEMPORARY

      CONTROL MEASURES AS DIRECTED ON THESE PLANS AND WHERE OTHERWISE

4.   THE CONTRACTOR SHALL APPLY TEMPORARY EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION

      DITCHES, STREAMS, STORM DRAINS, LAKES, PONDS AND WETLANDS.

      OR IN WATERWAYS.  WATERWAYS INCLUDE BOTH NATURAL AND MAN MADE OPEN

      WITHIN THE WORK AREA AND NOT ALLOWED TO COLLECT ON ANY OFF SITE AREAS

3.   EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION FROM WORK ON THE SITE SHALL BE CONTAINED

      OAKLAND COUNTY WATER RESOURCES COMMISSIONER (OCWRC) BY REFERENCE.

      CURRENT STANDARDS AND SPECIFICATIONS OF THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM AND

2.   ALL SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL WORK SHALL CONFORM TO THE

      FROM THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM AT NO FEE.

1.   CONTRACTOR SHALL BE REQUIRED TO OBTAIN A SOIL EROSION CONTROL PERMIT

1

      SP-2 OF THE WRC, SESC DETAIL SHEET.

10. SILT FENCE SHALL BE INSTALLED AS NEEDED AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH DETAIL

       

      THE LUMP SUM UNIT PRICE AS PROVIDED IN THE PROPOSAL.

      DOES NOT EXIST.  ANY ADDITIONAL SILT FENCE REQUIRED SHALL BE INCLUDED IN

      ENGINEER WHERE GRADES DICTATE AND A MINIMUM 25 FOOT VEGETATIVE BUFFER

      MEASURES MAY BE REQUIRED BY THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM AND/OR THE PROJECT

      IN THE PROPOSAL.  ADDITIONAL SILT FENCE AND/OR OTHER SOIL EROSION CONTROL

      TO COMPLETE THIS PROJECT WILL BE PAID AS A LUMP SUM UNIT PRICE AS INCLUDED

12. ALL SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES SHOWN ON THESE PLANS OR AS NEEDED

      INSERT OF THE WRC, SESC DETAIL SHEET.

      INSTALLED AS NEEDED AND IN ACCORDANCE WITH DETAIL S1-2A, FILTER BAG

      REMOVE FILTERS DURING FINAL RESTORATION.  INLET FILTERS SHALL BE

      RIM DURING CONSTRUCTION AND MAINTAIN THROUGHOUT CONSTRUCTION.

11. INSTALL FABRIC FILTER IN ALL EXISTING AND NEW DRAINAGE STRUCTURES AT

SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL MISC. NOTES

     FOR PROPOSED SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES.

2.  SEE WRC STANDARD SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL DETAIL SHEET

1.  THE ULTIMATE DRAINAGE OUTLET FOR THIS PROJECT WILL BE THE ROUGE RIVER.

N

N.T.S.

9.  REMOVE TEMPORARY SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES.

8.  COMPLETE SITE RESTORATION.

ALTERNATE BID:   INSTALL NEW ORNAMENTAL ALUMINUM FENCE.

BASE BID:               REINSTALL SALVAGED WOOD FENCE.

7.  INSTALL NEW FENCE.

6.  ADJUST EXISTING MANHOLE RIM AS NECESSARY.

5.  CONSTRUCT BIO-SWALE AND LEDGE ROCK LEVEL SPREADER.

4.  REPAIR 'WASHOUT' AREA.

3.  SITE CLEARING AND GRADING.

                        WALL TO CONC. SCREEN WALL (INCLUDING POSTS).    

ALTERNATE BID:     REMOVE EXISTING WOOD FENCE FROM CONC. SCREEN

                        SCREEN WALL TO CONC. SCREEN WALL (POSTS TO REMAIN).

BASE BID:                 REMOVE AND SALVAGE EXISTING WOOD FENCE FROM CONC.

2.  REMOVE EXISTING WOOD FENCE.

     ON THE PLAN AND AS DIRECTED BY THE ENGINEER.

1.  INSTALL TEMPORARY SOIL EROSION CONTROL MEASURES AS SHOWN

725.63

725.93726.07

726.19

726.38
726.49

726.78

727.06

727.07

727.28

73
5

74
0

74
5

75
0

75
5

73
0

726

7
5
9

73
0

7
2
7

735

74
0

74
5

75
0

75
5

7
5
9

728.15

728.29

729.97731.48

731.57

732.09

732.12

732.69

733.05

733.36

733.68

734.19

734.37

734.41

735.36

736.17

736.22

736.46

736.76

737.10

738.80

738.98

739.06

739.29

739.37

739.63

739.92

745.29

No.

746.35

746.39

746.71

748.00

747.02

745.48745.16

744.66

746.05

749.35

750.82

751.49

751.65

751.75

752.53 STST 752.56

752.98

753.32

753.36

756.82
756.85

756.91
756.92

757.83758.34

758.54

758.74

758.84

758.87
758.87

758.88

758.89

758.94

758.96

759.09

759.15

759.21

759.22

GU 759.22

759.24

759.27

759.31

759.32

759.35

759.50

759.50

759.51

759.51

TC 759.61

GU 759.62

E

GU 759.84

TC 760.04

760.16

GU 760.17

TC 760.41

TC 760.54

5F



1

NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY.

245

1

NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY.

2

3

1Site Clearing and Grading

28

BASE BID REMOVAL QUANTITIES THIS SHEET

ALTERNATE REMOVAL QUANTITIES THIS SHEET

LS

Remove Conc Curb FT

245

LFt

LFtFence, Remove, Salvage, and Re-Install

Fence, Remove

WOOD FENCE

EXISTING 6' HIGH

CURB AND GUTTER

EXISTING CONCRETE

POWER LIN
ESEXISTING OVERHEAD

OVERHEAD POWER LINES

CAUTION!!!

TOP 
OF 

BANK

TOP O
F B

ANK

FLOODPLAIN
 LI

MIT
S

FL
OODPLAI

N 
LIM

ITS

733.4 (NAVD 88 DATUM)

734.4 (CITY DATUM)

100 YEAR FLOOD ELEV. =

NOTE:

N

201050

SCALE:  1" = 10'
RIP RAP APRON

EXISTING

HDPE OUTLET PIPE

EXISTING 15" DIA.

HDPE PIPE

EXISTING 15" DIA.

1" = 10'

ROUGE  
RIV

ER

BASIN (TYP.)

EXISTING CATCH

RIM = 752.53

STORM MANHOLE

EXISTING 48" DIA.

EXISTING STORM

EXISTING UTILITY POLES

DURING CONSTRUCTION (INCID.)

SUPPORT & PROTECT

EXISTING UTILITY POLE

DURING CONSTRUCTION (INCID.)

SUPPORT & PROTECT

                                 

                     TOTAL = 28 Ft

4 Ea. @ 7 Ft.

CURB CUTS (TYP.)

CURB AND GUTTER FOR

REMOVE EXISTING CONC.

AND REMOVAL PLAN

EXISTING CONDITIONS

ELECTRIC

UNDERGROUND

CAUTION!!!

LEGEND:

750

ST

ST

E

DATED MAY 23, 2015

ALTA SURVEY TOPO

CONTOURS ARE FROM

EXISTING HALF-TONE

NOTE:

FROM HRC TOPO 2022

EXISTING CONTOURS

NOTE:

EX

MH

EX

MH

EX

CB

EX

CB

EX

CB

SCREEN WALL

EXISTING CONC.

SCREEN WALL

EXISTING CONC.

                                         -  245 Ft

WALL TO CONC. SCREEN WALL

FENCE FROM CONC. SCREEN

REMOVE EXISTING WOOD

EMBANKMENT EROSION (TOPO 2022)

LIMITS OF THE 'WASHOUT' AREA

SHADED AREA IS THE APPROX.

NOTE:

BRUSH LINE

EXISTING

BRUSH LINE

EXISTING

BRUSH LINE

EXISTING

EXISTING 13" MAPLE

PROTECT

PROTECT

EXISTING PARKING LOT

PAVEMENT

ASPHALT

EXISTING

PAVEMENT

ASPHALT

EXISTING

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

TREE

BRUSH LINE

TOP OF BANK

RIP RAP

UTILITY POLE

MANHOLE

CATCH BASIN 

STORM SEWER

FENCE

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

OVERHEAD POWER LINES

FLOODPLAIN LIMITS

SPOT GRADE

CONTOURS (ALTA SURVEY 2015)

CONTOURS (HRC 2022)

REMOVE

WASHOUT AREA LIMITS

03

ALTERNATE BID

BASE BID

EXISTING CONCRETE PAVEMENT

                                                 -  245 LFT

WALL

SCREEN WALL TO CONC. SCREEN

EXISTING WOOD FENCE FROM CONC.

REMOVE, SALVAGE AND REINSTALL 

SEE PROJECT SPECIFICATIONS.

REMOVE EXISTING WOOD FENCE, 245 LFT, POSTS AND FOOTINGS INCLUDED.

ALTERNATE BID:

TO THE PROJECT COSTS.

POSTS IN KIND.  POSTS AND INSTALLATION ARE CONSIDERED INCIDENTAL

GALVANIZED STEEL POSTS (6' o.c.).  NEW POSTS SHALL MATCH EXISTING

04.  REMOVE POSTS AND FOOTINGS IN THIS AREA AND INSTALL 6 NEW

THE LEDGE ROCK LEVEL SPREADER IS TO BE INSTALLED.  SEE SHEET

GALVANIZED STEEL POSTS SHALL REMAIN IN PLACE, EXCEPT WHERE

REMOVE, SALVAGE AND REINSTALL EXISTING WOOD FENCE, 245 LFT.

BASE BID:

FENCE REMOVAL NOTES:

E

E

E

ST

555 HULET DRIVE

BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MICH.

P.O.  BOX 824

48303 - 0824

PHONE:  (248) 454-6300

WEB SITE:  http: / /  www.hrcengr.com

FAX (1st. Floor):  (248) 454-6312

DATE ISSUED FOR /ADDITIONS / REVISIONS

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

HRC JOB NO. SCALE

NO.
SHEETDATE

OF

C 2022 Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. All Rights Reserved

0
7
0
1
2
0
1
5

H
R

C
.t

b
l

jr
e
c

V
:\

2
0
2
2
0
1
\

2
0
2
2
0
1
8
0
\

C
\

S
h
e
e
t
s
\
c
_

e
x
_

c
o
n
d
_
r
e

m
o
v
a
l.
d
g
n

JULY 2022

,
0
1
/

2
0
/

2
0
2
3
 
1
4
:0

2
 

P
M

T
T
T
T

(248) 454-6359FAX (2nd. Floor):  

20220180

THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

PARTIES UTILIZING THIS INFORMATION SHALL FIELD VERIFY

ACCURACY OF THE UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

OR SHOULD BE ASSUMED, AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR

RECORD MAPPING WHERE AVAILABLE.  NO GUARANTEE IS MADE,

SURVEY HAVE BEEN TAKEN FROM VISUAL OBSERVATION AND

ALL EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS TOPOGRAPHIC

NOTICE:

Know what'sbelow.

before you dig.Call

(TOLL FREE)

811or 

1-800-482-7171

BEFORE YOU DIG

(3 WORKING DAYS)

72 HOURS

CALL MISS DIG

CALL811.COM

R

BLOOMFIELD

OAK

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

A
T

E
N
 

C
T
.

DEWEY

T
O

O
T
IN

G

L
A

N
E

B
O

N
N
IE
 

B
R
IE

R

VINEWOOD

RA

V
IN

E

EUC 
 L
ID

P
A

R
K

F
E

R
N

D
A

L
E

WARREN

B
A

T
E
S OAKLAND L

A
W

N
 

D
A

L
E

O
X

F
O

R
D

ABBEY

T
W
IN

O
A

K
S

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

V
IL

L
A
 

C
T
. MARTIN

W.MAPLE

WILLITS

CT.

BROWN

E.MAPLE

HAMILTON

S
O

U
T

H
F
IE

L
D MARTIN

MERRILL

TOWNSEND

O
L

D
 

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

B
R

O
O

K
S
ID

E

W
O
O
D

W
A
R
D
 
(M
-
1)

CT.

LOCATION

PROJECT N

N.T.S.

MICHIGAN

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

SLOPE STABILIZATION

LOT No. 5

MUNICIPAL PARKING

OAKLAND COUNTY

HRC

J.A.R.

J.J.S.

J.V.B.

 OF SECTION 25, T2N, R10E4
1PART OF THE SW 

CITY CONTRACT No. 4-23(S)

11-30-2022

01-10-2023 REVISED PER COMMENTS

01-20-2023 ISSUED FOR BIDS

OWNER REVIEW

HRC QA / QC REVIEW07-20-2022

725.63

725.93726.07

726.19

726.38
726.49

726.78

727.06

727.07

727.28

73
5

74
0

74
5

75
0

75
5

73
0

726

7
5
9

73
0

7
2
7

735

74
0

74
5

75
0

75
5

7
5
9

728.15

728.29

729.97731.48

731.57

732.09

732.12

732.69

733.05

733.36

733.68

734.19

734.37

734.41

735.36

736.17

736.22

736.46

736.76

737.10

738.80

738.98

739.06

739.29

739.37

739.63

739.92

745.29

746.35

746.39

746.71

748.00

747.02

745.48745.16

744.66

746.05

749.35

750.82

751.49

751.65

751.75

752.53 STST 752.56

752.98

753.32

753.36

756.82
756.85

756.91
756.92

757.83758.34

758.54

758.74

758.84

758.87
758.87

758.88

758.89

758.94

758.96

759.09

759.15

759.21

759.22

GU 759.22

759.24

759.27

759.31

759.32

759.35

759.50

759.50

759.51

759.51

TC 759.61

GU 759.62

E

GU 759.84

TC 760.04

760.16

GU 760.17

TC 760.41

TC 760.54

5F



CURB AND GUTTER

EXISTING CONCRETE

OVERHEAD POWER LINES

CAUTION!!!

TOP 
OF 

BANK

TOP O
F B

ANK

FLOODPLAIN
 LI

MIT
S

FL
OODPLAI

N 
LIM

ITS

733.4 (NAVD 88 DATUM)

734.4 (CITY DATUM)

100 YEAR FLOOD ELEV. =

NOTE: N

201050

SCALE:  1" = 10'

RIP RAP APRON

EXISTING

HDPE OUTLET PIPE

EXISTING 15" DIA.

HDPE PIPE

EXISTING 15" DIA.

ROUGE  
RIV

ER

BASIN (TYP.)

EXISTING CATCH

RIM = 752.53

STORM MANHOLE

EXISTING 48" DIA.

EXISTING STORM

EXISTING UTILITY POLES

DURING CONSTRUCTION (INCID.)

SUPPORT & PROTECT

EXISTING UTILITY POLE

1

NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY.

2

3

4

4

750

ST

ST

E

EMBANKMENT EROSION (TOPO 2022)

OF THE 'WASHOUT' AREA

SHADED AREA IS THE LIMITS

NOTE:

DATED MAY 23, 2015

ALTA SURVEY TOPO

CONTOURS ARE FROM

EXISTING HALF-TONE

NOTE:

FROM HRC TOPO 2022

EXISTING CONTOURS

NOTE:

EX

MH

EX

MH

EX

CB

EX

CB

EX

CB

Dr Structure, Maintenance Basin, 24" dia, HDPE 2

SPILLWAY (TYP.)

CURB AND GUTTER

PROPOSED CONCRETE

MB

02

MB

01

EXISTING LEGEND:

20

5

6

7

PROTECT

PROPOSED LEGEND:

759.50

MAINTENANCE BASIN

HDPE SEWER

CONCRETE SPILLWAY

SPOT GRADE

TOP OF BANK

9

10

11

8

RIP RAP CHANNEL (TYP.)

SLOPE TOWARDS

TYPICAL LEDGE ROCK

NO SCALE

20

70 BIO-SWALE

PROPOSED BIO-SWALE

DRAINAGE ARROW

LEDGE ROCK

759.0

758.5

758.3

758.3

EX. 15" SE INV. = 751.8

EX. 15" NW INV. = 751.4

OF EXIST. 15" HDPE SEWER

15" HDPE SEWER, REMOVE 3 Ft

CONSTRUCT MB-01 OVER EXIST.

NOTE:

20' HDPE SEWER @ 1.00%

765

760

755

750

765

760

755

750

O
F
 

C
U

R
B

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 

B
A

C
K

12"

P
R

O
P
. 

B
IO
-S

W
A

L
E

12"

AS NOTED

1

4

1

4

24"

10' +/-

               1" = 5' VERT.

SCALE:  1" = 5' HORIZ.

EX. 10" CORR. HDPE

EX. 15" 
CORR. HDPE

EX. 15
" CORR. H

DPE

C OF 15" HDPE STORM

EXISTING GRADE ALONG

L

PARKING LOT

EXISTING

E
X
. 

1
0
"
 

S
E
 
IN

V
. 

7
5
4
.0

8

E
X
. 

1
5
"
 

S
W
 
IN

V
. 

7
5
2
.4

4

E
X
. 

1
5
"
 

N
W
 
IN

V
. 

7
5
2
.2

2

(
B

U
L

K
H

E
A

D
)

E
X
. 

1
5
"
 

S
 
IN

V
. 

7
4
8
.9

3

E
X
. 

1
5
"
 

S
 
IN

V
. 

7
4
9
.1

3

E
X
. 

1
5
"
 

N
 
IN

V
. 

7
3
6
.4

0

E
X
. 

1
5
"
 

S
W
 
IN

V
. 

7
5
1
.8

E
X
. 

1
5
"
 

N
W
 
IN

V
. 

7
5
1
.4

EX

CB

EX

MH

(INCID.)

DURING CONSTRUCTION

SUPPORT & PROTECT

765

760

755

750

765

760

755

750

               1" = 5' VERT.

SCALE:  1" = 5' HORIZ.

SECTION THROUGH MAINTENANCE BASIN MB-01

745

740

735

730

745

740

735

730

PARKING LOT

EXISTING

MB

01

PARKING LOT

EXISTING

B/C = 759.15

CURB & GUTTER

EXISTING CONCRETE

=
 7

5
9
.2

5

T
/B

N
K

SPILLWAY GRADE @ CURB CUT

PAVEMENT

ASPHALT

EXISTING

PAVEMENT

ASPHALT

EXISTING

PVC CONDUIT

ELECTRIC IN

UNDERGROUND

CAUTION!!!

12" SW INV. = 755.0

RIM = 758.0

OVER EXISTING

24" DIA. w/ 1' SUMP

MAINTENANCE BASIN (MB-01)

PAVEMENT

EXISTING CONCRETE

EXISTING 13" MAPLE

PROTECT

18" Height

24"

Wi
dth

48" Length (min.)FT

12" NE INV. = 755.2

RIM = 758.2

24" DIA. w/ 2' SUMP

MAINTENANCE BASIN (MB-02)

758.0

757.8

758.8

SECTION A-A TYPICAL THROUGH BIO-SWALE

A

A

10

1

CLEARING & GRUBBING

SELECTIVE

OF SLOPE AS NEEDED

REPAIR ERODED TOP

P
R

O
P
. 
1
2
" 
S

W
 I

N
V
. 
7
5
5
.0

R
IM
 =
 7

5
8
.0

w
/ 
1
' 
S

U
M

P

3
6
" 

D
IA
.

NEW  MAINTENANCE BASIN (INCID.)

RECONNECT EXIST. ENDS TO

REMOVE 15" HDPE AND

EX. 15"

1' SUMP

SOLID BOTTOM

FINISH SWALE GRADE (TYP.)

SET M.B. RIM 2" ABOVE

(WITHIN ERODED AREA)

PVC CONDUIT

ELECTRIC IN

UNDERGROUND

CAUTION!!!

PROP. LEDGE ROCK

LEVEL SPREADER

TOP OF BANK BEYOND

480

12

SYD

SYD 200

SCREEN WALL

EXISTING CONC.

SCREEN WALL

EXISTING CONC.

EXIST. WOOD FENCE

REINSTALLED FENCE

SYD 180

LIMITS OF T.R.M. OR E.C.B.

(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

NAG SC150

LIMITS OF E.C.B.

(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

NAG SC150

LIMITS OF E.C.B.

AT THE TOP OF THE BANK

THE E.C.B. NAG SC150

T.R.M. NAG SC250 OVERLAPS

NOTE:

EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

TURF REINFORCEMENT MAT,

     THE SLOPE.

     (E.C.B.) (OR APPROVED EQUAL) ALONG THE TOP OF

4.  PROVIDE NAG SC150 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

     (T.R.M.) (OR APPROVED EQUAL) ALONG THE CHANNEL.

3.  PROVIDE NAG SC250 TURF REINFORCEMENT MAT

     EXISTING UTILITY POLES DURING CONSTRUCTION.

2.  CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPORT AND PROTECT ALL

     CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

     CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REPAIRED AT THE

     AS NECESSARY.  ANY UTILITIES DAMAGED DURING

     CONDUITS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION AND ADJUST

     LOCATION OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITY

1.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY DEPTH AND

GENERAL NOTES:

250SYD

SYD 550

MATCH EXIST. GRADE

MATCH EXIST. GRADE

EXIST. OVERHEAD POWER LIN
ES

NAG SC150 BEHIND CURB

ANCHOR TRENCH FOR E.C.B.

04

WOOD FENCE

EXISTING 6' HIGH

WOOD FENCE

EXISTING 6' HIGH

BRUSH LINE

EXISTING

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

BRUSH LINE

TOP OF BANK

RIP RAP

UTILITY POLE

MANHOLE

CATCH BASIN 

STORM SEWER

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

OVERHEAD POWER LINES

FLOODPLAIN LIMITS

SPOT GRADE

WOOD FENCE

CONTOURS (ALTA SURVEY 2015)

CONTOURS (HRC 2022)

WASHOUT AREA LIMITS

BASE BID QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

T.R.M. NAG SC 250

E.C.B. NAG SC 150

Conc Curb Spillway

Ledge Rock Level Spreader (18" tall x 24" wide x 48" min. length pieces)

EA

Riprap, Natural, Plain SYD

                  -  50 SYD

EXISTING GULLEY

BOULDERS ALONG

NATURAL RIPRAP

EA

Storm Sewer, 12" dia, Corr Dual-Wall HDPE FT

Turf Reinforcement Mat

Erosion Control Blanket

180SYD

SYD 500

Compost Planting Medium, Furn, 12 inch

Compost Planting Medium, Furn, 3 inch

Native Seed Mix, Slope Stabilization & Fertilizer

Native Seed Mix, Fescue Blend & Fertilizer

Native Seed Mix, Bio-Swale

BIO-SWALE

NATIVE SEED MIX

SLOPE STABILIZATION

NATIVE SEED MIX

"NO-MOW"

NATIVE SEED MIX, FESCUE BLEND

T.R.M. NAG SC 250

3" PLANTING MEDIUM

12" PLANTING MEDIUM

                                    -  245 FT

w/ NEW POSTS (6 TOTAL)

REINSTALLED WOOD FENCE

EXIST. WOOD FENCE

PROP. RIPRAP

(BASE BID)

CONSTRUCTION PLAN

NATURAL RIPRAP CHANNEL

           -  20 SYD TOTAL

RIPRAP, 4 EA @ 5 SYD

NATURAL STONE

                                -  20 FT

LEVEL SPREADER

PROPOSED LEDGE ROCK

E

E

E

ST

555 HULET DRIVE

BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MICH.

P.O.  BOX 824

48303 - 0824

PHONE:  (248) 454-6300

WEB SITE:  http: / /  www.hrcengr.com

FAX (1st. Floor):  (248) 454-6312

DATE ISSUED FOR /ADDITIONS / REVISIONS

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

HRC JOB NO. SCALE

NO.
SHEETDATE

OF

C 2022 Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. All Rights Reserved

0
7
0
1
2
0
1
5

H
R

C
.t

b
l

jr
e
c

V
:\

2
0
2
2
0
1
\

2
0
2
2
0
1
8
0
\

C
\

S
h
e
e
t
s
\
c
_

p
r
_

p
la

n
_

b
a
s
e
_

b
id
.d

g
n

JULY 2022

,
0
1
/

2
0
/

2
0
2
3
 
1
4
:0

3
 

P
M

T
T
T
T

(248) 454-6359FAX (2nd. Floor):  

20220180

THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

PARTIES UTILIZING THIS INFORMATION SHALL FIELD VERIFY

ACCURACY OF THE UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

OR SHOULD BE ASSUMED, AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR

RECORD MAPPING WHERE AVAILABLE.  NO GUARANTEE IS MADE,

SURVEY HAVE BEEN TAKEN FROM VISUAL OBSERVATION AND

ALL EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS TOPOGRAPHIC

NOTICE:

Know what'sbelow.

before you dig.Call

(TOLL FREE)

811or 

1-800-482-7171

BEFORE YOU DIG

(3 WORKING DAYS)

72 HOURS

CALL MISS DIG

CALL811.COM

R

BLOOMFIELD

OAK

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

A
T

E
N
 

C
T
.

DEWEY

T
O

O
T
IN

G

L
A

N
E

B
O

N
N
IE
 

B
R
IE

R

VINEWOOD

RA

V
IN

E

EUC 
 L
ID

P
A

R
K

F
E

R
N

D
A

L
E

WARREN

B
A

T
E
S OAKLAND L

A
W

N
 

D
A

L
E

O
X

F
O

R
D

ABBEY

T
W
IN

O
A

K
S

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

V
IL

L
A
 

C
T
. MARTIN

W.MAPLE

WILLITS

CT.

BROWN

E.MAPLE

HAMILTON

S
O

U
T

H
F
IE

L
D MARTIN

MERRILL

TOWNSEND

O
L

D
 

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

B
R

O
O

K
S
ID

E

W
O
O
D

W
A
R
D
 
(M
-
1)

CT.

LOCATION

PROJECT N

N.T.S.

MICHIGAN

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

SLOPE STABILIZATION

LOT No. 5

MUNICIPAL PARKING

OAKLAND COUNTY

HRC

J.A.R.

J.J.S.

J.V.B.

 OF SECTION 25, T2N, R10E4
1PART OF THE SW 

CITY CONTRACT No. 4-23(S)

11-30-2022

01-10-2023 REVISED PER COMMENTS

01-20-2023 ISSUED FOR BIDS

OWNER REVIEW

HRC QA / QC REVIEW07-20-2022

ST

(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

NAG SC250

LIMITS OF T.R.M.

(OR APPROVED EQUAL)

NAG SC250

LIMITS OF T.R.M.

725.63

725.93726.07

726.19

726.38
726.49

726.78

727.06

727.07

727.28

73
5

75
0

75
5

73
0

726 73
0

7
2
7

735

74
0

74
5

75
0

75
5

7
5
9

728.15

728.29

729.97731.48

731.57

732.09

732.12

732.69

733.05

733.36

733.68

734.19

734.37

734.41

735.36

736.17

736.22

736.46

736.76

737.10

738.80

738.98

739.06

739.29

739.37

739.63

739.92

745.29

746.35

746.39

746.71

748.00

747.02

745.48745.16

744.66

746.05

749.35

750.82

751.49

751.65

751.75

752.53 STSTST 752.56

752.98

753.32

753.36

756.82
756.85

756.91
756.92

757.83758.34

758.54

758.74

758.84

758.87
758.87

758.88

758.89

758.94

758.96

759.09

759.15

759.21

759.22

GU 759.22

759.24

759.27

759.31

759.32

759.35

759.50

759.50

759.51

759.51

TC 759.61

GU 759.62

E

GU 759.84

TC 760.04

760.16

GU 760.17

TC 760.41

TC 760.54

5F



CURB AND GUTTER

EXISTING CONCRETE

POWER LIN
ESEXISTING OVERHEAD

OVERHEAD POWER LINES

CAUTION!!!

TOP 
OF 

BANK

TOP O
F B

ANK

FLOODPLAIN
 LI

MIT
S

FL
OODPLAI

N 
LIM

ITS

733.4 (NAVD 88 DATUM)

734.4 (CITY DATUM)

100 YEAR FLOOD ELEV. =

NOTE: N

201050

SCALE:  1" = 10'

RIP RAP APRON

EXISTING

HDPE OUTLET PIPE

EXISTING 15" DIA.

HDPE PIPE

EXISTING 15" DIA.

ROUGE  
RIV

ER

BASIN (TYP.)

EXISTING CATCH

RIM = 752.53

STORM MANHOLE

EXISTING 48" DIA.

EXISTING STORM

EXISTING UTILITY POLES

DURING CONSTRUCTION (INCID.)

SUPPORT & PROTECT

EXISTING UTILITY POLE

1

NO. DESCRIPTION UNIT QTY.

2

3

4 750

ST

ST

E

EMBANKMENT EROSION (TOPO 2022)

OF THE 'WASHOUT' AREA

SHADED AREA IS THE LIMITS

NOTE:

DATED MAY 23, 2015

ALTA SURVEY TOPO

CONTOURS ARE FROM

EXISTING HALF-TONE

NOTE:

FROM HRC TOPO 2022

EXISTING CONTOURS

NOTE:

EX

MH

EX

MH

EX

CB

EX

CB

EX

CB

FENCE                     -  245 Ft

PROPOSED ORNAMENTAL

                     -  1 Ea

PROPOSED GATE

MB

02

MB

01

EXISTING LEGEND:

Shredded Hardwood Mulch

5

PROTECT

PROPOSED LEGEND:

759.50

MAINTENANCE BASIN

HDPE SEWER

CONCRETE SPILLWAY

SPOT GRADE

ORNAMENTAL FENCE

TOP OF BANK

LIMITS OF TURF

REINFORCEMENT MAT (TRM)

NATURAL RIP RAP CHANNEL

DRAINAGE ARROW

LEDGE ROCK

765

760

755

750

765

760

755

750

O
F
 

C
U

R
B

E
X
IS

T
IN

G
 

B
A

C
K

12"

P
R

O
P
. 

B
IO
 S

W
A

L
E

12"

AS NOTED

1

4

1

4

24"

10' +/-

               1" = 5' VERT.

SCALE:  1" = 5' HORIZ.

PROP. FENCE

(INCID.)

DURING CONSTRUCTION

SUPPORT & PROTECT

PARKING LOT

EXISTING

BIO-SWALE PLANTINGS

70

70

30

30

112

112

112

PARKING LOT

EXISTING

SPILLWAY GRADE @ CURB CUT

PAVEMENT

ASPHALT

EXISTING

PAVEMENT

ASPHALT

EXISTING

PVC CONDUIT

ELECTRIC IN

UNDERGROUND

CAUTION!!!

PAVEMENT

EXISTING CONCRETE

EXISTING 13" MAPLE

PROTECT

60

336

SECTION A-A TYPICAL THROUGH BIO-SWALE

A

A

10

1

CLEARING & GRUBBING

SELECTIVE

SEED MIX

SLOPE STABILIZATION

OF SLOPE AS NEEDED

REPAIR ERODED TOP

SHRUBS PERENNIAL

ZONE

GRASSES

SEED MIX "NO-MOW"

NATIVE, FESCUE BLEND

SCREEN WALL

EXISTING CONC.

SCREEN WALL

EXISTING CONC.

04A

BRUSH LINE

EXISTING

ASPHALT PAVEMENT

CONCRETE PAVEMENT

BRUSH LINE

TOP OF BANK

RIP RAP

UTILITY POLE

MANHOLE

CATCH BASIN 

STORM SEWER

UNDERGROUND ELECTRIC

OVERHEAD POWER LINES

FLOODPLAIN LIMITS

SPOT GRADE

CONTOURS (ALTA SURVEY 2015)

CONTOURS (HRC 2022)

WASHOUT AREA LIMITS

ALTERNATE BID QUANTITIES - THIS SHEET

NAG SC150 BEHIND CURB

ANCHOR TRENCH FOR E.C.B.

EA

EA

EA

w/ PLANTINGS

PROPOSED BIO-SWALE

8.  SEE SHEET 06 FOR LANDSCAPE DETAILS.

7.  INSTALL 4 INCHES OF HARDWOOD BARK MULCH IN ALL SHRUB BEDS.

     MATERIALS IN AN APPROVED LOCATION.

     EXCESS MATERIALS, SOIL, DEBRIS AND EQUIPMENT.  STORE

     DURING THE CONSTRUCTION PROCESS.  REMOVE FROM SITE ALL

6.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LEAVE THE SITE CLEAN AND ORDERLY

     BE PRESERVED UNLESS SPECIFICALLY NOTED OTHERWISE.

5.  ALL EXISTING PLANT MATERIAL SHOWN ON THE PLANS ARE TO

     BEFORE STARTING PLANTING INSTALLATION.

     FIELD AND OBTAIN APPROVAL OF THE OWNER / ENGINEER

4.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL LAYOUT SHRUB LOCATIONS IN THE

     PRIOR TO THEIR INSTALLATION AT THE SITE.

3.  ALL PLANTS SHALL BE APPROVED BY THE OWNER / ENGINEER

     OWNER / ENGINEER PRIOR TO COMMENCING PLANTING.

     IN THE FIELD.  REPORT ANY DISCREPANCIES TO THE

2.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL VERIFY EXISTING CONDITIONS

     INDICATED ON THE PLANS.

     QUANTITIES SUFFICIENT TO COMPLETE THE PLANTINGS

1.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPLY ALL PLANT MATERIAL IN 

LANDSCAPE PLANTING NOTES:

Bio-Swale Plantings, Grasses, #1 Containers

Bio-Swale Plantings, Perennials, #1 / #2 Containers

Bio-Swale Plantings, Shrubs, #3 / #5 Containers 140

245Fence, Ornamental, Aluminum, 6' High, incl 4' Wide Gate LFT

SYD 200

 

     ALONG THE ENTIRE LENGTH OF THE PROPOSED FENCE LINE.

3.  PLANT SHRUBS IN ALTERNATE GROUPS OF 7 (2 ROWS STAGGERED)

2.  PLANT PERENNIALS ALONG THE SIDE SLOPES OF THE BIO-SWALE.

1.  PLANT GRASSES ALONG THE BOTTOM OF THE BIO-SWALE.

BIO-SWALE PLANTING NOTES:

     (OR APPROVED EQUAL) ALONG THE TOP OF THE SLOPE.

5.  PROVIDE NAG SC150 EROSION CONTROL BLANKET (E.C.B.)

     (OR APPROVED EQUAL) ALONG THE CHANNEL.

4.  PROVIDE NAG SC250 TURF REINFORCEMENT MAT (T.R.M.)

     UTILITY POLES DURING CONSTRUCTION.

3.  CONTRACTOR SHALL SUPPORT AND PROTECT ALL EXISTING

     THE CONTRACTOR'S EXPENSE.

     DAMAGED DURING CONSTRUCTION SHALL BE REPAIRED AT

     CONSTRUCTION AND ADJUST AS NECESSARY.  ANY UTILITIES

     OF EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITY CONDUITS PRIOR TO

2.  CONTRACTOR SHALL FIELD VERIFY DEPTH AND LOCATION

1.  SEE SHEET 04 FOR BASE BID CONSTRUCTION PLAN.

GENERAL NOTES:

PLANT SPECIES PLANT LIST - THIS SHEET

GRASSES

BOTANICAL NAME

Carex Vulpinoidea

Juncus Tenuis

COMMON NAME

FOX SEDGE

PATH RUSH

BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

PERENNIALS

Aster Novae-Angliae

Coreopsis Verticillata 'Moonbeam'

Iris Versicolor

BOTANICAL NAME COMMON NAME

SHRUBS

Cornus Stolonifera 'Farrow'

Juniperus Virginiana 'Grey Owl'

NEW ENGLAND ASTER

MOONBEAM COREOPSIS

BLUE FLAG IRIS

ARCTIC FIRE RED TWIG DOGWOOD

GREY OWL JUNIPER

QTY SIZE

#1 Cont.

#1 Cont.

#1 Cont.

#1 Cont.

#2 Cont.

#3 Cont.

#5 Cont.

REMARKS

EVENLY DISTRIBUTED

EVENLY DISTRIBUTED

QTY SIZE REMARKS

QTY SIZE REMARKS

42" o.c. (GROUPS OF 7)

42" o.c. (GROUPS OF 7)

24" o.c. (GROUPS OF 3-5)

24" o.c. (GROUPS OF 3-5)

24" o.c. (GROUPS OF 3-5)

T.R.M. NAG SC 250

3" PLANTING MEDIUM

12" PLANTING MEDIUM

BIO-SWALE w/ PLANTINGS

(ALTERNATE BID)

CONSTRUCTION PLAN

E

E

E

ST

555 HULET DRIVE

BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MICH.

P.O.  BOX 824

48303 - 0824

PHONE:  (248) 454-6300

WEB SITE:  http: / /  www.hrcengr.com

FAX (1st. Floor):  (248) 454-6312

DATE ISSUED FOR /ADDITIONS / REVISIONS

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

HRC JOB NO. SCALE

NO.
SHEETDATE

OF

C 2022 Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. All Rights Reserved

0
7
0
1
2
0
1
5

H
R

C
.t

b
l

jr
e
c

V
:\

2
0
2
2
0
1
\

2
0
2
2
0
1
8
0
\

C
\

S
h
e
e
t
s
\
c
_

p
r
_

p
la

n
_

a
lt
_

b
id
.d

g
n

JULY 2022

,
0
1
/

2
0
/

2
0
2
3
 
1
4
:0

4
 

P
M

T
T
T
T

(248) 454-6359FAX (2nd. Floor):  

20220180

THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

PARTIES UTILIZING THIS INFORMATION SHALL FIELD VERIFY

ACCURACY OF THE UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

OR SHOULD BE ASSUMED, AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR

RECORD MAPPING WHERE AVAILABLE.  NO GUARANTEE IS MADE,

SURVEY HAVE BEEN TAKEN FROM VISUAL OBSERVATION AND

ALL EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS TOPOGRAPHIC

NOTICE:

Know what'sbelow.

before you dig.Call

(TOLL FREE)

811or 

1-800-482-7171

BEFORE YOU DIG

(3 WORKING DAYS)

72 HOURS

CALL MISS DIG

CALL811.COM

R

BLOOMFIELD

OAK

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

A
T

E
N
 

C
T
.

DEWEY

T
O

O
T
IN

G

L
A

N
E

B
O

N
N
IE
 

B
R
IE

R

VINEWOOD

RA

V
IN

E

EUC 
 L
ID

P
A

R
K

F
E

R
N

D
A

L
E

WARREN

B
A

T
E
S OAKLAND L

A
W

N
 

D
A

L
E

O
X

F
O

R
D

ABBEY

T
W
IN

O
A

K
S

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

V
IL

L
A
 

C
T
. MARTIN

W.MAPLE

WILLITS

CT.

BROWN

E.MAPLE

HAMILTON

S
O

U
T

H
F
IE

L
D MARTIN

MERRILL

TOWNSEND

O
L

D
 

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

B
R

O
O

K
S
ID

E

W
O
O
D

W
A
R
D
 
(M
-
1)

CT.

LOCATION

PROJECT N

N.T.S.

MICHIGAN

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

SLOPE STABILIZATION

LOT No. 5

MUNICIPAL PARKING

OAKLAND COUNTY

HRC

J.A.R.

J.J.S.

J.V.B.

 OF SECTION 25, T2N, R10E4
1PART OF THE SW 

CITY CONTRACT No. 4-23(S)

11-30-2022

01-10-2023 REVISED PER COMMENTS

01-20-2023 ISSUED FOR BIDS

OWNER REVIEW

HRC QA / QC REVIEW07-20-2022

ST

725.63

725.93726.07

726.19

726.38
726.49

726.78

727.06

727.07

727.28

73
5

74
0

74
5

75
0

75
5

73
0

726

7
5
9

73
0

7
2
7

735

74
0

74
5

75
0

75
5

7
5
9

728.15

728.29

729.97731.48

731.57

732.09

732.12

732.69

733.05

733.36

733.68

734.19

734.37

734.41

735.36

736.17

736.22

736.46

736.76

737.10

738.80

738.98

739.06

739.29

739.37

739.63

739.92

745.29

746.35

746.39

746.71

748.00

747.02

745.48745.16

744.66

746.05

749.35

750.82

751.49

751.65

751.75

752.53 STSTST 752.56

752.98

753.32

753.36

756.82
756.85

756.91
756.92

757.83758.34

758.54

758.74

758.84

758.87
758.87

758.88

758.89

758.94

758.96

759.09

759.15

759.21

759.22

GU 759.22

759.24

759.27

759.31

759.32

759.35

759.50

759.50

759.51

759.51

TC 759.61

GU 759.62

E

GU 759.84

TC 760.04

760.16

GU 760.17

TC 760.41

TC 760.54

5F



PROJECT DETAILS

AS NOTED

6
"

NO SCALE

NO SCALE

6
' 
- 
0
"

3
6
" 

M
IN
.

FOOTING

8" DIA. CONC.

2.5" SQUARE POST

DETAIL THIS SHEET

SEE FENCE POST

PROPOSED FENCE PROPOSED FENCE POST 6' - 0" o.c.

3'-0"

7'-0"

4
'-
0
"

(T
Y
P
.)

2'
 R

A
D
.

HEIGHT TO 0 FT

TAPER CURB

E
D

G
E
S

1"
 B

E
LO

W

NO SCALE

CONCRETE SPILLWAY w/ CURB AND GUTTER

AND GUTTER (TYP.)

CONCRETE CURB

SAWCUT EXIST.

SPILLWAY

PROP.

EXISTING GRADE

NO SCALE

TYPICAL SECTION THROUGH CHANNEL

TO SET BOULDERS / COBBLES

MINIMIZE EXCAVATION

NON-WOVEN GEOTEXTILE LINER

PLACE BOULDERS / COBBLES ON

60 / 40 GRAVEL BASE

BACKFILL VOIDS WITH

RIP RAP LINED CHANNEL

SLIGHTLY SLOPE TOWARDS

CONICAL FINISH

SLIGHTLY TAPERED

STABILIZATION SEED MIX

MEDIUM AND SLOPE

COMPOST PLANTING

"Dr Structure, Maintenance Basin, 24 inch dia. - EA"

SHALL BE INCLUDED IN THE UNIT PRICE BID FOR

ALL COSTS FOR ADJUSTING MAINTENANCE BASINS

NOTE:

CURB & GUTTER

EXIST. CONCRETE

BACK OF EXIST. CURB

PAVEMENT

EXIST. ASPHALT

ASPHALT PAVEMENT WITH COLD PATCH

EDGE.  FILL ANY IRREGULARITIES IN

PAVEMENT EDGE.  PROVIDE TOOLED

FORM CURB TO EXIST. ASPHALT

DEFORMED BARS)

(4 EACH, EPOXY COATED,

24" LENGTH, 7 " EMBEDMENT

EPOXY-ANCHORED LANE TIE,

ALONG SPILLWAY

#4 EPOXY COATED REBAR

ACROSS GUTTER SECTION

#4 EPOXY COATED REBAR

EXIST. GRADE VARIES

NO SCALE

LEDGE ROCK LEVEL SPREADER DETAIL (TYP.)

ORNAMENTAL FENCE DETAIL - ALTERNATE BID

ALONG THE TOP OF SLOPE.

PLACE E.C.B., NAG SC150 (OR APPROVED EQUAL)

ALONG THE CHANNEL.

PLACE T.R.M., NAG SC250 (OR APPROVED EQUAL)

NOTE:

OR EROSION CONTROL BLANKET (E.C.B.)

TURF REINFORCEMENT MAT (T.R.M.)

FENCE POST DETAIL - ALTERNATE BID

OVERLAP

18"

TURF REINFORCEMENT MAT

3.  PLACE LEDGE ROCK ON 6" OF 60 / 40 GRAVEL BASE.

2.  INSTALL LEDGE ROCK AT A 6° ANGLE TO GRADE.

1.  ALL LEDGE ROCK SHALL BE 18" THICK x 24" WIDE x 48" (MIN.) LONG

NOTES:

CURB & GUTTER

EXIST. CONCRETE

EROSION CONTROL BLANKET

BIO-SWALE

BEYOND LEVEL SPREADER

PROPOSED TOP OF BANK

NOTE:

PLANTING MEDIUM

12" COMPOST

PLANTING MEDIUM

3" COMPOST

LEDGE ROCK LEVEL SPREADER

.2' TYP.

05

EXIST. WOOD FENCE

NO SCALE

MAINTENANCE BASIN DETAIL (M.B.)

     

     

5.  FENCE SHOWN IS FOR GRAPHICAL PURPOSES ONLY.

     BID FOR "Fence, Ornamental, Aluminum, 6' High, incl. 4' Wide Gate - LFT".

4.  ALL COSTS ASSOCIATED FOR INSTALLATION OF THE ORNAMENTAL FENCE ARE INCLUDED IN THE UNIT PRICE

3.  ALL POSTS SHALL BE SET IN A 8" DIA. x 42" (MIN.) DEEP CONCRETE POST FOOTING (SEE DETAIL THIS SHEET)

2.  PICKETS FOR FENCE SHALL BE .75" Sq. x 18 Ga., RAILS 1.5" x 1.5" x 14 Ga., POSTS 2.5" Sq. x 16 Ga.

     BE POWDERCOAT BLACK.

     MAJESTIC STYLE, WITH THREE (3) HORIZONTAL RAILS OR APPROVED EQUAL.  COLOR OF FENCE SHALL

1.  PROPOSED FENCE SHALL BE AMERISTAR MONTAGE PLUS, ALUMINUM ORNAMENTAL FENCE, 6' HIGH,

ORNAMENTAL FENCE NOTES:

60 / 40 GRAVEL BASE

BACKFILL VOIDS WITH

RIPRAP, NATURAL, PLAIN

555 HULET DRIVE

BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MICH.

P.O.  BOX 824

48303 - 0824

PHONE:  (248) 454-6300

WEB SITE:  http: / /  www.hrcengr.com

FAX (1st. Floor):  (248) 454-6312

DATE ISSUED FOR /ADDITIONS / REVISIONS

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

HRC JOB NO. SCALE

NO.
SHEETDATE

OF

C 2022 Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. All Rights Reserved

0
7
0
1
2
0
1
5

H
R

C
.t

b
l

jr
e
c

V
:\

2
0
2
2
0
1
\

2
0
2
2
0
1
8
0
\

C
\

S
h
e
e
t
s
\
c
0
0
_

0
3
d
t
.d

g
n

JULY 2022

,
0
1
/

2
0
/

2
0
2
3
 
1
4
:0

5
 

P
M

T
T
T
T

(248) 454-6359FAX (2nd. Floor):  

20220180

THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

PARTIES UTILIZING THIS INFORMATION SHALL FIELD VERIFY

ACCURACY OF THE UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

OR SHOULD BE ASSUMED, AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR

RECORD MAPPING WHERE AVAILABLE.  NO GUARANTEE IS MADE,

SURVEY HAVE BEEN TAKEN FROM VISUAL OBSERVATION AND

ALL EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS TOPOGRAPHIC

NOTICE:

Know what'sbelow.

before you dig.Call

(TOLL FREE)

811or 

1-800-482-7171

BEFORE YOU DIG

(3 WORKING DAYS)

72 HOURS

CALL MISS DIG

CALL811.COM

R

BLOOMFIELD

OAK

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

A
T

E
N
 

C
T
.

DEWEY

T
O

O
T
IN

G

L
A

N
E

B
O

N
N
IE
 

B
R
IE

R

VINEWOOD

RA

V
IN

E

EUC 
 L
ID

P
A

R
K

F
E

R
N

D
A

L
E

WARREN

B
A

T
E
S OAKLAND L

A
W

N
 

D
A

L
E

O
X

F
O

R
D

ABBEY

T
W
IN

O
A

K
S

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

V
IL

L
A
 

C
T
. MARTIN

W.MAPLE

WILLITS

CT.

BROWN

E.MAPLE

HAMILTON

S
O

U
T

H
F
IE

L
D MARTIN

MERRILL

TOWNSEND

O
L

D
 

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

B
R

O
O

K
S
ID

E

W
O
O
D

W
A
R
D
 
(M
-
1)

CT.

LOCATION

PROJECT N

N.T.S.

MICHIGAN

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

SLOPE STABILIZATION

LOT No. 5

MUNICIPAL PARKING

OAKLAND COUNTY

HRC

J.A.R.

J.J.S.

J.V.B.

 OF SECTION 25, T2N, R10E4
1PART OF THE SW 

CITY CONTRACT No. 4-23(S)

11-30-2022

01-10-2023 REVISED PER COMMENTS

01-20-2023 ISSUED FOR BIDS

OWNER REVIEW

HRC QA / QC REVIEW07-20-2022

CLASS III OR BETTER

COMPACTED GRANULAR

MAINT. BASIN

SLOPE TO

AROUND THE STRUCTURE

HOLES EVENLY SPACED

DRILL 8 - 1" DIA. DRAINAGE

PRIOR TO BACKFILLING

FABRIC CENTERED ON HOLES

STRIP OF WOVEN GEOTEXTILE

STRUCTURE WITH 18" WIDE

WRAP EXTERIOR OF

DITCH GRADES AS DETERMINED BY THE ENGINEER.

RESTORATION TO AN ELEVATION 2" HIGHER THAN SURROUNDING

GRADES SHOWN AND ARE TO BE ADJUSTED DURING FINAL

RIM GRADES SHALL BE INSTALLED  6" HIGHER THAN THE FIELD

CONTOUR GRADES AND NEAREST GROUND SHOTS. THE ACTUAL

FIELD GRADES SHOWN ON PLANS WERE ESTIMATED BY TOPO

NOTE:

UNDERDRAIN PIPE, 12" HDPE

(FIELD CUT ONLY)

WALL EXTERIOR PENETRATION (TYP.)

BUTYL RUBBER PATCH AT PIPE

WALL (LENGTH VARIES)

PLASTIC PIPE, SMOOTH INTERIOR

36" PERFORATED, CORRUGATED

1' TYP.

4" STONE BED

OPENINGS

OR FIELD CUT

WELDED PRE-FAB

L
E

N
G

T
H
 V

A
R
IE

S

12"

FILTER DURING FINAL RESTORATION

CONSTRUCTION. REMOVE FABRIC

INSTALL FABRIC FILTER AT RIM DURING SWALE BOTTOM

WIDTH VARIES (4' - 5')

SOLID BOTTOM

2'- 0" SUMP FOR MAINTENANCE BASIN (MB-02)

1'- 0" SUMP FOR MAINTENANCE BASIN (MB-01)

NOTE:

"Dr Structure, Maintenance Basin, 24 inch dia. - EA"

BASE INCLUDED IN THE UNIT BID PRICE FOR

STRUCTURE BACKFILL, USING 60 / 40 GRAVEL

(NOTE: DIPPED CASTING, ORDER WITHOUT LUGS)

"Dr Structure, Maintenance Basin, 24 inch dia. - EA"

INCLUDED IN THE UNIT PRICE BID FOR

E.J.I.W. 6121-N BEEHIVE TYPE GRATE TO BE

5F



MULCH

HARDWOOD BARK

4" SHREDDED

CANS PRIOR TO PLANTING

ROOT GROWTH. REMOVE METAL

POT & PUNCTURE TO ALLOW

REMOVE COLLAR FROM FIBER

LIGHTLY RECOMPACT

LOOSEN SUBSOIL AND
PLANTING SIDES

SCARIFY

12" (TYP.)

PLANTING MEDIUM

12" COMPOST

AS NEEDED IN POORLY DRAINED SOIL

MIN. TO UNDER DRAINAGE SYSTEM

OF 12". SLOPE BOTTOM OF BED 1%

EXCAVATE ENTIRE BED TO A DEPTH

UNDISTURBED SOIL

12"

PLANTING MEDIUM

12" COMPOST

AT THE SPECIFIED SPACING

ROWS IN GROUPS OF 3 - 5 PLANTS

PLANT PERENNIALS IN STAGGERED

42" o.c. (TYP.)

24" o.c. (TYP.)

AS NOTED

06

LANDSCAPE DETAILS

NO SCALE

     DID TO NURSERY GRADE.

5.  SHRUBS SHALL BEAR SAME RELATION TO FINISH GRADE AS THEY

 OF ROOTBALL ON B&B SHRUBS.3
14.  REMOVE BURLAP FROM TOP 

3.  PLANT SHRUBS 42" o.c. IN GROUPS OF 7.

     LENGTH OF THE SHRUB PLANTINGS.

2.  SHRUB PLANTING TRENCH SHALL BE CONTINUOUS FOR THE ENTIRE

     ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

1.  SEE SHEET 04A "CONSTRUCTION PLAN - ALTERNATE BID" FOR

NOTES:

NO SCALE

     ADDITIONAL INFORMATION.

1.  SEE SHEET 04A "CONSTRUCTION PLAN - ALTERNATE BID" FOR

NOTES:

BIO-SWALE PLANTINGS, PERENNIALS (ALTERNATE BID)

BIO-SWALE PLANTINGS, MASSED SHRUBS (ALTERNATE BID)

555 HULET DRIVE

BLOOMFIELD HILLS, MICH.

P.O.  BOX 824

48303 - 0824

PHONE:  (248) 454-6300

WEB SITE:  http: / /  www.hrcengr.com

FAX (1st. Floor):  (248) 454-6312

DATE ISSUED FOR /ADDITIONS / REVISIONS

DESIGNED

DRAWN

CHECKED

APPROVED

HRC JOB NO. SCALE

NO.
SHEETDATE

OF

C 2022 Hubbell, Roth & Clark, Inc. All Rights Reserved

0
7
0
1
2
0
1
5

H
R

C
.t

b
l

jr
e
c

V
:\

2
0
2
2
0
1
\

2
0
2
2
0
1
8
0
\

C
\

S
h
e
e
t
s
\
c
0
0
_

0
6
_
ln

d
s
c
p
_

d
e
t
.d

g
n

JULY 2022

,
0
1
/

2
0
/

2
0
2
3
 
1
4
:0

7
 

P
M

T
T
T
T

(248) 454-6359FAX (2nd. Floor):  

20220180

THE ACCURACY AND COMPLETENESS PRIOR TO CONSTRUCTION.

PARTIES UTILIZING THIS INFORMATION SHALL FIELD VERIFY

ACCURACY OF THE UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS DRAWING.

OR SHOULD BE ASSUMED, AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR

RECORD MAPPING WHERE AVAILABLE.  NO GUARANTEE IS MADE,

SURVEY HAVE BEEN TAKEN FROM VISUAL OBSERVATION AND

ALL EXISTING UTILITIES SHOWN ON THIS TOPOGRAPHIC

NOTICE:

Know what'sbelow.

before you dig.Call

(TOLL FREE)

811or 

1-800-482-7171

BEFORE YOU DIG

(3 WORKING DAYS)

72 HOURS

CALL MISS DIG

CALL811.COM

R

BLOOMFIELD

OAK

G
R

E
E

N
W

O
O

D

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

A
T

E
N
 

C
T
.

DEWEY

T
O

O
T
IN

G

L
A

N
E

B
O

N
N
IE
 

B
R
IE

R

VINEWOOD

RA

V
IN

E

EUC 
 L
ID

P
A

R
K

F
E

R
N

D
A

L
E

WARREN

B
A

T
E
S OAKLAND L

A
W

N
 

D
A

L
E

O
X

F
O

R
D

ABBEY

T
W
IN

O
A

K
S

W
O

O
D

L
A

N
D

V
IL

L
A
 

C
T
. MARTIN

W.MAPLE

WILLITS

CT.

BROWN

E.MAPLE

HAMILTON

S
O

U
T

H
F
IE

L
D MARTIN

MERRILL

TOWNSEND

O
L

D
 

W
O

O
D

W
A

R
D

B
R

O
O

K
S
ID

E

W
O
O
D

W
A
R
D
 
(M
-
1)

CT.

LOCATION

PROJECT N

N.T.S.

MICHIGAN

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM

SLOPE STABILIZATION

LOT No. 5

MUNICIPAL PARKING

OAKLAND COUNTY

HRC

J.A.R.

J.J.S.

J.V.B.

 OF SECTION 25, T2N, R10E4
1PART OF THE SW 

CITY CONTRACT No. 4-23(S)

11-30-2022

01-10-2023 REVISED PER COMMENTS

01-20-2023 ISSUED FOR BIDS

OWNER REVIEW

HRC QA / QC REVIEW07-20-2022

5F



5F



MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Department 

DATE: March 13, 2023 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Melissa A. Coatta, City Engineer 

SUBJECT: Emergency Repair of Parking Walls 
Shain Park Parking Lot and Parking Lot No. 6 

INTRODUCTION: 
On December 10, 2022, the existing wall along the north side of the Shain Park Parking Lot was 
hit by a vehicle. In a separate incident, the existing wall toward North Old Woodward Avenue at 
Parking Lot No. 6 was hit and damaged by a vehicle around the evening of December 10, 2022, 
or the morning of December 11, 2022.  A budget amendment is required for the emergency repair 
of these walls.  

BACKGROUND: 
The Engineering Department received notification on December 11, 2022, for damage occurring 
at the wall at Parking Lot No. 6 and on December 12, 2022, for the wall at the Shain Park Parking 
Lot. The Department of Public Services cleaned up the debris and provided barricades at each 
location, but was unable to make the repairs to the walls. The city contacted three contractors to 
provide quotes for the wall repairs at the Shain Park Parking Lot and Parking Lot No. 6.   

For the Shain Park Parking Lot, the city received two (2) quotes from contractors, and one (1) 
was non-responsive, as listed in the attached summary. The low quote was for $2,500.00 from 
Soulliere Stone Design, who has previously done work for the city on small brick and masonry 
repairs. The wall repair was completed the week of February 27, 2023.   

For Parking Lot No. 6, the city received three (3) quotes from contractors ranging from $7,775.00 
to $11,825.00 as listed in the attached summary. The lowest quote is from D.C. Byers who has 
done previous work for the city and within the city. This repair is tentatively scheduled for March 
2023, but is dependent on the weather.   

LEGAL REVIEW:  
Legal is proceeding with collecting $2,500.00 from the driver who hit the wall at the Shain Park 
Parking Lot as a police report was filed. The police department did review the evidence and 

5G



2 

nearby cameras to try to determine the driver who hit the wall at Parking Lot No. 6 but was 
unable to identify the driver.  

FISCAL IMPACT:  
A budget amendment is required in the following funds for the emergency wall repairs: 

Shain Park Parking Lot 

Fund Account Fund ID Number Budget Quotes 

General Fund 101.0-751.000-811.0000 $0.00 $2,500.00 

Parking Lot No. 6 

Fund Account Fund ID Number Budget Quotes 

Automobile Parking 
System  

514.1-594.006-811.0000 $0.00 $7,775.00 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
This purchase does not require public communication. 

SUMMARY: 
The Engineering Department requests a budget amendment for the emergency repairs of the 
parking walls at the Shain Park Parking Lot and Parking Lot No. 6. 

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Shain Park Parking Lot and Parking Lot No. 6 Wall Repair Quotes Summary (1 page)
• Shain Park Parking Lot Photos of Wall Damage (1 page)
• Soulliere Stone Design Quote (1 page)
• Parking Lot No. 6 Photos of Wall Damage (1 page)
• D.C. Byers Quote (1 page)

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to approve the appropriation and amendment of the 
2022/2023 budget for the emergency repairs of the parking lot screenwalls at the Shain Park 
Parking Lot and Parking Lot No. 6 as follows:  

General Fund: 

Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance 101.0-000.000-400.0000 $2,500.00 

Expenditures: 
Other Contractual Services 101.0-751.000-811.0000 $2,500.00 

Automobile Parking System: 
Revenues: 
Draw from Fund Balance 514.1-000.000-400.0000 $7,500.00 

Expenditures: 
Other Contractual Services 514.1-594.006-811.0000 $7,500.00 

5G



Soulliere Stone 

Design
D.C Byers

Granite Seat Repair $2,500.00 $4,925.00

J & J Construction D.C Byers D'Aloisio Masonry
Brick Wall Repair $11,825.00 $7,775.00 $10,830.00

Parking Lot 6 Brick Wall Repair Quotes 

Shain Park Parking Lot Granite Wall Repair Quotes

5G



 

 
View North at Shain Park Parking Lot   

 

 

5G



Soulliere Stone Design Inc.
5532 Vassar Rd Grand Blanc Mi 48439

Email - tsoulliere@gmail.com

Tim Soulliere cell - 810-338-9584 

Office - 810-660-8285 

Estimate Date: 02/02/23

Quantity Description

Repair Granite wall & Cap
1 sum Reset Granite cap & wall with mortar

1 sum Grout betweem granite 
Sub Total $2,500.00

Notes:

1) New granite pieces not included if needed

Total $2,500.00

______________________________________

______________________________________

DATE:

____________

____________

CUSTOMER

SALESMAN

City of Birmingham 
48009 Michigan 
Att:Kris Cameron 
kcameron@bhamgov.org 
 
 
 

5G



 

 
View Southeast at Parking Lot No. 6   

 

 
View East at Parking Lot No. 6   

 5G



D. C. BYERS  CO., INC.      Date: February 6, 2023 
PO Box 1808        To: City of Birmingham 
Warren MI 48090       Project: Lot #6 Knee Wall   
313 875-0545                             
              
                

    PROPOSAL    
 
The undersigned proposes to furnish all necessary labor, materials and equipment to complete the 
following scope: 
 

  “Masonry Knee Wall Repair” 
 
 
Our Scope of Work includes the repair to the damaged masonry knee wall located at the Northern 
exit / entrance of Lot #6. 
 
Specific scope includes; 

1. Mobilize to site and set up temporary barricades around work area. 
2. Remove and salvage all loose or dislodged brick and limestone caps. 
3. Install salvaged and new brick units on existing foundation to replicate original dimensions. 
4. Install salvaged limestone caps with stainless steel dowels and proper flashing set in mortar. 
5. Install backer rod and caulk in limestone caps skyward facing joints. 
6. Clean masonry after cure and properly dispose of all related debris and demobilize from site. 

 
The above work can be completed for a lump sum of ………………..…………. $7,775.00 
 
 
 This Proposal is good for no longer than 60 days past its submittal. 
 The entire amount to be paid within 30 days after completion. 
 Any alteration or deviations from plans and specifications will be executed upon 
 Written orders for same and will be added to or deducted from the sum in this contract. 
 All additional agreements must be in writing.  
 
D.C. Byers Co. agrees to carry Workers Compensation and Public Liability Insurance and to pay all 
taxes on  material and labor furnished under this contract as required by Federal Laws and the Laws of 
the State in which this work is performed. 
 
 
Respectfully Submitted,  D.C. Byers Co., Inc.                      By:_______________________________ 
            Jim Boettge,  President. 

5G



 

 
MEMORANDUM 
Parking System 
 

 
DATE:  03/13/23  
 
TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 
FROM: Aaron Ford, Parking Systems Manager 
 
SUBJECT:  Repair Design & Construction Document Development Addendum 
 
 
INTRODUCTION:  
Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. (WJE) has provided an addendum to the current Agreement 
of Repair Design & Construction Document Development dated November 14, 2022 (Agreement) 
to address items that were not included in the original scope of services. The scope of work items 
presented in this addendum are based on the findings from the further investigation items 
included in their previous reports and include modifications to the proposed scope of work 
regarding the facade panels at the Park Street garage, and the glazing and roofing systems at 
the Chester Street garage. In addition, the City requested that WJE review the applicable code 
requirements and provide recommendations with respect to brining all five parking structures into 
compliance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  
 
BACKGROUND: 
In the summer of 2020, WJE issued four reports regarding condition assessments of the North 
Old Woodward (NOW), Chester, Park, and Peabody parking structures. These reports included 
the findings of their assessments with recommendations for maintenance and rehabilitation, as 
well as items requiring further investigation. Following completion of these assessments and 
delivery of the reports, the City elected to perform limited repairs at the NOW, Chester, Park, and 
Peabody parking structures from 2021-2022. As requested, WJE designed repairs, developed 
construction documents, and provided construction period services for these repair projects, all 
of which have been completed.  
 
WJE subsequently issued a proposal dated September 30, 2022, for development of construction 
documents for each parking structure listed above, as well as the Pierce parking structure, to 
address conditions not included in the 2021 repairs. This proposal also included performing the 
recommended further investigation items and provided budgetary estimates for the respective 
engineering work. Based their findings from the additional investigations performed at the Park 
and Chester garages, additional engineering services are recommended to remediate the 

5H



2 

observed conditions, which are the subject of this addendum, as well as the requested additional 
services to review and provide recommendations with respect to ADA compliance. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City’s attorney has reviewed and approved the agreement. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
Provided in WJE’s addendum is the fee schedule for the proposed work. See below: 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
None 

SUMMARY: 
WJE has provided an addendum to the current Agreement of Repair Design & Construction 
Document Development dated November 14, 2022 (Agreement) to address items that were not 
included in the original scope of services. The scope of work items presented in this addendum 
are based on the findings from the further investigation items included in their previous reports 
and include modifications to the proposed scope of work regarding the facade panels at the Park 
Street garage, and the glazing and roofing systems at the Chester Street garage. In addition, the 
City requested that WJE review the applicable code requirements and provide recommendations 
with respect to brining all five parking structures into compliance with the provisions of the 
Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).  

5H



 
 
 
 
 

3 
 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Addendum of agreement with WJE 
2. Attachment A – WJE Addendum to WJE Scope of Services Agreement for 11/14/22 

Agreement 
3. Original WJE repair design & construction document development proposal 

 
 
SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion to adopt the resolution approving the addendum to the contract to Wiss, 
Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. for the proposed Repair Design & Construction Document 
Development for Park, Peabody, Pierce, Chester, and North Old Woodward parking Structures 
in the amount of $192,000.00; further, to charge the contract to each structure’s capital outlay 
account as costs are incurred.   Furthermore, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the 
contract on behalf of the city. 
 

 

5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. 

3609 South Wadsworth Boulevard, Suite 400 

Lakewood, Colorado 80235 

303.914.4300 tel 

www.wje.com 

 

Atlanta | Austin | Boston | Chicago | Cleveland | Dallas | Denver | Detroit | Doylestown | Honolulu | Houston | Indianapolis 

London | Los Angeles | Milwaukee | Minneapolis | New Haven | Northbrook (HQ) | New York | Philadelphia | Pittsburgh 

Portland | Princeton | Raleigh | San Antonio | San Diego | San Francisco | Seattle | South Florida | Washington, DC 

 

 

February 22, 2023 

Aaron Ford 

Parking Systems Manager 

City of Birmingham 

151 Martin Street 

Birmingham, Michigan 48009 

City of Birmingham Parking Structures 
Addendum to WJE Scope of Services for November 14, 2022 Agreement 

WJE No. 2022.0566 

 

Dear Mr. Ford: 

As requested, Wiss, Janney, Elstner Associates, Inc. (WJE) has prepared this addendum to our Agreement of 

Repair Design & Construction Document Development dated November 14, 2022 (Agreement) to address 

items that were not included in our original scope of services. The scope of work items presented in this 

addendum are based on the findings from the further investigation items included in our previous reports 

and include modifications to the proposed scope of work regarding the facade panels at the Park Street 

garage, and the glazing and roofing systems at the Chester Street garage. In addition, you requested that 

WJE review the applicable code requirements and provide recommendations with respect to brining all 

five parking structures into compliance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). 

This letter presents our understanding of the requirements for each item and provides our fees to perform 

the additional services. 

BACKGROUND 

In the summer of 2020, WJE issued four reports regarding our condition assessments of the North Old 

Woodward (NOW), Chester, Park, and Peabody parking structures owned by the City of Birmingham (City). 

These reports included the findings of our assessments with recommendations for maintenance and 

rehabilitation, as well as items requiring further investigation. Following completion of these assessments 

and delivery of the reports, the City elected to perform limited repairs at the NOW, Chester, Park, and 

Peabody parking structures from 2021-2022. As requested, WJE designed repairs, developed construction 

documents, and provided construction period services for these repair projects, all of which have been 

completed.  

WJE subsequently issued a proposal dated September 30, 2022, for development of construction 

documents for each parking structure listed above, as well as the Pierce parking structure, to address 

conditions not included in the 2021 repairs. This proposal also included performing the recommended 

further investigation items and provided budgetary estimates for the respective engineering work. Based 

our findings from the additional investigations performed at the Park and Chester garages, additional 

engineering services are recommended to remediate the observed conditions, which are the subject of 

5H



Aaron Ford 

City of Birmingham 

February 22, 2023 

Page 2 

 

 

this addendum, as well as the requested additional services to review and provide recommendations with 

respect to ADA compliance. 

PARK FACADE SYSTEM 

With the intent of developing a repair design for the existing facade system at the Park Street garage, WJE 

performed further assessment, including review of the original construction documents, on-site geometric 

measurements and close-up access, and structural analysis, of the existing configuration and condition. 

The findings of this investigation are summarized below: 

1. The facade was found to be a proprietary system generally consisting of aluminum facade panels, 

aluminum stanchions, and aluminum retention clips anchored to the post-tensioned (PT) slab edges 

and attached to the steel edge beams.  

2. Widespread failure of the retention clips was observed with the majority of failures located at the 

proprietary closure end of the clip. 

3. Several additional panels have been impacted by vehicles, and a few have been removed and 

temporarily replaced with plywood. 

4. Construction defects, such as exclusion of nuts and washers at the stanchion base plates and 

improperly placed screws for the retention clips were noted in several locations. 

5. The current system does not satisfy the design load criteria of the 2015 Michigan Building Code with 

respect to vehicle impact loads; however, as noted if our previous reports, this is not required to be 

upgraded since the system was installed prior to the current requirements being in place. 

Based on these findings, WJE concluded that repair in-kind of the facade system would likely result in 

similar failures under vehicle impact loads, would not mitigate the widespread failures of the retention 

clips observed under service loads, could not address all of the observed construction defects, and would 

be unsightly. After meeting with you on January 31, 2023 to discuss these findings, it was agreed that WJE 

would modify our previously proposed scope of services to include design of a replacement system, 

rather than designing repairs for the existing system. The additional services required to achieve this 

request are outlined below in the Modified Scope of Services section of this letter. 

CHESTER ROOFING AND GLAZING 

Our original scope of services assumed that only standard maintenance type repairs would be required for 

the curtainwall system at the Chester garage, including glazing replacement, sealant replacement between 

the masonry and perimeter frame, and painting curtainwall frames, and as they pertain to water and air 

infiltration into the stair tower. However, during our review of the glazing weather sealants, a broken 

tempered laminated glass unit and glass units with a low percentage of structural silicone sealant bite (i.e., 

the width where the structural silicone adheres to the glass or substrate) bonded to the glass were 

observed. Where such conditions are present, the corresponding glass unit is at risk of falling to grade. 

Evaluating and designing for deglazing and reglazing select units due to these conditions was not 

included as a part of the anticipated standard maintenance repairs.  

5H



Aaron Ford 

City of Birmingham 

February 22, 2023 

Page 3 

 

 

In addition, during our close-up further investigation of the existing areas of roofing at the three stair 

towers, the extent of deterioration and previous repairs was found to be more severe than anticipated. 

Our original scope of services assumed repairs would be needed at the tie-in between the roofing, gutter, 

and downspout to address water staining and organic growth on the exterior brick facade. However, 

widespread deterioration of the roofing assembly was observed and, in conjunction with the findings of 

the curtainwall system scope, the roofing was found to be a contributing source of water infiltration within 

the stairwell interiors. Therefore, due to the observed conditions, replacement or reroofing of the roofing 

at the three stair towers is recommended. Further, the existing roofing and coping assemblies do not 

match the detailing shown in the original construction drawings and instead directly tie into the sloped 

curtainwall assembly at the top of the stair towers, making replacement and repair efforts more 

challenging to design and detail that a traditional replacement or reroof. Evaluating and designing for 

roofing repairs due to these conditions was not included as a part of the anticipated roofing maintenance 

repairs.  

The additional services required to achieve these tasks are outlined below in the Modified Scope of Services 

section of this letter. 

ADA COMPLIANCE 

It is our understanding that the City is required to bring all five parking garages into compliance with 

current ADA standards within the next two years. As a result, the City requested that WJE review the 

current status and provide recommendations with respect to the scope of work necessary to achieve this 

goal. These tasks were not included in the scope of services presented in our September 30, 2022 

proposal. The additional services required to achieve this request are outlined below in the Modified Scope of 

Services section of this letter. 

MODIFIED SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The following tasks are proposed as modifications to the scope of work included in our Agreement dated 

November 14, 2022:  

Park Facade Replacement 

The following tasks are proposed in addition to the 20 hours originally proposed for repair design of the 

Park facade system: 

1. Conceptual Replacement Design. WJE will develop a structural design concept for replacement of 

the facade system. We anticipate the new structural system will be similar to the system installed at 

NOW; however, additional factors will need to be considered since Park is a post-tensioned structure. 

At this time, it is our understanding that this new structural vehicle barrier system may be used to 

support an architectural facade system designed by others. WJE’s design will consider the potential 

increase in weight and wind loading should an architectural facade be installed at a later date. WJE will 

meet with representatives from the City to discuss the conceptual design and to receive direction from 

you regarding how to proceed. 

5H



Aaron Ford 

City of Birmingham 

February 22, 2023 

Page 4 

 

 

2. Structural Design and Construction Drawings. Based on the direction we receive from you, WJE will 

design the facade system to act as a guardrail and vehicle barrier system that complies with current 

code requirements (2015 MBC). WJE will return to the site to verify existing conditions in support of 

the replacement design, as new attachment methods are anticipated. WJE will produce drawings and 

details to supplement the construction documents for facade panel repairs included in our initial 

scope of work. 

3. Facade Selection. If requested, WJE will assist the City with selection of an architectural facade system 

to be attached to the structural system we design. 

Chester Glazing and Roofing 

The following tasks are proposed to supplement our original scope of work: 

Glazing Issues 

1. Site Visit. WJE will perform a visual survey, aided with binocular or telephoto equipment from grade 

or roof and garage level surfaces to qualitatively categorize the structural sealant condition at each 

vision unit. Spandrel units are not readily evaluated from a visual survey due to being opaque and will 

largely be excluded from our survey. Each visible pane with be assessed on a three-level scale: low, 

intermediate, or normal. In addition, WJE will systematically collect photographs of the current state of 

adhesion for intermediately bonded panels for monitoring purposes and future reference.  

During this visit, WJE will also assess the ability of the existing structure to support permanent roof-

level fall arrest tie-off (anchorage) points to facilitate the required curtainwall remediation work, as 

well as future cleaning and maintenance activities. The anchorage points will not be designed or 

detailed at this time; however, the viability and potential advantages of installing them will be 

discussed with the City once more is known about the salient conditions. 

2. Construction Documents. WJE will prepare additional drawings, details, and outline specifications 

related to deglazing and reglazing select glass units to be included in the repair documents which are 

currently being prepared. 

Roofing Replacement 

1. Site Visit. WJE will perform a detailed visual survey of the existing areas of roofing as they relate to 

the perimeter coping termination and differences in the original construction drawings. Pertinent 

conditions will be documented to assist with the design of the new roofing system. 

2. Roofing Design. Based on our observations and experience, WJE will design a new roofing system for 

the subject areas.  

3. Construction Documents. WJE will prepare additional drawings, details, and outline specifications 

related to the new roofing to be included in the repair documents which are currently being prepared. 

ADA Compliance 

The following tasks are proposed to supplement our original scope of work: 

5H



Aaron Ford 

City of Birmingham 

February 22, 2023 

Page 5 

 

 

1. Document Review. WJE will review the original construction drawings previously provided by the City 

with respect to ADA compliance items. 

2. Site Visits. WJE will visit each of the five garages to review and document the as-built conditions with 

respect to ADA compliance options. One full day for one architect at each garage has been assumed 

for this task. 

3. ADA Standards Review. Based on information gathered from the previous tasks, WJE will review the 

as-built conditions relative to the applicable provisions of the currently adopted 2010 ADA Standards 

for Accessible Design and develop recommendations for modifications to satisfy those provisions. 

4. Report. WJE will prepare a written report summarizing the findings from our document review, site 

visits, and review of the ADA standards tasks. Conceptual level recommendations for modifications 

will be presented in the report for the City’s consideration. 

WJE is also available to assist the City with development of construction drawings to perform the agreed 

upon ADA modifications. However, considering that the scope of modifications is not known at this time, 

we cannot definitively state the scope of services or fees to complete this task. Based on our previous 

experience preparing similar documents, we estimate the fees to be in the range of $30,000 to $50,000. 

TERMS AND CONDITIONS 

WJE will perform the Modified Scope of Services described above for a fixed fee as outlined in Table 1 

below. WJE’s work will be performed in accordance with the terms of our previously executed Agreement 

dated November 14, 2022. WJE will not perform additional services that exceed the budget prior to 

obtaining written permission from the City. 

Table 1. Fee Estimate 

Park Facade Replacement Fee Estimate 

Conceptual Replacement Design, Structural Design, and 

Construction Documents 

$50,000 

Facade Selection (if requested) $10,000 

Subtotal for Park $60,000 

Chester Glazing and Roofing Fee Estimate 

Glazing $24,500 

Roofing $17,500 

Subtotal for Chester $42,000 

ADA Compliance Fee Estimate 

Document Review, Site Visits, ADA Standards Review and 

Report 

$40,000 

Expected Range for ADA Construction Documents $30,000 to $50,000 

Subtotal for ADA (5 Garages) $70,000 to $90,000 

Total Modified Scope of Services $172,000 to $192,000 

5H



Aaron Ford 

City of Birmingham 

February 22, 2023 

Page 6 

 

 

UPDATED SCHEDULE 

Based on our September 30, 2022 proposal and the contract received on November 14, 2022, the 

schedule of milestones was as follows (prior to issuing this Addendum): 

 November 14: Work commences 

 January 14: Project team meeting following completion of fieldwork and analysis 

 April 1: WJE issues 90% complete set for “Owner Review” 

 April 7: City/SP+ provides “Owner Review” comments to WJE 

 May 1: WJE issues completed construction documents for bid solicitation 

 May 7: Pre-bid meeting/walkthrough 

 May 10: Deadline for technical questions 

 May 14: WJE issues Addendum, if necessary 

 May 29: Bidding deadline 

Due to the outlined additional scope of services, we anticipate an additional 3-5 weeks on the current 

project schedule to perform the Chester Glazing and Roofing fieldwork and to integrate the findings into 

the current repair drawings. For the Park Facade Replacement, we anticipate an additional 6-8 weeks on 

the current project schedule which will also be dependent on coordination with the City.  

To facilitate the overall project objectives while accommodating extended schedules for individual 

garages, we propose staggering the garage deliverables as follows. This excludes construction documents 

related to the ADA related work, which we understand will be addressed separately. 

 NOW Parking Structure: Structural and waterproofing contract documents issued for bid on or 

around March 17, 2023 with project commencement anticipated in Spring-Summer 2023. This 

construction scope will be a continuation of the 2021-2022 work and will include concrete and 

waterproofing related work on the lower levels and stairwells. MEP-related contract documents to be 

issued at a later date as a Bulletin to the base scope or bid as a separate project scope.  

 Chester, Pierce, and Peabody Parking Structures: Contract documents to be issued for bid on or 

before June 1, 2023 with project commencement anticipated in Summer-Fall 2023 based on 

contractor input and work extending into Spring-Summer 2024 as originally anticipated.   

 Park Street Parking Structure: Contract documents to be issued for bid on or around July 1, 2023, 

pending coordination with the City, with project commencement anticipated in Summer 2024. 

CLOSING 

We appreciate the continued opportunity to work with the City of Birmingham and to assist with the care 

of its public structures. Please feel free to contact Matthew Lewis or Sarah Rush at (248) 593-0900 if you 

have any questions or comments regarding our recommended scope of work. 

 

5H



Aaron Ford 

City of Birmingham 

February 22, 2023 

Page 7 

 

 

Sincerely, 

WISS, JANNEY, ELSTNER ASSOCIATES, INC. 

  
Matthew E. Lewis, PE Sarah V. Rush, PE 

Project Manager and Senior Associate Project Manager and Senior Associate 

 

5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



5H



1 

MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE:  March 8th, 2023 

TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Brooks Cowan, Senior Planner 

APPROVED: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Set a public hearing for a lot combination of 34350 Woodward Avenue and 909-
911 Haynes Street, Parcel # 19-36-281-022 and Parcel # 19-36-281-030. 

INTRODUCTION: 
The owner of 34350 Woodward Avenue and 909-911 Haynes Street is seeking approval for a lot 
combination of two parcels into one in order to accommodate a new 2-3 story building for the 
Fred Lavery Porsche Dealership.  

BACKGROUND: 
The subject properties are located on the northeast corner of the intersection at Haynes Street, 
Elm Street, and Woodward Avenue. The Fred Lavery Porshe Dealership is located at 34350 
Woodward Ave while a two story commercial building is located at 907-911 Haynes Street. The 
applicant is proposing to demolish the existing buildings, combine the lots, and construct a multi-
story auto sales agency capable of accomodating a larger fleet of vehicles on-site.  

Auto sales agencies and auto show rooms within the MU-5 and MU-7 Zone require a Special Land 
Use Permit (SLUP), which the applicant obtained November 8th, 2010 for the 34350 Woodward 
parcel only.  

In November of 2020 and January of 2021, the applicant appeared before City Commission to 
request a lot combination, however the applicant had yet to complete a formal review process 
with the Planning Board for expanding use under a SLUP. The applicant was directed to obtain 
site plan and SLUP review prior to completing the lot combination process. 

On December 1st, 2022, (Agenda – Minutes) the applicant appeared before the Multi-Modal 
Transportation Board (MMTB) to review recommendations of the Triangle District Plan’s concepts 
for the intersection of Elm Street, Haynes Street, and Woodward Avenue. 

5I



2 

On January 25th, 2023, (Agenda – Minutes) the Planning Board reviewed the application for the 
Final Site Plan and Special Land Use Permit (FSP & SLUP). The Planning Board moved to 
recommend approval of the FSP & SLUP with obtaining a lot combination as a condition of 
approval.  

The Combination of Land Parcels Ordinance (Chapter 102, Section 102-83) requires that the 
following standards be met for approval of a lot combination. 

(1) The Combination will result in lots or parcels of land consistent with the character of the area 
where the property is located, Chapter 126 of this Code for the zone district in which the 
property is located, and all applicable master land use plans. 

In regards to character of the area, the property is located within the City’s Triangle
District. The area is surrounded by a variety of uses and buildings ranging from one story
to five stories in height which are mostly surrounded by surface parking.

In regards to zoning, 34350 Woodward is zoned MU-7 in the Triangle Overlay District
while 907-911 Haynes Street is zoned MU-5. Both parcels are zoned B-2 in the underlying
Zoning District. As previously mentioned, auto sales and auto showrooms are permitted
with approval of a Special Land Use Permit in the MU-5 and MU-7 Zones. The subject
property’s SLUP application in 2010 was for one parcel only at 34350 Woodward and
expanding the auto sales and auto showroom use requires a SLUP amendment.

The applicant has appeared before the Planning Board for Preliminary and Final Site Plan
review with the new building proposal. The applicant has satisfied all Zoning Ordinance
requirements and merited a recommendation of approval from the Planning Board to City
Commission.

In regards to applicable Master Plans, the Triangle District Plan recommends that Worth Street
be realigned to connect Bowers Street to the proposed Worth Plaza to improve connectivity
within the Triangle District. City staff has determined not to pursue the Worth Street extension
due to complications, one of which being a lack of control over the property to the north
necessary for completing the extension.

The Triangle District Master Plan also recommends that the intersection of Elm Street at Haynes
Street and Woodward Avenue be realigned to reduce speeds of vehicles exiting Woodward Ave
onto Elm Street, reduce turning conflicts, and enhance pedestrian safety at the crosswalks.
The applicant has appeared before the Multi-Modal Transportation Board and Planning Board
for review of this intersection. There was general consensus from each board that option C2
of the Triangle District Plan which includes a one way southbound Elm Street with an extended
bumpout to prevent turning conflicts from Haynes Street. The implementation of option C2
was recommended by staff as a conditon of approval for the applicant’s Final Site Plan and
SLUP.

Accordingly, the proposed lot combination appears to satisfy this requirement.

(2) All residential lots formed as a result of a combination shall be a maximum width of no 
more than twice the average lot width of all lots in the same zone district within 300 feet 
on the same street. 

5I



3 

The proposed combination is commercial, not residential, therefore this 
requirement is not applicable. 

(3) All residential lots formed as a result of a combination shall be a maximum area of no more 
than twice the average lot area of all lots in the same zone district within 300 feet on the same 
street. 

The proposed combination is commercial, not residential, therefore this
requirement is not applicable.

(4) The combination will result in building envelopes on the combined parcels that will allow 
for the placement of buildings and structures in a manner consistent with the existing 
rhythm and pattern of development within 500 feet in all directions in the same zone 
district. 

The Triangle District has a variety of buildings types ranging in height and size, many of
which are surrounded by large surface parking lots. Given the existing conditions of
the lower Triangle District, the proposed lot combination and building envelope
appear to meet this requirement.

(5) Any due or unpaid taxes or special assessments upon the property have been paid in full. 

There are no outstanding taxes due on this property. The proposal meets this
requirement.

(6) The combination will not adversely affect the interest of the public or the abutting property 
owners. In making this determination, the City Commission shall consider, but not be 
limited to the following: 

a.) The location of proposed buildings or structures, the location and nature of vehicular 
ingress or egress so that the use or appropriate development of adjacent land or 
buildings will not be hindered, nor the value thereof impaired. 

Based on the attached survey the proposed lot combination and building 
envelope appear to meet this requirement. 

b.) The effect of the proposed combination upon any floodplain areas, wetlands and other 
natural features and the ability of the applicant to develop a buildable site on the 
resulting parcel without unreasonable disturbances of such natural features.  

The property is not located in a floodpain or wetlands, nor adjacent to a 
floodplain or wetlands. 

c.) The location, size, density and site layout of any proposed structures or buildings as 
they may impact an adequate supply of light and air to adjacent properties and the 
capacity of essential public facilities such as police and fire protection, drainage 
structures, municipal sanitary sewer and water, and refuse disposal. 

The proposed lot combination does not appear to impact the supply of light 
and air to adjacent properties or the ability of the City to provide essential 

5I



4 

services. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City Attorney has reviewed the request and has no objections as to the form and content. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
There are no fiscal impacts for this agenda item. 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
As required for lot combinations, notices will be sent out to all property owners and tenants within 
300 ft. of the property in advance of the April 3rd, 2023 public hearing at the City Commission. 

SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division requests that the City Commission set a public hearing date of April 3rd, 
2023 to consider the lot combination of 34350 Woodward Ave and 909-911 Haynes Street, parcel 
# 19-36-281-022 and parcel # 19-36-281-030. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
• Letter to the City
• Registered land surveys
• Proof of ownership

SUGGESTED ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to set a public hearing date of April 3rd, 2023 to consider 
the lot combination of 34350 Woodward Ave and 909-911 Haynes Street, parcel # 19-36-281-
022 and parcel # 19-36-281-030. 

5I



 

01347101.DOCX 

 
 March 3, 2023  

By Email and Hand Delivery              Richard D. Rattner 
                      rdr@wwrplaw.com 
 
City Commission 
City of Birmingham 
151 S. Martin Street 
Birmingham, MI 48009 
Attn: Nicholas Dupuis 
 
 Re: Combination of Platted Lots Application for Parcel Nos. 19-36-281-030 and19-36-
281-022, property known as 34350 Woodward Avenue and 909-911 Haynes Street, Birmingham, 
MI (“Application”) 
 
Dear Mr. Dupuis and Members of the City Commission: 
 

We submit this letter in support of the Application filed by Lavery Michigan Dealership 
No. I, LLC (“Applicant”) for a lot combination of the parcels commonly known as 34350 
Woodward Avenue and 909-911 Haynes Street, Birmingham, MI (the “Subject Property”).  
Please let this letter suffice as the required statement of reason for the requested lot combination, 
as required by the Combination of Platted Lots Application, paragraph 5. 
  

The Application was submitted as part of a series of applications filed with the Planning 
Department on behalf of Applicant and its proposed development project at the Subject Property. 
The purpose of the lot combination is to create a single parcel on the corner of Elm and Haynes 
Streets and Woodward Avenue, upon which Applicant plans to build a three (3) story retail 
automobile dealership, with a 130 space parking garage.  The Woodward parcel has operated as 
a Porsche automobile sales dealership for the past thirteen (13) years, and after Applicant’s 
acquisition of the Haynes parcel in 2014, it has operated as supporting office and parking space 
for the dealership at various times.  The Applicant desires to redesign and combine both parcels 
in order to make it a seamless part of the Porsche dealership. 
 
 On January 25, 2023, the City of Birmingham Planning Board conditionally approved 
Applicant’s application for a Special Land Use Permit (SLUP) and its site plan to develop this 
project.  One of the conditions to SLUP approval is that “the applicant obtain a lot combination 
to create a single parcel for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street.”  See attached 
Exhibit 1, Meeting Minutes from January 25, 2023 Planning Board Meeting.  Applicant is now 
required to obtain approval from the City Commission for its SLUP and site plan, which it plans 
to do at the Commission’s March 13, 2023 meeting.  Senior City Planner Brooks Cowan 

5I



Letter to City Commission 
Combination of Platted Lots 
34350 Woodward/909-911 Haynes 
Page 2 

2 
01347101.DOCX 

informed Applicant that the City would like inlude the lot combination hearing with the SLUP 
hearing at this meeting. 
 

The following analysis of the relevant portions of the City of Birmingham Code of 
Ordinances provides further support for the Application.  
 
Ordinance Sec. 102-83 – Lot Combination Standards for approval 
 

(1) The combination will result in lots or parcels of land consistent with the character 
of the area where the property is located, Chapter 126 of this Code for the zone 
district in which the property is located, and all applicable master land use plans. 

 
 The Subject Property has operated as a Porsche auto sales dealership for the past thirteen 
(13) years, although the Subject Property currently consists of the sales building and a surface 
parking lot for automobile storage, as well as a two-story building that Applicant used as office 
space under a temporary SLUP amendment.   A T-Mobile Cell Phone Store is immediately to the 
northwest (across Elm) and a single-story office building is directly to the north.  South across 
Haynes is the Walgreens drug store, which sits on a large parcel.  The proposed development is 
consistent with the character of the area where the property is located because it will unify the 
existing two parcels and the incongruous buildings and surface parking thereon into one cohesive 
structure: a three (3) story retail automobile dealership with a 130-space parking garage.   
 

The Subject Property is in the Triangle District of Birmingham, and the proposed 
combination will result in a development that comports exactly with the vision of the 2007 
Triangle District Urban Design Plan (“2007 Plan”).  The 2007 Plan provides the following vision 
for development in the District: “The Triangle District is a stage for bold and distinctive 
architecture that creates a unique identity for the neighborhood and City. Building masses are the 
primary features, replacing the bleak” surface parking lots that currently dominate the landscape. 
(2007 Plan, p. 1).   
 

The relevant sections of the City of Birmingham Zoning Ordinance Sec. 126-3.05(C), 
include the following purpose of the Triangle District: “Minimize traffic congestion, inefficient 
surface parking lots,” which is exactly what this combination and development will do.  The 
proposed combination is consistent with the standards of development in the Triangle District, as 
evidenced by the conditional approval of the SLUP and site plan. 
 

The lot combination will create a single parcel which will allow Applicant to build a 
structure with more mass and a parking garage, achieving the two primary goals set forth in the 
2007 Triangle District Plan and the Zoning Ordinance.  It also will contribute to a continuous 

5I



Letter to City Commission 
Combination of Platted Lots 
34350 Woodward/909-911 Haynes 
Page 3 

3 
01347101.DOCX 

streetscape down this block of Haynes, ridding it of some of the break currently caused by 
surface parking.  
  

(2) All residential lots formed as a result of a combination shall be a maximum width 
of no more than twice the average lot width of all lots in the same zone district 
within 300 feet on the same street. 

 
 The Subject Property is a commercial lot and therefore this standard of approval is not 
applicable. 
  

(3) All residential lots formed as a result of a combination shall be a maximum area of 
no more than twice the average lot area of all lots in the same zone district within 
300 feet on the same street. 

 
 The Subject Property is a commercial lot and therefore this standard of approval is not 
applicable. 
 

(4) The combination will result in building envelopes on the combined parcels that will 
allow for the placement of buildings and structures in a manner consistent with the 
existing rhythm and pattern of development within 500 feet in all directions in the 
same zone district. 

 
 The Applicant desires to develop the Subject Property in a manner already addressed that 
will allow for a new three (3) story retail automobile dealership, with a 130-space parking 
garage, on the site of Applicant’s currently retail automobile dealership. This is consistent with 
development within 500 feet of the Subject Property.  The proposed development is not 
inconsistent with the existing rhythm and pattern of development within 500 feet in all directions 
(such as the large Walgreens building to the south) and is consistent with the 2007 Triangle 
District Plan, which seeks to promote the development of larger mass buildings with parking 
structures.  
  
 (5) Any due or unpaid taxes or special assessments upon the property have been paid in 
full. 
  

There are no unpaid taxes or special assessments related to the Subject Property. 
 
 
 

 

5I



Letter to City Commission 
Combination of Platted Lots 
34350 Woodward/909-911 Haynes 
Page 4 

4 
01347101.DOCX 

 (6) The combination will not adversely affect the interest of the public or the abutting 
property owners. 
 
 The proposed lot combination combines two parcels that are used in the same manner as 
proposed by the new development.  The combination will have no negative impact on the public 
or the abutting property owners and will improve traffic flow and parking concerns in the 
surrounding area (see Ordinance Sec. 102-83(6)(a)).  The Subject Property is not located in a 
floodplain, wetland, or other area with protected natural features, nor will the proposed 
combination and development impact the public or abutting property owners’ supply of light, air, 
or access to essential public facilities (see Ordinance Sec. 102-83(6)(b-c)).   
 
Conclusion 
 
 This Application to combine the two lots to create one unified parcel on the Subject 
Property is a benefit to the health, safety, and welfare of our community and satisfies the spirit 
and intent of Ordinance Section 102-83(1) – (6).  We respectfully request the lot combination be 
recommended for approval to the City Commission.   
 

Very truly yours, 

WILLIAMS WILLIAMS RATTNER & PLUNKETT, PC 

Richard D. Rattner 

Richard D. Rattner 
 

 

5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



5I



MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 

DATE:  March 8th, 2023 

TO:  Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Brooks Cowan, Senior Planner 

APPROVED: Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 

SUBJECT: Public Hearing for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street – Fred Lavery 
Porsche Dealership – Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan & Design Review 
(Request to Postpone) 

INTRODUCTION: 
The applicant has submitted an application for a Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and 
Design Review for a three-story auto sales agency in the MU-5 and MU-7 zones of the Triangle 
District.   

BACKGROUND: 
The applicant orginally received a Special Land Use Permit in 2010 to operate a Porsche car 
dealership at 34350 Woodward Ave. The applicant is proposing to demolish the existing building 
as well as the adjacent site at 909-911 Haynes, combine the lots, and construct a multi-story auto 
sales agency capable of accomodating a larger fleet of vehicles on-site.  

On October 26th, 2022 (Agenda – Minutes), the applicant appeared before the Planning Board for 
a Community Impact Study and Preliminary Site Plan review.  An item of discussion was the new 
garage door and curb cut facing the pedestrian crosswalk on Elm Street. Staff recommended that 
the applicant coordinate with staff and relevant boards on considering a reconfiguration for Elm 
Street. Upon review the Planning Board moved to accept the CIS with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant resolve all issues related to the Transportation Impact Study as requested
by the City’s traffic consultants;

2. The applicant obtain site plan review and recommendation from the Multi-Modal
Transportation Board (MMTB) related to vehicular and pedestrian traffic safety features
for the intersection of Haynes Street, Elm Street, and Woodward Ave;

3. The applicant provide the Planning Department with copies of any existing due care plans,
plans developed in connection with the construction of the project, information about the
existence of any vapors during the process of construction, and plans for remediation of
any hazardous vapors identified; and

7A



2 

4. The applicant comply with all requests from City Departments.

The Planning Board also moved to recommend the Preliminary Site Plan with the following 
conditions: 

1. The applicant obtain site plan review and recommendation from the MMTB related to
vehicular and pedestrian traffic safety features for the intersection of Haynes Street, Elm
Street, and Woodward Ave;

2. The applicant provide sidewalks along Elm Street, Woodward Ave, and Haynes Street that
are a minimum of 12 feet wide;

3. The applicant comply with all department requests.

On December 1st, 2022, (Agenda – Minutes) the applicant appeared before the Multi-Modal 
Transportation Board (MMTB) to review recommendations of the Triangle District Plan’s concepts 
for the intersection of Elm Street, Haynes Street, and Woodward Avenue. The Multi-Modal 
Transportation Board moved to recommend option C2 which is reducing Elm Street to one-way 
southbound between Bowers Street and Haynes Street. The MMTB also mentioned that they did 
not want Elm Street realignment to interfere with the project’s timeline. 

On January 25th, 2023, (Agenda – Minutes) the Planning Board reviewed the application with 
discussion regarding the merits of keeping Elm Street two-ways and moving the crosswalk north 
(C1), versus changing Elm Street to one-way southbound with an enlarged bumpout to prevent 
vehicles exiting Woodward northbound onto Elm Street (C2). The Planning Board expressed a 
priority to enhance the safety of Elm Street with converting it to one-way southbound in option C2 
and moved to recommend approval to the City Commission the Special Land Use Permit, Final Site 
Plan and Design Review application for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street – Fred 
Lavery Porsche - with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant must provide details regarding the species of landscaping proposed for the
entrance to ensure that no prohibited species are being used;

2. The applicant relocate the crosswalk on Elm to the north to avoid conflict with the service
entry to a location approved by Staff;

3. The Planning Board expresses a high priority on making the intersection of
Haynes, Woodward, and Elm safer through a reconfiguration similar to Option
C2 as expeditiously as possible by the City Commission;

4. The applicant provide updated site plans and surveys addressing concerns related to the
electrical pole in the sidewalk on the northwest corner of the property;

5. The applicant provide updated lighting information regarding the light fixture
specifications and the parking lot circulation area lumen values;

6. The Planning Board approve deviations to the architectural requirements of Section
3.09(D)(1), Section 3.09(B)(2), and Section 3.09(A)(4) to enable the applicant creativity
and flexibility in design for a metal exterior, a non-inset front door, and a garage door on
the front façade with the condition that the applicant provide a front elevation drawing of
the proposed building superimposed on a color drawing or photograph of the entire block
showing the relation of the proposed building design to other buildings along the block;

7. The applicant comply with all department requests; and,
8. That the applicant obtain a lot combination to create a single parcel for 34350 Woodward

Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street.

7A



3 

The applicant has coordinated with staff on providing all required documents and applications 
required by the Planning Board in their conditions of approval. The applicant has applied for a lot 
combination which is scheduled for April 3rd, 2023. City staff recommends that the City 
Commission consider requiring the applicant to be responsible for all costs related to 
the reconfiguration of Elm Street. 

LEGAL REVIEW: 
The City Attorney has reviewed this request and has no objections as to the form and content. 

FISCAL IMPACT: 
The Triangle District Urban Design Plan recomends a reconfiguration of the intersection of 
Woodward Ave, Haynes Street, and Elm Street adjacent to the subject site. If the City 
Commission wishes to have the recommended improvements made to the subject 
intersection, the City Commisison may require that the applicant make such 
improvements at their own cost as a condition of their SLUP. If the applicant is not 
required to provide such changes, then the City of Birmingham would be responsible for any costs 
related to reconfigurations of Elm Street as recommended by the Triangle District Plan if the City 
wishes to pursue such enhancements.  

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
As required for a Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review, a legal ad was placed 
in a newspaper of local circulation to advertise the nature of the request in advance of the January 
25th, 2023 Planning Board meeting, and notices were sent out to all property owners and tenants 
within 300 ft. of the property. In addition, a second round of notices were sent out to advertise 
the public hearing at the City Commission on March 13th, 2023.  

SUMMARY: 
The Planning Division requests that the City Commission consider postponing, per the request of 
the applicant, the Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 34350 
Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street – Fred Lavery Porsche to have the lot combination and 
Special Land Use Permit hearing on the same date. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
Please find attached the following documents for your review: 

• Special Land Use Permit Resolution
• Special Land Use Permit Contract
• Postponement Request Letter
• Final Site Plans
• Planning Board report
• Triangle District Urban Design Plan – relevant pages

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion to postpone the public hearing and consideration of the Special Land Use Permit, 
Final Site Plan and Design Review application for 34350 Woodward Ave and 909-911 Haynes 
Street – Fred Lavery Porsche – to April 3rd, 2023 per the request of the applicant to provide for 
a simplified review process with the Special Land Use Permit and lot combination 
applications being considered at the same meeting. 

7A



4 

Fred Lavery Porsche 
34350 Woodward Ave  & 909-911 Haynes Street 

Special Land Use Permit 2023 

WHEREAS, A Special Land Use Permit application was filed in November 2022 for 
approval of a new three-story auto sales agency in the the MU-7 and MU-5 zoning districts; 

WHEREAS, The land for which the Special Land Use Permit is sought is located on the 
east side of Woodward Ave at the northeast corner of Elm Street and Haynes Street; 

WHEREAS, The land is zoned MU-7 and MU-5, which permits the operation of an auto 
sales agency with a Special Land Use Permit; 

WHEREAS, Article 7, section 7.34 of Chapter 126, Zoning requires a Special Land Use 
Permit to be considered and acted upon by the Birmingham City Commission, after receiving 
recommendations on the site plan and design from the Planning Board for the proposed Special 
Land Use; 

WHEREAS, The Planning Board on January 25th, 2023 reviewed the application for a Special 
Land Use Permit ,  Final Site Plan and Design Review and recommended approval to the City 
Commission for the contstruction of a new three-story auto sales agency with the following 
conditions: 

1. The applicant must provide details regarding the species of landscaping proposed for the
entrance to ensure that no prohibited species are being used;

2. The applicant relocate the crosswalk on Elm to the north to avoid conflict with the service
entry to a location approved by Staff;

3. The Planning Board expresses a high priority on making the intersection of Haynes,
Woodward, and Elm safer through a reconfiguration similar to Option C2 as expeditiously
as possible by the City Commission;

4. The applicant provide updated site plans and surveys addressing concerns related to the
electrical pole in the sidewalk on the northwest corner of the property;

5. The applicant provide updated lighting information regarding the light fixture
specifications and the parking lot circulation area lumen values;

6. The Planning Board approve deviations to the architectural requirements of of Section
3.09(D)(1), Section 3.09(B)(2), and Section 3.09(A)(4) to enable the applicant creativity
and flexibility in design for a metal exterior, a non-inset front door, and a garage door on
the front façade with the condition that the applicant provide a front elevation drawing of
the proposed building superimposed on a color drawing or photograph of the entire block
showing the relation of the proposed building design to other buildings along the block;

7. The applicant comply with all department requests; and,
8. That the applicant obtain a lot combination to create a single parcel for 34350 Woodward

Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street.

WHEREAS, The Birmingham City Commission has reviewed Fred Lavery Porsche’s Special
Land Use Permit application and the standards for such review as set forth in Article 7, section 
7.36 of Chapter 126, Zoning, of the City Code; 

7A



5 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED, The Birmingham City Commission finds the 
standards imposed under the City Code have been met, subject to the conditions below, and that 
Fred Lavery Porsche’s application for a Special Land Use Permit, Final Site Plan and Design Review 
at 34350 Woodward Ave is hereby approved; 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That the City Commission determines that to ensure 
continued compliance with Code standards and to protect public health, safety, and welfare, this 
Special Land Use Permit is granted subject to the following conditions: 

a) Fred Lavery Porsche shall abide by all provisions of the Birmingham City
Code including any subsequently amended or enacted ordinances; and

b) Fred Lavery Porsche shall comply with the conditions of approval assigned by
the Planning Board and City Commission; and

c) The Special Land Use Permit may be canceled by the City Commission
upon finding that the continued use is not in the public interest; and

d) In order for the development of the new Fred Lavery Porsche to occur,
there will need to be a reconfiguration of Elm Street at the intersection of
Elm Street, Haynes Street and Woodward Avenue; and

e) After a traffic study of the area including the intersection of Elm Street,
Haynes Street and Woodward Avenue, the reconfiguration of Elm Street
shall be developed and designed by Fred Lavery Porsche with approval of
all elements of the reconfiguration including, but not limited to design,
materials, etc., by the City Engineer;

f) Fred Lavery Porsche shall be responsible for all costs related to the
reconfiguration of Elm Street including, but not limited to designs, traffic
studies, materials, labor any and all other necessary costs to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer;

g) Fred Lavery Porsche shall enter into a streetscape agreement with the City
Planner and City Engineer that will address all elements including, but not
limited to moving the DTE electric pole on the northwest corner of the
property, the electric vehicle charging stations, and the Elm Street
reconfiguration; and

h) The applicant shall comply with the conditions of approval assigned by the
Planning Board and City Commission.

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, That failure to comply with any of the above conditions shall 
result in termination of the Special Land Use Permit. 

BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED, Except as herein specifically provided, Fred Lavery Porsche 
and its heirs, successors, and assigns shall be bound by all ordinances of the City of 
Birmingham in effect at the time of the issuance of this permit, and as they may be subsequently 
amended. Failure of Fred Lavery Porsche to comply with all the ordinances of the City may 
result in the Commission revoking this Special Land Use Permit. 

BE FURTHER RESOLVED that Fred Lavery Porsche is recommended for the 
construction of a three-story auto sales agency, subject to final inspection. 

7A



6 

I, Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk of the City of Birmingham, Michigan, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the resolution adopted by the Birmingham City 
Commission at its regular meeting held on April 3rd, 2023. 

Alexandria Bingham 
City Clerk  

7A



CONTRACT FOR A SPECIAL LAND USE PERMIT  
FOR 34350 WOODWARD AVE & 909-911 HAYNES STREET 

– FRED LAVERY PORSCHE

This Contract is entered i n t o  this  __day of  ___, 2023 by and between 

LAVERY MICHIGAN DEALERSHIP PROPERTIES NO. 1 LLC (Fred Lavery Porsche), whose 
address is 440 Lake Park, Birmingham, MI 48009 (Licensee), LAVERY MICHIGAN 
DEALERSHIP PROPERTIES NO. 1 LLC, whose address is 440 Lake Park, Birmingham, MI 
48009 (Property Owner), and the CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, a Michigan Municipal Corporation, 
whose address is 151 Martin Street, Birmingham, Michigan 48009 (City). 

R E C I T A L S: 

WHEREAS, a Special Land Use Permit Application was filed on November 15th, 2022 for 
approval of a new three story auto sales agency; and, 

WHEREAS, the land for which the Special Land Use Permit Agreement is sought is located 
on the northeast corner of the interesection of Haynes Street, Woodward Ave, and Elm Street; 
and, 

WHEREAS, the land is zoned MU-7 and MU-5 in the Triangle District Overlay which 
permits the operation of an auto sales agency with a Special Land Use Permit; and, 

WHEREAS, Article 7, section 7.34 of Chapter 126, Zoning requires a Special Land Use 
Permit to be considered and acted upon by the Birmingham City Commission, after receiving 
recommendations on the site plan and design from the Planning Board for the proposed Special 
Land Use; 

WHEREAS, the City of Birmingham Commission is approving this agreement in granting 
a contract to Lavery Michigan Dealership Properties No. 1 LLC (Fred Lavery Porsche) for the 
issuance of a Special Land Use Permit for an auto sales agency in accordance with Chapter 126, 
Article 2, Section 2.27(C)(2)(c). 

NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows: 

1. Licensee acknowledges that no modifications to the site plan, floor plan, elevations
or operation of the auto sales agency may be made unless approved by the City Commission 
through a Special Land Use Permit Amendment. Modifications include, but are not limited to, 
name changes, ownership changes, remodeling, etc.  

2. Licensee agrees that it shall adhere to all Federal, State and Local ordinances
currently in effect or as subsequently amended or enacted. 

3. Licensee agrees that its failure to follow any of the provisions herein may be grounds
for the Birmingham City Commission to revoke the Special Land Use Permit which would prohibit 
Licensee from operating the auto sales agency.  Licensee agrees that in addition to the City of 
Birmingham’s right to seek revocation of the Special Land Use Permit, the City retains any and all 
rights to enforce this Contract that may be available to it in law or in equity.  Licensee agrees 

7A



2 

that it shall reimburse the City all of its costs and actual attorney fees incurred by the City in 
seeking the revocation of the Special Land Use Permit, as well as enforcing such other rights as 
may be available at law and/or in equity. 

4. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Licensee and Property Owner and any entity
or person for whom Licensee and the Property Owner is legally liable, agrees to be responsible 
for any liability, defend, pay on behalf of, indemnify, and hold harmless the City, its elected and 
appointed officials, employees and volunteers and others working on behalf of the City against 
any and all claims, demands, suits, or loss, including all costs connected therewith, including all 
costs and actual attorney fees, and for any damages which may be asserted, claimed or recovered 
against or from the City, its elected and appointed officials, employees, volunteers or others 
working on behalf of the City, by reason of personal injury, including bodily injury, death and/or 
property damage, including loss of use thereof, which arises out of or is in any way connected or 
associated with Licensee’s operation of an establishment at the Property. 

5. In the event Licensee fails to reimburse the City the costs and/or attorney fees as
required herein, or any part thereof, then said amount could be transferred to the tax roll in 
accordance with Section 1-14 of the Birmingham City Code. 

6. Any disputes arising under this Contract shall be settled either by commencement
of a suit in Oakland County Circuit Court or by compulsory arbitration, at the election of the City. 
The Licensee and Property Owner shall notify the City of any dispute it has arising out of this 
Contract and shall demand that the City elect whether the dispute is to be resolved by submitting 
it to compulsory arbitration or by commencement of a suit in Oakland County Circuit Court. The 
City shall make its election in writing within thirty (30) days from the receipt of such notice. If the 
City elects to have the dispute resolved by compulsory  arbitration, it shall be settled pursuant to 
Chapter 50 of the Revised Judicature Act for the State of Michigan, with each of the parties 
appointing one arbitrator and the two thus appointed appointing a third. In the event the City 
fails to make such an election, any dispute between the parties may be resolved by the filing of 
a suit in the Oakland County Circuit Court. 

7. This Contract shall be governed by and performed, interpreted and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of Michigan. 

8. If any provision of this contract is declared invalid, illegal or unenforceable, such
provision shall be severed from this contract and all other provisions shall remain in full force and 
effect. 

9. The City Commission determines that to ensure continued compliance with Code
standards and to protect public health, safety, and welfare, this Special Land Use Permit is granted 
subject to the following conditions: 

a) Fred Lavery Porsche shall abide by all provisions of the Birmingham City
Code including any subsequently amended or enacted ordinances; and

b) Fred Lavery Porsche shall comply with the conditions of approval assigned by
the Planning Board and City Commission; and

c) The Special Land Use Permit may be canceled by the City Commission
upon finding that the continued use is not in the public interest; and

7A



3 

d) In order for the development of the new Fred Lavery Porsche to occur,
there will need to be a reconfiguration of Elm Street at the intersection of
Elm Street, Haynes Street and Woodward Avenue; and

e) After a traffic study of the area including the intersection of Elm Street,
Haynes Street and Woodward Avenue, the reconfiguration of Elm Street
shall be developed and designed by Fred Lavery Porsche with approval of
all elements of the reconfiguration including, but not limited to design,
materials, etc., by the City Engineer;

f) Fred Lavery Porsche shall be responsible for all costs related to the
reconfiguration of Elm Street including, but not limited to designs, traffic
studies, materials, labor any and all other necessary costs to the satisfaction
of the City Engineer;

g) Fred Lavery Porsche shall enter into a streetscape agreement with the City
Planner and City Engineer that will address all elements including, but not
limited to moving the DTE electric pole on the northwest corner of the
property, the electric vehicle charging stations, and the Elm Street
reconfiguration; and

h) The applicant shall comply with the conditions of approval assigned by the
Planning Board and City Commission.

10. Failure to comply with any of the above conditions shall result in termination of the
Special Land Use Permit. 

11. Except as herein specifically provided, Fred Lavery Porsche and its heirs, successors,
and assigns shall be bound by all ordinances of the City of Birmingham in effect at the time of 
the issuance of this permit, and as they may be subsequently amended. Failure of Fred Lavery 
Porsche to comply with all the ordinances of the City may result in the Commission revoking this 
Special Land Use Permit. 

12. Fred Lavery Porsche is recommended for the operation of an auto sales agency,
subject to final inspection. 

13. This Contract shall be binding upon and apply and inure to the benefit of the parties
hereto and their respective successors or assigns. The covenants, conditions, and the agreements 
herein contained are hereby declared binding on the CITY OF BIRMINGHAM, the Property Owner 
and Licensee. It is further agreed that there shall be no change, modification, or alteration 
hereof, except in writing, signed by all of the parties hereto. Neither party shall assign any of the 
rights under this contract without prior approval, in writing, of the other. Any attempt at 
assignment without prior written consent shall be void and of no effect. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereby have executed this Contract as of the date 
set forth above. 

LAVERY MICHIGAN DEALERSHIP 
PROPERTIES NO. 1 LLC (Licensee) 

7A



4 

By: ______ 

Its:    ______ 
LAVERY MICHIGAN DEALERSHIP 
PROPERTIES NO. 1 LLC 
(Property Owner) 

By: ______ 
Its: ______ 

STATE OF MICHIGAN  ) 
) ss: 

COUNTY OF OAKLAND ) 

On this ______day of ____________, 2023, before me personally appeared 
_______________, who acknowledged that with authority on behalf of  LAVERY MICHIGAN 
DEALERSHIP PROPERTIES NO. 1 LLC, Licensee and Property Owner  to do so he/she signed 
this Agreement.  

Notary Public 
____County, Michigan 

Acting in __________ County, Michigan 
My commission expires: ________ 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

By: _____ 
  Therese Longe, Mayor 

By: _____ 
  Alexandria D. Bingham, City Clerk 

APPROVED: 

Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 
 (Approved as to substance) 

Nicholas Dupuis, Planning Director 
(Approved as to substance) 

Mary M. Kucharek, City Attorney 
 (Approved as to form) 

7A



7A



03/04/2023 -- 03:58 PM -- Scale 1 : 192

7A



10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023
Final Site Plan Review

7A



C1.10

500' Radius

7A



7A



SIDEWALKSIDEWALK
CONNECTION
TOTO CROSSWALK

7A



2 - 12' X 40
LOADING SPACES

LoLoadingo
1

Loading

LoLoadingo
2

Loading

Motorized
Gate

7 Spacesaces

7

6

4

3

2

1

4
SHOWROOMSHOWROOM

09.15.2022

USE GROUP - "B"

USE GROUP - "S"

VERTICAL CIRCULATION

17 SERVICE SPACES
12 HAYNES STREET PUBLIC SPACES
7 SHOWROOM INVENTORY SPACES

29 VEHICLE TOTAL CAPACITY AT GRADE

Luckenbach
Ziegelman
Gardner
Archtects
PLLC

PARKING & LOADING

SERVICECI PARKINGRR
(100 spaces)ec

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Charging
Stations

g gCharging

(1 per 2 stalls
typical)
((1 pp

PARTS

SERVICE

STORAGE

TOOL STORAGE

SERVICE DRIVE

12'

0'440

0'440

12 PUBLIC STREET PARALLEL PARKING SPACES
(SEE SHEET A/LA 100.1)

77 SHOWROOM
INVENTORY
VEHICALSVEHICALSSVEHICALS

LEGENDLEGENDLEGENDLSITE PLAN
w/Dealership
Level 1

12' MIN
CLEAR
REQ'D (

ASHHAAAAAWAWAAAAAAAA HAAWAWAWWAA YYSYYBBBAYYB
2(2(22222222 ss)sseacspaspssspspspssssssssssssps a esse (9 s(( s

2\/22 /1\
))))

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023
Final Site Plan Review
/2\ 3.13.2023 SLUP Review

C

7A



/1\

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023
Final Site Plan Review
/2\/2\/2\ SLUPSLUPSLUP ReviewReview

TO BE REMOVED OR RELOCATED

NOTE:
SEE SHEET C2.10 FOR
ELM STREET PARKING
AND CROSSWALK
CONFIGURATION

/2\

/2\

EXISTINGEXISTINGEXISTINGEXISTINGEXISTINGEXISTINGEXISTINGEXISTING CROSSWALKCROSSWALKCROSSWALKCROSSWALKCROSSWALKCROSSWALKCROSSWALKCROSSWALKCROSSWALKCROSSWALKCROSSWALK
TOTOTO BEBE RELOCATEDRELOCATEDRELOCATEDRELOCATED
(SEE(SEE(SEE SHEETSHEET C2.10)C2.10)C2.10)C2.10)C2.10)

/2\/2\/2\

7A



1

2

3

4

5

6

7

EXISTING CONDITIONS

PROPOSED MATERIALS

PROPOSED
CROSSWALK
LOCATION

EXISTING
CROSSWALK
LOCATION 99

"81'-0"81'-0"

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023
Final Site Plan Review

22 BAYS

/2\ 3.13.2023 SLUP Review

NOTE:
SEE SHEET C2.10
FOR ELM STREET
CONFIGURATION

/2\

EXIST'GEXIST'G POWERPOWERPOWERPOWERPOWER
POLEPOLE TO BE REMOVEDREMOVEDREMOVEDREMOVEDREMOVEDREMOVED
OROROR RELOCATEDRELOCATEDRELOCATEDRELOCATEDRELOCATEDRELOCATED

/2\

7A



LEVEL 1
17 SERVICE PARKING
7 SHOWROOM INVENTORY

24 VEHICLE TOTAL CAPACITY @ L1

SERVICE PARKING

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 99 10

Motorized Gate

PARTS
RECLAIM TRANSFORMER

DUMPSTER
ENCLOSURE

2 LOADING
SPACES

12' X 40'
EACH

7

6

5

4

3

2

1

AREA BELOW LEVEL 2 PARKING STRUCTURE

09.15.2022

USE GROUP - "B"

USE GROUP - "S"

VERTICAL CIRCULATION

LEGENDPLANPLANPLANPLAN
LEVEL 1

SERVICE PARKING

7 SHOWROOMSHOWROOM
INVENTORYINVENTORY
VEHICLESVEHICLES

SHOWROOMSHOWROOM

SERVICE RIGHT UP

SERVICEE C

PARTSPARTSPARTSPARTSPARTSPARTS STORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGE //
PARTSPARTSPARTSPARTSPARTSPARTS STORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGESTORAGE MEZMEZMEZMEZMEZ

SERVICE
STORAGE TOOL ROOM

STORAGE

(OPENOPEN TOO SERVICESERVICE AREAAREA BELOW)BEL W)

SERVICE WRITE UP

PARTS STORAGE &
PARTS MEZZANINE ABOVE

91 2 3 4 5 6 7 8

CAR WAAAASHA 22(222 BAYS)

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary

Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023

Final Site Plan Review

/1\

LEVEL 1
16 SERVICE PARKING

7 SHOWROOM INVENTORY

23 TOTAL VEHICLE CAPACITY

/1\

/2\/2\/2\ 3.13.20233.13.20233.13.2023 SLUPSLUPSLUP ReviewReviewReview

7A



LEVEL 2
51 INVENTORY, DEMO, LOANER SPACES
11 INVENTORY (STACKED)
TOTAL VEHICLE CAPACITY = 62

OPENOOPENOPEN TO SHOWROOMSHOWROOM BELOW

09.15.2022

OFFICE / STORAGE

ELEV

USE GROUP - "B"

USE GROUP - "S"

VERTICAL CIRCULATION

L2 OFFICE AREA

10 INVENTORYEE PARKINGGG

11 NEWWW CAR INVENTORYRYR PARKING
(STACKED)KK

1 2 3 4 55 666 7 8 9 10
DEMOMO & INVENTORY PARKINGP

DEMO / LOANER PARKING PARKING

3 DEMO / LOANER

12 USED CAR INVENTORYNE

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 1110

9

L2 PARKING STRUCTURE

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

12

1 22 32

11 22 3

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1010 1110

LEGENDPLAN
LEVEL 2

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023
Final Site Plan Review
/2\ 3.13.2023 SLUP ReviewReview

7A



Luckenbach
Ziegelman
Gardner
gZiegelman

Architects
PLLC

3

OFFICE/OFFICE/
SSTORAGESTORAGE

LEVEL 3

ELEV

SKYLIGHT

ROOFTOP MECHANICAL AREA
ON ROOF OF LEVEL 2

6' HIGH MIN MECHANICAL SCREEN
BLACK CORRUGATED METAL PANEL
TO MATCH BUILDING FACADE

LEVEL 3
13 EMPLOYEE PARKING SPACES
35 INVENTORY + LOANER SPACES
11 STACKED INVENTORY SPACES
4 HANDICAP PARKING SPACES
1 VAN ACCESSIBLE HDCP PARKING SPACE

USE GROUP - "B"

USE GROUP - "S"

VERTICAL CIRCULATION

09.15.2022

ROOFTOP PARKING

1 VAN HDCP
PARKING SPACE

13'X20'
MIN

EMPLOYEEEM PARKINGKI

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12

9'x20" = 180 SF
SPACE TYPICAL

8'8'8'8'8' 5' 8'

11 2

4 HDCP GPARKINGGARKINNAPARKINGNP SPACES

SERVICE LOANER PARKING

12 13

NEWWE CAR INVENTORYTT
(STACKEDTAT PARKINGNN L)

SERVICE LOANER PARKING

NEW CAR INVENTORYIN

24'

12

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 1010 11

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

3 4 1919 18 17 16 15 14 13 12 114 19

1 2 32

11 2 32

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 99 10

NEWWW CAR INVENTORYOT

LEGENDPLAN
LEVEL 3

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023
Final Site Plan Review

/2\ 3.13.2023 SLUP Review

7A



Luckenbach
Ziegelman
Gardner
gZiegelman

Architects
PLLC

09.15.2022

ROOFTOP PARKING
SEE A204

VEHICULAR RAMPDOWN

ROOFTOP PARKING

LEVEL 2 ROOF

ROOFTOP
MECHANICAL
ON LEVEL 2
ROOF

LEVEL 3

LEVEL 2
ROOF

SKYLIGHT

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023
Final Site Plan Review
/2\/2\/2\ 3.13.20233.13.20233.13.2023 SLUPSLUPSLUP ReviewReviewReviewReview

7A



Luckenbach
Ziegelman
Gardner
gZiegelman

Architects
PLLC

3 BENCHES + 3 TRASH BINS

BICYCLE RACK LOCATION

Haynes Street Elevation
BEGA EXTERIOR
LIGHTING FIXTURE
ABOVE DOORS TYPICAL

AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS 1

AS-1AS 1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS 1

AS-1

AS-1AS 1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS 1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS 1 AS-1AAS-1AAAAAAS-1AAAAAAAAS-11111111AS-11111111

PYLON GROUND SIGNSIGN
(RE-USE EXISTING)

NEW GINKGO TREES
(NON-FRUIT BEARING-
TO
((NON-FRUIT

MATCH
(NON-FRUIT

EXISTING)
TYPICAL AS-1

PUBLIC CHARGING KIOSK #2PUBLIC CHARGING KIOSK #1

09.15.2022

Elm Street Elevation

1AS-1111111111111111111111111111AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 111AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS 1AAAS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1 1AS-11AS-11AS-11AS-11AS-11AS-11AS-1S 11111AS-11AS-11111AS-11AS-11111AS-11AS-11111AS-11AS-11111AS-11AS-1AS-1AS-111AS-11AS-1AS-1AS-111AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1----

BLACK ANODIZED ALUMINUM
& GLASS OVERHEAD DOOR

SAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1SSSAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1S-AS-1AS-1AS-1SSSSSSSS

A

AS-1ASASASASASASASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1SSSAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1 AS-1111111111111111111111AAAAAAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAAAAS-1AAAA

AS-1- AS-1

PYLON GROUND SIGN
PYLON BUILDING SIGNAGE

PYLON BUILDINGBUILDING SIGNAGE

1111AS-1111111111AS-1111111111AS-111111111111AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1SSAS 1AS-1AS 1AS 1AAAAAAS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1

AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AAS-1AAAAAAAS-1AS-1AAAA

RED LED LIGHTING AT ALL HORIZONTAL REVEALS TYPICAL

RED LED LIGHTINGLIGHTINGLIGHTING AT ALL HORIZONTALHORIZONTALHORIZONTAL REVEALSREVEALSREVEALS

Fredd LaveryyLaveryFFredFredFredFredFredLaveryLLaveryLaveryLaveryaLaveryaLaveryveryLaveryLaveryLaveryLaLavery

(3' W x 8' H x 1' D)

Fred Lavery
STANDOFF

Lavery
SIGN

SIMILAR TO
EXISTING

(12'L X 2' H)

Porche Shield Service Sign
Similar to Existing
(48" H x 30"W)

Existing
ServiceeServiceeServiceeServiceSServiceSSServiceServiceeServiceeServiceSSServiceSSS

SERVICE WRITE UP
ENTRY/EXIT

PARKING GARAGE ENTRY

SHOWROOM ENTRY NEW CAR DELIVERY EXIT

SHOWROOM
ENTRY LOCATION

ServiceS iServiceServiceServiceServiceeServiceServiceServiceSSSSServiceSSS eServiceSServiceS

EXISTING STREET LIGHTS TO REMAIN

CW-2
CLEARCLEAR GLASSGLASS
INININ ALUMALUMALUMU FRAMEFRAMEFRAME
(80%( MIN LT)VLL

W/ CLEAR GLASS - MIN VLT = 80%

*CLEAR GLASS
VLT = MIN 80%

W/ CLEAR GLASS - VLT = MIN 80%

EXISTING STREETLIGHTS IN
EXISTING LOCATIONS TO REMAIN

NEW STREET TREES IN EXISTING WELLS
(GINKGO - non fruit bearing variety)
TO
((GINKGO

MATCH
(GINKGO

EXISTING
bearing

PP
PARKING

VV
O

AS-111111111AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-11111111AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAAAAAAAAAAAAAAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAAAAAAS-1AAAAAAAAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1ASAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AAS-1AAAAAS-1AS-1AAS-1

EXISTING STREET TREES (GINKGO) TO REMAIN

EXISTING STREET
LIGHT TO BE
RELOCATED (RE-USE

EXISTING)
((RE-USE

ViewViewView FromFFFFrF Street
or walkeSidee

Blacck Loouverouver BarBar
Rail andd PostsP t

Blacck Metale (steel)
Corrrugatedted PanelPanel

((

Louver RailRR
SectionS tiSection DetaililailDD

PartialP ti l ationElevaEleva Perspective

BBLACKKB METALMMETAALLLLLL LOULLOOLOUVERLOUVERLLOOUVVERRLOULLOO
GGUARDUAARRDDG RAILRA L ANDAND POSTSPOSTPOSTSSTSSTSPOSSTSST

BLACK METAL LOUVER
GUARD RAIL AND POSTS

09.15.20221.25.202315.20215.202

333

1/2" x 3"3 Steel Bar
@@ 4" O.C.O Typical

/2\ 3.13.2023 SLUP Review

Final Site Plan ReviewReviewReview

10.26.2022 CIS/
PreliminaryPreliminaryPreliminary SiteSite PlanPlan ReviewReview

09.15.2022

7A



Luckenbach
Ziegelman
Gardner
gZiegelman

Architects
PLLC

Elm Street

AS-1AS 1AS 1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS 1

DUMPSTERDUMPSTER
ENCLOSLURE
(MASONRY)

PARTSPARTS RECYCLERECYCLE
ENCLOSURE
(MASONRY)
9'
((MASONRY)

HEIGHT
(MASONRY)

6' MIN
HEIGHT

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y

L
I
N
E

P
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y

L
I
N
E

DUMPSTER ENCLOSURE
6' MINIMUM HEIGHT

(MASONRY)

PARTS ENCLOSURE.
6' MINIMUM HEIGHT.
(MASONRY)= CHARGING KIOSK

CK CK CK CK CK

PPP
R
O
P
E
R
T
Y

L
I
N
E

09.15.2022

Haynes Street

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023
Final Site Plan Review

BLACK METAL BAR LOUVER
GUARD RAIL AND POSTS
(SEESEESEE #3#3#3 - PartialPartialPartial ElevationElevationElevation Perspective)PerspectivePerspective
SHHEETH
((

A400

BLACK METAL BAR LOUVER
GUARD RAILLL ANDANDAND POSTSPOSTSPOSTS
(SEE #3 - Partialr Elevation Perspective)
SHEET
((

A4000

AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS-1AS 1

/2\ 3.13.2023 SLUP Review

7A



Haynes Street Block

Elm Street Block

03.13.202303.13.2023

SLUP REVIEW

A402A402A402

7A



09/16/2022 -- 05:45 PM -- Scale 1 : 192

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023
Final Site Plan Review
/2\ 3.13.2023 SLUP Review7A



LEVEL 33
StorageStorage

ROOF

ROOF

Mechannicaln Roof Plan M01
10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023
Final Site Plan Review

/2\ 3.13.2023 SLUP Review

7A



L01L01

L01.1L

L01.1L01.1L01.1

L01.22

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023
Final Site Plan Review

/2\ 3.13.2023
SLUP Review

1414

14

1414

/2\

7A



1L01.

10.26.2022 CIS / Preliminary
Site Plan Review

/1\ 1.25.2023
Final Site Plan Review

/2\ 3.13.2023
SLLUP REVIEW

7A



ÐØÑÌÑÓÛÌÎ×ÝÍ ó Ô×ÙØÌ×ÒÙ ÔÛÊÛÔÍðòïîðòïîðòïî

ðïòîðïòî

c

CALCULATION SUMMARY

LABEL FIXTURE UNITS AVE MAX MIN

Garage Area Floor 14W Fc 2.50 15.4 0.0

Sidewalk Planar 14W Fc 1.09 11.6 0.0K3
Fred Lavery Porsche

BEGA

L0.12L0.12L0.12L0.12 - LIGHTING LEVELS

7A



 
MEMORANDUM 
Planning Division 
 

 
DATE:  January 20th, 2023  
 
TO:  Planning Board 
 
FROM: Brooks Cowan, Senior Planner 
 
Approved:  Nick Dupuis, Planning Director 
 
SUBJECT:  34350 Woodward & 909-911 Haynes Street - Fred Lavery Porsche – SLUP 

Amendment and Final Site Plan and Design Review 
 
 
The applicant is proposing to demolish both buildings at 34350 Woodward Ave and 909-911 
Haynes Street and construct a three story auto sales agency spanning across both properties. 
Both parcels are zoned B-2, General Business. 34350 Woodward is zoned MU-7 in the Triangle 
Overlay District while 909-911 Haynes Street is zoned MU-5. Auto sales agencies require a Special 
Land Use Permit (SLUP) to operate in the B2 District as well as the MU-5 and MU-7 Districts. The 
applicant orginally received a Special Land Use Permit in 2010 to operate a Porsche car dealership 
at 34350 Woodward Ave. Upon approval, the applicant will also be required to apply for a lot 
combination with the City Commission. The lot combination hearing with City Commission shall 
be held after the SLUP hearing. 

In 2016, the applicant received a temporary SLUP amendment to use the building next door at 
909-911 Haynes as an office for the Porsche sales and management team for one year while 
renovations were made to the Porsche dealership at 34350 Woodward Ave. Conditions of approval 
were that the applicant could not have cars for sale parked on 909-911 Haynes Street. 

In January 2020, the applicant appeared before the Planning Board for Final Site Plan review and 
SLUP amendment to demolish the building at 909-911 Haynes Street and expand the Porsche 
dealership’s parking lot. After discussions regarding how the Triangle District Overlay requires 
expanding uses to bring the entire site into conformity, and that the Triangle District Urban Design 
Plan’s Worth Street Extension is recommended to pass through the subject property, the owner 
withdrew their application.  

In January, March, and April of 2021, the applicant appeared before City Commission to apply for 
a lot combination. It was determined that expanding the use through a lot combination meant 
that the site would not satisfy the requirements of the Zoning Ordinance, and therefore would 
not satisfy the requirements for a lot combination. It was recommended that the applicant appear 

7A



before the Planning Board and obtain Final Site Plan and SLUP approval before obtaining a lot 
combination. City staff recommends that the Planning Board review the City 
Commission Memos from January 25th, 2021, March 22nd, 2021, and April 26th, 2021 
regarding the lot combination of the subject site and recommendations of the 
Triangle District Urban Design Plan. 

On October 26th, 2022, the applicant appeared before the Planning Board for a Community Impact 
Study and Preliminary Site Plan Review. Upon review the Planning Board moved to accept the 
CIS with the following conditions: 

1. The applicant resolve all issues related to the Transportation Impact Study as requested 
by the City’s traffic consultants; 

2. The applicant obtain site plan review and recommendation from the Multi-Modal 
Transportation Board (MMTB) related to vehicular and pedestrian traffic safety features 
for the intersection of Haynes Street, Elm Street, and Woodward Ave;  

3. The applicant provide the Planning Department with copies of any existing due care plans, 
plans developed in connection with the construction of the project, information about the 
existence of any vapors during the process of construction, and plans for remediation of 
any hazardous vapors identified; and, 

4. The applicant comply with all requests from City Departments. 
 

The Planning Board also moved to recommend the Preliminary Site Plan with the following 
conditions: 

1. The applicant obtain site plan review and recommendation from the MMTB related to 
vehicular and pedestrian traffic safety features for the intersection of Haynes Street, Elm 
Street, and Woodward Ave;  

2. The applicant provide sidewalks along Elm Street, Woodward Ave, and Haynes Street that 
are a minimum of 12 feet wide; 

3. The applicant comply with all department requests. 
 

On December 1st, 2022, the applicant appeared before the Multi-Modal Transportation Board to 
review recommendations of the Triangle District Plan’s concepts for the intersection of Elm Street, 
Haynes Street, and Woodward Avenue. The Multi-Modal Transportation Board moved to 
recommend option C2 which is reducing Elm Street to one-way southbound between Bowers 
Street and Haynes Street. (Minutes are attached).  

The applicant has addressed some of the recommendations of staff regarding Elm Street, while 
also providing a concept of their preferred Elm Street alignment with the updated Final Site Plan 
and SLUP review.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7A



1.0 Land Use & Zoning 
 
1.1 Existing Land Use – The existing land use is commercial with two buildings, one 

an auto sales agency and the other a two story office-retail use 
 

1.2 Zoning – The subject site exists within the B2 (General Business), MU-5 (Mixed-
Use 5), and MU-7 (Mixed-Use 7) Zoning Districts. 

 
1.3 Summary of Adjacent Land Use & Zoning – The following chart summarizes 

existing land use and zoning classifications of the adjacent and/or nearby 
properties: 

 
 North South East West 

Existing 
Land Use 

Commercial/ 
Office 

Commercial/ 
Office 

Commercial/ 
Office Commercial 

Existing 
Zoning 
District 

B2 (General 
Business) 

B2 (General 
Business) 

B2 (General 
Business) & 
O2 (Office-

Commercial) 

B2 (General 
Business) 

Overlay 
Zoning 
District 

MU-3 & MU-5 MU3 & MU-5 N/A MU-5 & MU-7 

 
2.0 Setback, Bulk, & Height Requirements 

 
The attached zoning compliance summary analysis provides the required and proposed 
bulk, area, and placement regulations for the proposed project. The applicant appears to 
satisfy the bulk, area and placement requirements of the Triangle District with particular 
clarifications noted below. 

  
Article 3, Sections 3.08(C) & 3.08(D) of the Triangle District Overlay requires building 
facades in the MU-5 and MU-7 Districts to be built within 0-5 feet of the front lot line for 
a minimum of 75% of the street frontage length which the applicant appears to satisfy. 
Furthermore, Article 3.08(F) allows frontyard building setback exceptions when additional 
sidewalk and landscaping enhancements have been provided which is the case for the 
proposed showroom entrance at the corner of Elm, Woodward Ave, and Haynes. 

 
It is also of note that the Triangle District Overlay does not regulate the size of the third 
floor. Article 3, Sections 3.08(C) & 3.08(D) for the MU-5 and MU-7 Districts only require 
three floors as a minimum. The third floor is proposed to be 1,660 square feet. Obtaining 
a lot combination will bring both parcels into conformity. 

 
3.0 Screening & Landscaping 

 
3.1 Dumpster Screening – The dumpster is proposed to be located in the northeast 

corner of the property. The eastern elevation indicates the dumster will consist of 
masonry and with a 6’ minimum height, which is also concealed by the Haynes 
Street Façade. 

7A



 
3.2 Parking Lot Screening – Article 4, Section 4.54 (C) of the Zoning Ordinance requires 

screening to be placed along the front or side of any parking facility that abuts a 
street, alley, passage or mixed passage. The site plan indicates 7 ground level 
parking spaces accessible from Haynes Street. The ground level parking spaces 
are screened by the building’s two-story metal façade along Haynes Street as 
indicated in the eastern elevation design.  

 
The applicant has provided black metal louvers for the upper level parking facility 
in order prevent large blank walls from facing Haynes Street. The black metal 
louvers also provide adequate screening for the upper level parking. 

 
3.3 Mechanical Equipment Screening – The site plan indicates rooftop and ground-

mounted mechanical units that will require screening. The level 3 floor plan 
indicates five mechanical rooftop units screened by a black corrugated metal panel 
screen wall that is 5 feet in height and will match the building façade. The proposed 
rooftop mechanical units are 39 inches in height and therefore are completely 
concealed by the screenwall. The ground level transformer on the northeast corner 
of the building is screened by the building’s façade along Haynes Street. 
 

3.4 Landscaping – The applicant is proposing additional landscaping at the entrance 
of the building on the corner of Haynes, Woodward, and Elm. Article 4, Section 
4.20(E) of the Zoning Ordinance does not require the applicant to provide 
landscaping on-site due to its location in a commercial zoning district. The 
applicant must provide details regarding the species of landscaping 
proposed for the entrance to ensure that no prohibited species are being 
used.  

 
Streetscape Elements – The applicant has provided a number of street trees, street 
lights, and streetscape furnishings. In terms of street trees, Article 4, Section 4.20 
(G) requires at least 1 street tree for each 40 linear feet of frontage along a street. 
The site plan indicates a total of 11 street trees which satisfies the ordinance 
requirements. A breakdown of the required and proposed street trees is provided 
below: 

 
Street Linear Frontage (ft.) Required Provided 
Haynes 313’ 8 8 
Elm 89’ 2 3 
Woodward 25’ N/A 0 
Total   11 

 
 
The site plan indicates a total of 13 street lights which appear to be adequately 
spaces approximately 40 feet apart. All streetlights proposed are expected to meet 
the streetscape standards for the Triangle District. 
 
In regards to streetscape furnishings, the applicant has proposed 3 benches, 3 
trash receptacles, and 5 bike racks along Haynes Street. All benches, bike racks, 

7A



and trash receptacles are expected to meet the streetscape standards of the 
Triangle District.  
 
To support an all electric fleet, the applicant is also providing two electric car 
charging kiosks for the public along Haynes Street on the eastern portion of the 
property. 
 
Section 3, Article 3.12(B) requires sidewalks in the Triangle Overlay District to be 
a minimum of 12 feet wide. The sidewalk surrounding the building appears to be 
12 feet along Haynes and Elm Street.  
 
The northwest corner of the property has a congested sidewalk space transitioning 
from the subject site to the northern property on Elm Street. There is an electrical 
pole in the middle of the sidewalk and a city streetlight directly south of it which 
impedes pedestrian passage.  
 
 

4.0 Parking, Loading & Circulation 
 
4.1 Parking – Article 4, Section 4.46 of the Zoning Ordinance requires the applicant to 

provide the following off-street parking for the uses proposed in the site plans 
submitted: 
 
Proposed Use Requirements  Area or Units Spaces 
Sales Room 1 per 300 SF 6,800 SF 23 
Office 1 per 300 SF 8,460 SF 4 
Service Stalls 1 per Stall 12 Stalls 12 
Other (Storage) 1 per 550 SF 4,269 SF 8 
    
Total Required - - 47 
Total Proposed - - 155  

 
Article 4, Section 4.46(A) Table A Parking Standards of the Zoning Ordinance 
requires motor vehicle sales and service establishments to provide 1 space for 
each 300 square feet of floor area of sales room plus 1 space per each auto service 
stall, not to be used for new or used car storage. 
 
The first floor sales room is 6,800 square feet, while the cumulative office space 
on floors one, two, and three is 8,460 square feet. There are 12 service stalls and 
4,269 squaure feet of storage which is classified as “other” for parking. The 
applicant is required to provide 47 parking spaces on-site for the proposed uses. 
 
The applicant is providing a total of 155 parking spaces that consist of 7 ground 
level surface parking spaces, 10 interior building service parking spaces on the first 
floor, 62 parking spaces on the second level parking facility, 64 parking spaces on 
the third floor, and 12 public on-street parking spaces. City staff did not count 
showroom spaces as open and accessible. The applicant satisfies the parking 
requirements.  

7A



 
Article 3, Section 3.08(G)(1)(b) of the Zoning Ordinance permits no more than 60 
feet of parking lot frontage for corner lots. Given that all parking spaces are within 
the buildng façade, the applicant appears to satisfy this requirement.  
 
Article 3, Section 3.08(G)(4) of the Zoning Ordinance enables the Planning Board 
to allow a multi-level parking facility above the first floor to occupy the frontage 
provided that the façade of the parking structure is integrally designed with the 
architecture of the overall building, utilizes the same building materials, and has 
wall openings that provide proportions and rhythm that are compatible with 
building upper story fenestration. The applicant has proposed a series of black 
metal louvers for the upper level parking facility that appears to be integrally 
designed with the architecture of the overall building. 
 

4.2 Loading – Based on the habitable commercial space within the proposed 
development, the applicant is required to provide two off-street loading space with 
the following minimum dimensions: 40 feet long, 12 feet wide and 14 feet high. 
Article 4, Section 4.24(C)(4) requires that loading spaces be screened. The loading 
spaces are located within the interior elevations of the building and are screened 
by the front façade and garage door. 
  

4.3 Vehicle Circulation & Access – The site plans indicate that the main vehicular 
access to the site will be from Hanyes Street on the east side of the property. The 
access drive is 24 feet wide and is regulated by a black anondized aluminum and 
glass overhead door. Vehicles may enter at the ground level parking lot and take 
the ramp to the second or third floor parking structure facility. The curb cut along 
Haynes Street also provides access to the ground level service shop.  
 
Article 3, Section 3.09(A)(4) of the Zoning Ordinance does not allow garage doors 
on the front façade, however Architectural exemptions are availabe through the 
provisions of Article 3, Section 3.11 of the Zoning Ordinance. The Planning Board 
may wish to discuss the presense of an overhead door regulating access to on-site 
parking.  
 
In regards to on-site vehicular circulation, the site plans indicate that employee 
parking will be on a portion of the the third level parking facility. A large portion 
of the second and third level parking facility will be used for vehicle inventory.  

 
A second curb cut for vehicular ingress and egress is proposed on the northwest 
corner of the building facing Elm Street. The proposed curb cut will provide access 
to the interior of the building for the service shop. Access to the service area is 
also regulated by a black annodized and glass overhead door. A  concern of City 
staff is that the proposed curb cut for vehicular ingress an egress is facing a 
pedestrian crosswalk connecting across Elm Street and Woodard Ave.  
 
As discussed during the CIS & Preliminary Site Plan Review, the Triangle District 
Plan calls out the intersection of Elm Street, Bowers Street, and Woodward Ave as 

7A



an area unsafe for pedestrians and vehicle, and therefore recommends three 
different option for restructuring Elm Street. 
 
On December 1st, 2022, the Multi-Modal Transporation Board (MMTB) reviewed 
the Triangle District Plan’s recommendations for Elm Street in relation the 
applicant’s proposed project. Upon discussion of the project and the three different 
options for Elm Street, the MMTB recommended option C2 which includes a bump 
out that cuts off Haynes Street from Elm Street and reduces Elm Street to one-
way southbound. Option C2 also eliminates the right-turn action from northbound 
Woodward Ave onto Elm Street. The MMTB provided some commentary on the 
timeline of the project, however as an advisory board, that is not within their 
purview. 
 
The applicant has provided two different concepts for updating the vehicular and 
pedetrian access to the intersection of Haynes Street, Elm Street, and Woodward 
Ave. One concept is option C2 from the Triangle District Plan as recommended by 
the MMTB.  The other concept incorporates recommendations of option C1 of the 
Triangle District Plan where Elm Street remains a two-way street. The extended 
bumpout of option C1 would require northbound cars on Woodward Ave to slow 
down to complete the right turn onto northbound Elm Street.  
 
It is also of note that City staff discussed the proposal of enhancing the intersection 
of Haynes Street, Elm Street, and Woodward Ave with MDOT. The representatives 
were in support of enhancing the intersection and indicated pulling a permit for 
review should only take 4-6 weeks. 

 
The Planning Division requests that the Planning Board recommend a 
preference for the Triangle District Plan’s recommendations for Elm 
Street in relation to the proposed project and provide direction for the 
applicant regarding options C1 or C2 with Elm Street being a one way or 
two way street. 

 
4.4 Pedestrian Circulation & Access – The main pedestrian access to the building is at 

the corner of Elm Street, Woodward Ave, and Haynes Street which leads into the 
Porsche showroom. There are four additional pedestrian entrances to the site 
facing Haynes Street, and one facing Elm Street. 

 
The updated site plan maintains a 12 foot sidewalk surrounding the entire frontage 
of the property. A concern of City staff is that there is an electrical pole in the 
sidewalk to the right of the proposed garage facing Elm Street. The Engineering 
Department comments from Preliminary Site Plan included requiring the applicant 
to move the electrical pole in the middle of the sidewalk. This concern has not 
been addressed in the updated site plans. Therefore the applicant must 
provide updated site plans and surveys addressing concerns related to 
the electrical pole in the sidewalk on the northwest corner of the 
property.   
 

7A



As previously mentioned, a concern of City staff is that there is a pedestrian 
crosswalk in the Elm Street location where the applicant is proposing a curb cut 
for a garage to the service area. Options C1 & C2 of the Triangle District Plan 
attempt to address issues of the vehicular speeds and pedestrian crossings at this 
intersection. The Planning Division recommends that the Planning Board discuss 
their preference of options for Elm Street in order to enhance the pedestrian safety 
of crossing Elm Street near Woodward Ave.  

 
5.0 Lighting 

 
The applicant is proposing twelve exterior light fixtures. Eight lights are proposed to face 
the street frontage of Elm and Haynes Street, two exterior lights will face the eastern 
parking lot, and one exterior light is proposed in the exterior. The exterior light fixtures 
pictured on the elevations labeled AS-1 appear to be cut-off fixtures and are labeled as 
Bega exterior lighting fixtruers, however the plans do not appear to provide a detailed 
specification sheet regarding the type of light fixture. Information such as the watts and 
lumens have been provided though. The applicant must provide staff specifications 
of the exterior lights to verify they are cut off fixtures. 
 
The applicant has also provided a detailed photometric plan of the site. The lumens do 
not exceed 1.5 foot candles at any property line. City staff request that the applicant 
update the photometric plan to provide a table showing the range of lumen 
values for the parking circulation area on the east side of the building to verify 
the lighting requirements for parking lot circulation areas have been met. 
 

6.0 Departmental Reports 
 
1. Engineering Division – Comments from the Engineering Division will be 

provided by the Planning Board meeting of January 25th, 2023. 
 

2. Department of Public Services – Comments from DPS will be provided by the 
Planning Board meeting of January 25th, 2023. 
 

3. Fire Department – Please see the attached Fire Department comments. 
 

4. Police Department – The Police Department have no concerns and think either 
option for Elm Street is better than what currently exists. 
 

5. Building Division – Please see the attached Building Department comments. 
 

6. Parking Manager – The Parking Manager has no concerns at this time. 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 

7A



7.0 Design Review 
 
The proposed building has frontage along Elm Street and Haynes Street where the first 
floor façade predominantly consists of glazing. The showroom entrance has a metallic 
design above that appears to be modeled after the Porsche 911 rear window louvres. The 
curved architectural reveals will be illuminated by red lighting. The Western elevation has 
a large “PORSCHE” sign in red with sillver metal composite spanning most of the façade 
above the first floor glazing.  
 
The southern elevation has a long stretch of glazing for the first floor parts and storage 
rooms facing Haynes Street. Levels two and three consist of ribbed metal with metal 
louvers where the multi-level parking facility is. As previously mentioned, Article 3, Section 
3.08(G)(4) of the Zoning Ordinance enables the Planning Board to allow a multi-level 
parking facility above the first floor to occupy the frontage provided that the façade of the 
parking structure is integrally designed with the architecture of the overall building, utilizes 
the same building materials, and has wall openings that provide proportions and rhythm 
that are compatible with with building upper story fenestration.  
 
A portion of the first floor on the eastern elevation is exposed where the parking and 
charging kiosks are located. Behind the parking spaces are glass overhead doors for 
service station entry and access to the upper level parking facility. Levels two and three 
are exposed parking facility space with metal louvers and guard rail posts. 
 
The northern elevation consists of architectural ribbed metal metal louvers and guard rail 
posts for the multi-level parking facility. There are no windows facing north along the 0’ 
lot line. 
 
In regards to ground floor glazing, the first floor of the Haynes Street elevation has a 
glazing percentage of 86.7% and the first floor of of Elm street has a glazing percentage 
of 87.2%. Both street facing elevations satisfy the glazing requirement of 70% minimum 
between 1-8 feet from ground level. The applicant must provide staff with glass 
specification sheets to verify that the glazing meets the requirements of 66% visual light 
transmittance and reflectivity of 15% or less.  
 
In regards to Article 3, Section 3.09 Commercial/Mixed Use Architectural Requirements of 
the Triangle District Overlay, there are a few issues with the proposed design. Article 3, 
Section 3.09(D)(1) requires that all walls exposed to public view or parking area shall be 
constructed of not less than 60% brick, stone, or glass. The proposed building does not 
satisfy the building material requirements of the Triangle District Overlay given that the 
exterior is predominantly metal. 
 
Article 3, Section 3.09(B)(2) requires the front entranceway to be inset 3 feet from the 
front building wall. The curving front entranceway of the Porsche dealership does not 
appear to satisfy this requirement though. 
 
It is also of note that the applicant is proposing two overhead doors on their front façade, 
one facing Elm Street and another facing Haynes Street. The garage doors consist of black 

7A



anondized aluminum and glass. However, Article 3, Section 3.09(A)(4) states that garage 
doors shall not be permitted on a front façade. 
 
Article 3, Section 3.11 of the Triangle District Overlay requirements enables the Planning 
Board to approve deviations to the architectural requirements of Section 3.09 in order to 
allow for creativity and flexibility in design with the following standards: 
 

The Planning Board may approve deviations to the architectural requirements of 
Section 3.09 and Section 3.10 in order to allow for creativity and flexibility in design. 
A front elevation drawing of the proposed building shall be provided superimposed 
on a color drawing or photograph of the entire block showing the relation of the 
proposed building design to other buildings along the block, which shall be utilized 
to evaluate the proposed building design based upon all of the following criteria: 

A. Demonstrates innovation in architectural design, provided the building design 
shall be in keeping with the desired character of the Triangle Overlay District, 
as articulated in the Triangle District Urban Design Plan. 

B. The building is oriented towards the front sidewalk with a functioning entrance 
and enhances the continuity of the pedestrian oriented environment. A 
modification shall not result in an increased dominance of vehicular parking or 
garage doors along the front of the building. 

C. The roof design shall not be out of character with other buildings along the 
block and shall be within the minimum and maximum height requirements of 
the district. 

D. The exterior finish materials shall be of equal or better quality and durability 
as those permitted herein, with the intent to allow for new technologies in 
building material while maintaining the desired character of the Triangle 
Overlay District. 

E. Ground floor windows shall be provided along the front sidewalk to maintain 
the pedestrian orientation of the streetscape and upper story windows shall 
not be incompatible with the rhythm and proportions of windows on other 
buildings along the block. 

 
The Planning Division recomends that the Planning Board approve deviations 
to the architectural requirements of of Section 3.09(D)(1), Section 3.09(B)(2), 
and Section 3.09(A)(4) to enable the applicant creativity and flexibility in 
design for a metal exterior, a non-inset front door, and a garage door on the 
front façade with the condition that the applicant provide a front elevation 
drawing of the proposed building superimposed on a color drawing or 
photograph of the entire block showing the relation of the proposed building 
design to other buildings along the block. 

 
 Signage  

The Elm Street elevation has a red Porsche backlit sign 102 SF in dimension. The curved 
entryway at the corner of Elm and Haynes Street has two pylon ground signs that are 
both 24 SF in dimension. The Haynes Street elevation has a sign reading “Fred Lavery” 
24 SF in dimension. The total signage square footage is 174 SF, which is less than the 
nearly 500 feet of total street frontage of the property.  

7A



8.0 Required Attachments 
 
 Submitted Not Submitted Not Required 
Existing Conditions Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Detailed and Scaled Site Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Certified Land Survey ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Interior Floor Plans ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Landscape Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Photometric Plan ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Colored Elevations ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Material Specification Sheets ☒ ☐ ☐ 
Material Samples ☐ ☒ ☐ 
Site & Aerial Photographs ☒ ☐ ☐ 

 
9.0 Approval Criteria 

 
In accordance with Article 7, section 7.27 of the Zoning Ordinance, the proposed plans 
for development must meet the following conditions: 

 
(1) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 

there is adequate landscaped open space so as to provide light, air and access 
to the persons occupying the structure. 

(2) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 
there will be no interference with adequate light, air and access to adjacent lands 
and buildings. 

(3) The location, size and height of the building, walls and fences shall be such that 
they will not hinder the reasonable development of adjoining property nor 
diminish the value thereof. 

(4) The site plan, and its relation to streets, driveways and sidewalks, shall be such 
as to not interfere with or be hazardous to vehicular and pedestrian traffic. 

(5) The proposed development will be compatible with other uses and buildings in 
the neighborhood and will not be contrary to the spirit and purpose of this 
chapter. 

(6) The location, shape and size of required landscaped open space is such as to 
provide adequate open space for the benefit of the inhabitants of the building 
and the surrounding neighborhood. 

 
In addition, Article 7, Section 7.36 requires applications for a Special Land Use Permit 
to meet the following criteria: 
 

(1) The use is consistent with and will promote the intent and purpose of this 
Zoning Ordinance. 

7A



(2) The use will be compatible with adjacent uses of land, the natural environment, 
and the capabilities of public services and facilities affected by the land use. 

(3) The use is consistent with the public health, safety and welfare of the city. 
(4) The use is in compliance with all other requirements of this Zoning Ordinance. 
(5) The use will not be injurious to the surrounding neighborhood. 
(6) The use is in compliance with state and federal statutes. 

 
10.0 Recommendation 

 
Based on a review of the site plans submitted, the requirements outlined in Article 7, 
Section 7.27 of the Zoning Ordinance, and the SLUP requirements of Article 7, Section 
7.36,  the Planning Division recommends that the Planning Board recommend APPROVAL 
of the SLUP and Final Site Plan for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street with 
the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant must provide details regarding the species of landscaping 
proposed for the entrance to ensure that no prohibited species are being used;  

2. The applicant provide option (C1 or C2) as indicated in the submitted proposals 
of the Triangle District Plan’s recommendations for Elm Street to be included 
in the site plan and proposed survey before the public hearing with City 
Commission; 

3. the applicant provide updated site plans and surveys addressing concerns 
related to the electrical pole in the sidewalk on the northwest corner of the 
property; 

4. The applicant provide updating lighting information regarding the light fixture 
specifications and the parking lot circulation area lumen values; 

5. The Planning Board approve deviations to the architectural requirements of of 
Section 3.09(D)(1), Section 3.09(B)(2), and Section 3.09(A)(4) to enable the 
applicant creativity and flexibility in design for a metal exterior, a non-inset 
front door, and a garage door on the front façade with the condition that the 
applicant provide a front elevation drawing of the proposed building 
superimposed on a color drawing or photograph of the entire block showing 
the relation of the proposed building design to other buildings along the block; 
and 

6. The applicant comply with all department requests. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

7A



 
11.0 Sample Motion Language 
 

Motion to recommend APPROVAL to the City Commission of the Special Land Use Permit 
for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street with the following conditions: 
 

1. The applicant must provide details regarding the species of landscaping 
proposed for the entrance to ensure that no prohibited species are being used;  

2. The applicant provide option (C1 or C2) as indicated in the submitted proposals 
of the Triangle District Plan’s recommendations for Elm Street to be included 
in the site plan and proposed survey before the public hearing with City 
Commission; 

3. the applicant provide updated site plans and surveys addressing concerns 
related to the electrical pole in the sidewalk on the northwest corner of the 
property; 

4. The applicant provide updating lighting information regarding the light fixture 
specifications and the parking lot circulation area lumen values; 

5. The Planning Board approve deviations to the architectural requirements of of 
Section 3.09(D)(1), Section 3.09(B)(2), and Section 3.09(A)(4) to enable the 
applicant creativity and flexibility in design for a metal exterior, a non-inset 
front door, and a garage door on the front façade with the condition that the 
applicant provide a front elevation drawing of the proposed building 
superimposed on a color drawing or photograph of the entire block showing 
the relation of the proposed building design to other buildings along the block; 
and 

6. The applicant comply with all department requests. 
 

OR 
 

Motion to POSTPONE the Special Land Use Permit for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 
Haynes Street pending receipt of the following: 
 

1. ___________________________________________________________ 
2. ___________________________________________________________ 
3. ___________________________________________________________ 

 
OR 

 
Motion to recommend DENIAL to the City Commission of the Special Land Use Permit for 
34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes for the following reasons: 
 

1. ___________________________________________________________ 
2. ___________________________________________________________ 
3. ___________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 

7A



 
Motion to recommend APPROVAL to the City Commission of the Final Site Plan and 
Design Review for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street with the following 
conditions: 
 

7. The applicant must provide details regarding the species of landscaping 
proposed for the entrance to ensure that no prohibited species are being used;  

8. The applicant provide option (C1 or C2) as indicated in the submitted proposals 
of the Triangle District Plan’s recommendations for Elm Street to be included 
in the site plan and proposed survey before the public hearing with City 
Commission; 

9. the applicant provide updated site plans and surveys addressing concerns 
related to the electrical pole in the sidewalk on the northwest corner of the 
property; 

10. The applicant provide updating lighting information regarding the light fixture 
specifications and the parking lot circulation area lumen values; 

11. The Planning Board approve deviations to the architectural requirements of of 
Section 3.09(D)(1), Section 3.09(B)(2), and Section 3.09(A)(4) to enable the 
applicant creativity and flexibility in design for a metal exterior, a non-inset 
front door, and a garage door on the front façade with the condition that the 
applicant provide a front elevation drawing of the proposed building 
superimposed on a color drawing or photograph of the entire block showing 
the relation of the proposed building design to other buildings along the block; 
and 

12. The applicant comply with all department requests. 
 

OR 
 

Motion to POSTPONE the Final Site Plan and Design Review for 34350 Woodward Ave & 
909-911 Haynes Street pending receipt of the following: 
 

4. ___________________________________________________________ 
5. ___________________________________________________________ 
6. ___________________________________________________________ 

 
OR 

 
Motion to recommend DENIAL to the City Commission of the Final Site Plan and Design 
Review for 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes for the following reasons: 
 

4. ___________________________________________________________ 
5. ___________________________________________________________ 
6. ___________________________________________________________ 
 
 
 
 
 

7A



Page 1 of 3 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary | 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street | 01/21/2022 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary Sheet 
 SLUP and Final Site Plan Review 

34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes 
 
 
Existing Site: 1 story auto sales agency & 2 story commercial building 

Zoning: B2 (General Business) & MU-5/MU-7 (Triangle District Overlay) 
Land Use: Retail/Office/ Auto Sales Agency 

 
Existing Land Use and Zoning of Adjacent Properties: 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Land Area:   Existing: 42,875 SF 
Proposed: 42,875 SF  

Dwelling Units: Existing: 0 units 
Proposed: 0 units 

 
Minimum Lot Area/Unit: Required: N/A 

Proposed: N/A 

Min. Floor Area /Unit: Required: N/A 

Proposed: N/A 

 
Max. Total Floor Area: 

 
Required: 

 
N/A 

Proposed: N/A 

Min. Open Space: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A  

Max. Lot Coverage: Required: N/A 

 North South East West 
Existing 
Land Use 

Commercial/ 
Office 

Commercial/ 
Retail 

Commercial/ 
Office Commercial 

Existing 
Zoning 
District 

B2 (General 
Business) 

B2 (General 
Business) 

B2 (General 
Business) & 
O2 (Office-

Commercial) 

B2 (General 
Business) 

Overlay 
Zoning 
District 

MU3 MU-7 & MU-5 MU-5 MU3 

7A



Page 2 of 3 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary | 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street | 01/21/2022 
 

Proposed: N/A  

Front Setback: Required: 0-5 ft. for a minimum of 75% of the street frontage 
length 

Proposed: Within 0-5 feet of the front lot line for greater than 75% 
of the street frontage length. 
 

Side Setbacks Required: 0 ft. with walls facing side lot line w/ no windows 
10 ft. for walls with windows 

Proposed: 0 ft. 

Rear Setback: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

 
Max. Bldg. Height: Permitted: 66 ft., 5 stories (MU-5) 

90 ft., 7 stories (MU-7) 
Proposed: 45 ft., 3 stories  

Min. Bldg. Height: Permitted: 34 ft., 3 stories (MU-5) 
34 ft., 3 stories (MU-7) 

 Proposed: 45 ft., 3 stories  
 

Floor-Floor Height: Required: 14 ft. minimum (1st story) 
Proposed: 14 ft 

Front Entry: Required: On frontage line 
Proposed: On frontage line  

Absence of Bldg. Façade: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A  

Opening Width: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A 

 
Parking: Required: 35 off-street spaces  

Proposed: 47 off-street spaces available to workers and patrons 
160 total on-site: accessible + inventory 
 

Min. Parking Space Size: Required: 180 sq. ft. 
Proposed: 180 sq. ft. 

Parking in Frontage: Required: N/A 
Proposed: N/A  

Loading Area: Required: 2 off-street loading space 
40 ft. x 12 ft. x 14 ft. 

7A



Page 3 of 3 
 

Zoning Compliance Summary | 34350 Woodward Ave & 909-911 Haynes Street | 01/21/2022 
 

Proposed: 2 off-street loading space 
40 ft. x 12 ft. x 14 ft. 

Screening:   
  

Parking: Required: 6 ft. masonry screen wall 
Proposed: Screened by building facade 

Loading: Required: Screened from view 
Proposed: Interior loading area screened by building 

Rooftop Mechanical: Required: Screened from view 
Proposed: 5 ft. screen wall  

Elect. Transformer: Required: Obscured from public view 
Proposed: Screened by building facade 

Dumpster: Required: Masonry screen wall with wood gates 
Proposed: Screened by building façade and masonry screen wall 

 

7A



City of Birmingham fire Department

572 South AdAmS • BirminghAm, michigAn 48009 • 248.530.1900  FAx 248.530.1950

ALAN  G. SOAVE
  Fire mArShAl

mAtthew J. BArtAlino

ASSiStAnt chieF / oPerAtionS

PAul A. wellS

Fire chieF

January 19th, 2023

RE: Final Site Plan Review Comments 
34350 Woodward, Fred Lavery

• Follow International Fire Code 2015 for submitted plans.

• Sec. 54-32. - Emergency Power Shutdown Device
All commercial and residential structures/buildings constructed or having major renovations 
performed after the implementation of this ordinance shall provide a KNOX-VAULT 4500 Series 
Power Shutdown device, and installed as approved by the Fire Marshal, located on the exterior of the 
building. All required power shut down devices shall be installed and maintained at the building 
owner's expense. All required power shut down devices shall be installed by a qualified, licensed 
electrician.

• Knox Pad Locks required on construction fencing access gates

• Follow Chapter 33 of IFC  2015 edition "Fire Safety During Construction and Demolition"

• A Knox Box will be required

• Sprinkler System and Alarm Plans-Submit plans to AHJ for review and approval .

• CO Gas detection system and ventilation for parking garages as needed.

• FDC – facing the street within 100 feet of a Fire Hydrant.

• Construction phase of the project install a standpipe system with access to all floors

• Bi-Directional amplifier may be required.  First responder radio signal strength will be assessed 
toward the end of the construction phase.

• All life safety requirements listed in International Fire Code and NFPA documents and standards 
shall be followed and enforced.  

7A



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
Community Development – Building Department 

151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI 48009 
 
 
 

Final Site Plan Review Comments Page 1 
 

January 19, 2023 
 
 
RE:  Final Site Plan Review Comments 

34350 Woodward, Fred Lavery                      
 

As requested, the Building Department has examined the plans for the proposed project 
referenced above. The plans were provided to the Planning Department for site plan review 
purposes only and present conceptual elevations and floor plans. Although the plans lack 
sufficient detail to perform a code review, the following comments are offered for Planning Design 
Review purposes and applicant consideration: 
 
Applicable Building Codes: 
 
 2015 Michigan Building Code. Applies to all buildings other than those regulated by 

the Michigan Residential Code. 
 
 2015 Michigan Mechanical Code. (Residential requirements for mechanical 

construction in all detached one and two-family dwellings and multiple single-family 
dwellings (townhouses) not more than three stories in height with a separate means of 
egress and their accessory structures are contained in the Michigan Residential Code) 

 
 2018 Michigan Plumbing Code. (Residential requirements for plumbing construction 

in all detached one and two-family dwellings and multiple single-family dwellings 
(townhouses) not more than three stories in height with a separate means of egress and 
their accessory structures are contained in the Michigan Residential Code) 

 
 2017 National Electrical Code along w ith the Michigan Part 8 Rules. (Residential 

requirements for electrical construction in all detached one and two-family dwellings and 
multiple single-family dwellings (townhouses) not more than three stories in height with 
a separate means of egress and their accessory structures are contained in the Michigan 
Residential Code) 

 
Review Comments: (These comments remain from our initial review) 
 

1. Exterior doors shall not open or project into the public right of way (Building Code Section 
3202.2) 

 
2. The proposed building is setback 0-feet from the north and east property lines. These 

walls will need to have a fire resistive rating in accordance with Table 601 of the MBC. 
Table 705.8 of the Building Code will not permit the proposed openings on the first floor 
and all parking levels.  
 

3. The rooftop parking level will require access to two remote exit stairways (Building Code 
Section 406.5.7). 

7A



CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 
Community Development – Building Department 

151 Martin Street, Birmingham, MI 48009 
 
 
 

Final Site Plan Review Comments Page 2 
 

4. The N/E exit stair will need to be enclosed with fire barriers in accordance with Chapter 
10 of the Building Code and comply with item 3 above.  
 

5. The office/storage area on level 3 has access to only 1 exit stair. Access to two exits is 
required in accordance with Section 1006 of the Building Code.  
 

6. The exit stairs on level 2 in the office area are not remotely separated as required by 
Section 1007.1.1 of the Building Code.  

7A



 

18 Triangle District Urban Design Plan | Birmingham Michigan 

Circulation  

To supplement the streetscape and walkability improvements, there are a 

number of roadway improvements recommended through the Triangle 

District.  Some will enhance traffic operations and safety, while others are 

intended to make the district more walkable.   

Maple Road (A).  Maple Road between Woodward and Adams should be 

converted from two lanes in each direction to an imbalanced roadway 

configuration, for example with two westbound lanes, one eastbound lane 

and a center turn lane, as depicted in A1.  This configuration would 

improve access into the Triangle along Elm Street and to the businesses 

along Maple without widening.  Additionally, intersection improvements 

should be made at Elm and Maple to better emphasize this entrance to the 

Triangle District.   

Hazel Street (B).  The segment of Hazel between Woodward and Elm 

could be closed to minimize the number of access points along Woodward 

Avenue and minimize cut-through traffic in the residential neighborhood.  

The new space could be used as open space or could be conferred to a 

property owner or developer in a beneficial exchange. 

Woodward/Elm (C).  There are a number of options for the short block 

of Elm Street between Bowers and Woodward Avenue (C).  Because of 

the slight angle from Woodward Avenue, traffic on Woodward Avenue 

tends to enter Elm at high speeds.  In addition, the intersection with 

Bowers has limited sight distance because of building placements and a 

narrow right-of-way.  The intersection of Elm at Woodward should be 

reconfigured to require traffic entering the District at Elm to make a right 

turning movement rather than merely veering right (C1).  This would slow 

traffic and improve safety for pedestrians and motorists.  Additionally, this 

portion of Elm south of Bowers could be converted to southbound traffic 

only with the former northbound lanes converted to angled street parking 

(C2).  Alternatively, this segment could be vacated altogether and used as 

open space or developable land for an adjacent parcel (C3).   
Circulation Recommendations 

CC  

BB  

AA  

DD  

EE  

FF  

Inset of Worth Realignment 

7A



 

Triangle District Urban Design Plan | Birmingham Michigan 19 

Woodward/Worth (D).  The intersection of Worth Street at 

Woodward Avenue shares many of the same problems as Bowers 

discussed above.  It is recommended that this intersection be reconfigured 

to form a right angle, greatly slowing traffic and creating the opportunity in 

the vacated right-of-way for a small greenspace with public art, landscaping, 

and wayfinding signs.  

Worth Street (E).  Currently Worth Street ends at Haynes Street.  This 

prevents circulation between the Triangle District‟s northern and southern 

halves.  Worth should be realigned parallel to Woodward Avenue and 

extended to Bowers.  This will improve north/south interior connectivity 

within the Triangle District and better link the north and south halves of 

the District, which will help support redevelopment of this area.  This road 

reconfiguration will also allow the creation of Worth Plaza in the heart of 

the Triangle District.  The alignment of Worth Street will be through the 

rear of the Boarder‟s parking lot and buildings currently located between 

Bowers and Haynes.  Therefore Worth Street realignment will need to be 

done in conjunction with the development of a parking structure and 

redevelopment of the properties on the north side of Haynes.  The specific 

alignment shown on this plan is conceptual and could be varied, provided 

the ultimate alignment created Worth Plaza. 

Bowers Street (F).  Bowers Street should also be emphasized as an 

east/west connector corridor that connects the residential areas east of 

Adams to the Triangle District and Downtown. 

Additional traffic modeling and detailed geometric designs will need to be 

evaluated further by the City‟s traffic engineer prior to implementing these 

recommendations.  

Maple Road (A1) 

Woodward/Elm (C1) Woodward/Elm (C2) 

Woodward/Elm (C3) Woodward/Worth (D1) 

7A



MEMORANDUM 
Engineering Department 

DATE: March 13, 2023 

TO: Thomas M. Markus, City Manager 

FROM: Melissa A. Coatta, City Engineer  

SUBJECT: Lincoln Hills Golf Couse – Hole #1 Tee-Box and Cart Path Improvements 
Contract #2-23 (G) Contract Award  

INTRODUCTION: 
Bids for the Lincoln Hills Golf Couse – Hole #1 Tee-Box and Cart Path Improvements were open 
on March 9, 2023.  Two (2) bids were received for consideration, and the Engineering Department 
is recommending awarding this contract to Jacklyn Contracting, LLC.   

BACKGROUND: 
At the November 28, 2022 City Commission Meeting, this project was presented and the City 
Commission adopted a resolution for the Engineering Department to proceed with the final design 
of Lincoln Hills Golf Course – Hole #1 Tee-Box and Cart Path Improvements.   

The Engineering Department opened and read bids on March 9, 2023.  Two (2) bids were 
received, as listed in the attached summary.  The Engineering Department recommends awarding 
this contract to Jacklyn Contracting, LLC. Their proposal lists several similar projects that they 
have successfully completed. Our Engineering Consultant, Nowak & Fraus Engineers, contacted 
their references and they did not mention any concerns.   

As is required for all of the City's construction projects, Jacklyn Contracting, LLC has submitted a 
5% bid security with their bid which will be forfeited if they do not provide the signed contracts, 
bonds, and insurance required by the contract following the award by the City Commission. 

LEGAL REVIEW:  
The City's standard contract language was used for this bidding document which the City Attorney 
had reviewed and approved. No legal issues exist based on the documentation. 

FISCAL IMPACT:  
A budget amendment is required in the following fund for this project: 

7B



2 

Fund Account Fund ID Number Project Award 5% 
Contingencies 

Total 

Recreation & 
Culture – Public 
Improvements   584.1-753.001-981.0100 $898,469.00 $44,923.45 $943,392.45 

PUBLIC COMMUNICATIONS: 
Public communication will not be necessary for the design phase of the project. Neighboring 
property owners will be contacted during construction.   

SUMMARY: 
The Engineering Department recommends that Lincoln Hills Golf Couse – Hole #1 Tee-Box and 
Cart Path Improvements Contract #2-23 (G), be awarded to Jacklyn Contracting, LLC.  

ATTACHMENTS: 

• Project Area Map (one page)
• Bid Summary (2 pages)
• Proposal and Bid Bond (10 pages)
• Plans (12 pages)

SUGGESTED COMMISSION ACTION: 
Make a motion adopting a resolution to approve the construction project budget and award 
Lincoln Hills Golf Couse – Hole #1 Tee-Box and Cart Path Improvements Contract #2-23 (G) to 
Jacklyn Contracting, LLC in the amount of $898,469.00, with a total not to exceed amount of
$943,392.45.  In addition, to authorize the Mayor and City Clerk to sign the agreement on behalf 
of the City after the review of Jacklyn Contracting, LLC’s insurance and bonds, contingent upon 
execution of the agreement and meeting all insurance and bonding requirements. Funding for 
this project has been budgeted in the following account: 

Fund Account Fund ID Number Project Award 5% 
Contingencies 

Total 

Recreation & 
Culture – Public 
Improvements   

584.1-753.001-981.0100 $898,469.00 $44,923.45 $943,392.45 

To approve the appropriation and amendment of the fiscal year 2022/2023 budget as follows: 

Recreation & Culture: 
Revenues: 
584.1-000.000-400.0000 Draw from Fund Balance $943,400.00 
Total Revenue  $943,400.00 

Expenditures: 
584.1-753.001-981.0100 Public Improvement $943,400.00 
Total Expenses $943,400.00 

7B



0 1,900 3,800950
Feet

1 inch = 1,042 feet

2023
Capital Improvements

Disclaimer: The information provided by this program has been
compiled from recorded deeds, plats, taxmaps, surveys, and 

other public records and data. It is not a legally recorded 
map or survey.

The data provided hereon may be inaccurate or out of date and 
any person or entity who relies on said information for any purpose

 whatsoever does so solely at his or her own risk. 

Data Sources:  Oakland County GIS Utility, City of Birmingham

¯

Legend

s Lincoln Hills Tee #1 Cart Path 2-23(G)

s

MAPLE

OAK

LINCOLN

BATE
S

PIER
C

E

W
O

O
D

W
AR

D

H
EN

R
IE

TTA

FA
IR

FA
X

PI
LG

R
IM

ANN

PU
R

ITA
N

FAIRWAY

BIRD

NORTHLAWN

OLDW
OODW

ARD

SO
U

TH
FIELD

C
R

AN
B

R
O

O
K

SU
FF

IE
LD

RAYNALE

ELM

PARK

BROWN

LA
KE

PAR
K

G
R

AN
T

ABBEY

LA
KE

SID
E

MIDVALE

FOURTEENMILE

WILLITS

STAN
LEY

PINE

SH
IP

M
AN

LA
R

C
H

LE
A

HARMON

PURDY

C
H

ES
TE

R
FI

EL
D

HENLEY

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N HANNA

M
A

R
YLAN

D

WIMBLETON

MERRILL

PLEA
SAN

T

FRANK

O
X

FO
R

D

SMITH

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

ED
G

E
W

O
O

D

LIN
D

EN

LA
TH

AM

AR
G

YL
E

C
H

ESTE
R

MADISON

BIR
M

IN
G

H
A

M

ASPEN

W
ATKIN

S

RIVENOAK

W
ES

TC
H

ES
TER

W
A

SH
IN

G
TO

N

MARTIN

SHIRLEY

AVON

C
ED

AR

KNOX

BALD
W

IN

GEORGE

PO
PPLE

TO
N

W
O

RTH

G
R

EE
N

W
O

O
D

HAZEL

BE
RW

YN

OAKLAND

MOHEGAN

VINEWOOD

DAVIS

FOREST

TOWNSEND

CATALPA

WALLACE

KENNESAW

BOWERS

RIDGEDALE

W
ILLO

W

CHAPIN

HAYNES

RADNOR

LA
KE

VIEW

G
LE

N
H

U
R

ST

FERNDALE

H
AW

TH
O

R
N

E

W
A

R
W

IC
K

WAKEFIELD

BR
YN

M
AW

R

RUFFNER

W
EL

LE
SL

EY

W
O

O
D

LEA

EMMONS

SAXON

HILLSIDE

BR
O

O
KW

O
O

D

W
O

O
D

LAN
D

NORFOLK

HUMPHREY

EUCLID

DEWEY

DAINES

BENNAVILLE

HAMILTON

G
O

LFV
IEW

FAIRVIEW

LANDON

DEVON

PUTNEY

C
LAR

K

FLO
Y

D

BR
O

O
KSID

E

MID
LA

ND

SOUTHLAWN

AR
D

EN

LY
O

N
H

U
R

ST

GORDON

ATEN

PEABO
DY

CANTERBURY

PO
LO

TO
O

TIN
G

MELBOURNE

RIVERSIDE

KENWOOD

M
A

PLE
H

ILL

BLOOMFIELD

D
O

N
M

A
R

LAW
NDALE

M
IL

LR
AC

E

VALLE
YVIE

W

W
ILLITS ALLEY

M
E

R
R

ITT

WARREN

HI
D

DE
N

R
AV

IN
ES

FOURTEENMILE

W
O

ODW
ARD

BA
LD

W
IN

G
LE

N
H

U
R

ST

SH
IR

LEY

STAN
LEY

LATHAM

SOUTHLAWN

FRANK

W
O

R
TH

NORTHLAWN

PINE

G
O

LFV
IEW

SOUTHLAWN

7B



UNIT PRICE AMOUNT UNIT PRICE AMOUNT

DEMOLITION & EARTHWORK PAY ITEMS

1 Remove Ex. Asphalt Pavement Full Depth (sawcutting included) SY 805 10.00$ 8,050.00$ 31.62$ 25,454.10$ *

2 Remove Ex. Timber Retaining Walls LS 1 10,000.00$ 10,000.00$ 18,300.00$ 18,300.00$ 

3 Remove Ex. Tree LS 1 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ 11,500.00$ 11,500.00$ 

4 Remove Ex. Staircase LS 1 2,000.00$ 2,000.00$ 8,500.00$ 8,500.00$ 

5 Tree Protection Fencing LF 420 5.00$ 2,100.00$ 30.00$ 12,600.00$ 

6 Strip and Stockpile Topsoil LS 1 8,000.00$ 8,000.00$ 32,000.00$ 32,000.00$ 

7 Earthwork Balancing & Embankment LS 1 190,000.00$ 190,000.00$ 42,000.00$ 42,000.00$ 

8 Irrigation Allowance LS 1 5,000.00$ 5,000.00$ 5,000.00$ 5,000.00$ 

SUBTOTAL DEMOLITION & EARTHWORK PAY ITEMS 228,150.00$ 155,354.10$ *

RETAINING WALL PAY ITEMS

9 Engineered Block Retaining Wall FSF 2,400 185.00$ 444,000.00$ 205.00$ 492,000.00$ 

10 Safety Fencing at Retaining Wall B LF 165 100.00$ 16,500.00$ 150.00$ 24,750.00$ 

SUBTOTAL RETAINING WALL PAY ITEMS 460,500.00$ 516,750.00$ 

PAVING PAY ITEMS

11 Aggregate Base, MDOT 21AA Limestone, 6" SY 1100 24.00$ 26,400.00$ 56.81$ 62,491.00$ *

12 Bituminous Mixture No. 5E1 (1.5" Top Course) TON 78 275.00$ 21,450.00$ * 650.00$ 50,700.00$ 

13 Bituminous Mixture No. 5E1 (2" Top Course) TON 110 230.00$ 25,300.00$ 600.00$ 66,000.00$ 

14 Concrete Sidewalk, 4" SF 35 100.00$ 3,500.00$ 20.00$ 700.00$ 

15 Install Bench (Materials provided by City) LS 1 3,000.00$ 3,000.00$ 1,500.00$ 1,500.00$ 

SUBTOTAL PAVING PAY ITEMS 79,650.00$ 181,391.00$ *

SOIL EROSION AND LAWN RESTORATION PAY ITEMS

16 Silt Fabric Fencing, 24" Height LF 1,000 3.00$ 3,000.00$ 5.00$ 5,000.00$ 

17 Silt Fabric Fencing 36" Height LF 295 4.00$ 1,180.00$ 5.50$ 1,622.50$ 

JACKLYN CONTRACTING LLC
VETTESE BROTHERS ENTERPRISE 

CORP.ITEM DESCRIPTION Units QtyNO.

Bid Summary

City of Birmingham    

Lincoln Hills Golf Course Hole #1 Tee-Box & Cart Path Improvements 

Contract # 2-23 (G)

7B



18 Temporary Staging Area Within Construction Limits SY 270 20.00$ 5,400.00$ 45.00$ 12,150.00$ *

19 Temporary Staging Area Within Parking Lot LS 1 5,000.00$ 5,000.00$ 2,500.00$ 2,500.00$ 

20 Mulch Blankets, Two Installations SY 5,565 1.60$ 8,904.00$ 4.00$ 22,260.00$ 

21 Place Topsoil SY 5,565 3.00$ 16,695.00$ * 20.00$ 111,300.00$ 

22 Lawn Restoration (Outside Tee-Box Areas) SY 4,880 3.00$ 14,640.00$ 4.50$ 21,960.00$ 

23 Lawn Restoration (Within Tee-Box Areas) SY 685 10.00$ 6,850.00$ 10.50$ 7,192.50$ 

SUBTOTAL SOIL EROSION AND LAWN RESTORATION PAY ITEMS 61,669.00$ 183,985.00$ *

GENERAL PAY ITEMS

24 Mobilization (Max. 5% of Bid) LS 1 30,000.00$ 30,000.00$ 51,302.75$ 51,302.75$ 

25 Install New 2" Conduit and Replace Pump House Electrical Service LF 150 40.00$ 6,000.00$ 60.00$ 9,000.00$ 

26 Inspector Crew Days DAYS 50 32,500.00$ 32,500.00$ 39,000.00$ 39,000.00$ 

SUBTOTAL GENERAL PAY ITEMS 68,500.00$ 99,302.75$ 

TOTAL 898,469.00$ 1,136,782.85$ *

* Corrected By Engineer

7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



7B



Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

C
AM

BR
ID

G
E

R
U

G
BY

ENGINEERING DEPARTMENT

YORKSHIRE

BENCHMARKS SET AND SHOWN PER
SHEET WERE ESTABLISHED OFF OF THE
CITY OF BIRMINGHAM BENCHMARK DATUM.

BENCHMARK NOTE

Oakland County, Michigan
SCALE:

0 400 800

200 600 1000200

G
R

EE
N

W
O

O
D

14 MILE RD.

G
R

EE
N

LA
W

N

G
O

LF
   

-  
   

 V
IE

W

FAIRWAY    D
RIVE

HILL
SID

E

PO
LO

 P
L. D
R

.

NORTHLAWN  DRIVE

FAIR WAY  DR.

LINCOLN AVE

D
O

N
M

AR
 C

T.

LA
R

C
H

LE
A 

   
   

   
   

   
  D

R
IV

E

W
ES

TC
H

ES
TE

R
   

   
   

   
   

   
 W

AY

G
LE

N
H

U
R

ST
   

   
   

   
   

 D
R

IV
E

AR
D

EN
LA

N
E

C
AR

O
LW

O
O

D

CT.C
R

AN
BR

O
O

K 
 R

D
.

PL
EA

SA
N

T 
  A

VE
.

PLEASANT

CT.

M
ER

R
IT

T 
 L

AN
E

BR
YN

 M
AW

R
W

EL
LE

SL
EY

 D
R.

BE
RW

YN
  R

D.

AR
G

YL
E 

  B
LV

D.
G

O
LF

VI
EW

DEVONLANE

RADNOR  DR.
AVON LANE

SAXON

WAKEFIELD

LA
TH

AM
NORFO

LK WORTH-
INGTON

SOUTHLAWN

NORTHLAWN

CANTERBURY

LA
TH

AM

SO
U

TH
FI

EL
D

SH
IP

M
AN

BI
R

M
IN

G
H

AM

M
AR

YL
AN

D

ST
AN

LE
Y

W
AS

H
IN

G
TO

N

BA
TE

S

H
EN

R
IE

TT
A

SOUTHLAWN

14   MILE   RD.

WALLACE

PI
ER

C
E

GORDONLANE

TR
AI

L

H
AW

TH
O

R
N

E

AS
PE

N

LI
N

D
EN

BRANDON

SH
IR

LE
Y 

D
R

.

AR
LI

N
G

TO
N

 R
D

.

AR
LIN

G
TO

N
 R

D
.

SH
IR

LE
YMAPLE

RIV
ER

R
O

U
G

E

FAIRVIEW

WINTHROP

PINE

MELBORNE

KI
M

BE
R

LE
Y C
H

ES
TE

R
FI

EL
D

PINE

FA
IR

FA
X

SU
FF

IE
LD

PI
LG

R
IM

PU
R

IT
AN

LA
KE

PA
RK

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

N
. G

LE
N

H
U

R
ST

BROOKWOOD

KEN
WOOD

LY
O

N
H

U
R

ST

BR
O

O
KW

O
O

D

OAK

RAY  NALE

MID

LAND

W
IL

LO
W

 L
AN

E

LA
KE

SI
D

E

REDDING

ASH
FORD LN.

O
LD

 S
AL

EM

COLONIAL
CT.

BLOOMFIELDCT.

OAK

H
AZ

EL
W

O
O

D

LA
KE

VI
EW

BA
LD

W
IN

 C
T.

W
O

O
D

LA
N

D

AT
EN

 C
T.

HARMON

BA
LD

W
IN

M
IL

LR
AC

E

LAKESIDE

RANDALL

DEWEY

TO
O

TIN
G

LAN
E

BO
NNIE BRIER

VINEWOOD

BROOKSIDE

RA VI
NE

EUCLID

W
OODW

ARDPARK

FERNDALE

OLD W
OODW

ARDWARREN

OAKLAND

SOUTHLAWN

CATALPA

BENNAVILLE
CHAPIN

EMMONS

DAVIS

SMITH

BIRD

C
ED

AR

FL
O

YD RUFFNER

HUMPHREY

LINCOLN

W
OODW

ARD

TA
U

N
TO

N

CROFT

PENISTONE

BANBURY

HUMPHREY

MELTON

M
AN

SFIELD

BRADFORD

SHEFFIELD
DUNSTABLE

CHELTENHAM

H
AN

LE
Y 

C
T.

ET
O

N

C
O

M
M

ER
C

E

W
O

R
TH

AD
AM

S

LANDON

GEORGE

FL
O

YD

C
LA

R
K

LI
N

C
O

LN
C

T.

DORCHESTER

BUCKINGHAM

PO
PP

LE
TO

N RIDGEDALE

OAKLAND

O
AK

-
D

AL
E

LA
W

N
 D

AL
E

O
AK

  D
AL

E

PO
PP

LE
TO

N

R
O

SE
  D

AL
E

WESTBORO DR.

RIVENOAK

KENNESAW

MOHEGAN

O
XF

O
R

D

WIMBELTON

ABBEY

PUTNEY

HE
NL

EY

HENLEY

ABBEY

TW
IN

O
AK

S AD
AM

S

DERBY

TOTTENHAM

SHEPARDBUSH

W
AR

W
IC

K

NORWICH

DERBY

PEMBROKE
CT. PEMBROKE

G
RAEFIELD

G
R

AE
FI

EL
D

 C
T.

N
. E

TO
N

ED
EN

BO
R

O
U

G
H

DERBY

PEMBROKE

MANCHESTER

WINDEMERE

BUCKINGHAM

DORCHESTER

ST
.  

 A
N

D
R

EW
S

C
O

O
LI

D
G

E

GRAND       TRUNK      W
ESTERN        R.  R.

SPRINGDALE
PARK

16    MILE    ROAD

STRATHMORE

Q
UARTO

N    LAKE

H
ID

D
EN

 R
AV

IN
ES

C
U

M
M

IN
G

S

MADISON

C
O

U
R

T

HANNA

FRANK

SO
UT

HF
IE

LD

W
AT

KI
N

S

C
H

ER
R

Y 
C

T.

ST
AN

LE
Y

C
H

ES
TE

R

BA
TE

S

H
EN

R
IE

TT
A

PI
ER

C
E

CO
UR

T

 DR.

VA
LL

EY
VI

EW
LA

N
E

W
OO

DL
AN

D

VI
LL

A 
C

T.

TOWNSEND

     BROWN

MERRILL

MARTIN
W. M

APLE

CT.

HOLLAND

HAYNES
HAYNES

BOWERS

PALMERHAZEL

VILLA

BOWERS

HAYNES
CT.

PURDY
ANN

FRANK

DAINES
BROWN

HAMILTON

PEABO
DY

HAYNES

BOWERS

HAZEL

CHESTNUT

FORESTEL
M

YOSEMITE

E. MAPLE

KNOX
MAPLE

YA
N

KE
E

C
O

LU
M

BI
A

YORKSHIRE

BENNAVILLE

AD
AM

S

WILLITS

LINCOLN

LINCOLN

M
ELTO

N

HUMPHREY

W
O

O
D

LE
A

WILLITS
ALLEY

LINCOLN HILLS GOLF COURSE
HOLE #1 TEE-BOX & CART PATH IMPROVEMENTS

CONTRACT #2-23(G)

W
O

R
TH

E. MAPLE

BOWERS

SHEET INDEX

C
H

ES
TE

R

BA
TE

S

H
EN

R
IE

TT
A

FRANK

S. OLD W
OODW

ARD

City of BirminghamNF

N

EW

S

FEBRUARY 16, 2023     RE-BID

PROJECT
AREA

LI
N

C
O

LN
 H

IL
LS

 G
O

LF
 C

O
U

R
SE

H
O

LE
 #

1 
TE

E-
BO

X 
& 

C
AR

T 
PA

TH
 IM

PR
O

VE
M

EN
TS

C
O

N
TR

AC
T 

#2
-2

3(
G

)

COLE

WEBSTER

TO
R

R
Y

RUFFNER

ED
G

E
W

O
O

D

COVER SHEET
C01 TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY
C02 DEMOLITION PLAN
C03 SOIL BORING LOGS
C04 PAVING AND UTILITY PLAN
C05 RETAINING WALL PROFILE PLAN
C06 CART PATH PROFILE PLAN
C07 SOIL EROSION CONTROL AND LAWN RESTORATION PLAN
C08 RETAINING WALL DETAILS & GENERAL PROJECT NOTES
C09 PHASING & TEMPORARY STAGING AREA WITHIN PARKING LOT PLAN

Q1 QUANTITIES

OCWRC - SOIL EROSION & SEDIMENTATION CONTROL DETAILS

N
. G

LE
N

H
U

R
ST

 D
R

.

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

 D
R

.

W
AD

D
IN

G
O

N
 R

D
.

TI
LB

U
R

Y 
R

D
.

YA
R

M
O

U
TH

 R
D

.

C
O

VI
N

G
TO

N
 R

D
.

OAK BLVD 

AMBERLY RD

ENDSLEIGH DR.

COVINGTON PI

N. GLENGARRY  RD

S.
 IN

D
IA

N
 M

O
U

N
D

  R
D

.
FO

X 
C

H
AS

E 
  R

D
.

MIDDLEBURY  LN.

S. W
ILLIAM

SBU
R

Y  R
D

S. CRANBRO
O

K CRO
SS RD.

N
. C

R
AN

BR
O

O
K 

R
D

.

C
IT

Y 
LI

M
IT

S

QUARTON ROAD

 UTILITY NOTE  
THE LOCATIONS AND ELEVATIONS OF SOME OF THE
EXISTING UNDERGROUND UTILITIES AS SHOWN ON THE
SURVEY DRAWING WERE OBTAINED FROM MUNICIPAL
AND UTILITY COMPANY RECORDS AND MAPS.
THEREFORE, NO GUARANTEE IS EITHER EXPRESSED OR
IMPLIED AS TO THE COMPLETENESS OR ACCURACY
THEREOF.  THE CONTRACTOR SHALL BE RESPONSIBLE
FOR DETERMINING THE EXACT UTILITY LOCATIONS AND
ELEVATIONS PRIOR TO THE START OF CONSTRUCTION.

W
ES

TW
O

O
D

N & F JOB #N342

7B



BENCHMARK

Topographic Survey

C01

SCALE:

Part of the Southeast 14
of Section 34
T.2N , R.10E
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

SEAL

12-02-2022

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

N342
NFE JOB NO.

12-02-22  ISSUED

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

LEGEND

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY NOTES

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

NF

N

M. Hani

MISS DIG / UTILITY DISCLAIMER NOTE

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

01-17-23  updated topo

Lincoln Hills Golf Course
Hole #1 Tee-Box & Cart
Path Improvements
Contract #2-23(G)

01-27-23  updated topo

7B



BENCHMARK

7B-

6B-

3B-
5B-

2B-

1B-

4B-

SCALE:

Part of the Southeast 14
of Section 34
T.2N , R.10E
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Lincoln Hills Golf Course
Hole #1 Tee-Box & Cart
Path Improvements
Contract #2-23(G)

SEAL

12-01-2022

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

N342
NFE JOB NO.

01-04-23  retaining wall coordination

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

01-17-23  bids

01-27-23  addendum #1

02-16-23  RE-BID

TOPOGRAPHIC SURVEY NOTES

DEMOLITION NOTES

C02

Demolition Plan

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

NF

N

J. Lawrey

P. Tulikangas

P. Tulikangas

LEGEND

GENERAL TREE PROTECTION NOTES

TREE PROTECTION DETAIL-PLAN

IRRIGATION ALLOWANCE

7B



SCALE:

Part of the Southeast 14
of Section 34
T.2N , R.10E
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Lincoln Hills Golf Course
Hole #1 Tee-Box & Cart
Path Improvements
Contract #2-23(G)

SEAL

12-01-2022

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

N342
NFE JOB NO.

01-04-23  retaining wall coordination

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

01-17-23  bids

01-27-23  addendum #1

02-16-23  RE-BID

C03

Soil Boring Logs

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

J. Lawrey

P. Tulikangas

P. Tulikangas

7B



BENCHMARK

PAVING LEGEND

LEGEND

Paving & Grading Plan

SCALE:

Part of the Southeast 14
of Section 34
T.2N , R.10E
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Lincoln Hills Golf Course
Hole #1 Tee-Box & Cart
Path Improvements
Contract #2-23(G)

SEAL

12-01-2022

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

N342
NFE JOB NO.

01-04-23  retaining wall coordination

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

01-17-23  bids

01-27-23  addendum #1

02-16-23  RE-BID

C04

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

J. Lawrey

P. Tulikangas

P. Tulikangas

GENERAL PAVING NOTES

NF

N

8' WD. CART PATH CROSS SECTION

7B



724

726

728

730

732

734

736

738

740

742

744

746

722

724

726

728

730

732

734

736

738

740

742

744

746

706

708

710

712

714

716

718

720

722

724

726

728

704

706

708

710

712

714

716

718

720

722

724

726

728

Retaining Wall A
("Tee Box Retaining Wall")

Retaining Wall B
("Pond Retaining Wall")

Retaining Wall Profile
Plan

SCALE:

Part of the Southeast 14
of Section 34
T.2N , R.10E
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Lincoln Hills Golf Course
Hole #1 Tee-Box & Cart
Path Improvements
Contract #2-23(G)

SEAL

12-01-2022

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

N342
NFE JOB NO.

01-04-23  retaining wall coordination

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

01-17-23  bids

01-27-23  addendum #1

02-16-23  RE-BID

C05

1" = 20' / 1"=2'
01020 10 20 30

J. Lawrey

P. Tulikangas

P. Tulikangas

7B



710

712

714

716

718

720

722

724

726

728

730

732

734

736

738

740

742

744

746

748

750

708

710

712

714

716

718

720

722

724

726

728

730

732

734

736

738

740

742

744

746

748

750

Cart Path Profile Cart Path Profile Plan

SCALE:

Part of the Southeast 14
of Section 34
T.2N , R.10E
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Lincoln Hills Golf Course
Hole #1 Tee-Box & Cart
Path Improvements
Contract #2-23(G)

SEAL

12-01-2022

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

N342
NFE JOB NO.

01-04-23  retaining wall coordination

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

01-17-23  bids

01-27-23  addendum #1

02-16-23  RE-BID

C06

1" = 20' / 1"=2'
01020 10 20 30

J. Lawrey

P. Tulikangas

P. Tulikangas

7B



BENCHMARK

SILTFENCE DETAIL

SECTION  A-A

FRONT  VIEW

PLAN  VIEW

SECTION  B-B

CONSTRUCTION SEQUENCE / TIMING SCHEDULE

Soil Erosion Control &
Lawn Restoration Plan

SCALE:

Part of the Southeast 14
of Section 34
T.2N , R.10E
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Lincoln Hills Golf Course
Hole #1 Tee-Box & Cart
Path Improvements
Contract #2-23(G)

SEAL

12-01-2022

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

N342
NFE JOB NO.

01-04-23  retaining wall coordination

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

01-17-23  bids

01-27-23  addendum #1

02-16-23  RE-BID

SOIL EROSION CONTROL

C07

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

NF

N

SOIL DATA

NOTES

LEGEND

J. Lawrey

P. Tulikangas

P. Tulikangas

LAWN RESTORATION (OUTSIDE TEE-BOX AREAS)

LAWN RESTORATION (WITHIN TEE-BOX AREAS)

7B



Retaining Wall Details &
General Project Notes

SCALE:

Part of the Southeast 14
of Section 34
T.2N , R.10E
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Lincoln Hills Golf Course
Hole #1 Tee-Box & Cart
Path Improvements
Contract #2-23(G)

SEAL

12-01-2022

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

N342
NFE JOB NO.

01-04-23  retaining wall coordination

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

01-17-23  bids

01-27-23  addendum #1

02-16-23  RE-BID

C08

N.T.S.

J. Lawrey

P. Tulikangas

P. Tulikangas

UTILITIES

DAMAGE TO PRIVATE PROPERTY

PAVEMENT REMOVAL

SUB-SOIL CONDITIONS

SUBGRADE UNDERCUTTING AND PREPARTION

STRUCTURE BACKFILL

TRENCH BACKFILL

EARTH BALANCE / GRADING

SOIL EROSION / SEDIMENTATION CONTROL

*NOTE: RETAINING WALL DESIGN
DETAILS ARE PROVIDED BY G2
CONSULTING GROUP:
CONTACT: MS. JENNIFER M. CASEY, P.E.;
PHONE: (248) 680-0400
EMAIL: jcasey@g2consultinggroup.com

ENGINEERED BLOCK RETAINING WALL DETAILS

SAFETY FENCE AT RETAINING WALL "B" (42" HGT.)

RETAINING WALL FENCE MOUNTING REQUIREMENTS

7B



PHASING/STAGING LEGEND

LEGEND

Phasing and Temporary
Staging Area within
Parking Lot Plan

SCALE:

Part of the Southeast 14
of Section 34
T.2N , R.10E
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Lincoln Hills Golf Course
Hole #1 Tee-Box & Cart
Path Improvements
Contract #2-23(G)

SEAL

12-01-2022

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

N342
NFE JOB NO.

01-04-23  retaining wall coordination

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

01-17-23  bids

01-27-23  addendum #1

02-16-23  RE-BID

C09

NF

N

Site

Location  Map

1" = 20'
01020 10 20 30

J. Lawrey

P. Tulikangas

P. Tulikangas

NF

N

7B



Quantities

SCALE:

Part of the Southeast 14
of Section 34
T.2N , R.10E
City of Birmingham,
Oakland County, Michigan

Know what's below
Call before you dig.

R

Lincoln Hills Golf Course
Hole #1 Tee-Box & Cart
Path Improvements
Contract #2-23(G)

SEAL

12-01-2022

PROJECT

CLIENT

PROJECT LOCATION

SHEET

DATE            ISSUED/REVISED

DRAWN BY:

DESIGNED BY:

APPROVED BY:

DATE:

sheet no.

N342
NFE JOB NO.

01-04-23  retaining wall coordination

NF
civil Engineers

Land Surveyors

Land Planners

ENGINEERS

NOWAK & FRAUS ENGINEERS

46777 Woodward Ave.

Pontiac, MI 48342-5032

Tel. (248) 332-7931

Fax.  (248) 332-8257

WWW.NOWAKFRAUS.COM

Engineering Department
151 Martin Street
Birmingham, MI 48012

01-17-23  bids

01-27-23  addendum #1

02-16-23  RE-BID

Q1

N.T.S.

J. Lawrey

P. Tulikangas

P. Tulikangas

7B



7B



�����������	�
� ������������������������������������ �!��"�#��������#������$�%���������

��� #������&������&!�������'�(�)*+�����$	�	�,-�.+ �,#���!�+���, �����$+�����$��/�0�	123��3	���434�23�,#� �+�#���/�0�	123��3	��5 ���

6789�:;<=>?@�A?B;<=>?@CB>?@=DEFDG=HI8J�KG88<�LM?N8�O?PQ�DR�S>8PQ8GR;87T�U;G8�LQ?Q;D<����##���#VD@�W?GXYP�Z����*'#[\�����-&���] '̂���%�\������(����������2�
��̂�����$�_�#��Z\��#�[\�����-&���]�!����������##���Z!���!���##��[\�����-&���]��̀� �������_��$#�Z$� ����������$#[\�����-&���]ab�!���������%����c���$��� ���d
�� �����"�#�����%����������̂.�e�&��̂���#'\f�!�� �� �����#�g���$�
'\�!�
�� ����&��̂��� �� �����#�����$�#�����$����� ��*�'#�&��̂���%���̀� ����������$����0$��#�������$��#�������!�����$�!��-����������-�!���� �� ����������
��*�$�#������&��̂����$f�!��!������������#������#'���#�#���������� �� �����#��'�$�������������!����������� �##\����'�'���'#������
'\�!��������'#�#����#��������� '\�!��#��'������'#�&��a���*��.���.���������'�'������$#���.�'�$�\�������!�����$�����������$����� �� �������$���-�����#�#�!'���������#�� ���������# �!��.���'���� ��*�$�#������&��_�-���#�$���������.�'�$�\��#'  ���-������!����������'���d�� �����$�%����ce�#�������#g����$�#!��������������������  �#���!������d�� ������#������$e��������%�����������#��&��%'���������.�'�$�#'���#���������\��!���.��*.�������'�������$#!� �����$��������\���������'���\���$$�$&�0����������#g�����$�#!����.�'�$�\��$����������g������� �!���������'#�\���# �!�����������������#������ ��������'#����$� '� �#�#�#����$��\�-�&��&��
��-�'#��������!�����!���!��������$�#����#'���#��$�$��.��#�.�!��!����$������ ��-�����#������.�'�$�!�����������f����-�#������.�!��.������-�.�$���$�!��#$���$�\��̀
��#�������$�\������
��*�����$��-������'������� �� �����#����
��*� �� ����&�&��̂��$�������$�!#��#���-��\������$���#�������#�����!�'����  ��-�$� ��f�!����$�������#����!����������#������.�'!������$����#�����.�������� ��-$������'�$���#� ��f�!�&�����#��� ��-��\���!�!*�����$�����!��'�$�'��.���$����#����!�������������.��'!�������.���$��������$�.�����������������-�������  ��-�$� ��f�!�������!���\�� �!�$��'�&3&�����#'���#����#��������'������.���������$�� ��!�##���������##�������#�����%'�'���̀#!'##��������#������##'�.�����������##������$����������������#�#'  �������� ��!�����#�����������'�'���!���##��������������$�&��0���#'\#�h'����!���##��������������!���##���!�'�$���-����$#!'##��������������.���������&����#$����� ��f�!����$.����#�������������d
���0�$��.#e���!������������.�'�$�!��#$��&���&��b������-������ ��f�!�)�����������������#!����������#'���#��$��\�-�����#����������#�&��&�����������������#�����!���# ��$�������������������#�������������##�����$#���� ��-$��$��!���&1&�����$����'����$�������\�!*��������%�������$�������������f���$����#���$�$����������\��� ��*��'�\����#������.��'!������������������.��������!����\'��&��̂���������#�����\'$����$������'�$#�������#�� ��-��������$���.�'�$�#���.�������c �!����$������#����!�-�������!�#���������� ��-�����#&��i��̂'���%�\������(������4�1��0�����$�_�#��Z\��#�[\�����-&���]�.������̀���̂���
����'��!��-��#�������#��̀�!��\����j'���d0�$��.#e�̀.����!�����#���������� �� �������.��������$���������
��0�$��.k#�\�����&��̂����!���������#�\�#�$������������\�����\'��������#&�0�$��.#���$��#��'�$���'�\��.�����������$�.��# �!�!#��.��\���-������$������#�.���\�������!����&���#$�������\��!��$������.�����\��*!�#��.�'�$�\��#'��!���������#���������'����'���������������������# �!������� ��*�.�'�$�\��� �����������������\�����$&0#���'�����*��.����������������(�(�l�'����b��$�����
�����������$�����������$����!��#$��������$������������'���!��������� ��*&_� ����#���� #��c ��������$����#k����!��!�&��#��#����.#��#����$��m�'���!�-�$���#���##����\�!�'#����'�����#'\#!�\�$������������������' #�ǹ� �������_��$#n����' &�̂�'�#'\#!�\���������#����' ���$�#�� ���!�-�������#���������#��$������������$� ����������$#o'�#'\#!�\�[\�����-&���&�̂�-�.���#�$#!'##����������.�\�-#����� #������' #&������&!�����\�����-&����$��#�$�$� ����������$#��0l
lh��fj"p�l"�4�!�̂((̀ �/��b�%0�_��̀�	qm!̂*��4�-�/��0/3(���&����&!��&VD@�W?GXYP�Z����*'#[\�����-&���] b�$����������(������������
��̂��0��c��������Z�\�����[\�����-&���]�����#����b��$#�Z!.��$#[\�����-&���]�!�������r'!����*�Z�*'!����*[\���.&'#&!��]�����##��%��\����Z����\���[\�����-&���]��j����"!*��Zj�!*��[\�����-&���]
7D2



�����������	�
� ������������������������������������ �!��"�#��������#������$�%���������

��� #������&������&!�������'�(�)*+�����$	�	�,-�.+ �,#���!�+���, �����$+�����$��/�0�	123��3	���434�23�,#� �+�#���/�0�	123��3	��5 ���

6�#�#��'�$�7������!��$����������8������$��.���������
���0�$��.#���7'���#'���#����#�$#!'##�$�'�$�����.�7'#��##�����������%��.��$�$���##�������������%�����9:;<�=>?@�A7��#�B7�����-&���CD�����6'���%�7������(���������4E
��'7F�!�������������� �!��"�#��������#������$�%���������6���6������*'#�A����*'#B7�����-&���C6���*#G�������������
����H��%�7������(�����������2�
���6������*'#�A����*'#B7�����-&���C�.�����IJ'���$���8���$$��K

7D2



NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO 
BOARD OF BUILDING TRADES APPEALS 

At the regular meeting of Monday, April 24, 2023 the Birmingham City Commission intends 
to appoint to the Board of Building Trades Appeals two regular members to serve three-year 
term to expire April 24, 2026.  Applicants shall be qualified by experience or training in fields 
such as architecture, engineering, mechanical engineering, building, electrical plumbing, 
heating or refrigeration.  

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the City Clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the City Clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, April 19, 2023.  These documents will appear in the 
public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on appointments.  

The Board of Building Trades Appeal hears and grants or denies requests for variances from 
strict application of the provisions of the Michigan Building, Residential, Mechanical and 
Plumbing Codes and the National Electrical Code. The board will decide on matters pertaining 
to specific code requirements related to the construction or materials to be used in the 
erection, alteration or repair of a building or structure.  

All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 
2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Members shall be qualified by experience or 
training. 
(such as architect, engineer, mechanical engineer, 
building contractor, electrical contractor, plumbing 
contractor, heating contractor, and refrigeration 
contractor) 

04/19/2023 04/24/2023 

10A1

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


NOTICE OF INTENTION TO APPOINT TO THE 
CITY OF BIRMINGHAM 

BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 

At the regular meeting of Monday, May 8, 2023 the Birmingham City Commission intends to 
appoint to the Brownfield Redevelopment Authority two regular members to serve three-
year terms to expire May 23, 2026, and one regular member to serve the remainder of a 3 
year term to expire May 23, 2024. 

The authority shall have the powers and duties to the full extent as provided by and in 
accordance with the provisions of the Brownfield Redevelopment Financing Act, being Act 
381 of the Public Acts of the state of Michigan of 1996, as amended.  Among other matters, 
in the exercise of its powers, the Board may prepare Brownfield plans pursuant to Section 
13 of the Act and submit the plans to the Commission for consideration pursuant to Section 
13 and 14 of the Act. 

Members shall be appointed by the Mayor, subject to approval by the City 
Commission.   

Interested citizens may submit an application available at the city clerk’s office or online at 
www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities. Applications must be submitted to the city clerk's 
office on or before noon on Wednesday, May 4, 2023.  These documents will appear in the 
public agenda for the regular meeting at which time the City Commission will discuss 
recommendations, and may make nominations and vote on appointments.  

All members of boards and commissions are subject to the provisions of City of Birmingham City Code Chapter 
2, Article IX, Ethics and the filing of the Affidavit and Disclosure Statement.   

Criteria/Qualifications of Open Position Date 
Applications Due 
(by noon) 

Date of 
Interview 

Members shall, in so far as possible, be residents 
of the City of Birmingham.   

5/4/2023 5/8/2023 

10A2

http://www.bhamgov.org/boardopportunities


�������������	
 ������������������
��
������������������������ 

�!"�������#������# ������������$�%&'�����(�()*+���&!*"��� �&���*!����"���&�"���,�-'(./�'�)��(0��0��0�*"��!�&�"���,�-'(./�'�)��(1 '�'

2345�6789:;<�=;>789:;<?>:;<9@AB@C9DEFGH�I@G4�@J�I@8GKLMN@<�O;CPKQ�R���%�"ST�����+#���U V����
�������������''�0��-
W���-��X���������R�T������ST�����+#���U������"����V���"�R ����"ST�����+#���U� ��
����Y� ����%�R
%� ����%ST����#�"# ��U	���"����+����������������� ���������!������������������!�� ������������!��"�����������������������""�������������������O;CZ�[KL:;C4P�R
%� ����%ST����#�"# ��U\����V����
�������������''���]-
�̂T_� ��������������� W���W���
��%�"�R���%�"ST�����+#���U� ��̀����a %���R̀� %��ST�����+#���U��
���""������T�����R�����T����ST�����+#���UW�����������-"���b��"���T��������������""���������+���������������������������!��"������������������������� ���������!�� ��+������ ���������������"�����"�� ������!��+�"�������������� �"#��c���+���������_����������������������"��� ����������"��������������������"����"���"�"��������������������������������!��������������� ����#�d� ���������""�����"�"������������������"���������� ��T���������"����"���"����������� ����������+������e"���+���#�W���%����#
����
#�Y� ����%-��������f��������c������	#�#\��� �\����g�0�h����'�(.g�0�h�)0.�/0���aX#��''�%� ����%ST����#�"# ��� ijikjkjlmmmnkjopkBqGJ'.�.Y

10E1



10E1



10E1



10E1



10E1



10E1



10E1



10E1



10E1



3/3/23, 11:24 AM City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd: Weekly update

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=c586f10302&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1759362250483986203&simpl=msg-f%3A17593622504… 1/3

Christina Woods <cwoods@bhamgov.org>

Fwd: Weekly update
Tom Markus <tmarkus@bhamgov.org> Fri, Mar 3, 2023 at 10:49 AM
To: Alex Bingham <abingham@bhamgov.org>, Christina Woods <cwoods@bhamgov.org>
Cc: Jana Ecker <Jecker@bhamgov.org>, Mary Kucharek <Mkucharek@bhlaw.us.com>

Please add to info only on next agenda 

---------- Forwarded message ---------
From: Downtown Newsmagazine <Production@downtownpublications.com>
Date: Fri, Mar 3, 2023 at 10:21 AM
Subject: Weekly update
To: <tmarkus@bhamgov.org>

Can't see this message? View in a browser

INFORMATION ONLY

mailto:Production@downtownpublications.com
mailto:tmarkus@bhamgov.org
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=FJfz_uoLGqMca7x0a_CR2AGR-JnByGsBat70RohfVLg.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NvLzc3T1FlMU51TT9sYW5ndWFnZVRhZz1lbiIsIm0iOiJtYWlsIiwiYyI6IjhiZDBiNWM0LTlmM2EtNDIyMi1iZTM4LTNjNTdlNGFjODUzYyJ9
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=BPAoOodXkfJcJq9WBxSx4h5sqo5exMNQPC-ZH-owCf8.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tLyIsInIiOiIyYmJiZjFhZS00ODVlLTRmNzEtYjdhZi0wMzJlNjMzNmE0NzAiLCJtIjoibWFpbCIsImMiOiI4YmQwYjVjNC05ZjNhLTQyMjItYmUzOC0zYzU3ZTRhYzg1M2MifQ


3/3/23, 11:24 AM City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd: Weekly update

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=c586f10302&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1759362250483986203&simpl=msg-f%3A17593622504… 2/3

Commissioners approve new RH final site plan
Construction of the new four-story Restoration Hardware (RH) building at 300 S. Old 
Woodward Avenue in Birmingham will resume after the city commission approved the final site 
plan and special land use permit on Monday, February 27, for the building’s new design.

Bloomfield trustees review historic discrimination
Seventy-five years after discriminatory housing restrictions were prohibited by the Civil Rights 
Act of 1968, a plethora of Bloomfield Township property deeds retain exclusionary language 
that is now illegal to enforce.

Four restaurants found in violation of liquor code
Birmingham city commissioners conducted the annual review of liquor licenses granted to 
various establishments at their meeting on Monday, February 27, approving the renewal of 
most business’ licenses and setting a public hearing to consider whether commissioners want 
to file objections for four establishments found in violation of city code.

City staff gets more time on outdoor dining rules
Birmingham city commissioners voted to table the discussion of the city’s outdoor dining 
ordinance proposal on Monday, February 27, after city staff requested more time to tighten the 
ordinance language.

Township approves aerial fire truck purchase
The Bloomfield Township Board of Trustees on Monday, February 27 approved the purchase 
of a $1.7 million, 100-foot tall aerial platform truck to be added to the stable of firefighting 
vehicles.

public safety

Roseville man with outstanding warrants caught
A Birmingham police officer observed a vehicle traveling at a high rate of speed on 
southbound Adams Road on Sunday, February 26, and he officer initiated a traffic stop.

Man discovered looking through home window
Birmingham police officers were dispatched to the 500 block of Ridgedale Avenue on Tuesday, 
February 21, after receiving a report of a suspicious person. The reporting party told officers 
that while she was house-sitting, she noticed a man, described as a white male in his 30’s or 
40’s, looking through the back window of the house.

Car stolen from home on Lyonhurst Road
A 66-year-old Birmingham resident reported to police that on Saturday, February 25, his 
vehicle was stolen from his driveway overnight.INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=Yr0g8aY9ccg3TPg9Qx61JgFgOpORu9Lxfzd5XbavATU.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NpbmdsZS1wb3N0L2NvbW1pc3Npb25lcnMtYXBwcm92ZS1uZXctcmgtZmluYWwtc2l0ZS1wbGFuIiwiciI6IjU1ZjNiODg4LWI0OWYtNGNhYi0zNjhjLTQ2OTdkM2ZmMDhhOCIsIm0iOiJtYWlsIiwiYyI6IjhiZDBiNWM0LTlmM2EtNDIyMi1iZTM4LTNjNTdlNGFjODUzYyJ9
https://www.google.com/maps/search/300+S.+Old+Woodward+Avenue?entry=gmail&source=g
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=OGD_f0H-hVq4-Y_eXY7MVatVq9Mq7OCqgGQmX7OtE2k.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NpbmdsZS1wb3N0L2Jsb29tZmllbGQtdHJ1c3RlZXMtcmV2aWV3LWhpc3RvcmljLWRpc2NyaW1pbmF0aW9uIiwiciI6IjU1ZjNiODg4LWI0OWYtNGNhYi0zNjhjLTQ2OTdkM2ZmMDhhOCIsIm0iOiJtYWlsIiwiYyI6IjhiZDBiNWM0LTlmM2EtNDIyMi1iZTM4LTNjNTdlNGFjODUzYyJ9
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=evJiOJbTBaiZwl_a9DjqwOaPrKQoEB3YS2qtxWzYPe8.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NpbmdsZS1wb3N0L2ZvdXItcmVzdGF1cmFudHMtZm91bmQtaW4tdmlvbGF0aW9uLW9mLWxpcXVvci1jb2RlIiwiciI6IjU1ZjNiODg4LWI0OWYtNGNhYi0zNjhjLTQ2OTdkM2ZmMDhhOCIsIm0iOiJtYWlsIiwiYyI6IjhiZDBiNWM0LTlmM2EtNDIyMi1iZTM4LTNjNTdlNGFjODUzYyJ9
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=9ORQYfsMh6njJnpMlQTY45Bi6ar7Gyf7-8enGw5ErvY.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NpbmdsZS1wb3N0L2NpdHktc3RhZmYtZ2V0cy1tb3JlLXRpbWUtb24tb3V0ZG9vci1kaW5pbmctcnVsZXMiLCJyIjoiNTVmM2I4ODgtYjQ5Zi00Y2FiLTM2OGMtNDY5N2QzZmYwOGE4IiwibSI6Im1haWwiLCJjIjoiOGJkMGI1YzQtOWYzYS00MjIyLWJlMzgtM2M1N2U0YWM4NTNjIn0
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=e_ece-ziZPMexaku0_Y6lRzidRxf--x4m4eLgkB1qs0.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NpbmdsZS1wb3N0L3Rvd25zaGlwLWFwcHJvdmVzLWFlcmlhbC1maXJlLXRydWNrLXB1cmNoYXNlIiwiciI6IjU1ZjNiODg4LWI0OWYtNGNhYi0zNjhjLTQ2OTdkM2ZmMDhhOCIsIm0iOiJtYWlsIiwiYyI6IjhiZDBiNWM0LTlmM2EtNDIyMi1iZTM4LTNjNTdlNGFjODUzYyJ9
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=CpeYmxUZobalKdvkxC6vPXVtnfSEKFlkC2qa8DINOmw.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3B1YmxpY3NhZmV0eSIsInIiOiI1NWYzYjg4OC1iNDlmLTRjYWItMzY4Yy00Njk3ZDNmZjA4YTgiLCJtIjoibWFpbCIsImMiOiI4YmQwYjVjNC05ZjNhLTQyMjItYmUzOC0zYzU3ZTRhYzg1M2MifQ
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=d6PuSH0rhGjM3BWwbTgmu3DhfuuJBONX1KDhE3jtQb4.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NpbmdsZS1wb3N0L3Jvc2V2aWxsZS1tYW4td2l0aC1vdXRzdGFuZGluZy13YXJyYW50cy1jYXVnaHQiLCJyIjoiNTVmM2I4ODgtYjQ5Zi00Y2FiLTM2OGMtNDY5N2QzZmYwOGE4IiwibSI6Im1haWwiLCJjIjoiOGJkMGI1YzQtOWYzYS00MjIyLWJlMzgtM2M1N2U0YWM4NTNjIn0
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=o0XCuoq-ZAPemVspl5BQQJErYFCnxA4Caj65EBOfWzg.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NpbmdsZS1wb3N0L21hbi1kaXNjb3ZlcmVkLWxvb2tpbmctdGhyb3VnaC1ob21lLXdpbmRvdyIsInIiOiI1NWYzYjg4OC1iNDlmLTRjYWItMzY4Yy00Njk3ZDNmZjA4YTgiLCJtIjoibWFpbCIsImMiOiI4YmQwYjVjNC05ZjNhLTQyMjItYmUzOC0zYzU3ZTRhYzg1M2MifQ
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=waMUHd9sNwzY4bDV4MWOOZZk8-kH788Xe-G46DOTDWw.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NpbmdsZS1wb3N0L2Nhci1zdG9sZW4tZnJvbS1ob21lLW9uLWx5b25odXJzdC1yb2FkIiwiciI6IjU1ZjNiODg4LWI0OWYtNGNhYi0zNjhjLTQ2OTdkM2ZmMDhhOCIsIm0iOiJtYWlsIiwiYyI6IjhiZDBiNWM0LTlmM2EtNDIyMi1iZTM4LTNjNTdlNGFjODUzYyJ9


3/3/23, 11:24 AM City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd: Weekly update

https://mail.google.com/mail/u/0/?ik=c586f10302&view=pt&search=all&permmsgid=msg-f%3A1759362250483986203&simpl=msg-f%3A17593622504… 3/3

Dump trailer worth $10,000 stolen in Birmingham
A trailer worth roughly $10,000 was reported missing by a construction worker on Friday, 
February 24, I.n Birmingham.

Wallet taken from unlocked car in Birmingham
A victim of a larceny from auto reported to Birmingham police on Wednesday, February 23, 
that his wallet was stolen from his unlocked vehicle on the 700 block of East Maple Road.

Downtown Support Campaign
Downtown Newsmagazine has launched a membership campaign for donations to the 
publication to allow us to remain strong and grow while still remaining free to most homes in 
the Birmingham/Bloomfield area. Publisher David Hohendorf’s letter to the local community 
explains the background on the membership effort.

970 E Maple Road / Ste. 3, 
Birmingham, MI, United States

248.792.6464

Share on social
Check us out   

You've received this email because you are a subscriber of this site.
If you feel you received it by mistake or wish to unsubscribe, please click here.

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=9eEGbKN0DfmD_4AW57il9kRL1YrWR2OofQJOQ_AohDA.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NpbmdsZS1wb3N0L2R1bXAtdHJhaWxlci13b3J0aC0xMC0wMDAtc3RvbGVuLWluLWJpcm1pbmdoYW0iLCJyIjoiNTVmM2I4ODgtYjQ5Zi00Y2FiLTM2OGMtNDY5N2QzZmYwOGE4IiwibSI6Im1haWwiLCJjIjoiOGJkMGI1YzQtOWYzYS00MjIyLWJlMzgtM2M1N2U0YWM4NTNjIn0
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=RAKVxco_taM2vHykUue2udBu1AxT6ePXheA7zrV7c7k.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NpbmdsZS1wb3N0L3dhbGxldC10YWtlbi1mcm9tLXVubG9ja2VkLWNhci1pbi1iaXJtaW5naGFtIiwiciI6IjU1ZjNiODg4LWI0OWYtNGNhYi0zNjhjLTQ2OTdkM2ZmMDhhOCIsIm0iOiJtYWlsIiwiYyI6IjhiZDBiNWM0LTlmM2EtNDIyMi1iZTM4LTNjNTdlNGFjODUzYyJ9
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=kKI4lR-4IFX8lM8nJkmdy2la7XjFp13Q8KSASZ0HiGA.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL2RvbmF0aW9ucyIsInIiOiI4OGFhYzAwZC0xNTFlLTRhNzUtN2YyMi0yYWU3MDY4YzcxYTYiLCJtIjoibWFpbCIsImMiOiI4YmQwYjVjNC05ZjNhLTQyMjItYmUzOC0zYzU3ZTRhYzg1M2MifQ
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=vjtXJOPdYYj3rkg1XO8VwLNyCXvlZTd6rEa5RSSUlNo.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL29wZW4tbGV0dGVyIiwiciI6IjdmYWM0ZTdhLWUxOWEtNDQ0ZC1iY2ZjLWNhMjU1Mzk5YTA0ZiIsIm0iOiJtYWlsIiwiYyI6IjhiZDBiNWM0LTlmM2EtNDIyMi1iZTM4LTNjNTdlNGFjODUzYyJ9
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=XlcNTFe5VzuPeP77VR3Wn-7QiD9gAFvVKZ-GG76UwCA.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cDovL3d3dy5zaXIuY29tIiwiciI6IjMwMmQ3YTExLTgyMzQtNDliNy1hZjIwLWU1ZDMwM2QwOTRkZiIsIm0iOiJtYWlsIiwiYyI6IjhiZDBiNWM0LTlmM2EtNDIyMi1iZTM4LTNjNTdlNGFjODUzYyJ9
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=zVFMLtUxRPCR8-8z2A1X48Fzja5d1teS8i7x_NWUBy0.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly9tYXBzLmdvb2dsZS5jb20vP3E9OTcwK0UrTWFwbGUrUm9hZCslMkYrU3RlLiszJTJDK0Jpcm1pbmdoYW0lMkMrTUklMkMrVW5pdGVkK1N0YXRlcyIsInIiOiIyYWM2NzFjNy03NzE1LTQzNWQtOTZkOC01ODU4OWJmYTYzNjYiLCJtIjoibWFpbCIsImMiOiI4YmQwYjVjNC05ZjNhLTQyMjItYmUzOC0zYzU3ZTRhYzg1M2MifQ
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=AxxRI3esPXjL45rErksaZZIjUuacaF8gHzuCjtyFgyg.eyJ1IjoidGVsOjI0OC43OTIuNjQ2NCIsInIiOiIyYWM2NzFjNy03NzE1LTQzNWQtOTZkOC01ODU4OWJmYTYzNjYiLCJtIjoibWFpbCIsImMiOiI4YmQwYjVjNC05ZjNhLTQyMjItYmUzOC0zYzU3ZTRhYzg1M2MifQ
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=fC1LY30gVlyqi9ubLZITUdigSNyFAeFyyFy5hz6KUmA.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZmFjZWJvb2suY29tL3NoYXJlci9zaGFyZXIucGhwP3U9aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NvLzc3T1FlMU51TT9sYW5ndWFnZVRhZz1lbiIsInIiOiIyYWM2NzFjNy03NzE1LTQzNWQtOTZkOC01ODU4OWJmYTYzNjYiLCJtIjoibWFpbCIsImMiOiI4YmQwYjVjNC05ZjNhLTQyMjItYmUzOC0zYzU3ZTRhYzg1M2MifQ
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=nNNWTusONs6bYNhlFwTPqE5MMCMODWfcy_hLpVu5rD8.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly90d2l0dGVyLmNvbS9zaGFyZT91cmw9aHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tL3NvLzc3T1FlMU51TT9sYW5ndWFnZVRhZz1lbiIsInIiOiIyYWM2NzFjNy03NzE1LTQzNWQtOTZkOC01ODU4OWJmYTYzNjYiLCJtIjoibWFpbCIsImMiOiI4YmQwYjVjNC05ZjNhLTQyMjItYmUzOC0zYzU3ZTRhYzg1M2MifQ
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=6G1BQhaAQLfSMQZixfY6YMsGtj3Yn2V-LzvNYjOvM3Y.
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=W-xmGfHr6NmAtjv1BlHFZRmBr8je73_uAh_EX_gZthU.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cDovL3d3dy5kb3dudG93bnB1YmxpY2F0aW9ucy5jb20iLCJyIjoiMmFjNjcxYzctNzcxNS00MzVkLTk2ZDgtNTg1ODliZmE2MzY2IiwibSI6Im1haWwiLCJjIjoiOGJkMGI1YzQtOWYzYS00MjIyLWJlMzgtM2M1N2U0YWM4NTNjIn0
https://www.downtownpublications.com/so/77OQe1NuM/c?w=LZEBNaqje_bgjagTzU65cfI051EE3eLPY79hlzEohfk.eyJ1IjoiaHR0cHM6Ly93d3cuZG93bnRvd25wdWJsaWNhdGlvbnMuY29tLyIsIm0iOiJtYWlsIiwiYyI6IjhiZDBiNWM0LTlmM2EtNDIyMi1iZTM4LTNjNTdlNGFjODUzYyJ9
https://www.wixapis.com/email-marketing/v1/email-subscriptions/unsubscribe?payload=JWS.eyJraWQiOiJZbHZQV0U0aSIsImFsZyI6IkhTMjU2In0.eyJkYXRhIjoie1wibWV0YVNpdGVJZFwiOlwiNWMyMDM1NGMtMjhiYy00YjI0LTgyOTYtNzBlZWZmNjQ5OTQ3XCIsXCJlbWFpbEFkZHJlc3NcIjpcInRtYXJrdXNAYmhhbWdvdi5vcmdcIixcIm1ldGFkYXRhXCI6e1wibWVzc2FnZUlkXCI6XCIzMzQzYzBkOS01NzU5LTQ5MTMtOGQ0OS03M2RjOTM1ZTU0NzdcIixcImNvbnRhY3RJZFwiOlwiOGJkMGI1YzQtOWYzYS00MjIyLWJlMzgtM2M1N2U0YWM4NTNjXCJ9fSIsImlhdCI6MTY3Nzg1NjkwNX0.oydfXXYS0rhT8jScvxu3hfYKn65gz8jMkPGd41R4dIM&language=en


SQUARE FEET 

Awash in Asphalt, Cities Rethink 
Their Parking Needs 

Local leaders across the nation are overhauling parking requirements for developers, 
scaling back the minimum number of spots for shopping centers and apartment 
complexes. 

 
Credit...Ben Sklar for The New York Times 

By Jane Margolies 
March 7, 2023Updated 11:19 a.m. ET 

6 MIN READ 

Spying an empty spot in a parking lot, a driver flicks on the turn signal and steers the car 
into the space. This little maneuver happens so often across the country that it’s done 
almost without a second thought. 

But now, the humble parking spot is suddenly a hot topic. Scrutinizing their parking 
regulations, cities across the nation are rolling back requirements for new development. 

The United States has about two billion parking spots, according to some estimates — 
nearly seven for every car. In some cities, as much as 14 percent of land area is covered 
with the black asphalt that engulfs malls, apartment buildings and commercial strips. 

The fact that the country is awash in parking spots stems from America’s longstanding 
love affair with the car, compounded by arcane zoning codes that mandate off-street 
parking for real estate projects. 

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.nytimes.com/by/jane-margolies
https://financesonline.com/number-of-cars-in-the-us/


But paving over paradise, to paraphrase Joni Mitchell, is now being blamed for a 
number of societal woes, including the housing crisis, climate change and the rise in 
fatalities among pedestrians and cyclists. 

The idea that the country has an overabundance of parking may come as a surprise to 
residents of big cities like Chicago, New York and Washington, where drivers are 
routinely hunting for a spot, and sometimes even get into fights over parking spaces. 
Some worry that rolling back mandates may make it even harder to find that coveted 
spot.  

But in city after city, minimum parking requirements, as they are called, are being 
struck down, thrilling progressives and real estate developers alike. “It’s snowballing,” 
said Jeff Speck, a city planner and the author of “Walkable City: How Downtown Can 
Save America, One Step at a Time.” 

Despite pushback from some residents not ready to share their favorite spot, hundreds 
of cities, from Gainesville, Fla., to Anchorage have overhauled their parking 
requirements. Dozens have repealed them; 15 in 2022 alone. 

Changes in work modes may be coming into play: The rise in popularity of remote and 
hybrid work arrangements means fewer office workers are commuting daily, decreasing 
the need for parking. 

Credit...Ben Sklar for The New York Times 

Priscilla Barolo of Carmel, Calif., found she no longer needed a parking spot when she 
started her own consulting business from home, giving up a communications job at 
Zoom — and a commute that took an hour each way, which cut into the time she spent 
with her two young sons. “Remote is going to be my future,” Mrs. Barolo said. 

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.jchs.harvard.edu/state-nations-housing-2022
https://www.nytimes.com/2022/11/27/upshot/road-deaths-pedestrians-cyclists.html
https://www.nytimes.com/2022/11/27/upshot/road-deaths-pedestrians-cyclists.html
https://wsvn.com/news/local/driver-arrested-after-running-over-killing-woman-over-parking-space-in-hialeah/


The move to reduce parking lots has particular relevance for real estate. “We think it’s 
the future,” said Dirk Aulabaugh, an executive vice president at Green Street, a real 
estate analytics firm. 

Off-street parking sprang up in the 1920s with the rise in car ownership. Concerned that 
there would not be enough curb space for vehicles, towns and cities started to require 
that stores or apartment complexes provided parking for customers and tenants. 

 
Cars parked in Plain City, Ohio, in 1938. Off-street parking sprang up in the 1920s with the rise in car 
ownership. Credit...Library of Congress 

 

In the postwar period, when Americans were in thrall with the automobile and the 
federal government unfurled highways across the land, parking minimums were 
enshrined in zoning codes to ensure that Americans would always find a paved 
parallelogram waiting for them at the end of their trip. 

The rules were exacting: one parking space per apartment, for example, or one for 
every 300 square feet of a commercial building. It all sounded scientific, but these ratios 
were not based on any verifiable data about how many spaces were needed, said Donald 
Shoup, a professor of urban planning at the University of California, Los Angeles, who 
has been railing since the 1970s against the requirements, which he calls a 
pseudoscience. 

Nevertheless, towns copied the rules from other towns until the requirements were 
codified across the country, and people started to think of free parking as a right. No 
wonder there’s even a spot for it on the Monopoly board. 

INFORMATION ONLY

https://thereader.mitpress.mit.edu/brief-cultural-history-of-the-parking-lot/
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/infrastructure/50interstate.cfm
https://www.fhwa.dot.gov/infrastructure/50interstate.cfm
https://www.shoupdogg.com/
https://www.shoupdogg.com/
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/348325574_The_Pseudoscience_of_Parking_Requirements
https://www.researchgate.net/publication/348325574_The_Pseudoscience_of_Parking_Requirements


But parking mandates encourage car ownership and use, Mr. Shoup said. They 
pockmark downtowns with stretches of asphalt that separate businesses and spread out 
cities, leading to more driving, and more parking, even in areas with mass transit. 

The mandates also constrain developers, who need to allot precious space to parking, 
driving up costs that are often passed on to tenants and customers. Even a basic, stand-
alone parking structure costs nearly $28,000 per spot on average, not including land, 
said Rob McConnell, a vice president at WGI, an engineering firm. And underground 
parking costs twice as much, he added. 

Some developers would include space for parking even if it was not mandated, believing 
the success of their projects depended on it. Others petition for variances, a time-
consuming undertaking. 

 
Buffalo eliminated mandates in 2017, leaving it up to developers to figure out how much parking to 
provide. Credit...George Etheredge for The New York Times 

 

Officials in Buffalo decided there had to be a better way. In 2017, the city eliminated 
minimum parking mandates for new developments, leaving it up to developers to figure 
out how much to provide. A 2021 study revealed that after the repeal, 47 percent of 
major developments provided 21 percent fewer spaces on average. 

And projects in Buffalo that might not have been feasible before the repeal suddenly 
were, including one with affordable apartments that was built, coincidentally, on a 
former parking lot. 

INFORMATION ONLY

https://publications.wginc.com/parking-structure-construction-cost-outlook-2022
https://www.tandfonline.com/doi/full/10.1080/01944363.2020.1864225
https://www.ciminelli.com/201-ellicott


Other cities — seeing that “the sky did not fall,” as Mr. Shoup put it — followed suit. 
Some reduced minimum requirements, others did away with them altogether and still 
others went so far as to set parking maximums, according to the nonprofit 
group Parking Reform Network, which has been tracking the moves. Instead of parking, 
some developers provided allowances for mass transit and bike use or rental-car-sharing 
arrangements. 

Overturning the requirements is not the only way parking lots are being refashioned. 
There have been efforts to landscape them with plants to absorb rainfall rather than 
letting it run off, which can cause flooding. The greenery can also reduce heat radiating 
from the asphalt. Some lots have been transformed into parks, while others are topped 
with solar panels to provide power as well as shade. 

Not everyone is a fan of the reforms. Those with disabilities need to be able to park close 
to where they are going, Mr. McConnell of WGI said. Much of the time, however, 
objections to repealing minimums come from homeowners who fear their 
neighborhoods will be overrun with cars. 

In South Boston, mandates were increased in 2016. Last year, Miami reinstated 
minimum parking requirements. “This is not a pedestrian and bicycle city,” said one 
commissioner who complained of people parking in front of his house. 

But the momentum is in the other direction, driven in part by a housing shortage, which 
has prompted officials to explore ways to ease construction requirements and make 
homes more affordable. 

In December, San Jose, Calif., became the largest U.S. city to eliminate parking 
minimums, and Bend, Ore., repealed its minimums this year. 

In some cities, the amount of parking may already exceed demand, according to a 2018 
inventory commissioned by the Research Institute for Housing America, part of the 
Mortgage Bankers Association. The survey showed that there were 19 parking spots per 
household in Des Moines, and that in Jackson, Wyo., there were 27 spaces for every 
home. 
 
There’s action at the state level, too. California recently capped parking in cities with 
robust mass transit, and Oregon capped it for cities of a certain size. In New York, a 
bill in committee would prevent cities, villages and towns from imposing exclusionary 
zoning, including parking minimums. 
Image 

INFORMATION ONLY

https://parkingreform.org/
https://parkingreform.org/resources/mandates-map/
https://nelsonnygaard.com/five-steps-toward-equitable-inclusive-tdm/
https://www.nytimes.com/2006/11/12/realestate/12nati.html
https://www.nytimes.com/2006/11/12/realestate/12nati.html
http://www.princeconcepts.com/parking
https://www.epa.gov/green-infrastructure/reduce-urban-heat-island-effect#:~:text=%2522Urban%2520heat%2520islands%2522%2520occur%2520when,heat%252Drelated%2520illness%2520and%2520mortality.
https://www.santamonica.gov/places/parks/tongva-park
https://e360.yale.edu/features/putting-solar-panels-atop-parking-lots-a-green-energy-solution
https://e360.yale.edu/features/putting-solar-panels-atop-parking-lots-a-green-energy-solution
https://www.bostonglobe.com/metro/2017/01/06/new-south-boston-zoning-could-mean-more-parking-and-slow-down-development/UWzabAhR6alz626lDjQe9N/story.html
https://www.thenextmiami.com/miami-is-not-a-pedestrian-bicycle-city-commissioner-says-before-voting-to-require-more-parking-garages/
https://www.thenextmiami.com/miami-is-not-a-pedestrian-bicycle-city-commissioner-says-before-voting-to-require-more-parking-garages/
https://www.freddiemac.com/research/insight/20210507-housing-supply
https://knowledge.uli.org/-/media/files/research-reports/2021/parking-policy-resources/implications-for-social-equity-and-housing-affordability.pdf?rev=c826234eb28b45ebbfa2325a0c53795b&hash=3943CA72C10EC44E99131394F4CDC3CD
https://knowledge.uli.org/-/media/files/research-reports/2021/parking-policy-resources/implications-for-social-equity-and-housing-affordability.pdf?rev=c826234eb28b45ebbfa2325a0c53795b&hash=3943CA72C10EC44E99131394F4CDC3CD
https://www.msn.com/en-us/money/realestate/bye-bye-parking-requirements-san-jose-becomes-largest-city-to-abolish-minimum-parking/ar-AA151XmZ?fbclid=IwAR2fYHva3H6UClNzCCm3Du0pgYkuF7cay2l-A2iQgWQk_fUtAC3bt4WiRR8
https://www.bendoregon.gov/Home/Components/News/News/5592/29?cftype=News
https://www.mba.org/docs/default-source/research---riha-reports/18806-research-riha-parking-report.pdf?sfvrsn=d59a2d33_0
https://www.mba.org/docs/default-source/research---riha-reports/18806-research-riha-parking-report.pdf?sfvrsn=d59a2d33_0
https://www.gov.ca.gov/2022/09/22/governor-newsom-issues-legislative-update-9-22-22/
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/bills/2023/S162
https://www.nysenate.gov/legislation/bills/2023/S162


 
Parking garage provided by the municipality in the downtown area of Elizabeth, N.J. Credit...Ben Sklar 
for The New York Times 

 

And legislation introduced at the national level, known as the Yes in My Backyard Act, 
would require recipients of certain federal funds to show that they were eliminating or 
reducing barriers to affordable housing, including off-street parking requirements. 

“We need more housing, we need more density in certain cities,” Mr. Aulabaugh of 
Green Street said. “Converting parking or lowering the parking requirement, that’s how 
you get there.” 

Even on Black Friday, traditionally the busiest shopping day of the year, there may be 
more than enough parking spaces for shoppers now that so many people buy presents 
online during the holiday season. To raise awareness of the glut, the nonprofit 
organization Strong Towns started a #BlackFridayParking social media campaign; every 
November, photos of half-empty lots are tagged. Indeed, outer edges of lots around 
malls are now being regarded as a kind of land bank for future development. 

Those parking spots may not be missed when they’re gone, given the decline in car 
ownership among millennials coupled with changes in transportation modes, including 
ride-hailing, car-sharing, and electric bikes and scooters. 

Dr. David Rosen, a physician who specializes in sleep disorders, doesn’t need a parking 
spot when he bikes from his home in Tenafly, N.J., to a hospital in the Bronx where he 
works in an intensive care unit once a week. “Arriving by bike is a fantastic feeling,” he 
said. 
 

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.congress.gov/bill/117th-congress/house-bill/3198/text
https://www.strongtowns.org/
https://twitter.com/search?q=%23BlackFridayParking&src=typed_query
https://sites.psu.edu/socialtrends/2022/08/13/why-are-millennials-refusing-to-buy-cars/#:~:text=Career%252520years%252520lost%252520early%252520on,gadgets%25252C%252520and%252520time%252520off%252520work.
https://sites.psu.edu/socialtrends/2022/08/13/why-are-millennials-refusing-to-buy-cars/#:~:text=Career%252520years%252520lost%252520early%252520on,gadgets%25252C%252520and%252520time%252520off%252520work.


INFORMATION ONLY





INFORMATION ONLY



















Conservation Measures & Minor Plumbing Repairs 

Households are eligible to receive up to $2,000 in conservations measures, such as a home 

water audit, minor plumbing repairs and educational water usage information. With an 

emphasis on creating a healthy home, WRAP provides repairs on leaking or nonfunctioning 

plumbing and other water fixtures to create a safe and livable home. 

Other Benefits 

Case management empowers WRAP service delivery partners to work directly with 

households to review their progress in making payments. Service delivery partners can also 

provide the household with access to additional services. 

How is someone eligible for WRAP? 

Households are eligible for WRAP if they meet the following criteria: 
• Reside within the GLWA service area;
• Demonstrate household income at or below 200 percent of the federal poverty level;
• Establish they are responsible for the water or sewer bill;
• Reside in the home they own or rent.

How does a household apply for WRAP? 

GLWA engages with service delivery partners who have direct oversight of the program in their 

service areas, allowing for more tailored outreach efforts and support. Partners include Macomb 

Community Action, United Way for Southeastern Michigan and Wayne Metropolitan Community 

Action Agency. The table below indicates which service delivery partners administer the program 

throughout the GLWA service area. 

. Service Delivery 
Service Area 

p 
Phone Online 

artner 

City of Flint Wayne Metropolitan I (810) 510-9727 www.waynemetro.org/wrap Community Action Agency 
Lapeer County Macomb Community Action 

I 
(586) 469-6464 mca.macombgov.org/mca-wrap

[ Macomb County ' Macomb Community Action (586) 469-6464 j mca.macombgov.org[mca-wrap

Monroe County Wayne Metropolitan ' (313) 386-9727 www.waynemetro.org/wrap Community Action Agency

r Oakland County United Way for (248) 983-5656 uwsem.smapply.org/pr0g/utilitiesSoutheastern Michigan 
St. Clair County Macomb Community Action (586) 469-6464 mca.macombgov.org/mca-wrap

I Washtenaw
County 

Wayne County 

Wayne Metropolitan 
Community Action Agency 
Wayne Metropolitan 
Commun_ity Action Agency 

City of Detroit Wayne Metropolitan 
Lifeline Plan* Community Action Agency 

(313) 386-9727 www.waynemetro.org/wrap

(313) 386-9727 www.waynemetro.org/wrap

(313) 386-9727 www.waynemetro.org/dwsdlifellne

* It should be noted that residents within the City of Detroit are eligible for the Detroit Water

& Sewerage Department's Lifeline Plan which is partially funded by WRAP and other

resources.

2 GLWA 







City of 
Birmingham

2023 PRE-MARCH BOARD OF REVIEW MEETING

INFORMATION ONLY



Equalization Responsibilities
The Equalization Division is a branch of property administration which determines assessed and taxable 

values on properties to generate taxes for each municipality in Oakland County.

Our mission as a Division is as follows:

✓ To ensure assessment uniformity among all classes of property

✓ Process splits and combinations as they relate to the Land Division Act

✓ Apportionment of local tax rates

✓ Contract assessor for 32 communities in Real Property and Business Personal Property 

✓ Provide excellent Customer Service 

2INFORMATION ONLY



Our office is divided into 6 specialized departments:

Real Property – Consists of certified assessing personnel responsible
for the valuation of land and building improvements.

Business Personal Property – Consists of certified auditors responsible
for the review and correction of business taxpayers' filings of personal
property holdings.

Land Descriptions – Processes splits and combinations of land as it
applies to the Land Division Act and Condominium Act. Maintains
county map data.

Appeals – Handles appeals that progress to the Michigan Tax Tribunal
from our local Boards of Review and State Tax Commission.

Equalization – This is the Checks and Balance side of our office. The
Equalization Department reviews the Assessment Roll to determine
that all classes of property have been fairly and uniformly assessed. If
an inequality exists, the County Board acts to correct the inequality.
Upon final determination, the County reports its findings to the State
Tax Commission for State Equalization.

Clerical – Processes forms and prepares reports to meet assessing
responsibilities.

3INFORMATION ONLY



Contracted Assessing Units

4INFORMATION ONLY



2020 Parcel Count
City of Ferndale

Real Residential 
Parcels

9,073

Real Commercial 
Parcels

523

Real Industrial 
Parcels

6

Personal 
Property Parcels

1,482

5

2022 Parcel Counts

*Totals do not include exempt or special act parcels.

City of Birmingham

INFORMATION ONLY



Average Residential Property Values

➢2022 Average Selling Price $701,653

➢2022 Average Residential Assessed Value $337,651*

*Value includes improved and vacant parcels in the residential classification but does 
not include exempt parcels.

6

City of Birmingham

INFORMATION ONLY



Value Changes
City of Birmingham

➢ 2023 Commercial Assessed Values +9.44%

➢ 2023 Industrial Assessed Values +9.77%

➢ 2023 Residential Assessed Values +4.76%

➢ 2023 Real Property Taxable Values +8.30%

*Assessed Value Changes are based on 49.75% closing ratio. All CVT’s close between 49% & 50% ratio,
therefore the actual % change may differ slightly. 2023 Board of Review decisions may also alter the
final percent change.

*Taxable Value only represents real property values. Personal property is not included in this number.
These numbers are PRE-March Board of Review for 2023.

*Taxable value change includes veteran exemptions that are removed from the roll annually at a BOR.

7INFORMATION ONLY



8

Average Residential Value Changes

2023 RATIOS / MOVES
MOVE BASED ON

2023 RATIOS / MOVES
MOVE BASED ON

TOWNSHIPS 49.75% CITIES 49.75%

SALES APRIL 1, 2020 THRU MARCH 31, 

2022 RESIDENTIAL RATIO RESIDENTIAL MOVE

SALES APRIL 1, 2020 THRU MARCH 31, 

2022 RESIDENTIAL RATIO RESIDENTIAL MOVES

ADDISON TOWNSHIP 45.43 9.51% AUBURN HILLS CITY 44.94 10.70%

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP 46.10 7.92% BERKLEY CITY 45.97 8.22%

BRANDON TOWNSHIP 44.46 11.90% BIRMINGHAM CITY 47.49 4.76%

COMMERCE TOWNSHIP 45.93 8.32% BLOOMFIELD HILLS CITY 47.82 4.04%

GROVELAND TOWNSHIP 45.40 9.58% CLARKSTON CITY 46.90 6.08%

HIGHLAND TOWNSHIP 44.68 11.35% CLAWSON CITY 45.66 8.96%

HOLLY TOWNSHIP 44.04 12.97% FARMINGTON CITY 45.60 9.10%

INDEPENDENCE TOWNSHIP 45.93 8.32% FARMINGTON HILLS CITY 45.64 9.01%

LYON TOWNSHIP 45.40 9.58% FENTON CITY 45.31 9.80%

MILFORD TOWNSHIP 45.86 8.48% FERNDALE CITY 45.39 9.61%

NOVI TOWNSHIP 46.47 7.06% HAZEL PARK CITY 43.55 14.24%

OAKLAND TOWNSHIP 46.20 7.68% HUNTINGTON WOODS CITY 46.10 7.92%

ORION TOWNSHIP 45.55 9.22% KEEGO HARBOR CITY 43.43 14.55%

OXFORD TOWNSHIP 45.22 10.02% LAKE ANGELUS CITY 48.35 2.90%

ROSE TOWNSHIP 45.45 9.46% LATHRUP VILLAGE CITY 44.92 10.75%

ROYAL OAK TOWNSHIP 43.18 15.22% MADISON HEIGHTS CITY 44.68 11.35%

SOUTHFIELD TOWNSHIP 46.31 7.43% NORTHVILLE CITY 46.20 7.68%

SPRINGFIELD TOWNSHIP 44.83 10.97% NOVI CITY 46.51 6.97%

WATERFORD TOWNSHIP 45.24 9.97% OAK PARK CITY 43.40 14.63%

WEST BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP 46.23 7.61% ORCHARD LAKE CITY 48.69 2.18%

WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP 46.64 6.67% PLEASANT RIDGE CITY 46.42 7.17%

PONTIAC CITY 43.93 13.25%

ROCHESTER CITY 46.29 7.47%

COUNTY AVERAGE 9.08% ROCHESTER HILLS CITY 45.45 9.46%

ROYAL OAK CITY 47.33 5.11%

COUNTY MEDIAN 9.05% SOUTHFIELD CITY 44.79 11.07%

SOUTH LYON CITY 45.68 8.91%

SYLVAN LAKE CITY 45.72 8.81%

TROY CITY 46.32 7.41%

WALLED LAKE CITY 45.22 10.02%

WIXOM CITY 45.00 10.56%

.1.1.1

INFORMATION ONLY



9

Commercial 
& Industrial 

Value 
Changes   

Cities

2023 Ratios/Moves
COMMERCIAL / INDUSTRIAL Move based on: Move based on:

CITIES 49.75% 49.75%

COMMERCIAL RATIOS COMMERCIAL MOVES INDUSTRIAL RATIOS INDUSTRIAL MOVES

AUBURN HILLS CITY 48.92 1.70% 47.84 3.99%

BERKLEY CITY 44.66 11.40% 44.97 10.63%

BIRMINGHAM CITY 45.46 9.44% 45.32 9.77%

BLOOMFIELD HILLS CITY 47.81 4.06% - -

CLARKSTON CITY 43.57 14.18% - -

CLAWSON CITY 43.42 14.58% 43.84 13.48%

FARMINGTON CITY 43.95 13.20% 43.95 13.20%

FARMINGTON HILLS CITY 45.04 10.46% 43.81 13.56%

FENTON CITY - - - -

FERNDALE CITY 43.46 14.47% 43.36 14.74%

HAZEL PARK CITY 43.12 15.38% 43.45 14.50%

HUNTINGTON WOODS CITY 46.33 7.38% - -

KEEGO HARBOR CITY 46.32 7.41% - -

LAKE ANGELUS CITY - - - -

LATHRUP VILLAGE CITY 46.54 6.90% - -

MADISON HEIGHTS CITY 45.03 10.48% 43.49 14.39%

NORTHVILLE CITY 46.37 7.29%

NOVI CITY 47.67 4.36% 46.26 7.54%

OAK PARK CITY 45.35 9.70% 45.59 9.12%

ORCHARD LAKE CITY 45.70 8.86% 43.24 15.06%

PLEASANT RIDGE CITY 43.98 13.12% - -

PONTIAC CITY 46.74 6.44% 44.99 10.58%

ROCHESTER CITY 46.45 7.10% 47.80 4.08%

ROCHESTER HILLS CITY 47.55 4.63% 46.84 6.21%

ROYAL OAK CITY 47.42 4.91% 46.05 8.03%

SOUTHFIELD CITY 46.78 6.35% 47.93 3.80%

SOUTH LYON CITY 44.69 11.32% 44.91 10.78%

SYLVAN LAKE CITY 46.62 6.71% 49.04 1.45%

TROY CITY 46.76 6.39% 45.50 9.34%

WALLED LAKE CITY 44.62 11.50% 44.49 11.82%

WIXOM CITY 43.83 13.51% 43.85 13.45%

OAKLAND COUNTY AVERAGE 46.07 7.99% 46.08 7.97%

INFORMATION ONLY



10

Commercial 
& Industrial 

Value 
Changes   

Townships

2023 Ratios/Moves
COMMERCIAL / INDUSTRIAL Move based on:

TOWNSHIPS 49.75% 49.75%

COMMERCIAL RATIOS COMMERCIAL MOVES INDUSTRIAL RATIOS INDUSTRIAL MOVES

ADDISON TOWNSHIP 47.77 4.14% 48.25 3.11%

BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP 46.91 6.05% 48.89 1.76%

BRANDON TOWNSHIP 48.19 3.24% 47.77 4.14%

COMMERCE TOWNSHIP 45.22 10.02% 44.39 12.07%

GROVELAND TOWNSHIP 47.37 5.02% 49.69 0.12%

HIGHLAND TOWNSHIP 47.29 5.20% 45.54 9.24%

HOLLY TOWNSHIP 45.39 9.61% 47.87 3.93%

INDEPENDENCE TOWNSHIP 47.01 5.83% 45.97 8.22%

LYON TOWNSHIP 45.09 10.33% 44.87 10.88%

MILFORD TOWNSHIP 45.49 9.36% 47.25 5.29%

NOVI TOWNSHIP - - - -

OAKLAND TOWNSHIP 48.18 3.26% 44.00 13.07%

ORION TOWNSHIP 44.99 10.58% 45.51 9.32%

OXFORD TOWNSHIP 46.76 6.39% 47.38 5.00%

ROSE TOWNSHIP 49.01 1.51% 49.53 0.44%

ROYAL OAK TOWNSHIP 46.14 7.82% 45.25 9.94%

SOUTHFIELD TOWNSHIP 46.14 7.82% 49.66 0.18%

SPRINGFIELD TOWNSHIP 46.34 7.36% 45.67 8.93%

WATERFORD TOWNSHIP 46.13 7.85% 44.86 10.90%

WEST BLOOMFIELD TOWNSHIP 46.89 6.10% 49.44 0.63%

WHITE LAKE TOWNSHIP 47.01 5.83% 47.03 5.78%

OAKLAND COUNTY AVERAGE 46.67 6.61% 46.94 5.98%

Move based on:

INFORMATION ONLY



HISTORICAL 2022 & 
2023 REAL PROPERTY
TAXABLE VALUE 
ESTIMATES FOR OCED 
CONTRACTED 
COMMUNITIES:

CITIES 

As of January 2023

*These taxable value 
estimates include only real 
property. Also please note 
the 2023 numbers are Pre-
March Board of Review. 

11

*2023 Pre MBR TV estimates account for all dollars attributed to parcels that qualify
for the veteran's exemption. Due to the requirement that veterans must refile annually
before being granted the exemption, the TV will appear inflated prior to the Board of
Review beginning to process these exemptions. The dollars must roll back on at the
beginning of each year and then roll off as exemptions are processed.

*Approximate TV attributed to veteran exemptions in Birmingham = $3,764,890 
*Veterans TV is estimated based upon 2022 vet filings.   

CVT 2022 TAXABLE 2023 PRE MBR TV 2023 TV %

BERKLEY 690,637,030 746,310,060 8.06%

BIRMINGHAM 2,887,183,550 3,126,780,760 8.30%

BLOOMFIELD HILLS 960,104,160 1,018,820,580 6.12%

CLARKSTON VILLAGE 49,620,150 53,953,720 8.73%

CLAWSON 423,928,610 460,522,900 8.63%

FARMINGTON 391,634,110 422,326,110 7.84%

FERNDALE 748,728,190 823,484,710 9.98%

HAZEL PARK 265,305,220 295,583,700 11.41%

HUNTINGTON WOODS 415,287,910 442,232,430 6.49%

KEEGO HARBOR 116,680,910 127,675,070 9.42%

LATHRUP VILLAGE 159,549,870 173,342,090 8.64%

MADISON HEIGHTS 874,689,970 950,724,250 8.69%

ORCHARD LAKE 433,249,690 461,660,600 6.56%

PLEASANT RIDGE 180,377,680 194,405,990 7.78%

PONTIAC 856,323,430 955,365,600 11.57%

ROCHESTER 861,907,590 930,507,180 7.96%

SOUTH LYON 435,701,650 485,957,420 11.53%

WALLED LAKE 236,933,200 259,197,350 9.40%

WIXOM 766,079,210 859,435,070 12.19%

2023 CITY TAXABLE VALUE ESTIMATES REAL PROPERTY ONLY

INFORMATION ONLY



HISTORICAL 2022 & 
2023 REAL PROPERTY
TAXABLE VALUE 
ESTIMATES FOR OCED 
CONTRACTED 
COMMUNITIES:

TOWNSHIPS

As of January 2023

*These taxable value 
estimates include only real 
property. Also please note 
the 2023 numbers are Pre-
March Board of Review. 

12

*2023 Pre MBR TV estimates account for all dollars attributed to parcels that
qualify for the veteran's exemption. Due to the requirement that veterans must
refile annually before being granted the exemption, the TV will appear inflated prior
to the Board of Review beginning to process these exemptions. The dollars must
roll back on at the beginning of each year and then be rolled off as exemptions are
processed.

CVT 2022 TV 2023 PRE MBR TV 2023 TV %

COMMERCE 2,384,711,750 2,582,632,380 8.30%

GROVELAND 238,537,890 260,219,700 9.09%

HOLLY 365,802,650 403,371,810 10.27%

LYON 1,463,663,140 1,677,841,340 14.63%

MILFORD 995,459,950 1,081,879,560 8.68%

NOVI 9,936,250 10,544,450 6.12%

OAKLAND 1,628,595,960 1,756,108,820 7.83%

ORION 1,989,793,220 2,173,087,560 9.21%

OXFORD 976,497,320 1,065,604,530 9.13%

ROSE 271,581,150 295,663,740 8.87%

ROYAL OAK 30,680,400 32,835,340 7.02%

SOUTHFIELD 1,253,461,960 1,341,842,590 7.05%

SPRINGFIELD 712,762,400 770,472,990 8.10%

2023 TOWNSHIP TAXABLE VALUE ESTIMATES REAL PROPERTY ONLY

INFORMATION ONLY



2022 
Personal 
Property 
Numbers

City of Birmingham

❑ Eligible Manufacturing 
Personal Property Statements 2

❑ 2022 5076 Affidavits
(Small Business Exemption) 1,015

❑ 2022 Personal Property 
Statements Processed 286  
*Excludes 5076 forms

**These figures reflect statements filed; not all personal property 
parcels**

13INFORMATION ONLY



2023
Personal 
Property 
Updates

City of Birmingham

14

Small Business Property Tax Exemption Claim (Form 
5076)

New for 2023 Tax Year: The amount eligible for exemption
has increased! Businesses with more than $80,000 but less
than $180,000 combined True Cash Value of personal
property owned, leased or used by them (and any related
entity) within a municipality may now qualify for this
exemption if they fully complete & timely file BOTH Form
5076 “Small Business Property Tax Exemption Claim” AND
Form 632 “Personal Property Statement”. Late Filed forms
may be filed directly with the local unit March Board of
Review. Failure to file both forms either timely or at the local
March Board of Review will mean the property owner will
NOT receive the exemption, even if the property would
otherwise be eligible.

Eligible Manufacturing Personal Property Tax 
Exemption Claim (Form 5278)

Beginning in 2023, taxpayers will only need to file Form 5278
in the first year of eligibility for the EMPP exemption. For all
years thereafter, the Department of Treasury will generate
Essential Services Assessment (aka: ESA) Statements utilizing
the information from the previous year’s certified ESA
Statements. After 2023 businesses will no longer be required
to file Form 5278 every year. The exemption will remain if the
business still qualifies.

INFORMATION ONLY



ESA/EMPP REIMBURSEMENTS – CITIES

For Further Information Contact:
www.oakgov.com/mgtbud/equal or  www.Michigan.gov/pptreimbursement
Tiffany Jacob, Supervisor 517-373-2697 or 
at jacobt@oakgov.com treasortappt@Michigan.gov

15

TAXING UNIT NAME
2022 PPT 

REIMBURSEMENT

OCTOBER 2022 

DISTRIBUTION

FEBRUARY 

2023 

DISTRIBUTION

AUBURN HILLS $1,736,291.22 -$                          $1,736,291.22

BERKLEY $43,361.01 $43,361.01 -$                          

BIRMINGHAM $70,963.36 $70,963.36 -$                          

BLOOMFIELD HILLS $24,730.81 $24,730.81 -$                          

CLARKSTON $651.40 $651.40 -$                          

CLAWSON $95,640.22 $95,640.22 -$                          

FARMINGTON $39,409.56 $39,409.56 -$                          

FARMINGTON HILLS $752,768.20 $752,768.20 -$                          

FERNDALE $481,170.41 $481,170.41 -$                          

HAZEL PARK $97,236.91 $97,236.91 -$                          

HUNTINGTON WOODS $4,636.49 $4,636.49 -$                          

KEEGO HARBOR $9,103.60 $9,103.60 -$                          

LAKE ANGELUS $0.44 $0.44 -$                          

LATHRUP VILLAGE $22,364.11 $22,364.11 -$                          

MADISON HEIGHTS $1,292,436.16 $1,292,436.16 -$                          

NOVI $37,374.15 $37,374.15 -$                          

OAK PARK $91,313.05 $91,313.05 -$                          

ORCHARD LAKE $4,850.89 $4,850.89 -$                          

PLEASANT RIDGE $11,659.47 $11,659.47 -$                          

PONTIAC $84,606.45 $84,606.45 -$                          

ROCHESTER $231,197.21 $231,197.21 -$                          

ROCHESTER HILLS $370,816.39 -$                          $370,816.39

ROYAL OAK $629,521.57 $629,521.57 -$                          

SOUTHFIELD $1,967,996.27 $1,967,996.27 -$                          

SOUTH LYON $97,106.04 $97,106.04 -$                          

SYLVAN LAKE $15,575.41 $15,575.41 -$                          

TROY $811,016.77 $811,016.77 -$                          

WALLED LAKE $17,516.65 $17,516.65 -$                          

WIXOM $399,882.00 $399,882.00 -$                          

INFORMATION ONLY

http://www.oakgov.com/mgtbud/equal
http://www.michigan.gov/pptreimbursement
mailto:treasortappt@Michigan.gov


ESA/EMPP REIMBURSEMENTS – TOWNSHIPS & VILLAGES

For Further Information Contact:
www.oakgov.com/mgtbud/equal or www.Michigan.gov/pptreimbursement
Tiffany Jacob, Supervisor 517-373-2697 or 
at jacobt@oakgov.com treasortappt@Michigan.gov

16

TAXING UNIT NAME
2022 PPT 

REIMBURSEMENT

OCTOBER 2022 

DISTRIBUTION

FEBRUARY 2023 

DISTRIBUTION

ADDISON $16,865.83 -$                        $16,865.83

BLOOMFIELD $124,588.14 -$                        $124,588.14

BRANDON $20,395.10 -$                        $20,395.10

COMMERCE $20,605.38 -$                        $20,605.38

GROVELAND $8,692.55 -$                        $8,692.55

HIGHLAND $7,942.42 -$                        $7,942.42

HOLLY $1,285.17 -$                        $1,285.17

INDEPENDENCE $18,012.11 -$                        $18,012.11

LYON $6,489.23 -$                        $6,489.23

MILFORD $229,512.89 -$                        $229,512.89

NOVI $0.00 -$                        -$                           

OAKLAND $10,644.53 -$                        $10,644.53

ORION $92,537.49 -$                        $92,537.49

OXFORD $246,170.78 -$                        $246,170.78

ROSE $4,668.51 -$                        $4,668.51

ROYAL OAK $22,732.83 -$                        $22,732.83

SOUTHFIELD $3,703.80 -$                        $3,703.80

SPRINGFIELD $22,141.50 -$                        $22,141.50

WATERFORD $100,658.96 -$                        $100,658.96

WEST BLOOMFIELD $122,167.91 -$                        $122,167.91

WHITE LAKE $33,653.76 -$                        $33,653.76

BEVERLY HILLS $26,194.21 $26,194.21 -$                           

BINGHAM FARMS $35,599.93 $35,599.93 -$                           

FRANKLIN $1,659.78 $1,659.78 -$                           

HOLLY $8,206.45 $8,206.45 -$                           

LAKE ORION $2,415.72 $2,415.72 -$                           

LEONARD $10,027.89 $10,027.89 -$                           

MILFORD $10,577.17 $10,577.17 -$                           

ORTONVILLE $1,343.92 $1,343.92 -$                           

OXFORD $54,477.13 $54,477.13 -$                           

WOLVERINE LAKE $818.68 $818.68 -$                           

INFORMATION ONLY

http://www.oakgov.com/mgtbud/equal
http://www.michigan.gov/pptreimbursement
mailto:jacobt@oakgov.com
mailto:treasortappt@Michigan.gov


IRM – 2023 INFLATION RATE MULTIPLIER
1.079 OR 7.9%

Also Known As:
Consumer Price 

Index (CPI)

17

*Because the IRM of 7.9% exceeds 5%, a multiplier of 1.05 (5%) must be used in the Capped Value Formula for 2023.

2023 CAPPED VALUE = (2022 TAXABLE VALUE – LOSSES) x 1.05 + ADDITIONS

INFORMATION ONLY



HEADLEE 
ROLLBACK

o The term “Headlee Rollback” relates to the passage of the Headlee

Amendment in 1978 to Michigan’s Constitution. In a nutshell,

Headlee requires a local unit of government to reduce its millage

when annual growth on existing property is greater than the rate of

inflation.

o As a consequence, the local unit’s millage rate gets “rolled back” so

that the resulting growth in property tax revenue, community-wide,

is no more than the rate of inflation.

Oakland County Equalization 

www.oakgov.com/mgtbud/equal

For questions contact Shannon Moore at mooresh@oakgov.com

18INFORMATION ONLY

http://www.oakgov.com/mgtbud/equal
mailto:mooresh@oakgov.com


HEADLEE ROLLBACK CALCULATION FORMULA:

Prior Year TV Minus Losses x IRM

The Current IRM is 7.9%

19

Current Year TV Minus Additions

= Millage Reduction Factor (MRF)

INFORMATION ONLY



The major variables that impact the Headlee 
rollback calculation include:

➢Taxable value uncapping from property 
transfers (“pop-ups”)
• The greater the number of pop-ups, a greater 

impact on rollback

➢Change in CPI
• The lower the CPI, a greater impact on rollback

• The higher the CPI, a lesser impact on rollback

➢Property tax exemption will also have an 
impact on rollback

Variables 
Affecting 
Millage 
Rollback

20INFORMATION ONLY



City of Birmingham
Open Tax Tribunal Cases
Open Michigan Tax Tribunal Cases as of 02/15/23

21

Docket 
Number Parcel

Parcel Tax 
Year

Tribunal 
Type

Appeal 
Type Parcel Class

Original 
Assessed 

Value

Original 
Taxable 
Value

Petitioner 
Assessed 

Value

Petitioner 
Taxable 
Value

Assessed 
Value in 

Contention

Taxable 
Value in 

Contention

22-000772 08-19-36-210-001 2022 Full SA Commercial - Improved $8,372,830 $3,182,110 $8,372,830 $3,182,110 $0 $0 

22-000772 08-19-36-210-003 2022 Full SA Commercial - Vacant $98,640 $53,750 $98,640 $53,750 $0 $0 

22-000772 08-19-36-210-005 2022 Full SA Commercial - Improved $849,770 $516,500 $849,770 $516,500 $0 $0 

22-001131 08-20-31-207-001 2022 Full Val Commercial - Improved $1,311,800 $1,311,800 $500,000 $500,000 ($811,800) ($811,800)

22-001132 08-20-31-207-007 2022 Full Val Commercial - Improved $993,370 $993,370 $300,000 $300,000 ($693,370) ($693,370)

22-001133 08-20-31-209-001 2022 Full Val Commercial - Improved $1,438,630 $1,438,630 $750,000 $750,000 ($688,630) ($688,630)

22-001135 08-20-31-208-025 2022 Full Val Commercial - Improved $852,580 $852,580 $550,000 $550,000 ($302,580) ($302,580)

22-001137 08-20-31-207-008 2022 Full Val Commercial - Improved $1,436,260 $1,436,260 $250,000 $250,000 ($1,186,260) ($1,186,260)

22-001301 08-20-31-355-033 2022 Full Val Commercial - Improved $1,283,660 $1,051,160 $500,000 $500,000 ($783,660) ($551,160)

22-001328 08-19-25-483-026 2022 Full Val Commercial - Improved $1,037,470 $619,800 $537,500 $537,500 ($499,970) ($82,300)

22-001443 08-19-25-328-001 2022 Full Val Commercial - Improved $6,004,490 $5,300,170 $3,875,000 $3,875,000 ($2,129,490) ($1,425,170)

22-001446 08-19-25-328-061 2022 Full Val Commercial - Improved $824,140 $795,360 $500,000 $500,000 ($324,140) ($295,360)

22-001941 08-20-30-379-043 2022 Full Val Commercial - Improved $1,854,690 $1,854,690 $1,000,000 $1,000,000 ($854,690) ($854,690)

22-002195 08-20-31-351-020 2022 Full Val Commercial - Improved $1,056,210 $682,430 $400,000 $400,000 ($656,210) ($282,430)

22-002617 08-19-26-177-013 2022 Full Val Residential - Improved $1,238,340 $1,177,680 $750,000 $750,000 ($488,340) ($427,680)

22-002521 08-19-36-159-005 2022 Small Val Residential Condominiums $1,054,930 $1,054,930 $896,378 $896,378 ($158,552) ($158,552)

22-002619 08-19-35-479-011 2022 Small Val Residential - Improved $232,740 $232,740 $205,000 $205,000 ($27,740) ($27,740)

22-002630 08-19-35-126-003 2022 Small Val Residential - Improved $1,692,290 $1,673,590 $1,250,000 $1,250,000 ($442,290) ($423,590)

22-002700 08-19-36-255-008 2022 Small Val Residential - Improved $394,940 $394,940 $350,000 $350,000 ($44,940) ($44,940)

22-002714 08-19-35-226-009 2022 Small Val Residential - Improved $431,560 $431,560 $375,500 $375,500 ($56,060) ($56,060)

22-002752 08-19-35-327-035 2022 Small Val Residential - Improved $207,490 $125,560 $190,000 $190,000 ($17,490) $64,440 

22-003100 08-19-26-176-007 2022 Small SA Residential - Improved $513,020 $358,170 $513,020 $358,170 $0 $0 

INFORMATION ONLY



Highlights 
of 2022

22INFORMATION ONLY



����������	���
� �������������������������������������������������������������������

�����	����� �!�" ����������������������#��$����%�������#�����#���#����#���#�������#����#��#�������#������#�������� ��&

'( )*$�������   
+ + , - .

/0//

1234

INFORMATION ONLY



����������	���
� �������������������������������������������������������������������

�����	����� �!�" ����������������������#��$����%�������#�����#���#����#���#�������#����#��#�������#������#�������� ��&

'()*(+,-.*/�*0123�456789�:�'0;<0=>2?<�@AB01C�DABE�5678�D20F�GCCHD2CI�;CF@A=ECE�DA�1;?1H�EAG=�A=�?�@;AJBC<K�LCA@BC�HCC@�@?;H0=>�0=2?=E01?@@CE�F@ADF�?=E�D2C�M=BA?E0=>�?;C?�=CND�DA�D2C<�0=�EAG=DAG='0;<0=>2?<3�.F�5678�1AOC;CE�D2C�FDA;I/�GC�F?G�0D�2?@@C=3P20F�0F�FA<CD20=>�@CA@BC�G2A�;CBI�A=�2?=E01?@@CE�F@ADF�F?I�D2CI�FCC�?BB�DAAAQDC=3�R;0OC;F/�AQDC=�@01H0=>�M@�1?;;IAMD/�@?;H�0BBC>?BBI�0=�D2C�2?=E01?@@CE�F@ADA;�0=�D2C�M=BA?E0=>�?;C?�=CND�DA�0D3STUTVW�XWYZ[T\�]ZŶ �_̀abcUŶ
d(�HC@D�1?BB0=>�D2C�@?;H0=>�@AB01C�F?I0=>�IAM�2?OC�DA�1A<C�DAG�D20F�1?;/�JC0=>B0HC�IAM�2?OC�DA�DAG�D20F�1?;3�5C�B0DC;?BBI�G?D12CE�?�GA<?=�G0D2�?�G?BHC;�2?OCDA�>A�AMD�0=�D2C�FD;CCD�DA�>CD�A=�D2C�F0ECG?BH/e�CN@B?0=CE�.BCN?=E;?�.I?MJ/�?'0;<0=>2?<�;CF0EC=D3

fghij�klmnopqrst�uvrwx
INFORMATION ONLY



����������	���
� �������������������������������������������������������������������

�����	����� �!�" ����������������������#��$����%�������#�����#���#����#���#�������#����#��#�������#������#�������� ��&

'()*+�,)(,�,-.�,/)0/.1�2..3456�/0)728�9-.�,-)0.1�347/*0.,�,-.�/::2�:;�<.-47=.,,-.�,)>�3)02.1�>4/-�5:�-)5147)3�3.0?4/�14,3=)(.1�:0�3=)/.89-.�5:/47.,�/-4,�+.7)*,.�,-.�25:>,�>-)/�4/�4,�=42.8�9-.�>),�+:05�>4/-�7=*+�;../@*51.0>.5/�5*?.0:*,�,*06.04.,�/:�6)45�?:+4=4/(�+*/�,/4==�=4<.,�>4/-�3)458�9-.,)(,�4/�4,�-)01�5:/�/:�6./�?)1�>-.5�/0(456�/:�3)02�45�1:>5/:>5�A40?456-)?8BC�-)<.�=4/.0)==(�104<.5�)0:*51�/-.�+=:72�)�;.>�/4?.,�)51�/-.5�)?�=42.@�C�)?6:456�/:�6:�-:?.�)51�;:06./�4/8�A.7)*,.�/-)/�?46-/�+.�)�1)(�>-.5�?(�?:+4=4/(5..1,�.D/0)�7)0.�)51�C�)?�+.456�+=:72.1�+(�,:?.:5.�>-:�4,�4==.6)==(�45�/-)/,3)7.@E�,)41�'()*+89-.�,-)0.1�-.0�;0*,/0)/4:5,�)+:*/�3.:3=.�3)02456�5:/�:5=(�45�-)5147)3�,3)7.,+*/�45�/-.�*5=:)1456�)0.)�5.D/�/:�/-.�,3)7.�)51�6:/�)�,*0304,.8F)5(�3.:3=.�:5�,:74)=�?.14)�,)41�/-.(�1415G/�25:>�/-4,�,3)7.�/-)/)77:??:1)/.,�3.:3=.�>4/-�>-..=7-)40,�)51�>)=2.0,�>),�)=,:�4==.6)=�/:�3)02�4589-.�,)(,�)>)0.5.,,�4,�2.(�,:�.<.0(:5.�7)5�=4<.�=4<.,�>4/-�;0..1:?@�0.6)01=.,,�:;/-.40�3-(,47)=�)+4=4/4.,8BH-.�>:0=1�4,�-)01�.5:*6-�/:�5)<46)/.�),�,:?.:5.�>4/-�)�14,)+4=4/(�)51�3.:3=.?)2.�4/�,:�?*7-�-)01.0�+(�3*//456�/-.40�7:5<.54.57.�:<.0�,:?.:5.�.=,.G,�>.==I+.4568�C/�4,�4570.14+=(�;0*,/0)/456@E�,-.�,)418H-.�;45.�;:0�3)02456�45�)�-)5147)3�,3:/�4,�JKLL�1:==)0,8M#��� N$%��OPQ
RSTU��V
INFORMATION ONLY



����������	���
� ��������������������������������������������
� ����

���!�	�����"�����#"��������$���%&'���##�(�(�) #*'!�)�#����'���)!#�����'���#����+�
�(,-�,-��(�,(�(.-.�)��!�'�����+�
�(,-�,-��(�/ ���

0123�456789:�;9<56789:=<89:7>?@>A7BC>:D9EF�GA>7A9::567�0H?5E>AI���#����#JC>:D9EF�K29AF196HJ�?59�C12ALE�MNN5D2�O��#�&�P���#QR����� "���S T��������������������	�(�
�U#!���V�	���������W#��������O�������XW#�������Q�������"���S��	�YZ������[��Y�O[��XZ����Q�������"���S\]]̂�_]̀abacd�ef�g̀f�h]__biif̂�i]�jffkbac�l]m�gâ�]m̀�hmni]_f̀n�bao]̀_f̂�gp]mi�hqgacfn�i]�robabil�st�nf̀ubhfnv�whh]̀ b̂acxld�kxfgnfa]if�iqf�o]xx]ybac�hqgacfz� {��������������|oofhibuf�}g̀hq�~�d����~d��gâ��aif̀agib]agx�ybxx�hfgnf�]kf̀gib]anv��xfgnf�offx�òff�i]�h]aighi�_f�gi��������������bo�l]m�qguf�gal��mfnib]anv��bahf̀fxld�|̀bh�e]]̂l}gagcf̀d�|�if̀agx�woogb̀n�]_hgnid��fg̀ixgâ��fcb]a�������������#!����"�����$��������.�(��
INFORMATION ONLY



3/1/23, 10:41 AM Birmingham, MI

https://www.bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_departments/treasurer_s_office/property_tax_information/index.php 1/4

Print this page Text resize

Property taxes are required to fund City programs and services such as police and fire

protection, refuse collection, capital and infrastructure improvements and recreational facilities

and activities. Approximately 70% of the City's General Operating Fund is derived from

property taxes. This revenue source is based on taxable valuation of industrial, commercial, and

residential real and personal property as determined by the City Assessor. The millage rates

levied on the taxable values are determined each year during the annual budget process. The

millage rates are established so as to provide sufficient funding to support the level of service,

programs and projects approved in the annual budget.

Pay taxes online

Choose correct mailing address when paying property taxes via online banking portals

The City reminds those taxpayers who pay their taxes online through their bank to select the

following mailing address with your tax payment: 

CITY OF BIRMINGHAM-TAXES
P.O. BOX 671732

DETROIT, MI 48267-1732

As you can see, the City’s bank is in DETROIT! That is why the Detroit P.O. Box is listed for the

payment. The City urges you to confirm that you have the correct P.O Box, City and Zip Code

information when associated with your tax payment. If you do not include the correct city or zip

code information, your payment may be at risk of not being delivered to the City. 

The City also reminds you to please include your 12-digit parcel number 08-XX-XX-XXX-XXX

which can be found on your tax bill, as your account number. 

General Information

The City of Birmingham issues two tax bills every year. The first tax bill is mailed on July 1 and

due without penalty on August 31. The second bill is mailed December 1 and is due without

penalty on February 14.

The July tax bill is comprised of Birmingham City tax, Intermediate School, partial Birmingham

School, Oakland Community College, Oakland County tax and State Education taxes. After

August 31, the penalty is ¾ of 1 percent per month or fraction of a month.

The December bill is comprised of HCMA, Oakland County Parks & Recreation, Oakland

County Public Transportation Authority, Zoo Authority, Art Institute and partial Birmingham

School tax. There is an additional 3% penalty on property taxes paid February 15 through

February 28. Beginning March 1 property taxes must be paid at Oakland County.

Tax Rate

You can calculate your tax bill by dividing the taxable value of your property by 1,000 and

multiplying that number times the millage rate. A Principal Residence with a taxable value of

$288,750 would have a $9,892.37 July 2022 tax bill and December 2022 tax bill of $1,247.89

for a total of $11,140.26 ($288,750/1,000 x 38.5810). A mill translates to $1.00 for every $1,000

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.bhamgov.org/
https://www.bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_departments/treasurer_s_office/online_payments.php
https://www.bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_departments/treasurer_s_office/online_payments.php


3/1/23, 10:41 AM Birmingham, MI

https://www.bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_departments/treasurer_s_office/property_tax_information/index.php 2/4

in taxable value.

Frequently Asked Questions regarding the City’s Tax Rate

Is the City of Birmingham’s local tax rate high compared to surrounding cities?
No. The City of Birmingham’s local tax rate is 13.3542, which is low in comparison to many of

our surrounding cities:

Clawson: 22.3778

Royal Oak: 17.5580

Berkley: 15.7752

Beverly Hills 13.6735

Ferndale 24.6953

Bloomfield Hills 10.9600

If Birmingham’s local tax rate is 13.3542, why am I paying a total tax rate of 40.2062?
Birmingham’s local tax rate is only a portion of the overall tax bill. The other taxes represent

county and school taxes, in addition to transportation, the Detroit Zoo, and the Detroit Institute

of Arts. The city's tax levy makes up approximately 34% of the overall tax bill. The city has

lowered its tax levy each year for the past 8 years. We are able to do this due to the

reinvestment in the residential and commercial areas of our city. Birmingham’s total tax rate of

40.2062 includes the county and school tax, transportation, Detroit Zoo, and the Detroit

Institute of Arts on top of the 13.3542 city tax.

How does the total tax rate for Birmingham residents compare to surrounding cities?
The total tax rate for surrounding cities are as follows (based on 2021 data, homestead

exemption): 

Clawson: 48.3717

Royal Oak: 39.4023

Berkley: 38.5788

Beverly Hills: 40.1607

Ferndale: 50.8095

Bloomfield Hills: 36.0834

Is the City of Birmingham’s millage rate high compared to comparable cities throughout the
state?
No. From a state perspective, the city's total millage rate is lower than many communities of

approximate population size: 

Mt. Pleasant: 44.3433

Adrian: 42.9171

Ypsilanti: 67.5622

Monroe: 43.3223

Auburn Hills 39.0068

Romulus 52.6568

Wyandotte 54.0158

Garden City 57.7899

Madison Heights 46.6624

If the City of Birmingham’s tax rate is low compared to most surrounding cities and to those of
comparable size across the state, why is my tax bill so high?
A resident's tax bill is calculated by multiplying the total tax rate by the value of their property.

Even with a lower tax rate, Birmingham residents may pay more property taxes than residents in

other municipalities due to the value of their property. Birmingham property values are higher

than most communities because of proximity to a thriving historical downtown, highly rated

school system, charming tree-lined neighborhoods, award-winning parks, golf courses and

more.   

INFORMATION ONLY



3/1/23, 10:41 AM Birmingham, MI

https://www.bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_departments/treasurer_s_office/property_tax_information/index.php 3/4

View 2022 Tax Rate Information

Birmingham Homeowner's Principal Residence Tax Rates

The information shown below represents the principal residence millage rates as adopted for

2022. For additional information about the specific millage rates for a property, including

special assessments and non-homestead millage rates, please contact the Treasurer's Office at

248.530.1890.

      July 2022 December 2022

City of Birmingham Operating    10.7655 -

  Debt   .5104 -

  Refuse   0.7641 -

  Library   1.3142 -

    Total City 13.3542  

         

Birmingham Public Schools Supplemental   2.4816 2.5326

  Debt   3.8000 -

   

Total
Schools

6.2816  

         

Oakland County Community College     1.4891 -

Oakland County Intermediate

Schools
    3.1658 -

State Education Tax     6.0000 -

Oakland County     3.9686 0.5501

Zoo Authority     - 0.0945

SMART     - 0.9500

Art 9851     - 0.1945

    Total 34.2593 4.3217

Deferment of Taxes

Deferments are available for senior citizens and legally disabled persons with an annual income

of less than $40,000. This deferment is for a homeowner's principle residence only and allows

summer taxes to be paid on or before February 14 of the following year without penalty.

Qualified individuals must complete the Application for Deferment of Summer Taxes

Form annually, and return to the Treasurer's Office, along with a copy of your MI-1040CR before

September 15th. Download a Summer Deferment FAQ for more information.

24 Hour Tax Information Hotline

Property tax information is available on the Oakland County 24 Hour Tax Hotline by dialing

888.600.3773. To access the information, you will need to enter your 10 digit parcel Id number.

There is no charge for this service.

Personal Property Taxes

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.bhamgov.org/Document_Center/Department/Treasurers%20Office/Property%20Tax%20Information/Application_for_Deferment_of_Summer_Taxes.pdf
https://www.bhamgov.org/Document_Center/Department/Treasurers%20Office/Property%20Tax%20Information/Summer_Tax_Deferment_FAQ.pdf


3/1/23, 10:41 AM Birmingham, MI

https://www.bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_departments/treasurer_s_office/property_tax_information/index.php 4/4

Personal Property is assessed as of tax day, December 31st of last year.  Businesses in existence

on tax day are responsible for the full amount on the July and December tax bills.

Tax Payments

Taxes can be paid in person or by mail. The Treasurer's Office is open from 8:00 a.m. to 5:00

p.m., Monday through Friday. The Treasurer's Office is inside City Hall at 151 Martin Street,

which is one block west of Old Woodward and one block south of Maple. Our office is closed

on holidays.  There is a self-addressed return envelope enclosed in your tax bill for your

convenience.  A drop box is located behind City Hall.

You may also pay taxes online.

Tax payments must be physically received by the Treasurer's Office on or before the due date to

avoid penalty. If taxes have not been paid before March 1, both July and December will be

payable to the Oakland County Treasurer.

If you do not receive your summer tax bill by the end of the first week in July or your winter tax

bill by the end of the first week in December, please call the Treasurer's Office at 248.530.1890.

We will send you a copy of your bill.

The tax bills are mailed either to the homeowner or the homeowner's mortgage company;

therefore, it is very important that the homeowner keep the city informed of any changes in

homeowner's mailing address or mortgage company information. In the case of a refinance, a

new mortgage company may now be responsible for paying the taxes, or the taxes are no

longer taxes paid through an escrow account.  State law holds the homeowner responsible for

making sure taxes are paid.  Please contact the Treasurer's Office at 248.530.1890, or in writing

with the property owner's signature, to change the mailing address.

INFORMATION ONLY

https://www.bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_departments/treasurer_s_office/online_payments.php
https://www.bhamgov.org/about_birmingham/city_departments/treasurer_s_office/online_payments.php


INFORMATION ONLY


	20230313 BIRMINGHAM CITY COMMISSION AGENDAv2
	3A 20230313 MMTB NOTICE OF INTENTION - APPT
	city code 110-26 110-27 MULTI_MODAL_TRANSPORTATION_BOARD.pdf
	ARTICLE I. IN GENERAL
	Secs. 110-1—110-25. Reserved.
	Sec. 110-26. Composition.
	Sec. 110-27. Terms of members.


	2021 ATTENDANCE - mmtb.pdf
	Sheet1

	ADP2AA.tmp
	Sheet1

	ADPBCF4.tmp
	Sheet1


	5A 20230313 2_27_23 Minutes - DRAFT
	Alexandria Bingham, City Clerk 

	5B 20230313 warrant list 03012023
	5C 20230308 warrant list  20230313
	5D 20230313 Zamboni Purchase - FINAL
	Zamboni Purchase Agreement 03.07.2023.pdf
	Zamboni Agreement ONLY.pdf
	AGREEMENT FOR EQUIPMENT PURCHASE BETWEEN THE CITY OF BIRMINGHAM & ZAMBONI COMPANY USA, INC.


	Zamboni WC Renewal Cert Zamboni USA.pdf
	Job 3: Zamboni Company USA, Inc.


	5E 20230313 Museum-Phase II Window Restoration
	20230313 Memo Museum-Phase II Window Restoration.pdf
	LGK Windows Phase II Agr-no sig-ins .pdf
	LGK Agr A-B-C-D-E-.pdf
	LGK-Unsigned Agreement-WindowsII.pdf
	ATTACHMENT A - AGREEMENT

	LGK Agrmt Bid Response WindowsII.pdf

	20230106 RFP Phase II Lower Windows-Complete.pdf
	20230106-Request for Proposals-Phase II Lower Windows Allen House Window Restoration.pdf
	INTRODUCTION
	MANDATORY PRE-BID MEETING
	INVITATION TO SUBMIT A PROPOSAL
	INSTRUCTIONS TO BIDDERS
	SUBMISSION REQUIREMENTS
	CONTRACTOR RESPONSIBILITIES
	CITY RESPONSIBILITY
	EVALUATION PROCEDURE AND CRITERIA
	TERMS AND CONDITIONS
	SETTLEMENT OF DISPUTES
	INSURANCE
	CONTINUATION OF COVERAGE
	EXECUTION OF CONTRACT
	INDEMNIFICATION
	CONFLICT OF INTEREST
	EXAMINATION OF PROPOSAL MATERIALS
	ANTICIPATED PROJECT TIMELINE
	SCOPE OF WORK SUMMARY
	ATTACHMENT A - AGREEMENT
	ATTACHMENT B - BIDDER’S AGREEMENT
	ATTACHMENT C - COST PROPOSAL
	ATTACHMENT D - IRAN SANCTIONS ACT VENDOR CERTIFICATION FORM
	ATTACHMENT E - DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK WITH WINDOW SURVEY           For Birmingham Museum- Phase II-Lower Windows- Allen House Historic Window Restoration Project
	GENERAL INFORMATION
	SASH REMOVAL/RE-INSTALLATION-PAINTED AND UNPAINTED DOUBLE HUNG WINDOWS
	JAMB AND SILL REFINISHING-PAINTED DOUBLE HUNG WINDOWS
	SASH RESTORATION-PAINTED AND NON-PAINTED DOUBLE HUNG WINDOWS
	WOOD ROT & EPOXY REPAIR
	WINDOW SCHEDULE/SURVEY
	First Floor Summary

	Attachment F Secretary of the Interior Standards-Preservation-Windows.pdf
	Pages from Sec of Int Standards- treatment-guidelines-2017.pdf
	Pages from Sec of Int Standards- treatment-guidelines-2017-2.pdf
	Pages from Sec of Int Standards- treatment-guidelines-2017-3.pdf




	5F 20230313_CC_Parking_Lot_05_Slope_Repairs_Award_Memo_w_attachments
	5G 20230313_CC_Emergency_Parking_Lot_Wall_Repairs_Memo_w_attachments - FINAL
	5H 20230313 WJE Addendum of Repair Design and Construction Document Development
	Memo - Addendum - WJE Repair Design & Construction Document Development
	2023.02.23 Addendum to the AGREEMENT OF REPAIR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION.Fully Executed
	2023-02-22_CityOfBirminghamParkingStructures_ADDENDUM (1)
	AGREEMENT OF REPAIR DESIGN AND CONSTRUCTION.Original

	5I 20230312 Set PH - 34350 Woodward Ave - Fred Lavery Porsche - Lot Combo - FULL
	7A 20230312 PH - 34350 Woodward Ave - Fred Lavery Porsche - SLUP, FSP & DR - FULL
	7B 20230313_CC_LHGC_Tee01_Award_Memo_w_attachments - FINAL
	7D2 20230313 Pat Andrews - City of Birmingham MI Mail - Re_ Green Space East of Chesterfield Fire Station
	10A1 20230313 BTA PRE APPT. NOTICE OF INTENTION
	10A2 20230313 BRA PRE APPT. NOTICE OF INTENTION
	CITY OF BIRMINGHAM
	BROWNFIELD REDEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY

	10E1 20230313 Code of Conduct Report with Cover
	20230303 IO Downtown Publications City of Birmingham MI Mail - Fwd_ Weekly update
	20230313 INFORMATION ONLY NYT - Awash in Asphalt, Cities Rethink Their Parking Needs
	20230313 IO - DTE MPSC hearing notice
	20230313 IO - GLWA 2024 water and sewer charges
	20230313 IO 08- Birmingham BoR
	Slide 1: City of Birmingham
	Slide 2
	Slide 3: Our office is divided into 6 specialized departments:
	Slide 4: Contracted Assessing Units
	Slide 5: 2020 Parcel Count  City of Ferndale
	Slide 6: Average Residential Property Values   
	Slide 7
	Slide 8: Average Residential Value Changes
	Slide 9: Commercial & Industrial Value Changes   Cities
	Slide 10: Commercial & Industrial Value Changes   Townships
	Slide 11
	Slide 12
	Slide 13:  2022 Personal Property Numbers  City of Birmingham
	Slide 14:  2023 Personal Property Updates  City of Birmingham
	Slide 15
	Slide 16
	Slide 17
	Slide 18: HEADLEE ROLLBACK
	Slide 19
	Slide 20
	Slide 21
	Slide 22: Highlights of 2022

	20230313 IO Birmingham police say they are cracking down on handicap parking violators
	20230313 IO Comcast Programming
	20230313 IO Tax information from website
	20230327 IO Comcast fee & lineup changes

	BoardCommittee of Interest: MMTB
	Specific CategoryVacancy on Board: Regular Member Exp 3/13/26
	Name: Mark Doolittle, CPA
	Phone: 248-535-0632
	Residential Address: 1305 S Bates
	Email: mark.j.doolittle@gmail.com
	Residential City Zip: Birmingham
	Length of Residence: 10+ years
	Business Address: 
	Occupation: accountant
	Business City Zip: 48009
	Reason for Interest Explain how your background and skills will enhance the board to which you have applied: 
	1: Former consultant and automotive thought leader in the transportation and mobility space. 
	List your related employment experience 1: Ford Motor Company -- product development (electrification)
	List your related employment experience 2: Techstars Mobility mentor/ consultant -- Ford sponsored incubator for next generation mobility services
	List your related community activities 1: Church volunteer
	List your related community activities 2: 
	List your related educational experience 1: Michigan Ross MBA
	List your related educational experience 2: 
	direct compensation or financial benefit If yes please explain 1: no
	direct compensation or financial benefit If yes please explain 2: 
	Do you currently have a relative serving on the boardcommittee to which you have applied: No
	Are you an elector registered voter in the City of Birmingham 1: Yes
	Date: 3/6/2023
	2: Detail orientated professional with a strong sense of civic duty and interest in advancing the goals of Birmingham.


